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 NOTICE OF MEETING 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

August 25, 2021
Special Meeting at 1:30 p.m.

City Council Chambers
504 N. Queen Street

Palestine, Texas

 

Zoom Link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88124881074?pwd=T1N1SnJnMU00bC9DUlhReUF1b0c0QT09

Meeting ID: 881 2488 1074
Passcode: 928874
One tap mobile
+13462487799,,88124881074#,,,,*928874# US 
 
Note: when you are joining a Zoom meeting by phone, you can use your phone’s dial pad to enter the
commands *6 for toggling mute/unmute and *9 to “raise your hand.” Learn more here.

Follow us live at: facebook.com/palestinetx/

           
SPECIAL MEETING
A. CALL TO ORDER

 
  

B. PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS
 

  

C. PUBLIC RECOGNITION, PUBLIC COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
Any citizen wishing to speak during public comments regarding an item on or off the
agenda may do so after completing the required Request to Speak form. All comments
must be no more than five minutes in length. Any comments regarding items not on the
posted agenda may not be discussed or responded to by the City Council. Members of the
public may join via Zoom or in person.

It is not the intention of the City of Palestine to provide a public forum for the
embarrassment or demeaning of an individual or group. Neither is it the intention of the
Council to allow a member of the public to slur the performance, honesty, and/or integrity of
any person or threaten any person. Accordingly, profane, insulting, or threatening language
will not be read aloud at the meeting.  
 

  

D. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES
 

  

E. REGULAR AGENDA   
1. Discussion and possible action regarding an ordinance providing for the issuance of City of

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88124881074?pwd=T1N1SnJnMU00bC9DUlhReUF1b0c0QT09
http://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
http://www.facebook.com/palestinetx/


1. Discussion and possible action regarding an ordinance providing for the issuance of City of
Palestine, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022
(forward delivery), in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $ 42,000,000; awarding the
sale thereof; levying a tax in payment thereof; prescribing the form of said certificates;
approving a paying agent/registrar agreement and forward delivery purchase contract;
approving the Official Statement; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

2. Discussion and possible action regarding the allocation of cost savings on Health Benefits. Lisa
Cariker, HR Director

3. Discussion regarding proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. Teresa Herrera, City
Manager
 

  

F. ADJOURNMENT
 

  

I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the outdoor bulletin board at the main entrance
to City Hall, 504 N. Queen Street, Palestine, Texas, in compliance with Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code on  Friday, August 20, 2021, at 3:00 p.m.

April Jackson, Asst. City Secretary

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)
PERSONS IN NEED OF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHALL, CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE VIA EMAIL AT therrera@palestine-tx.org or
903-731-8414.

mailto:therrera@palestine-tx.org


Agenda Date: August 25, 2021
To: City Council
From: Roxanna Briley, Finance Director
Agenda Item: Issuance of Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022
Date Submitted: 08/20/2021

SUMMARY:
ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS, COMBINATION
TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022 (FORWARD DELIVERY), IN
THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $42,000,000; AWARDING THE SALE
THEREOF;  LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID
CERTIFICATES; APPROVING A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND FORWARD
DELIVERY PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND ENACTING
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
APPROVE AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS,
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022 (FORWARD
DELIVERY), IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $42,000,000; AWARDING
THE SALE THEREOF;  LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF
SAID CERTIFICATES; APPROVING A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND FORWARD
DELIVERY PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND ENACTING
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO
 

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:
Staff recommends approval.

Attachments
Preliminary Official Statement 
Draft ordinance 
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Dated August 19,2021

R!tings:
S&P: ",rA" (.\GU lnsured)/"-{+n t'nderlrirs
(See "OTIIIR I N ]'OR NIAT IO,,t., Ratinss"
and "BOND INStTRAi\.,CE" herrin)\E\\ l SS t D - Book-l':'rlr\ -O'r l)

4 th. on hen thetu,l

s3{.590,000*
( l'l \ ()F P\I ESTI\F..'t !:\ \S

(,\ndrrson Count])
(]O]\TI}INATION TAX AND R[\'1']\tIf (]ERTIFICATES OT' oBI,IGATIO}... SERIf S 2022

(lor$ard Dcli\'€r!')

Dr(ed Datc: August 15.2021 I)Ir:Augnsl 15,2022andFebr nr] 15, as sho\ln on page 2

lntrrrst accrucs from thr torw:rrd Drlivcry Datc (dclinrd hcrrin)

Principal ol pre iuDr-il an\. and interesl onthe (crlilicatcs \\ill be pa!,able b) lhe l'ir!'nrg Agent/ReBistrar ro Ccdc & Co, \lhich \yill nrake

-IllU ChRTIFICAI lis - llook-llnlry-Only Syslcn-hsrein). Ihc initial Paying AScr)l/ltegislrar is Rcgiolrs Bank. llouslon,'lexas (see "THE
(lFlR llFICAl-hS - l']aying AeienURegistrar").

la\\. and (ii) the Surplus ll.\,cnucs offie Ciq s \tater\\orks and sewer slste r (lhc S\stcni ) remairirg alicr palnlcnl ofatl operaling and

(see TLIE CITRTIFICAI-liS - Authoritv for Issuince ol lhc ( crlilicates").

!'ehicles for police. ptrhlic tyorks firc. cmerger.\' senrccs- b rlding services. plannirrg and dcvelopment and park alld rccrcation purposes: (v)

incurrcd in connecttD $ilh thc ftojoct, and (xii) pa)'in8 lhc costs incurred in con cction \\,ith the issuancc oflhe Certilicllcs

( t Sll'l'RIl-IX: 696J27

)t.\1t RIIl S(',ltf DIrt_E & 9 t)t(;t] (tstP
Src Schrdule on I'rgc l

lNstr&\i\.'cE. . . The scheduled pa)menl of principal of and inlcrest on the Certificalcs when due Nill be guaranteed under a llhsUruO
municipal bond insurancc polic)' to be issned coflftrrcnll] \rrlh rhe delivery of thc Ccrrificares by ASSURED GIIAIIANTY GIJ n^]flY
MIINICIPAL CORP. ( 'AcM") (see BOND INSURANCU' and BOND INSURANCI-I RISK FACTORS'). {r(..(
LEGAI,ITY ... Th(- Cerlificales are ollered for delivcry s,hen. as and if issued and reccived by the undenvriters ol lhq Certificates (the
''Underwriters") and subjcct to the approving opinion ofthc Attomey General of ltxas and the opinion of Bracervell Ll,P. Dallas, Texas, as Bond
Counsel (see Appendix D. "roml ofBond Counsel's Opinion"). Cefiain legal matters wilh rcspectto the Certificates willbe passcd upon byMccall.
Parklursl & Hofton L.L.P.. Counsel to the Underwriters

DELIyER\'. . It is expectcd thal the Certificatcs in dlrfinitive lbrn uill be availablc lbr delivery to the Ra] mond Janres & Associates, Inc.
(the "Representalire"). on behalfofthe Undenvrilcrs. on the Fonvard Deli\.er] Datc. I-he Reprcsenlative rcscrvcs the right to obligate
inl'estors purchasing thc Certificatcs to execule and delivcr to the Rcpresentative a [)cla)'ed [)elivery Contracl. the lirrrn ol'rvhich is includcd
herein as APPENDIX C.

B.{IRD

* Preliminary, subiecr kr change
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IIA ITIRI'TY SCIIEDTII,I]*

CITY OF PALESI'INE, TEXAS
('()III}IN,\]'I0\ 'I \X ,\ND R'\'ENT:D CER'I'IFI(]ATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022

(Irors,rrd Delivenl

Ct SIP Prctit: 696327(r)

Maturit)

Date

Iniliai

Rarc

lnitral

Yield

CUSIP

Sull'rrlr)

8/t5/2022

2/t5t2023

2/t5no24

2L5nO25

2/1512026

2/l,512021

2/1512018

2 512019

2 5t2030

2^5/1031

2/15/2011

2^5n033

2^5n034

2/15/2035

2/15n036

2/ts/2r3'/

21t 5n038

2115n$9

21t512040

2/1512041

2/15n042

2t15/2043

2/15t2044

2/15D045

2/15n046

115n047

2/15n048

2/15n049

2/tsD050

7^5/205t

$ 170.000

.t 10.000

120,000

12i.000

420,000

500.000

595.000

6 t0,000

615.000

8 t0.000

855.000

885.000

920.000

960.000

1,000.000

t.035.000

1.080,000

1.125,000

t.165.000

1.215.000

1,615.000

1.680.000

r.750.000

1.820,000

1.895.000

1,975.000

2.050.000

2.t35,000

2.220,000

2.1r5.000

(lnlrrcst to accrue from thc Delil'cr)'Date.)

(l) CL,SIP is a regislercd lradsrnark ofthe Anrerican Bankers Association. CUSIP data set fordr hereir is providcd by Ctrsll,
Clobal Services nranagcd b1 S&l' Chbal Markct Intclligcncc on behalfofThe American Bankers Associalion. This data is
not intendcd to crcalc a databasc and does nol serle in any u.ay as a substitute for CUSIP senices. None oflhe Cily. thc
Financial Advisor or the tlndcrrvrilers shall be responsible lor the selection or correctness of the CUSTP numbers set fonh
herein.

OPTIoNAI, RID[]lPTlox. . - l hc (lity reservcs thc right. at its option. to redeem Certificates having stated maturities on and al'€r
February 15. 2032. in \r holc or in parl in prirroipal amounts of$5.000 or any integral multiple thereof, on february 15, 20i l. or an)
date thereaftcr. at Ihe prr value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption (see "THE CLRTI|ICATDS - Optional
Redemplion ol-the Ce11ificales ).

2
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATE]\IEN'I' ST]MNIARY
'i his summary is subject in all respects to the more conrplete inlormation and dcfinilions contained or incorporated in this Oflicial
Statemenl. 'l-he offering of the Certificates to potential in\'estors is made only by means of this entire Olficial Statement. No
pcrson is authorizcd to dctach this sunrmary from this O{ficiilt Statenlenl or lo othenvisc usc it without the entire Official Slatemcnr-

T E('lTl'.............-..... The City of Palestinc. 'fcras isa politicalsubdivision and municipal corporalion ofthc State of
fexas (dle 'State"). located in Anderson Count). 

_fexas. 
The City covers approximately 18

square n1iles (see'lN l ItODtlC'l ION - Dcscription ofrhe Cit),").

'I !llt ( |t{ I t( \ urs Ihe Ccnilictlles are issucd lrs $i,l.590.0(]0* (ombination TiL\ and Revenue Certilicrlles ol'
Obligation. Series 2022 (lbrrv rd l).livcry) (rhc -Cerlificates").'lhe Certificates are issncd on
a forward dclivcr) basis as sclial cr:rtificates maturing on August 15,2022 and Fcbruary l5 ill
cach ol the years 2021 thmugh 205 l. illclusivc. unlcss thc Underwriters designales one or morc
consccllive serial maturilios as I cmr ( crl ificates ( sec 'l l lE CERTIFICATIS - Descripliur o l

lhe Ceftiticalcs').

l' \\ lttiN r ()t lNIIiRusT
()l l.lllr ( uR I It t( ]\ tLs.

\l I I()tt I I I:()R Isst \N( L

l.i)r{ M ( r.R r r|r( .\ rrs ....

St( I ttlI\'t,()t{ Ifi}
(tRllll(\' is...

()Pr ro\ \r. lllDtirtr,t to\ ot'
'I I( 1.]{Ilt.t( \ []s... .......,,.

lDterest on thc Ccrlilicales ilccrucs {ronr lhe clate of iDitial delivery (thc Forrvard l)clir,cry
Date')(anticipated1(rhcJunlran4.2022).xndisp,rlablefebruall5andAugustl5ol lach
)'ear: comnreDcing Argnst 15. 2022. unlil maluril) or prior redentption (sce IIIII
CERTIFICATES - Descripriol) (,l lhc Ccnillcalcs").

The Cerlificates are issucd oll a for\\'ard deli\cr\ basis pursuant to the Conslitulion nnd g(rneral
la$solthe State. panicularh SubchaptcrCofChapter2Tl.asamendcd.andthcordinaDce(thc
"Ordinance") to be adoprcd bl thc Cat) Councilofthc Cii- (the *CiO.Council") on Augusl 25.
2021 (see - lHE CERI IFl(lA l liS - Aulhorit\ lbr Issuance of the Cerrificates -)

The Ceftitlcatcs co,rslilulc dircct obligati(nrs oflhe Cit). pa).able from a combir)atiolr ot (i) thc
procc.ds ol'a dtecl and conlinuiog annual ad vnlolent tax le\.ied upon atl taxable propcrl) \vilhin
the Cil). Nithin the linrits prescrihed h1 larr. ancl (ii) the Surplus Re\,enues ot lhs City's
water\\'orks aod seuer slslcnr (lho "S)stem ) renlaining aficr pa)ment of all operitting and
maintcomce expenses thcrooli unrl all debt servicc. reservc- and othcr req irements in conneclion
with an) ofthe Clily's rc\'cnuc bor(ls or otho, obliglllions (liou or hereafter outstandiog) \\'hich aro
palablc liom all ofanl paft ol lhe ncl rcvcnucs ol'thc Svstcnr. as provided in thc O,rlinrncc (scc
*THII CITRTIFICATES Sccurily and Source ofl)n)ment olthe Ccrtificalcs").

I hc Cih reserves lhc ri{hl. at ils oplion. to rcdccln Ccrtificates haYing stated nlalurities oo nnd
alier Februar\ 15. 2012. in rrholc or in pan in principal amounts ol-95.000 ot.an) inlegral
nlultiple drereol. on l.'ehrnal.\' 15. 20ll or anv datc thcrcalier. at the par lalue thcrcol plus
accrucd irtercsrlothe (late ol rc(lernplion (scc TI IE CERTIFICA fES - OptioDal l{cdcmprioD
ofthc Cerlificales ).

In the opinion of Bond (bunscl. undcr cxisting la\'. ioteresl on the Certificates is e\cludablc
lronr gross ilconre tirr ledcral inconc lar purposes under section I0i ofthe Ilternal Rcvcnuc
Code o[ 1986. as anrcrlded. and is ot a specilic prelerence item for purposes ofthe ahcrnatir'c
minimu,ntax. Sce TAX MA-l I liRS" tbr a discussion olthe opinion of llond(ouDsel.

Proceeds lrom thc sale oflhc Ccl.tilicales \vill be used to forthl] folloNing purposes. to wit: (i)
designing. improving. construcling. rcnovaling and cquipping library l'acilities, illclildil1g a ncw
liblary alld thc purchasc ol'land thcrclbl (ii) designing, developing, constructillg. imnn,rillg
and renovating City parks. trnils and rccrcation f'acilities, (iii) designirg. devcloping.
construcling. improviDg. extcndiD!1. .rnd expanding streets. thoroughfares, sidervalks, bridges,
and othcr public \\,als ol tlt ( ity. including strcctscftping, signage, streetlighting. right-ol'-rvay
protection, utility rclocalion. and rclaled storm drainage improvemelts; and acquiring rights-
of-\vay in correction thercwilh: (i\,) acquiring equipment and vehiclcs for police, public lvorks.
firc, emergencr services. building scrvices. planning and de\'elopment aDd park ard recrcatiott
purposcs: (v) acquiring ard inslallalion of Cil) informalio,l technolog] int'rastructurc ilnd
cquipment: (r'i) designing. dclcl4ring. constructinB- improving and reno!ating Cit1. buildings
and facililies. including Citl llall. cquipmcnt services lhcililies. public $orks lacililies. lhe

'l \\ l-\r \tl,t t()\

I sl ()r l)R(x titt)s toR I flt
('II{ I I t,t( ,\ l s ...................

' Prclimrllar]. subiect rc change
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balhrooms in Cit) buildings and facilities. includirrg tho purchase ol land therefor: (vii)
dcsiBning. inrpro\ in8. constructing. renovating and cquipping tire l'acilities- including a ne\v
fire stalion and the purchase of land therefor: (!iii) designing. improving. mnstructing.
rcno\atinB and etluipping police facilities- including n Dc\\'policc slarion; (ix) designiDg.
conslructing. acquiring and equipping ofa pnblic safel) traihing l'acilil),: (x) impro|ing and
extendinS lhc ('it]"s water\\'orks and se\\er s\ stem. including iDliastructure replacement (items
(i) through (x). collectivcl). the "Project ): (xi) prottssional scrvices incured in conneclion
with thc l'loiccl: and (xii) paying the costs incurred in coDnectioD rvith the issuancc of the
Ccnilicatcs.

lhc Ccrtilicalcs havc been rated "AA" (stable outlook) hy S&1, Global Ratings ("S&P") by
virtrc ol'r nrurlicipal boDd insurance polic\'10 he issugd by A(iM. the lnsurer- upon delivery of
thc Certificalcs to the Initial Pnrchaser. ln addition. the und,jrlying. unenhanced rating on the
Cerlillcales is -A+" (stable oLtlook) b,l- S&P (see 'Othcr lnli)rmatio,r Ratings"- "BOND
INSURAN( li ' antl - UOND INSURANCII l{ISKS-).

The schedulcd pal rner)t ofprincipal and in{el€st on thc Ccrlificales \\ hen duc N ill be guaranteed
undcr r nrunicipal borrd insuralcc policl to be issucd collcurrcltl) \rith the deliver].oflhc
Cerlificalcs b) Assurcd Guaranq MuDicipal Corp. ("A(iM') lsec "BOND INSURANCE and
.'BOND INSt]RANI]E RISK FACTORS').

'lhe tlcliniti\'c ( el1iljcatcs rvill be initialll registcrcd flnd tlclivcrcd on thc Forward DeliveD
Dalc- onl) lo (clic & Co.. thc nonriocc ol Dl-C pur\uant 1() thc ll(x)k-llntry-Only Systcnl
dcscribcd hcrcirr. llcocllcial ownership ol thc Cc(illc.ltcs nrny bc acqrircd in denomirations of
$5.0(X) ol intcglal nrultiplcs thereofNithir a nratLrritl ol cllch sories. No physical delivery of
thc Ccrlillcalcs !\ill bc nlrde to thc bcnelicial {rNners thcrcol'. I,riflcipal ol premium- ilany.
and inlcrcsl oo lhc Cc(ilicates \yill be palablc hy the l,a) ing Agcnl/Registrar to Cede & Co-.
Nhich \!ill Drlke d,stribntion olthc amounls so paid lo thc p tticip.tling ntenrbers ofDTC lbr
suhscqucnlnirlnrenllolhebetreficialo\\1lcrsofthcCcrlilicalcs(sce'TIIECERTIFICAILS-
B )k-[nlD-()nl\ S) sleni-).

lhe ( il) has nc\ er delaulted in pa) ment of its gcncral oblig:tlioo tt[\i dcbt

'I he initial I'al ing Agcnt/Registrar for the Ccrtiticalcs is ReBions lla k. llouslon. Texas.

ll he ruuinl'r ol rhis paga lefi hl\lnk inllntiandlb'l

l



SEI-E( 't uD l.tN \N('t,\t, INNrli\t,\'l t()N

Fiscal

Ended

9/3 0

Ilali() ol'
(i.O. 'lax I)ebt

to l axablo

Valuntion

Estimated

Population(r)

Ncl
'l axablc

Valuationlr)

1'axable

Assessed

Valuation

Per Capila

$ 53.004

s2.421

55.441

57.020

56,s39

(;.o.
'l'a,( Dcbl

OutsLrnding

al llDd

$i I 1.862.420

t0,752.668

t0,022.i81

8.569.8t6

49.42'1.189 t\)

C.O. Tax

Debt

Per

Cap ita

$ 645

585

541

473

2,703 {t)

18.i9:l

l8.l9l
18.306

I ti.l16

18.289

$ 974.895.657

964.173-636

1.014.904.663

I.0i4.t 12.065

t.0i4.042.975

t.2201,

1.12,'/o

0.99v"

0.83%

4.1Eo/o

(l) Source: City Staff.
(2) As rcported by the Anderson Courlj Appraisal Districr on lhe City's annual Ccnilicd Rolls; subject to change during the
ensuing year.
(3) lncludes self-supporting debt. Sec Table I -Assessed Valuation ard Exemptions" and lablc l0 - "Self-Supponing Dcbl" tbr
additional information on self-supporting debl.
(4) Includes Capital Leases. See l able I Asscssed ValualioD and ll\enrplions" for additional information o Capital Leascs.
(5) lncludes the Certificates. Prelirninary. subjecl lo change.

For additional informalion regarding the C il) - pletlc contacl

Ms. Roxarna Brilev
Finance Director
City ol Palestinc
50,1 N. Queen Slreet
Palestinc. TX 75801
(903) 7ir-81i9
fi nancediriri.palcstine-tx.org

lThe tcntnintlo'ol this prtgc h,li hlunk intantio*rll_rl

Jiln S. Sabonis
Managing Director
llilltop Securiries I Dc.

717 N. I lanvood Strcel. Suite 3400
t)allas fexas 75201
(2 r4) 951-4000
iirtr.sabonislrlhilltopsecurities.conr

Andre Ayala
Dircctor
llilltop Securities l c.

7l7 N. llaNood Street. Suile 1400
Dallas. Texas 75201
(2 t4) 953-4000
andrc.alala/ahilllopsccuritics.com

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021



ELECTED OFTIcL{Ls

City Council

I-rn!th ol

Sc^ rc('

Term

E)pnes

May 20llDana Goolsby

Mayor

Councilmember

clTY oFnCt,\t,s. s't'AFl' AND ('oNstrt,l-A\.- I-s

I \cI\ 'lounsm Enlreprencur

: \.J \ May 2022 l'ublc R.latur!. Iirrrcfrencur

Ma), 2023 Marketng Entreprencur

lS \ ({s Nra\ :01: li(rr.l

May 2021 Sr Mc suremeDt and AulonrrtionTech

Mq 2022 ltcliRd

Ma) 2021 School leache.

Occufalxnr

AYaHarmon

Dunin Frazier

CoLrncilmemher

Krislin Clark

Councilmember

Councilmember

Stil.lt( I t:t).\t)\tt\tsi R\TI\'t.t S l.\t,l

\trrc I'osition

Lenglh of
Sen,ice

lolnl

leaasa llcnLiir

Ro\annir llril.\

,\nd\ Srhal

\lacalll

( ()\\t I I \NI\.\lD,\D\tsotts

Audilol1\............

Bond ( ounscl

financial Advisor

City M arager

rinance I)iredor

Scnior Accountant

Cily Secrctarr-

4 Months

2 Years

14 Ycirs

7 Years

Frank Campos & Associales. PI-LC
Palcstinc. l!-xas

Eraccrrcll I I P

Drllns. I c\as

I Iilltop Sccurities lnc.
Dallas. lcxas

[The rcnuirultr ol this page lc/i blan\ i t?tltbnalh,]

1



Pn[]r t\ \ \t.r\ ()t:t:t( t \t_ sT \Tt.\1t..\ I

R[:I,A'I'Ir-c TO

s31,s90,000.
('II'\' OT P,\LESTINE, TT]\AS

COll BINAI lOl" T,\X ,\NI) lt[]\'llNt rll (l]lla l lt'lCATES Oll OBLI(;]\'l lON, SLRIES 2022
(Ir()R\,\RD DELTYERII

lNl IiOl)U(l IIO.\.'

Il is anticipatcd thal llre Ce{ificales rvill bc authcnticatcd and dclivcred on or ab.,ul .l.Dua[_v,1. 2{)22* in accordance with thc
|or\rnrd DeliYcn Bond Purchasc Agrcenrcnl. Scc " (cnaiD Consideratioos Regarding Iirrrvarrl l)clivcry oIthc Certilicates"
hclo\. lhc Represcnlative reserves iltc righl to (,hligale inleslors purchasing the Ceflilic.rlcs lo cxccute and deliver ro thc
l{eprcsentativc aDela)ed I)eliven CoDtracl. lhc IirIrIol rrhich is irrcloded herein as Appendi\ ( .

'l his Ollicial StatemeDt- \vhich includes lhe Schcdulcs and Appendices hercto. providcs ccrtain iDfornration regarding the issuance
of lhc $14.590.000* Cil-.,, of Paleslinc. Teras (brnbination -lax 

and Relenue Ce(ificatcs ol ObliSation. Scri€s 2022 (For\r'ard
l)!'li\cr]) (lhe *Certificates') being oflired hcrcin on a lor\\ard deli\en basis. [xcept as olhcr!\isc iodicated herein. capitalized
lcrms used itr lhis Ofiicial Stalcnlenl haYe lhc sanlc nreanings assigned to such tcrms in thc ordillaDcc (thc ''Ordinance") to be
adoptcd oD the daie ofsale ofthe Cenillcalcs \\tich trill authorize the issuance ofthe Cerlillcttcs..

cntilct\ h) re,trence to each such dooumcnls. (i)picsot such doclrments nlay be oblainctl l,'oDr thc (i()'sfinarcial Ad\jsor.
Ililltop Sccurities Illc., Dallas. Tcxns. clcclr'orricull\ or ufon paylnerlt ofleasonable copyirg. hanclling. ancl delivery charges.

I NI,D( T()trs DISf,.\sD OurBRE]\x - CO\/ l l)-19. . . l hc outbr eak of tlOVlD- 19. a rcspim()r), d iscirsc cause d b) a new strain ol
corona\.irus. has beeD characterizcd as a pnndcnlic (thc Ptrndenlic') b) lhe World Heallh Organi^lion and is curreDtly affecting
Dittr\ parls ol-lhe \torld. including thc []oilcd Slalcs turLl Tcxas. On Januan il.2020. thc Sccrctafl ol_lhe IJnited Slales Heallh
and IIuDran Services Deparfment dcclarcd n public hulllh enrergenc)i for the Llnited Slates and on N4arch 13.2020. tlre l,resident
ol lhc I lnitcd Slales declarcd the outbreak ol'( OVll)- l9 in thc t-hi1cd Slatc. a national emcrgcu$. Suhs€quenll)'. the President's
(itronar inrs Guidelines fbr America and lhe ( lnilcd Slatcs Centers lbr l)isease Control a|d l'rc\ ijnli()o called upon Americans to
lake aclions lo slo\\ the sprcad olCOVlt)'19 in lhc t rniled Slates.

()n March I i. 2020. the Governor ofTc\as (lhc "(io\ cnlol') declared a slale ol'disastel l'oI all counties in Texas in response to the
I)andemic. l\rrsuant to Chapler.llS ol lhc'lc\al (i()\ernment Code. the Gorernor has bft)ad authorit) to rcspond to disastcrs.
incloding suspending an\ regulaton' slalule prcscrihing the procedures lor conducting state busincss or any order or rule ola statc
agcnc! that Nould in aul rvay preIcllt. hindcr. or dch)' necess^ry flclion in coping Nilh thc disaster. nd issuing executive orders
thal havc the Ibrce and effect of laN. Ihc (iolcrnor has since issued a number ol cxeculi!,o orders relnting to COVID'|9
preparedness and mitigation, which rcslrictcd or hrltcd husiness activit\', restricted the Dunrbcr ol'pcople that can congregate in a
public sclting, atld Iimiled the movelDenl ol llranv cilizcns to onl) csscntial activities- In addition tr) the aclions by the state and
li.:deral offlcials, cenain tocal ofllcials. including Anderson County ($hich the City is within), hlvc declarcd a local state ofdisastcr
and issued "shelter-in-place" orde$, corsislerr( \!i1h thc Governor's executive orders. Many ol'thc lldcr-al, state and local actions
and policics under the alorementioned disaslcr dcclaralions and shcltcr-in-place orders \!crc lircuscd on limiting instanccs lvherc
thc public could congregate or inleracl lrith eaoh othcr. rvhich aft'ccted thc operation ol'busincsscs and directly impacted thc
ccoDolrl].

'lhcSlntehegaoincrementall)rcopeniDgbusincsscsiDnrid-Mar2020.OnMarch2.2021.lhc(io\crnorissuedLxecutileOrder
(;A-i4. \\hich. among other things- ren)or,cd a|\' ( ( )VI D- Ig-rclaled operating lilnils for anr business or other establishment and
cndcd the Statc-\yidc mask mandale. elllcti\e N4rrch 10.2021. HoNe\er.onJul\29.202l.thcCo\crDorissucdExccuti\cOrdcr
(i^i8. Nhich supersedes all pre-existing e\cculi\.c ordcrs rclatcd to COVID-19 and rescinds thcn in their entiret!. excepl for
Il\ecuti\e Order GA-li (relating to dctcnlior in count\ aDd municipaljails) and Execurivc Orcler (iA-17 (related to migranl
lrxnsport). Il\ecutive Order C,{-18 conrbines sc\'oml prcvious executive orders into one ordcr and contiDucs lhc prohibition agcinsr
govcrDnlental entities in Texas. including counties. cilies. schoo I d istri cts. public hcalth authoritics. and government officials lronl
rcquiring or mandating any person 10 wear a lacc covering and subjects a govcrnmental cntity or official to a fine ofup to $1.000
lbr nonconrpliance. It also prohibits govr:mnrental cntitics lrom: (i) compelling any individual to rcceive a COVID-19 vaccinc
administcrcd undcr cmergency usc authorizaliorr, and (ii) cnforcing any requirements to show prool'ol vaccination bcfore receiving
a scrvicc or entering any place (othcr than nursing honrcs. hospitals, and similar lacililics) il thc public or private entity thal has

adopted such requirement receives public Iunds through any means. Executive Order CA-i8 rcnlains in effect until amended,
rcscinded. or superseded by tlle CoYernor. Adclitional inlirrmation rcgarding cxccutive ord€rs issued hy the Covernor is accessible
oD thc \vchsite olthe Covcmor al htps://Bo\,.lc\as.go!/. Neithel the information on (nor acccsscd through) such u'ebsite of the
(iovcrnor is incorporated by relerence. either c\presslJ or by implication, into this C)fllcial Slalcnlcnt-

, Prelimrnary. subject to change
8



'Ihe Pandcmic has negativel) aflectcd travcl. comnlerce. and fiMncial markels globall-v_. and is ividely erpected to continue lo
nc8ntilcly afltct cconomic output rrorld$idc and rrithin tlre Ciq. These ncgativc impacts nra) reduce or olher\'ise negativel)
atlicl lulure prope(]' values and/or the collcctio ol-sales and other excise laxes. chargcs- ancl ltes rvithin the Citl as \\ell as the
asscts ol-Cil) pcnsion funds. Sce 'TAX INFOIINIA llON.-- Ihe Certificates are sccured bl an ad valorem ttLx (\1ilhin the limits
prcscribcd b) la$). upon all taxable nronert) \\ilhin lhc Cil! and a pledge of s rplus net re\cnucs ofthc Cin''s WaterNorks and
Sc\vcr S) slem (lhe "S) stem ') and a reducri(nl i propc[v\aluesmayrequireanincrcascinlhcad\'alorcmtaxralerequiredtopa]
lhc Cerlificates and the Citl s operations and rnaiDlcnarcc expenses.

'lhc Cily also collccls a salcs and usc lir\ oD all lrxable lmnsactions within the Cilt s bouodaries. rnd othcr cxcisc ta\cs and l-ecs

( ily colleots taxes, charScs. and lccs. A ruduolioD in thc collcction ofsales or olhcr uxcisc la\cs. Iltilitl. system revenue, and utility
Iianchise nnd other fles and chargcs nray ncgalivcl). impact the Ciq 's opcratinS bndgcl and oYcrall Iinrncial condition. h addition-

pa) .clircnrcnl and olher posFemplo) nrcnt bcnclil\ ;n thc lulure.

-l 
he Ci1]' \\ill continue to monitor the financial impacts lrom the Pandemic and adiust its opcralional and capital outlooks as

nccessarl lo mitigate these impacts. 
-[hc 

financial and operating data contained hcrein arc as of dales aDd lor periods prior to thc
economic iDrpact ofthe Pandemic xnd measurcs i stiluled to slo\y it. Accordingly. lhc] are not indicalirc ollhe cument financial
condition or liture prospects of thc Cit). I hc Citr continucs 1o monitor the spreadol-(OVll)-19and is 1\orking \rith local- slate.
and nillionAl ageDcies to address the potential iDrpacl oflhe Paodemic upon thc Cify. Whilc lhc potential impact ofthe Pandemic
on thc City canDot be quantified at this time. the conlirued outbreak of COVID-19 could have an advcrse effect on the City's
opcrali(,Ds and llnancial condition. rnd lhe cllect could be naterial.

l)Es(Rrplro:,roFTIIECIT)'...IheCilyisapolilical subdivision and municipal corporalion ofthc Stale of'lexas (the "State")-
duly organizcd and existin8 undcr thc laws ol the Sllltc, including the City's Ijome Rulc ('harter. lhe City was incorporated i

lllTl.andfirsladopteditsHomeRulcCharlcrinl909andiscurrentlyoperatingunderalloDrcRulcChartcradoptcdinl983.The
C ity opcrnlcs under a Council/Manager lbrtn ofgovcmnlent \\'ith a City Council conrpliscrl ol'thc MayoI and six Councilmembers.
'Ihe tcrn) ot of]ice is two lears wilh the tenns ol the Mayor and three ofthe Councilnrcnrbcrs' ternls expiring in odd-numbered
ycars and the other terms ofthe othcr thrcc CouncilmeDlbers cxpiring in even-nunrhcrc,:l lorrs. Ihe Cig Nlanager is the chicf
adDrinislrirtiye olTicer forthe Cit). Sonrc ol the scr\ices $at the Cit! provides dre: puhlic sal'et) (police and firc protection).
highrrays and streets. $ater and sanitaq se$cr ulililies. health and social serviccs. cullurc-recreation. public improvemcnts.
plaDninsandzoning.andgeneraladminislratilcscniccs.The20l0CensuspopularionlorthcCil)\\'[s18.?12:the2020population
is Iti.289. The Cit\ enconrp.tsses approxinlatcl) lli square nriles-

AII financiill and other inlbrmalion prcscnlcd in this ()lllcial Slalenlent has been pro\ idcd b) lhe Cil) lrorn its records, excepl [or
inl'ornr lior) cripressl, allributed to olher sorrrccs. 'Ihc prcsenlation olinformation. inchrding lables ol'receipls from taxes and othcr
sourccs- is intendcd to show recent hisl()ric inli)rnr tion. and is not intended to indicalc lirlurc or conlinuirg trends in flnancial
posili(nr or other affairs ofthc Ciq'. No rcprcsenlalion is nradc that past experience. as is sho\rr bt linancial and other infonnation.
will necessarily continue or be repeated in the lirtul!.

-lhis Ollicial Stalement speaks onl] as to its dirtc. iud the inlbfilation conlained hercirr is s bioct to chltngc. A copy o1_the Finirl
Ollicinl Stalcmenl pertaining 1() thc Corlilic:ltcs will bc depositcd b) the IJndcrwriters \iilh thc Municipal Sccurilics Rulen]aking
Iloaftl lhrough its Illeclronic Municipal N4orlljt Acccss (''EMMA") systenr. Scc {'ONllNlIlN(i DISCI-OSURE O}-
IN lroItN4A'l lON" herein [ar a descriptilnr ol lhc ( ily's undcflaking to provide ccrlain ir l'onnatio|r on a continuing basis.

t,t..\\ ol r- t \1\( t\G

l'trRPoss. . . The Cerlificales are being issucd on a linvard deliveD' basis lor fie purposc of the lbllo$ing purposes. to \vit: (i)
desigoillg. improYing- constructing- rcnoraling md equipping library lacilitics. including a ne$ librar)'and the purchase ofland
thcrclor: (ii) designing, de\eloping- constructing. irnproring and renovating Cil\ parks. lrails and rccreation lacilities. (iii)
clcsignirrg. der,eloping. constnrctinS. iDlproving. cxlending. and expanding streets. thoroughfarcs. sidewalks. bridges. and other
puhlic \\n) s ofthe City. ircluding slrcctscapir)9. siS age- slreetlighling. right-of-rral proteclion. utilil\, relocation. and related stornl
drainage improvcmentsi and acquirinS rights-ol:\rlN in conncclion thereu,ith: (iv) acquirirg equipnrent and vehicles for police.
public \\orks. fire. emergenc) serviccs. building serviccs. planning and devclopnlcnt and park and rccreation purposes; (\)
acquiring and iDstallation of Cily inlornrati()n lechnolog) infrastructure and equipment: (vi) designing. developing. constructing.
irnproving and renovatinS City buildings.tnd lacilitics. includinS Cilv Hall. equipnrenl seNiccs lacililies, public $orks facilities.
lhc bathrooms in City buildings and fhcilities, including the purchase of land thcrclbr; (vii) designing, improving, constructing,
renovating and equipping fire l'acilities, inchding a ncw llre station and the purchase ol'land thcrel'or: (viii) designing, improving.
conslnrcliug. rcnovaling and equipping policc fircilities. illcludirg a new policc station: (ix) dqsigning. constructing, acquiring and
cquipping ofa public safety training Iacilit!'; (x) improvilg aDd cxtending the Cily's rvatcrworks and sewer system. including
inlraslructurc replacement (itenls (i) through (x). oollectivcly. the ' Project'); (xi) prol'cssional scrviccs incurred in connection wilh
thc I'rojcct: and (xii) paying the costs incurred in conneclion with the issuance ol-the Certificatcs.



S ou rces:

Par Amount ofthe Ccrtilicalcs
'lirtal Sources

,|

\

Llses:

Dcposil to Prded f-urd

Undcrwriters' Discount

Cost oflssuanc€
Tolal flses

't Hu cER't'urt( ,\'l tiS

D[scRIPrIoN oF THI (][Rrrr.r(]irEs... Ihc Ccrlilicrlos are datcd August li.2021 (thc "l)alcd I)nte ). and maturc on Februar)
15 ineachof thc vears and in the amounls shown on pagc 2 hercol. lntcrsst \rill accruc l'rom lhe dale ofinitial delivcry (the
''Forlvard D€livery Datc" antacipated to bc Januar) 4. 2022). rvill bc compuled on the basis o[a 360-da] year oftwelle 30-day
lllonths. andTrill bc payahle on lebruarl I5 and August l5 oi'each Icar conrrrrencing August 15.2022, unlil maturity or pfior
rcdemplion. l-he definili\e Certillcates rvill bc issuedonl) inhlll) rcgislcrcd lirnn irranf integrrl nlultiplc of$5.000 lbranyone
maturity ofeach series and rvill be initially rcgistercd and delivered onll to Ccdc & Co.. thc nonrinee of 'I-he Depository Trusr
Companl ('-DTC") pursuant to the Book-llnlry-Onl) S) stem dcscribcd horein. No physical dcli!ery ofthe Ccrtificates will be
made to the bcncfitial o\r'ners thereof. Principal ol'. premiunr- il mv. nnd iDtqrcst on thc ('crtificales wil! be payable by the
Pa) ing Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co.. \vhich \vill makc distributio'r of tho irmouDls so paid to thc participating members oI D IC
lbr subsequent paymenl 10 the bcncficial olvners ofthc Ccrtificates (see "-Illl] C I.IR'l l!'lCA1'tiS - Book-Lnlry-Only System").

AtrrHoRlrY FoR lsstrAN('lt ol-Tlrtr CIRT|t'rcAlts. . . l he Cerlificates are being authorized ancl issued on a lbr$ard deliveD' bcsis
pursuan t to the Constitul ion and general larvs o f thc State. part icularl) Su hc hapte r C o f Chapter 2 7 I . 'l eras hcal Covertrmenl
Code. as amended. and the Ordinance to be adopted b). thc Cily Council on Augtst 25. 2021.

StctRITIA,\*DSot,R(-EoFPAIttENTor1lr[(ERTTEICAT|S..-IhcCcrlilicalcs re pi\able tionl payablc liom a combination ol
1i) the proceeds ofa dirccr and continuing annual ad labrem ta\ Icvicd upon all rarablc propcn) \\ithin lhe City. \tithi the limirs
prescribed by la\t- and ( ii) lhe Surplus Rcr enues olthc S) stcnl rcnlaining alicr na!nlenl olall opr'mling aDd nraintcnarce expenscs
lhereof. and alldebt scrvice. reserve. and olhcr requir€nlcDts in con cclion\ilhirr\oflhe(it\,srercnucbondsorotherobligations
(no$ or hereaftcr oulstanding) \hich arc palable liom all ol aD) pirl ol-lhc nel re\'enoes ol-thc S\stom. as provided iD lhe
Ordinancc.

( tRl Atr Co\srDER.\Tro\s IlEc.\RDr\(; l oR\\ \Rt) Dl.t.t\ rRl ()r I l: ( [R l.lft('.\t r_s

|-onrard Deliett. The Cily anticipates thal the Cerlillcatcs rrill be issucrl tud dcli\cred b) thc ( itl () thc lJnder\yrilers and

ccnain provisions ofthc lor\ard Delirery l3ond l)urchasc ASrcenrcnl. lo bc dalcd on or ahorrt August 25. 2021' (thc For\\ard
Dcliven Bond Purchase A8rcco1enl"). bv hehvccD lhc ( it\ aDd thc []ndcnrrilcrs \\ith rcspccl lo the []ertilicales. Ihis dcscription
is not to be considered a l'ull slatement of lhc lcrms ol lhc lirr\\ard [)ljli\ er\' l]rud l\rchase Agrccnrcnt and accordinglv is qualified
hI rel-erence lhereto and is subjccl lo lhe filll tcxt lhcrcoll

flntil such timc as thc Cerlificales are issucd and dcli\cred b) thc ( it) and purchasod bv thc tlndelrrriters on thc l'or\!ard Delr\ur_\
Date. certain inlorrnation containcd in this Olllcial Slalcnrcnt nra,t. chaDgc irr a Dralcrial rcspccl. Ihc Cil),ilgrccs in thc Forsard
Dclivery Bond P!rchase Agreenlcnl lo updale the Oflicial Stalcrrcnl (cach updalc an 'tlpdalcd Olllcial SlalcmenC'). ilneccssar)
in the judgnleDt ofthc Rcpresentati!e or the Cill. so that lhc Ollicial Slalentcnt as irnrcndcd or supplcnlcnlcd does Dot conlain any
runtrue statenlent ofa nlatcrial l'acl or onril to slate a nlalerial lact lhal is ncccssrr) to nrakc thc slalenrents rtlade thcrein. in light o1'

the circunrsta[ces uDdcr which they Nere n]ade. nol tnislcading.

Addilionalll. the City agrees in thc For\rard l)eliver'_v Bond l'urchai\c Agrccmcnt to prL'paro an tJpdated Oflicial SlateDrenl. datcd
a datc llot morc than 25 days nor less than I0 da)s priu l() thc Ii)rward l)oliver) l)ale. \\'hich. as ol-such dalc. Nill not conlAin any
Lxrtrue stateDrcnt ol a mnlerial lacl or olnit to slalc a nlatcrial Iact rrcccssaD' (r nrrke tho statenrcnls thcrc,n. in thc lighl of lhc
citcumslances under \\'hich lhcy rvcre madc. nol nrislcading. l{cltrences Ludcr"lllli CliRTlIlCAlllS - Cenain CoDsiderations
Rc8arding Forward Delivery olthe Certiflca(es to thc Ollioial Slalerncnt s ol-a specilic dale shall n)can (i) this Ollicial Slatcnrcnt.
al aoy point in lime during the pcriod liom thc dale ol-lhis Omcial Stalomonl lo bul nol including thc dalc ol-dclivcr) ol'dre [Ipdated
Oflicial Statement to the Underrvritefs. and (ii) thc t)pdtttcd Oilcial Stalen)cnt. lllnn and alirr rhc d^te ofdcli!cry ol rhc llpdatcd
f)llicial Statemcnl. in each case as anrendcd or sUpplenrcDlcd.

(:ondition: oJ Setllenorl. 1hc issuancc and purchasc ol'thc Co,1ilicalcs on thc Ii)nltlrd l)clivery l)ale are subicct to thc satisl'action
ofccflain conditions sel lbrth in the liorrvard I)clivcry Ilond I\rrchasc Agrccrncnt. includiDg. aDrong othljr things. lhe (lclivery 1o

I

\

* Preliniinar). subtect lo change
IO

Sotrl{cts  ND IlsES ot PR()(]ErDs. . Procccds frou lhc salc ol-lhc ( crtilicalcs lrc c\pcctcd lo he c\perrdcclas Iblkrrvs:



the Reprcscntativc ofcertain documents and legal opinions on and as ol'the initial closing date. which is expecled to bc on or ahoul
Seplember 28. 2021 (the "Closing Date') and certain addilional documerts and legal opinions. and the satisfaction ofother
condilions. on and as ofthe lom'ard Dclivery Date. including the dclivert to the Representative on the Forward I)eli\,ery Dale of:
(i) thc opinion of Bond Counsel. substaDtialb in the lbmr and lo lhe effect slrt lbrth in APPENDIX D relaring to the Certilicates.
(ii) the tlpdaled Ollicial Statcment- and (iii) e\ idence that. as of thc ltr$ard Delivery Date- S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") has

ratcd lho (lcrtificates and that such Certificates are raled inrcstnrent grade. ChanScs or proposed changes in federal or state laws.
courl dccisions. regulations or proposed regulalions or rulings ol'ndn)inistrati\ c agencies occuring or in eflect prior to the Forward
I)elivcrt I)alc or thc failure by lhe Cily to prolide closing docunrcDls of the l]pe customarily rcquired in conneclion r\'ith the
issuancc o[ slalc and bcal government tax-excmpl boDds could prevenl those conditions from being satisfied. None ol'the
Ccrtil:cal!s uill be issued unless all ofthc Certifical{is irre issued :rld dslilcrcd otr lhe Forward lfeliven Date.

Tentinolion ol Fonnrtl l)eliver.y Bond Purchase Agrecnc t. Ccrti\iD evcnts indi!idually provide the UnderNriters \\'ith thc rigllt
rc lcrnrinalc lheir obligalions lo purchase the Certilicatcs withoul liability ther€tbr by written notificaiion 10 the Cily il'. in tlrc
rcasonah l(j _iudgn)cnl o f the Representalive. at an) timc oD or allcr (lk)siuel and oD or prior to the Forward Delivery l)atc:

Thele shall have been a Changc in Larv. A "Changc in Lflw" mcans (i) any change in or addition to applicablc
fcdcral or state laN, whether statutory or as iDterprcted by the courts or by Ldcral or slale agencies. including
nny changes in orncw rules. regrlations or othcr pronouicenrents or interpretations by federalor statc agencies.
(ii) any legislation enacted by thc Congress ol thc Llnited Stalcs (ifsuch enacted legislation has an elfeclivc
date that is on or belore the li)r\rard Dclilcr) l)ate). (iii) any larv. rule or regulation cnactcd bJ. any

Sovernmental bod). departmenl or aScncy (if such enacted la!v. rulc or regulalion has an efllcti\,e date that is
oD or beforc the Fonvard Deli\etl [)nlc) or' (i\') an] judgnreDl, ruling or order issucd b1 an; coun or
administrati\e bod]. \1hich in any such casc wo!ld. (A) as to the RepresentatiYe- prohibit the Rcpresentatire
liom completing the undenrriting of thc Certilicates or sellirg the Ce(ificates or the beneficial o$nership
intcrests therein to the public. or (B) as to the ('ity. \'ould nrake thc completion ofthe issuance. sale or delivery
of lhe Ceftificates illegal.

As a result ofanr legislation. rcSulalion. rule. ordcr. releasc. court decision orjudgment or action by thc [].S.
Deparlment ofthe TreasuD'. the lnternal Rcrenue Serr'ice. or an_v', agency ofthe State cithcr enaclcd. issued.
clliclive. adopled or proposed (bul only with rcspecl 10 any such proposcd lcgislation. regulation. ruling. order.
release. court decision orjud8ment or actioD thal coDtinues lo be propo:ied as ofthe For\rard DclivcD' Dale).
or fbr anv olher rcason- Bond Counscl cannol issue an opinion to lhe ellect lhat the interest on the Ccnificalcs
is excluded from gross income 1'or fcderal incrnnc ta\ purposes under Section 103 ofthe Unitcd Statcs Intcmal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the *Code"). 

as slaled in tlre form ofopinion of Bond Counsel sel forth in APl,tlNDlX
D hereto.

l.egislatioD shall be cnactcd. or a decision hv u courl ol_thc llniled Stales shall bc rcndcred. oI an1 action shall
bc takcu b),. or on behnll'of- thc Sccurities ll\ch ngc (burnlissiol) \\hich. in the reasonablc opioir)n ol'lhc
lleprescntativc. lolloNing consultalioD !\'ith lhe ( it). hrs thc ct'lict ol rcquiring the Ce[illcrlcs to bc rcgislcrc(l
underlhe Sccurilics Ac1 ol_ l9ll. as utrtcndcrl. oI r'cquires lhe qualilication ofthe Ordinancc undcrlhc lnrst
lndenlure Acl of 1939. as anrcndcd. or irn cvcll shall occu| rrtich \\ould causc the salc ol thc Clertificatcs 1{l

be in violation olarrr prorisionofthc lldcrll orSl lcol lc\as sccuritics laws

'I he Official Statement as ofthe Closing Datc, or the Updated Official Slarcment as ofthe Fonlard Delivery
Date. contained or contains an unlrue statcmcnt or nrisstalenrent of material fact oa omitted or onits to state a

material fact necessary in ordcr to make thc slatcnrcnts and inlomration contained therein not misleading in
anY malerial respect.

. As ofthe l-or$'ard Deliver) Date. lhe Ccrtilicates are no longer ratcd investment grade by S&P.

. As ofthe Forward Dcliver) Date. therc cxists ri dcclaration ola general banking moratorium b) federal. Nc\r
York, or Texas authorities, or the gencral suspcnsion oflrading on any national securitics exchange.

Delal,ed Delivery,Con acl. The Representative reservcs the righl to obligale inveshrs purchasing the Certificates to execute a
Dclayed I)clivcry Contract (the "Delayed Delivery Contracl") ir substantially thc form set forth in APPENDIX C. The Delayed
Delivery Contract provides that the purchaser will remain obligated 1(} purchase the Certilicatcs, even if the purchascr dccides 10

sell the C€rlificates following the dat€ ofthe Delayed Delivcry Conlract. 'l'hc City will not be a party to any Delayed Delivcry
Contract. ard the City is not in any wa) responsible lor the pcrformance thereofor for any representations or waranties contained
therein. -fhe 

rights and obligations under the Forward Delivery llond Purchase Agreement are not conditioned or dependent upon
the perfornlance ofany Delaycd Delivery Contract.

Additional Rislis Relaling to Fontard Deliver),, Perlol. Bellvecn the dale ofthe F'orrvard Delivery Bond Purchase Agreement and
lhe Forward I)clivery Date (the "Forward Delivery Period'). certain inlornlation contained in this Oflicial Statement may changc
in malerial respects. Any changes in such infomration rvill not permit lhc Underwriters to terminate the Fonvard Delivery Bond

tl



Purchase Agreement or rclease lhe purchascrs oflhcir obligation to purchasc thc Ccrlilicales. unlcss thc changc rcllccts any ofthc
first five events (exclusive ofthc sixth evenl) clescrihed under " - Tcrnrination ol'lirrrvard Dclivory Ilond Purchase Agreement"
abo\re. In addition to the risks scl lbrth above. purchascrs ofthc Ccrlillcatcs are :iubiccl to ccrtain addition risks. some ofwhich are
describcd belo\v.

Secondary lvlarkel Ris/i. Thc Llnderrvriters are DC)1 obliealed lo make a sccondar) Inarkct lbr thc Ccrlilicalcs- and uo assurance can
be giYen that a sccondary markel will exist for the Ccftificatcs during lhc lrorward Dclivery Period or at rn] lime thereafler.
f'rospeclive nurchasers ofthc Ccnificales should assume lhat th€re \!ill bc no secondar] markcl tbr thc Ccnitlcates during thc
I:trrrvard Deliverl Period.

than the pricc to be paid b) the iDitiirl purchxscrs ol-1he ( crlilicatcs. antl thar dillerencc cr)uld bc subslanlial. Ncilher lhe Cit) nor
tllc IInder$riters nake an e p,escntaliors as to lh(j c\peclcd nrarkcl \a[r!'ol lhc ('ertilicirlcs as ol lhc I:orward I)clivcry f)alc.

Tat l-mt Risk. Subject to thc othcr coDdilions o[ Sclllellenl and the []odcr\\'ritcrs'riShts oflctlli[alion dcscribcd abovc. the
Fon\ard Delivcr) Bond Purchase Agre€rn€nt obligalss thc (--ity to dclivcr. and lhc IJndcr\riters n] acccpt, th€ Cerlificates ifthe
Citl delivels an opinion of Bond (iounsel subslanlialh in tho lbmr and lo thc ctl'cct scr tbrth in n PPI-,NDIX D relatinS lo thc

or rulings might otll] diminish (but nor conrpletelr elinliDatc) lhe \alre ol: or olhcn\ isc rll'(jcl. lhe e\clusion from gross income of
inlerest pavablc on _stale or local boDds '(such as the Ccrlillcales) lbr lcdcral incomc tar purposcs. thc Cilv nright he able to salisR'
lhe requiremerts tbr the delilco ol'the Cenificates. lo such cvent. thc purchascr$ \ould be rcquircd to acccpt delivery ol-tho
Ccrlificates. Prospective purchascrs arc cncouragcd to consult their tx\ 

^d!isors 
rcgarding thc likelihood ol'an1' such changcs il

tax la\\ and thc conscquences ofsuch changes to lhc purchasers- Sec "'lAX MA l I lllts_ hcrcin.

Tr\ R{r'E Llrtlr.{Tlo\.. . All la\able propcf] t\ilhin lhc Cit] is.iub-icct 1() lhe as:icssntcnt. lc\\' and colleclion h) lhe Cit] ofa
direct and conlinuiDs annual ad \'alorem la\ rc pro\ ide for lhe operalioDs ol- thc ( it). inchdirg thc pil] mcDl of principal of alld

to thc Ciq. and Iimils ils nraxinrum ad valorem ta\ ratc 10 $2.50 pcr S 100 
-t 

0\,rhlc Asscsscd Valuation li)r all Cit) purposcs. Thc
IIomc Rulc Charler oflhe Cit) adopts drc conslilirlionnllj authorirccl nla\imuor la\ ratc ol'$2.50 pcr $100 Taxablc Asscssed

all Sencral obligation debl sert'icc- as calculalcd rt thc tirnc ol issuancc hascd on u 90rra collccti(nl rale.

OPTI0\.\L REDErrprr()\ ()l rrrir(tRTtrt(r-rrs...lhc(il) rcscr\es thc riglrt. xt ilsoplion. lrr red.qm Ccrtilicates haying stated

the Ccrtitlcates arc to bc rcdccDlcd. the ( it} mav solccl the mrlurities ol lhc ( crlilicales 1() be rsdijenlel!. ll_lcss than all oflhc

po{ion of the priDcipal sLun thereof) shall hrvc becn callcd lor rcdeorplion and Doticc o, such rcdcrnption shall havc becn gir cu.
such Certifcale (or the principal an)ouul lhcrcol to hc rcdecnrotl) shall hceonlc tlLrc arrd palablc on such rcdcnlption datc and

and accrued iltterest lhereon arc hcld b) lhc Pr\ ing Agcnt/ltcgistrar on lhc rcclcnlpl;on dllc.

Nol'rcE of RIDE:uprloN. . . Nol l(]ss thatr l0 days prior to a rcdemplioD dalo for lhc Ccrtilicatcs. thc Clity shall cause a noticc of
redelnption to be sent by LJnited States mail. firsl class. postngc prspaid. to thc rcgislercd oivners olthe Certificales to be redeemed.
in whole or in part, at the address ol_each regislered orvncr appearing on the registltti()n books ol thc PayiDg Agcnt/Rcgislrar ai the
close ofbusiness on the business da) ne\t prcceding the dntc ol'mailing such nolicc.

With rcspcct 1o any optional redeDrptioll of llre Certilicatos. unlcss lnone) s sullicicnt 1() pa) thc principal ol'and premiurn. if an].
and interest on the Certificatcs to bc rcdccnlcd shall havc bccn rcccivccl hy the I'aying Agelll-/Registrar prior to the giving ol such
Dotice of redemption. such Doticc nlay statc that said rcdcolpti(n is oonditional upon thc rcccipl ol such nmncys by thc Paying
Agenl/l{egistrar on or prior to the drte fixcd tbr such rcdcnrption. or upolr lhe salislirction o, any prcrcquisitcs set lbrth in such
notice ofredenrplion; and. if sufllcicnt moocys arc not roccivcd. such nolicc shall bo ol_no li)rce and ellcct. lhe Cily shall not
redeenr such Cerlificales and the Paying Agert/[iegislrrrr shall give Dolicc. in thc rranncr irr rvhich thc noticc of rcdenrplion lvas
givcn. to the ctlirct that thc Ccnilicatcs havc n()1 becD redcenrcd.

l2

Raings Risk. No assurances can bc gilen lhat lhe raliDg irssiSncd to lhe (erlillc lcs on lhc liorwaKl Dclivcry Datc \\,ill Dot bc
dilletenl lrom those currcnth assigned 10 the (leflillcalcs. lssuancc ol_1hc ('cr(ilicatcs and lhc []Ddcl\!ritcrs ohligalions under the

the Irorl\ard Deli\er\ l)ate. as described uodcr_''lernrinatil)nofl:onrur(l l)clive llond l\lrchlsc n erccrncll abovc.



ANY NO I I( lr so l\'l AI LED SHAl.l. Illl ( ( )NC'LtISIVLLY Plil:Sl rMIll) l'O HAVII Blll-lN I)l ll-Y (;lVEN. WHIiI HIilt ( )l{ NOT
THE RU(ilSl lll{llD OWNER REClllVliS S[ICII NOTICII. NO'll( li IIAVING BEIjN So (;lV[N AND Sl]BJII(1. lN lllE
CASE Ol'AN oPl lONAL Rrll)UMP] lON. I()ANYRIGHfSOR(oNI)ll'IONSRESERVIII)IIYIHllCllYlNTllhN(tlICI:].
TIIE CllR'l llrl( ,^]'US CALLDD lrOR Itlit)hMPTION SHALL IIII( OMU DIII'I ANI) PAYAIILE ON l'Hll SPIi( ll]lUL)
REDI:;MP llON l)A1'l:1. AND NOI wl I I IS I AN I)lNG 1 HAI ANY ( lil{ M]ICA I E OR POR II( )N I HUIIEOF' I IAS N(II l}l,llN
SURREND|ltLI) IroR PAYMENI. IN llll,(|S l ON St-r('ll Clilt lllrlLATE OR PORI-loN lllllREOF SHAI.I. CliASll lo
ACCRLIE.

l\IAs_D-{roRlSl\t(tNcl't'NDREDt:rrprro\...lntheclentan\oflhc(crtillcalesarestruclurcdas lcrnlCertiticates. such'lcrnr
Cefiillcales. il'an). rvill be subject to Drandnl(n) sinkirg l'und rcdcnrption ill accordancc \!ith lhe applicablc protisions ol lhe
Ordinancc. rvhich ptoYisions rvill bc includcd in lhe final Otiiciul Shrlen)cot.

l)Er[AS.\:!(]E -.. Ihc Ordinance providcs ihlrt thc Cily may clischargc its obligations to thc rcgislcred ownets ofaD! or all ol'lhe
Certilicates k) pav principat and intercsl thcle(,n in any manner'Icrn:iucd bv law. lInder culrcnl 'lcxas la\\', such (lischargc nlx]'
be accomplishcd cither (i) b) depositirg !\ ith thc lla)'ing Agent/licgislrxr or an) other laNlirll) authorized ertit] a surr of nn)nc]
equal to the principal ol-aDd all inlerest lo lccrue on the Ccrtificates k) ,tlalurit\ or prior redcDlplion or (ii) b\ deposiling \rith thc
Pa)ingAgenl./Regislrarorotherla\\lirlljaLrtlurrizcdentitlanrornlssollicient-together\\'iththoin\eslmentscarningsthereon. lo
provide Ior lhc pa!nlent and/or rcdcmplion ol such Cenificates: providcd. lhat under currcnt la\\'. such deposits mal bc inrcsted
and reinresled only in (a) direcl non-callahle ohligations of the tJDilcd Statcs ol Aor€rica. includii)g oblig.rlims thal are
uncondilionally guaranleed bl the LJnilcd Slillcs of America. (b) nonc llablc obligations ofxn agcnct or instrunlenlalilv ol lhc
United Slales. inclfting obligalions thiil arc !ocondilionally guaran{ccd or insured by thc agency or inslruNcntalily and thll. oD

the date thc govoming bod) ofthc Cit) r&rpts or approves thc procccdings authorizing thc issuance ol re[unding obligations. are
ratcd as 10 invcslrrcnl qualil) by a nalionully recog[ized inveslmcol ralinS lirm not less than "AAA or i1s equivalent. nnd (c)
noncallablc ohligaliolls of a statc or an agcncl or a county. municipalit]. or other political subdivision ofa statc that havc bcen
relunded and lhat. oo the date the go\cming bodl ofthc Cit) adopts or approles the prcccecli|gs authorizirg the issuallcc (,!_

ret'unding obligrrlions to rehmd lhe Ce ilicrlrs arc raled as to io\cstlncnl qualit) b) a natiolrall) recognized inlcstmenl mtinlL lirnl
nol Iess than *AAA" or ils equi\ alent. I hc trregoing obligations ma] hc in book-enlry' tbrm. and shall nrature ard/or bcar irrlcrcst

Certiflcalcs. ll an) ol'Ccrtificales are lo lr rcdeemed prior to lheir datcs of maturio'. pro\ isiur olust have beeD madc li)r the
payment to lhc rogislered owncrs ol slclr Cerlilicales of thc lull anxnlnt Io which such o\{_r1cr \!()Ild be entitled and lirr gir ing
notice ofrcdcmplion as providcd in thc Ordinaocc.

'lherc is no Nsurancc thal the ourrent law rvill not be changed irr a nunner \rhich would pcmlit inveshnents othcr than those
described abovc kr be nradc with amounls dcposited 1() delease thc Ccnillcales. Because the OrdiDirncc does not contractuall] limit
such in\eshneDts. registered o$n€rs maY be dccmcd to have consenlcd to del'easance $ith such othcr investmcnts. not\!ithstanding
the lact that such investments maJ nol hc ol-thc sanre investnrcnl qualit) as those currcnll) permillcd under State larv. 'lhcrc rs no
assurance thal thc ralings tbr such securilies \vill bc maintained al an] pllnicular rating catcgoD. l\rrthcr. therc is no assurance that
currcnt Slale law !vill not be amended in a nr:nrner that expBnds or conlrucls the list of pcrnrissihlc Sccurities (sucll list consisting
of thosc sccurilies idcntilled in clauses (a) lhrcugh (c) above). or any rating rcqLrirement lhclcoD. that may be purchased rvith
defeasancc procecds rclating to the Cc ilicatcs ('I)efeasancc Prooecds'). though the City has rcscrved the righl to ulilizo any
additional sccuritics tbr such purpose in the cvcnt the afiorementioned lisl is expanded. Becaxse lhc Ordirance does not contraclually
linrit such penlrissible securities and expressl) rccognizes the ability ol'lhe City to usc larvlully arailablc Def'easance l,rocccds to
defease all or iuly portion ot the Certilicalcs. registered orvners ol- ( crlilicates are decrncd l() have consentcd to thc use of
Defeasance I'rocecds to purchase such othcr sccurities. not\vithslanding the t'act thal such Sccurities nla) l]ot bc ot'the saDe
inlestment qualitv as lhose currentl)' idenlili€d undcr State la\r as pcrlnissible secuntics.

Upon making such deposit in the manner dcscribed. such defeased Ccrlilicales shall no longcr bc d(jljDred outstanding Ce(ilicatrs
secured by the ( )rdinance. but will bc payablc only t'rom the funds alld securities deposited into csc,ow and will not bc considered
debt ofthe Cil), lor purposes ofta\atioD or aDplying any Iimitation on the City's ability to issu€ debr fbr any other purposc.

tjpon such dcposit as described abo!e, such (iertilicates shall no longcr he rcgarded to be outslandinB or unpaid. Alter firm banking
and financial arrangements for the dischirgc and final payment or rcdcnrption of the Certiticates have bccn made as described
above- all righls ol the City to initiatc procecdings to call the Certilicalcs for redemption. or lake any other action amending the
terms of the Cerlificates. are extinguishedi provided. horvevcr. that the right 10 call the (cnificates for redcmption is nol
extinguished ifthc Cily: (i) in the proceedings providing for firm ba king and financial arrangemcnts. cxpressly reserves lhe righr
10 callthe Certificatcs lbr redemption: (ii) givcs notice ofthe rcs€rvatioD ofthat right to the owncrs oflhe Certificates immediatel)
follorving thl- makitl8 ofthe firm bankiDg and financial arrangcmenls. aDd (iii) directs that notice ofthe reservation be included in
any redcmplion noticcs that it authorizes.

BOoK_ENTRY-ONt,Y S\srEM. . . This seclion describes hov, o\|nership ofthe Ce i.licates is to be ttu$fetred and hou] the principal
of, premium, tfant, and interesl on lheCe iJicales are to be paid to ancl credited by DTC, while the Ce irtcaks arercgiskrcdin
its nohitee nane. The infornation in this sectio concerning DTC a%l lhe Book-Entty-Onl1' System l:,..s been prcyided b,DTC

for use in disalosure documents such as lhis OJrtcial Slalerhent. The City. linancial ,4dvisor and the Lindent'riters heliere the
source ofsuch i,{omation to be reliable. b tule no responsibili0 fot.the accuraq) or com}rleleness lhereof.

l.l



The Cit!, F-inancial Advisor. and the (hdefutiters cannot and do not giw any assurance that (l) DTC will disbibute payments of
debl senice on lhe Certilicates. or any nolices,lo DTC Parlicipants, (2) DTC Pa icipants (defned herein) or otherswill distrihute
debl ser|ice pavnenls puid lo Df(. or ils nominee (as lhe registered ov,ner ofthe Cerlifrcates). or any nolices, to lhe Eenefrcial
Auers (defined herein), or thdt tlrcl,vill do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC \till ser|e and act in the mannet desctibed in this
Olrtcial Statenent. The otnent rtrles applicible to DTC are on frle iitll te United Stdtes Sec rities and Exchange Commisston,
and the current proc?thtres of l)I( ro be Jbllolrcd in deoling I ith DTC Participatlts arc otl lle wi t DTC.

DTC will act as securilies deposit()n' lbr thc Ce(ificatcs. The Certificalcs will be issucd as fully-registered securities reeistered in
thc namc ol Ccde & ( o. (l) lC s pannership nominee) or such other narle as may be requested by an aulhorized represenlative of
D'IC. (he l'ully-rcgistcrcd ccrtilic lc \rill be issued lbr each maturit] ofthe Certificates itr the aggregate principal amount ofeach
such matrrritl and rvill be depositcd $ ith I) I ( .

l)l_C.thc\\orld'slxrgeslsocnritissd!posito.isalimiled-purposetrustconlpan]organizedundertheNe$YorkBankingl-as.t
_-banking organization \\ithiolho leaningofthcNerr York Banking Larv. a member ofthe !ederal Ileserre Slstenr. a "clearing
eorponli(ni N'ithin lhe nlcaflinS oflhc Ne\r York tlnilornr Conrrnercial Code. and a--clearing agenc.t" regislercd pursuanl to thc
pro\ isiLrlls ol ScctioD l7Aol lhc Sccuritics Exchaogc Acl of 1934. DTC holds and Frovides assct scn icing lbrover3.5 Drillion
issucs ol (1.S. and urn-ll.S. cquil\ issucs. corpornte and unicipal debt issues. and monel'markel inslrumcnts (lronr ovcr 100

l)irect l)rrticipaDts ol-sirlus aod olhcr sccuritics lrnnsaclions in dcposited securities through electronic conrpulcrized book-entrJ'
trauslcN nnd plod8cs l)ct\ecn l)irocl l)articipanls' accounts. 'l-his eliminates lhe need for physical movernent of securilics
ccrtiticiles. Dirccl I'd icipirnts includc both U.S. iLnd non-U.S. securities brokcN and dealcrs. b ks. trust conlpanies. clcaring
corporations. and cerlirin othcr organizations. D_l_C is a \\llolly-o$ned subsidiarl oflhc Depository Trusl & ( learinS Corporalion
(-DTCC'). l)lC(. is the holding company of DlC. National Securities Clearing Corporation and Iixed lncome Clearing
Corporalion. xll olwhich arc rcgislcrcd clljaring agencies- DTCC is owned by the uscrs ofits regulatcd subsidiarics. Acccss to the
l)'l( systorn is also availablc lo olhers such as both U.S. and non-L/.S. securities brckers aDd dealers. banks. trust companies. and
clcarirlg corpor{1ions lhat clcar lhrough or nlaintain x custodial relationship l\ilh a Dirccl Participant. cithcr dircctly or indirectly
( lndircct Participants") l)lC has a S&P (ilobal RatiDSs ratinS of: AA+. Ihc DIC llules applicable to its l)irect and lndirect
Parlicipanls arc on lile wilh lhe SIiC. More inlbnndtion dbout l) I'C can be tound a1 !\U!!t d&r.ra!].

the books ol'[)irccl lrld Ill(lirecl l'lrrticipanls .rcting on bch.rlfol Benellcial O\\.ners. Benefcial Orrners $ill not rcrri\r
crrtilitnles rcnrr\cnlirg thrir o\in0rship inlcrcsls in thc ('crtilicates, ercepl in the cvont that use olthc hook-cnll:\ slslenr
(lescribr(l herein is disron(inur:d.

To lacililatc subscqucll traos[crs. nll ( crtillcates dcpositcd by Direct Participants \vith DTC are registered ill rhe namc ol Dl C's
partnership oonrirec. Ccrlc & (ir. or such ollrer nanrc as nra) be requested b] an aulhorized represenlati\e ofDTC. Thc dcposil ol'
Ccniilcalcs \!ith DI( aod thcir rcgistration in lhe nanle of'Cede & Co. or such olher no,ninee cllicl no chanSc in bcncl'icial
o\Dership. I) IC has no knowlcdgc ofthe aclual Bcneficial ONners ol_lhe Cenificales: DTC's records reflcct onl) the idenlil) ol'
thc l)irccl Parlic,panls kr rrhosc accounls such Ccrlilicatcs arc crcdited- \hich nra) or lna] not be lhe Beneficial Orvncrs. llrc
P^rlicipnnls \\'ill rcrnain respoDsiblc li)r kecping account oltheir holdings on behalfofthcir customcrs.

Conve5'ancc ol'nolices aDd othcf coDUDunications b) DTC to Direct Participans- b] D;rect Participants to Indirect Participanls.
nnd bJ Dircct Participaots and lndirccl Panicipants to Bcncllcial O\ners rvill be gorerned by arrangements among thenl. subjecl
lo a,r) stalutory or re8 lalon' reqlircnents as maj be in effecl lrom time to timc. Benetlcial O*rrers olCe(ilicates ma) rrish 11)

take certain steps 10 an8Dleni lhe transmission k) lhen olnotices ofsignificant events \\ith respecl to the Certificales. such as

rcdemptions. tendcrs. del'aults. and pmposed amcndnrents 10 dre securir)_ documenls- For exarnple, Beneflcial Orvners of
Cerlificates ma)' \r'ish lo asccrlain lhat lhe nonrincc holding the Certificates for lheir bcnefit has agreed to obtain and transmil
notices to Beneficial Oryners. ln thc allernalivc. Beneficial Orvners may $ ish 10 provide their names and addresses to the Pa) irr g

Agent-/Registrar and rcquesl that copies ofnotices be provided directl) to them.

Redemption nolices relating to thc Certificates shall be sent lo DTC. Ifless than all ofthe Certificates within a malurity are b€ing
redeemed. IXC'S practicc is to dctcrmine by lot the anrount olthe interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be

redeemed.

Neilhcr D'l C nor Ccdc & Co- (nor such olher DTC nonrince) rvill conseDt or,r'ote with respect to the Certificates unless authorized
byaDirectI'articipantinaccordanccrvithD'l('sl\4Ml Procedures- Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Ornn ibus Prcxy to

the Cit) as soon as possiblc allcr the Rccord Date (hereinaller dcfined). lhe Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s conscnting or
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voting righls 1() those Direcl Parlicipanls 1{) \!'l)ose accounls the Cerlificates are credited on the Rccord Dale (idcntified in a listing
atlachcd to the Onlnibus Proxy).

Rcdenlplion proceeds, principal and inlercsl pa) rllcnts on lhe Cenificates Nill bc made lo Cedc & (-o.. or such other nomincc as

nra) be requested b) an authorized reprcssnl.lli\c ol'DTC- DTC's praclice is to credit l)irccl l'anicipanls' accounts. upon DTC's
rcccipt of lirnds and corresponding detail inlbrruli(xl lionl the Cit] or the Pa) in8 AScnt-/Rcgislral on payable date in accordancc
wilh their respective holdings sho*n on I)l( s rccords. Pa)ments b)'Participanls 1() Bcncficial Orvners uill be So\'cmcd b)
slandirrg irslructions and customary practiccs. as is thc cllse with securities held fbr thc accouIts ol'customels in bearer form or
rcgistcrcrl in 'street name," and rvill bc thc rcsponsibility ofsuch Participant and no1 ol'I)l( (nor its nominee). thc Pa)ing
AgcDl-/llegish'ar or fhe Clity, subjccl to rn) sltlul()r! or IcgulatoD rcquirements :rs ,nny bc ir1 elltcl liom timc to time. PrUment of
rcdcnrption proceeds, principal and intcrcst pra-nlcnls 10 Ccde & Clo. (or such other nomincc rs t]11) bc rcqLresled by an authorized
rcprcscnlitlive of I) lC) is the rcspoosibilitt ol lhc(it) orthc Paling Agenl/Registrxr. disbursenlcul ol-such payments to l)irc(t
I)arlicipants \\'ill be the resporlsibilil] ol_ I)'1(. irnd disbursenerlt of such paynrcnls lo thc Uenclicial Orvners rvill bc thc
r(.lx,nsihilrl\ of Drrcct and lndircrt l'rrnrrrtr.rIt..

t) l C may disconliiue providing its sen iccs as sccuritics depositor)' N ith respect to thc Ccrtilicates at any time by giYing reasonable
notice lo thc Cil). llnder such circumstanccs. in lhc event that a succcssor securities depository is not obtained, Ccrlilicates arc
rcquired lo be printcd and delivered.

I hc C ity nral dec idc to di scontinue lrsc o l_ llrc s) slc ll1 o l' book-entry tran slers through DTC (or a su ccessor secu ritie s dcposito D')
ln that cvent. Certillcate certificatcs \\ill bc prinlcd aud dclivered.

So knrg as (ede & Co. is thc rcgisrcred o\\[crol'lhc Ccrlilicales- the Cit] \\ill havc no obliB lior or responsibili['to thc Drrc,:t
l'arlicipants or Indirect Participanls- or thc pe|sorrs Ior \\hich the\ acl as nolninees. \\ilh rcspccl lo lhc pa\nrent to or providing ol
noticc 1o such Dirccl ParticipaDts. lndirect l'arlicipilnts or thc persons fbr \\hich the) acl ils nonrinuu:\.

rcgislcrccl orvners should bc rcad to i clude the pcrson lbr rvhich the I']articipant acquircs a inlercsl in the Ccftillcatcs- but (i) nll
rights ofo\vnership must be exerciscd th|1)ugh I ) l( andthc Book-Intry-Onl! System. and (ii)cxccpl ns described above. noticls
lhat aro to be Bivcn to registered o\ners urldcr tho Ordina[ce \ il] bc gircn only to D_l Cl.

P^l'llic AG [."1/REGtsrRAR. . . The inilial l'a) ing Agcnt/l{egistrar fbr fic Cerrillcates is RcSilnls l]ank. Houston. Texas. lD the
Ordinflncc. the Citl relains the righl to rcplacc thc I'af irrg Agcnt/Regislrar. TheCitv covenants to rnaintain alld provideaPa)i,tg
AgeDL/llegislmr at all lilnes until lhe (-crlillcalcs alc dull paid and an] succcssor Pa)ing AEcrrt/Rcgislrar shall be a conrntercial
bank. lrusl coDpany. financial instilulion or olhljr eolitv dul; r;ualified and legall) autholizcd lo serve as and pe brm lhe duties
and scrvices of Paying Agent/Rcgislrar. ( lpoD rn)' chanSc in the Pa\,ing Agen/Registrar iilr lhc ( c{ificates. the Ciq agrccs to
pronlplly cause a \\'ritlen notice thereol'lo hc scnl 1() each re8istcred owncr and any bond iosurcr ol such Certificates b) flnited
Slales nlail. llrst class. postage preprid. \\hiclr Dolic. shal! also give the Danle and addrcss ol'lho Dew l)ayi,lg AgeDt/Regislrar.

Il incipal o,'lhc Certificatcs will be pa]_able k) lhc rcgislcrcd owner at maturily or prior redculptiorl upon presentation and surrcndcr
at lhc principal office ofthe Paying Agenl/liegistrar. lnlcrest on the Ceftificatcs shall bc paid to thc rcgistered oNners appearing
on the re8istralion books ofthe Paying Agcnl/ll.cllrJlrar at lhe close ofbusiness on the Rccord l)alc (sec I FIII CIIRIIFICAI ES -
Rccord Dale lbr Interesl Palment herein).andsuchinlcrestshallbepaid(j)bychecksentb)tJnilcdStalesMail.firstclassposrage
preprid lo thc address ofthe registered orvncr rccordod in the rcgistration books ol-lhe Pil] ing Agcnt/Registrar. or ( ii) b]. such othcr
cusk)maq hankinS arrangement. acccplablc to thc Pa)ing Agent/Registrar. rcqucstcd hy. ltlld rt the risk and expense oll the
rcgistcred owner. lfthe date tbr thc pa\n1enl ol-tllc principal ofor interesl on thc Ccrtilictlcs shlrll bc a Saturda). Sunda)'. legnl
holidAlorda)\\'herbankinginstitutionsiothccil\\\hcrelhcPa\ingAgent/Registlarislocalcdareauthorizcdbyla\vorexecuri\e
ordcr to close. then thc date lor such pavnrcDt shall be the next succeeding da\ \vhich is nol such a Saturdar'. Sundal. lcgal holidal
or da) \!hcn hankiDg institutions arc aulhorized lo close: and pavmeDt on such datc shallha\tj thc sa[rc force and eflect as ifmadc
on thc original datc pa\ ment $as due. So knrg tls ( edc & Co. is the registered o\\Ilcr ol'lhc ( eflillcales. pa\ nlents ofprincipal and
inlsrcsl on the Certificatcs \vill be made as dcscrihed in - l HE CERIIFICATES - tsook-l-ntry -Only S) srem' hcrein.

'fkaNsIr:R, EXCIUNGE AND REGrsrR,\TroN...ln lhe evcn( lhe Book-Ent$-Only System sho ld be discoDtiDued, printed
Ccrlificale certificates will be delivcrcd to (he rcgislcrcd o\\,Ders ofthe Certillcates and thercaller tho Cerlificatcs may be transltrred
aDd oxchaDged on the registration books ol'thc I'.tying Agent/Registrar only upon presc[tation and surr€nder of such printed
ccrtificates to the Paying Agent/lleSistrar md such lranstir or exchange shall bc rvithout expense or servic(j charge to the regislered
owner. except for any tax orother govcmlncnlAl chargcs rcquired to be paid with respeot to such r(jgistration. exchangc and transler.
(icrtificates may be assigned by thc execulion of arr assignment form on the Ce(ificates or by other instrument of transfer and
assignmenl acceptable to the Pnying Agcnrllcgistrar. Nc!v Certificates will be dclivered by the [,a] ing AgenrRegistraq in Iieu ol
lhc ( enificates being transferred or cxchangcd. al thc principal oflice ofthe Paying n genrRogistrar, or sent by United States mail.
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lirst class. postage prepaid. 10 thc now registered owner or his designee. To the exlent possible, nclv Certificates issued in an
exchange or lransler of ( cnilicotcs \\'ill bc delivcrcd lo th€ registered owncr or assignee of'the registered o$Ter in not nrore than
threc business da) s alicr thc rcccipt oflhc Ccrlilicales to be canceled, and lhe $Tilten instrument oftransfer or request for €xchangc
duly execrrted b) lhe regislcrcd o\ucr or his duly authorized agent. in form satisfhclor) to the PayiDg AgcnrRegislrar. New
Cerlilicales re8istcrcd a0d deli\cred in an cxchange or lransl'er shall be ofthe sanre series. iD denominalions oIg5,000 or intcgral
nultiples thcrcol lirr an)' onc nlaturily and [or a like attgrcgale principal amount as thc Certificates surrendered fbr cxchangc or
transfi-r. See-lHIl(l)tlll:l(AIIS-Ilook-EDlry-Onl\Slsten'foradescriplioooflhes\stemtobeutilizedinilialljinrcgard
to o\\ncrship nnd lranslcrtbilit\' ol lho ( crlillcates. Ncilhcr the Cil) nor the Pa)'ing Agent/Registrar shall be requircd to transfer
or c\changc ant (-crlillcalc cilllcd lirr rcdcmplion- in Nhole or in pan- \vithin .15 da\ s of the date flxed fbr rcdcnrption: proYided.
ho$ever. such linlitatiorr on translcr shall rrol be applicablc to an e)ichange b! the registcrccl o\ner of the u0called balancc ol-an
Ccrliticalc

RccoRD D^]t tj()R ltT[Rr:sl l',\\ut:lI-.. ]he record datc (lhc _Record Date') for dcterntiniug the parl] lo rrhr:m interest is
pa).rhle ou lhc Ccrlilicll.s orl irnl irrtercsl pa]nrcnl dalc means the closc ofbusincss on thc last business dav 01-thc nonth nc\r
prcceding crch ir)lcrcsl pi! nlelll date li)r lhc ( crlilicales.

In the c\enl ol'a non-pit)IDcnt ol intcrcst on a schcduled pe\ment date. and tbr i0 dals lhereafter. a ncN record datc lbr such

ol suchinlcleslIla!chccnrcucivedlionrthcCit1. Notice ofthe Special Rccord Dalc and ol-rhe scheduled pavnrcn( drlc ol'thc past
dlrc in(crest (lhc Spccial I'a\nrcrrtl)alc.\rtichshall bel5dalsallerthcSpecialRecordI),Lte)shallbescnlnllcaslli.r'ehusiness
dal s prirn l{) lhe Spccial ltcco[d l)atc by t lnited Slatcs nrail. first class postage prepaid. to lhe address oIeach registcred orvncr ol
a(ertiticatcrppcaringonlhcrcgislralionbooksoftheI'a)ingAgcutiRegislraratthecloseofbusincssonthelslbusinessdaynext
prccediDg thr datc ol-rnail;og ol such noticc.

\Itr'l ll..\'l ED, D[sTRo] [D, l,()s1' ,\ND S't or.EN CERTTFT( ll [s. . . lf any Ccrtilicaie is nrutilated. destroycd. stolcn or lost. a ncw

mulilaled f orlilicatc. such nc\\ ('crlilicate \!ill be dclivcrcd only upon surrender and cancellation olsuch mutilated Certillcato. Itr
thc cilsc olan\ (ortiticllc issLrcd in liouol and subslitution fbr an] Cenillcate which has been destroyed- stolcn or lost. such nc\y
Ccrtilicatc \!ill be clclivc|ccl onl) (a) npon tiling rvith thc Paying AgenrRegistrur evidence satisthclorv to the Paling
Agent/Rcgislrar b lhc ollcct thitl such Ccrlilicate has been dcstroycd. stolen or Iosl and aulhenticitv ofowne$hip thcrcol. and (h)

Tbe pcrson requcsting thc lulhcnticlition nnd dclivcrl ol-a now Cerlificate must pa) such expcnscs as tha PiryiDg Agenl/liegislr{r
ma) iDcur iD conneclion lherc\r;1h.

Price. as apPlicablc. ott {hc (lcrlilicnlcs Nhen due. or if i1 lails to make pryments into an} filnd or tirnds crealcd in thc Ordirrancc.
ol delitults iu lhc obscnalion or porlrrrnranoe ol'an) othcr covenanls, conditions or obligatioos set forth ii thc Ordinance. the
rcgislcred owlters may scck \u'il ol n)0ndanrus to compcl Cily olllcials to car[] out lheir legall] imposed dnlics wilh rcspecl lo
ihe Ccnillcillcs il'lherc is no olhcr nvaihble rcnied] al law to conrpc: perlormance oalhe Certificates or the Ordinance and the
Citv s obligalions ale lnrl uncerlain or disputed. l_he issuance ola \rit ofmandamus is controlled b) equitable pritrciplcs. and rcsts
\!ilh lho discrelioD ol lhe courl. bLtl nra\ nol bc arbilrarih refused- l_here is no acceleralion ofnlaturit! o[lhe Ceiillcales iD thc
crcnl ol dclault aDd. cooscqucnth. thc renred\ ofmandanrus nra\ have lo be relied upoD from year to ycar. The Ordinirnce does
nol pro\ idc lirr lhc appoinlnrent ol_ ir truslcc lo rcpresenl the iDlere ofthc holders oi lhe Cerlifcates upon an\ l'ailurc ol-thc Cill

such rcnledics \1)uld hare lo be undcflakcn at the initiati\,e ol'- and bc flnaoced br- the resis{ered o\\rers

The 'l exas Suprenre Courl has rulcd in lbo*ev.Cib.ol lle\ia. 1 97 S.W.3d 3 25 ( I ex. 2006) C'Tooke"), that a wai\ er ofsoverergn
imnrunil)' ir a contraclual dispute nusl be providcd lor b) statute in "clear and unanrbiguous' language. Because it is unclcar
Nhcther thc I e)( as l,e8 is latu re h[s c flicl ivcly \\'ai!ed lhe C itv's sovereign immun it-y fronr a suit for money danrages. rcg islcrcd
o\\Iers nral lrol be able to bring such a suit againsl the Cit) for breach ofthe Ccrtifleates or the Ordinance. ljurthermore. looke.
and subseqrrenl jurisprudcncc. held thal a nrunicipalilv is not immune from suit for tons committed in the perlonnance of its
proprietar\ hrnctions. as it is lbr torls conr m itted in thc perlbrnrance o f its governme otal functions (the ''Proprictary-Covern menial
Dicholonr]' ). Governnlsnlal l'unctions are those that arc cnjoined oa a municipality bl' la$ and are given by the Slatc as a part of
thc Slalc's soyereignt)', to be crcrciscd b)'the nlunicipaliq in the interest ofthe gcneral public. ivhile proprietar) I'uDclions are
those that a municipalit) may. in irs discretion. pcrlbrn in rhe inrerest olthe inhabitants ofthe municipaliry.

li ll asson lntrftsts, l,kl. r. ( it.\ o / .ldc ksonlille. 489 S.W.3d 427 (Tcx. 2016) ( Wasson')- the Texas Suprenre Court (lhe "Coun )
addressed Nllclher thc distinction hctwoen govenrnrental and proprietar) acts (as found in tort-based causcs ofaction) applics 10

hreach ofcontracl clrirrrs againsl ounicipalitics. The Court anal) zed tlle rationale behind the Proprietary-Governmenttl Dichotomy
to delerminc lh t 

_a cily's propriclary lirnctions arc nol done pursuaot to the '\,,ill oIthe people ' and protecting such nlunicipalitics
"via the Slate's imDlunity is not an ctlicicnt rvav to ensurc efficicnt allocation ofState resources." While the Court recognized that
lhe distinclioD bclrlcen 8olcrnn)enlal and proprictary functions is not clear, thc Wasson opinion held that Proprielary-
(;ovcrnnlent^l I)ichotomy applics in conlrrct-claims contcxt. Ihc Court rcvicu,cd Wasson for a second time and issucd an opinion
on October 5. 20,8. clariliirlg that lo (lctcrnlinc $ hether governnrental immunit) applies to a breach ofcontracl claim. the proper
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inquiry is \\'hether the municipality \a,as engaged in a governmental or prcprictary I'unclion \,r'hcn il entored into the contract. not at
the tinle ofthe alleged breach. l-hereforc. in rcgard to nrunicipal contract cascs (as in tort claims). it is incumbeDt on the courts to
determinc whcthcr a ILnction was proprictary or Sovornrlrenlal hased upon thc statutory Suidancc at thc tiole ofinception ol thc
contractllal relationship. Not$'ithstandiDg thc tbrcgoing. such sovclcign inrnrunill issucs havc not hcen rdjudicated iu relation to
bond matters (spccificall). in rcgard to lhc issutroce ol-monicipal deht). l:rch situ.rtion $ill bc prospcctivcly cvalualcd bascd on thc
facts and circumslnDces surrounding thc contracl in qucsli{)n to dclcrDlinc il a suil. and suhscqucnll}. a.iudgnlcnl. isjusticiablc
against a nrrnicip lity.

lfajudgmcnt against the Cil) could be ohlairic(I. il could not hc cnlbrccd b) dircct lcvy and exccutiolr against lhe City's propcr!.
Ftrther, the registered o\\ners cannot thcmscl!'cs loruclosc on propcrl)' rrithin thc Cily or scll propcrly wilhifl thc City lo cnlincc
the tax lien on ta\able propcrty to pay thc principal ot and intcrcst oll thc Ccrlilicalcs.

Frrthermore. the Cit) is oligible to seek relicf lionr irs crcditors under ( haptcr 9 oltlr(j []nircd Slarcs IJark|uprcy Code ("Chrplcr
9_).AlthoughChaplcr9pro!idesforlhrrecognilionol_asccurityintcreslrenrcrcntcdb)aspccificalll'plcdgedsourccoirc\cnues.
the pledge ofad \.Ilorem taxes in support ol a scncral obligxtion ol bilnklrrpt cnlil] is ool sp.cilicall) rccognizcd as a sccurir)
irllcrcst undcr Chapter 9. (hapter 9 also inclrrdcs au automrlic str) p()! isi(nr that would prdlibil. \\'ilhoul Barrkruptc]'(bun

Ordinance and thc Ccrlillcrlcs are qurlilie(i \\ilh rcspert lo lhc cuslomrr) riglhts ol'tlchtors rclalire to thcir creditors and as 1()

general principlcs ofcquit) lhat pcmrit lhe c\crci\c ol-judicial discrctirn.

,{itlf,ND:lt[NTS . - - Thc C]iq may amend the Ordinance \vithout thc conseDl ol'or nolicc to any registered o$ner in arl manucr nol
detrimenlallotheinterestofthcregistcrcdo\Dcrs.includin8lhecuringol'aD)aDrbiguit).inconsislcnc).i)rmalde[ecl.oronrissioll
therein. tn addition- thc City may, with the'r\'Iilten consent ol lhc regislercd o\rncrs ofa maiority in aggrcgate principal amount of
the Certificates then outstandinS and alltctcd thcreb\. anlsnd. add to. or rcscind an) o!'thc provishns ofthe Ordirrance: except
that. \'ithout the conscnt o[ th€ regislcred o\\'ucrs ol'all ol the Certillcales thcn outstandii8. no such anlendment. addili(nl. or
rcscission may ( I ) cxtend thc time or times ol_paynlent ofthe principal ol'. prcmiunl. il'aDy. and int€resl on the Cerliticatcs. rcducc
the principal amount thcreof', the rcdcnlplion price. or thc ralc ofinlcresl thcrcoD. or in an) othcr \\a)'modify the tcrms olthc
payment oflhe pri cipal ol prcmium. ifall]. or interest on the Ccnillcatcs: (2) gilc a[) prelarcnce lo an) Ce(ificale ov€r an]'
other Cenificate: or (i) reduce the aggregale principal amount ol-lhc Ccnificatas required to bc held b) the regislered oNDers for
uollsenl lo an)'such amcndnrcnt. additirrrr. or rcsci,-ion.

BO\t) I \St tt,\\( 1.:

lro\D l\st tI\\( [ POLI( \

due as sel lofth irr thc lirrnr ol-the I'olic\ includcd irs iln appenLli\ lo this Olll(i lSlxlcDrcnl.

The Policy is not covercd by any iisurance securiD or guarant, fund cslahlishcd under Nc$,York. Calilomia. Connecticut or
Ilorida insurancc law.

ASSI]RED GTIAIL,{N'TY NTT]NICIP,\I, (]ORP.

AGM is a Ne\! York donriciled linancial guarant) insuraucc conrpanl arrd an indirocl subsidiaD, ol Assured (;uaranl) l,td.
(''AGL"). a Bermuda-hased holdil]g conpany rvhosc shares are publiclt lradcd and are Iislcd on lhc Ncw York Stock E\chaoge
under the s)nrbol _AGO_. AGL- through i1s opcralinS subsidiriqs. provides crcdit cDhancemcnl products 10 thc tl.S- and
international public linance (including inflxstructure) and struclurcd llnancc nrarkcts and asscl nranagcmcnt scrvices. Neither AGL
nor anv ol its shareholders or afllliatcs. othcr than AGM. is obliplated to pay any dcbls ol-A(iM or aDy claims under any insurancc
policy issued by AGM.

AGM's financial strength is ratcd AA" (slable outkrok) by S&P Clobal Ralirgs. a busincss unil ol'StaDdard & Poor's lriiancial
Services LLC ("S&P"). "AA+'' (slablc outlook) by Kroll tlond Rating Agcnc). lnc. ('KBR ") and "A2" (stable oullook) by
Moody's Investors Scrvicc. Inc. ('Moody's"). Ilach raliDB ol-AGM should bc cvaluated ind€pcndcntly. AD cxplanatioD ofthe
significance ofthe above ratings may bc obtained lionr the applicable rating agcncy. 'lhe above ratings are Dol recommendations
to buy, sell or hold any security, and such ratings arc subjeol to revision or wilhdrawal at any iinte by the ratiDg dgeDcies. including
withdrawal initiated at tlre request ofAGM in its sole discrclioD. Ll addition. the rating agencies may ar any timc change ACM s

long_term rating outlooks or place such ratings on a rvatch list lbr possihle downgrade ir thc near term. Any dorvnward revision
or withdrawal ofany ofthe above ratings, lho assiSnnlcnl ol'a negative oullq)k 10 such ratings or the placenlenl ofsuch ratings on
a ncgalive watch list may have an adverse effect on lhc nrarket price ofany sccurilv guaranteed by AGM. AGM oDly guarantccs
scheduled principal and schedulcd intcrest payments payablc hy the issucr ol holds insured by  GM on the dal(j(s) when such
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anlounts lvere initially scheduled to become due and payable (sub.ject to and in accordance rvith the terms ofthe relevant insurancc
policy), and does not guarantee the market price or liquiditl' of the securities it insures, nor does it guarantec that the ratings on
such securities will not be revised or \rithdra\vn.

('urre n I I:i nanc ial St rcfi glt Ratings

On Jull' 8. 2021, S&P announced it had afnrmed AGM'S linancial strcngth rating of*AA' (stable outlook). AGM can give no
assurancc as lo an)' further ratings action that S&P ntay take.

On Octobcr 29. 2020, KBRA annotmced it had allirmcd ACM'S insurance financial strength rating of "AA+" (slable outlo()k).
AGM can givc no assurarce as to any further ratings aclion thal KBRA may take.

On Augusl l3- 2019. Moody's announced it had aflirmed AGM'S insurance financial strength rating of"A2" (stable outlook).
A(iM cal give no assurancc as to any further ratings aclion that Moody's nray take.

for morc in[orn]ation regarding AGM's financial slrength ratings aDd thc risks relating thereto, see AGL's Annual Reporl on Forln
l0-K for the llscal year ended December 31. 2020.

Copitdli.ation of AGll

Al .lure 30. 2021

\lLt{tr r)l \ l.l( ittkt.lOt\l

Ihe policl holders surptus ofAGN4 \\'as appro\inralety $2.9.13 miltioo

'l hc conlingency reser\.e ofAGM \\as approxirnatcll $947 million.

l he nel ulcarned prenrium reservcs and net deferred ceding cl)mnlission income ofAGNI and its subsidiaries (as described
bcltrs) rrere approximaleh $2.137 million. Such amounl includes (i) 1007. oflhe net unearned premiunr rescrvc and
deleffed ccding conrmission income of AGM. and (ii) the nct unearned premium reserves and net deferred ceding
commissions of AGM'S wholly o$,ned subsidiarics Assured Guaranty LJK Limilcd ('ACI.IK") and Assltred (;uaranty
(llurq)c) SA ("ACE ').

thc t,nilcd Strlcs ol America.

On April l. 2021. MAC rvas rnerged into ACM, with ACM as thc surviving conpany. Prior to that merger transaction, MAC rvas
an indirccl subsidian oI AGM (rvhich indircctll ormed 60.7olo of MA(') and AGM's alfiliale, Assured Guaranty Corp., a Marl land-
domicilcd insuraDce compaDy ("AGC") (which indirectly ourrcd 39.3o/o of MAC). ln coDnection Nith the merger transaction. ACM
and ACC ca.h rcassumed the remaining outstanding par the) ccdcd to MAC in 2013, and AGC sold its indirect share ofMAC to
A(iM. All ol'MAC's direct insured par exposures havc bccomc insurcd ohligations ofAGM.

I ucorpont iott o I Ce rta i n Docunre nrs by Reference

Portions oftllc ltllorving documents filed b) AGL r!ith lhe Securilics and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") that relatc to AGM
are incorporaled by reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemcd to be a part hereof:

(i) lhe Annual Repon on Form I 0-K for the fiscal year erded December 3 | . 2020 (filed by AGL with the SEC on February
26.2021):

(ii) the Quarlerly Iieport on Form 10-Q for the quarledy period cndcd Ma.ch3l.2021 (filed by AGL with the SEC on tvlay
7. 2021); ald

(iii) the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarterly period endcd Jurc 30, 2021 (filed by AGL with the SEC on Augusl
6.202t).

All infonnation rclating to AGM included in, or as €xhibits to, docunenls llled by AGI- with the SEC pursuant to Section l3(a) or
l5(d) ol thc Securities Exchange Act of 1934. as amended, excluding Current R€ports or portions thereof "fumished" under Ilem
2.02 or ltcm 7.01 ol'Form 8-K, after the filing ofthc last docurncnt rel'erred to above and before the termination ofthe offcring of
lhe Certificates shall be deemed incorporated by referenoe into this Oflicial Statement and to be a part hereoffrom the respective
datcs ol'llling such documents. Copies ofmaterials incorporaled by relcrence are available over the internet at the SEC's website
at htlp://r\ \\ \r.scc.so!, at AGL's website at !l]lp/.\!L!!$I!!!gl!4!!!l!Lgl!!. or lvill be provided upon request to Assured Guaranly
Municipal Corp-: l63i Broadwal. New York. NeN York 10019, Attenlion: Communications Depanmcnt (telephone (212) 974-
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0100). [xcept for the information referred to abovc. no inlormation available on or through AGL s rvebsite shall be deemed to be
part olor incorporated in this Official Statement.

Any in[ormation regarding AGM included hercil u dcr thc caption "BOND INStJRANCti Assured Guaranr].- Municipal Corp.'
or included in a document incorporated by refcrence herein (collectivel)'. thc 'AGM Inlormation") shall be modified or superseded
to lhc exlent lhat any subsequentll included A(;M lDli)rmalion (either directly or through incoryoralion by reference) modifies or
supersedes such previously includcd AGM Inlbnnalion. Any ACM lnfolmation so nrodillcd or superseded shall not constitute a

part olthis Official Statement. except as so nlodilicd or supcrseded.

itliskll ncolts Maueft

A(iM makes no representation regarding lhc (lcrlilicales o[ the advisability ofinvcsting in thc Conificates. ln addition, AGM has

nol indcpcndcntly verified. makes no represcllation r'egarding. and does not accept any resf]onsibility for the accumc] or
conrpleteness ofthis Official Statcmcnt or an! inlbrrlalion or disolosure contained herein, or omilled herefrom. other than lvilh
rcspcct lo llrc accuracy of the informalion rogitr(lir]g ACN,I supplied by AGI\4 and prcsented under the heading "BONI)
INSI]RANCE'.

Ito\t) I \st R.\\('E RISKS

ll()tiD lNst,R.\NCE RICK FACToRS. . . ln lhe c\eDl ol'dcllult ofthe scheduled pal mcnt of priDcipal ol'or interest on the Certificales
\tcnall or a portion thereof becorncs due. ao\ ()\\nerol thc Cerlificales shall hateaclaim undcr thc Polic) lbr such pa)mcnts.
'l hc paymenl of pdncipal ard inlerest in corDecli(n1 \\ ilh maDdatorv or optional prepa] n1cot ol lhc (lcrlifcales by the Citr- which
is r'ccovcred b] the Ci1) lronl the bond o\vncl as a roidrble preference undcr applicablc baDkruptc) la\!iscoveredbydrePo)ic1:
horrcr,er. srrch puyments will be rnadc by lhc lnsurcr al such time and in such anrou,rts as rvould have been due absent such
prcpaymcnt by thc City (unless the Insurcr chooscs 1r) pay such amounts at an earlier datc).

l)rl\nlcot ol princ;pal ofand inleresl on thc (crlillc les will not be subject to accclcralion. hut olher legal remedies upon thc
occrrrreoccol_non'pavmenldL)exist(scc"lIIll(lrltIll:lCAIES Cerlificatcholdcrs Rcnlcdies"). lhc lnsurer may reserve thc

rcquostcd b] the Certificatcholdcrs.

ln thc event the lnsurer is unable to mako pa) nrcDl of principal and interesl as such pa]'ments beco,lr(r duc und€r the Polic). the
Cerlificales are palable solel) from the sccnril) plcdged pursuant to the Ordinancc and. as further described in '-THE
( liRl IFICATES - Securio' and Source ol' l)r)'mcDt ol'lhc Certificates". In the evenl the lnsurcr becomes obligated to make
pa)"ncnts Nilh respect to the Certitlcales. no assuruncc is given that such event \lill not ad\ersel)' allect the market price or the
markerabilit) (liquidity) ofthc Ccrtificales.

ll'a I'olicy is acquired. lhe long-ternr ratings on thc ( c(illcates Nill bc dcpcndcnl in parl on the linaDcinl stlength olthe Inslrer
iD{l its clainls-paying ability. l he Insurer's llnlrcial strcngth and claims-paying ability are prcdicaled upon a number of laclors
$hich oould change over lime. No assrirlnce can be given that the long-terDr ratings of thc lnsurcl and of the ratings on the
(:crtillcates. whether or not subjcct to a Polio)'. \vill ,lot hc subject to downgrade and such evcnt co!ld adversel! affect the market
pricc or the markelahility (liquidity) ofthc ( cl1illc tcs (see ' Ol tlER INFORMATION - RatiDg").

'lhc obligations olthe Insurcr under a Policy rrc gcncral obligations ofthe lnsurer and iD aD cvenl ofdelault by the Insurer. the
rcnlcdics available may be linritcd by applicablc bankruplcy larv. Neither of the City or the City's Firancial Advisor has made
indcpcndent investiSation irrto the clainrslaying ahilil) ol any potential insurer and no assurance or reprcscntation regarding the
llnancial strength or projectcd financial strength ol nY polenlial insurerisgi\cn-

I']\X INIIORTIATIO\

'lhe-[olloving is a summary ofcerldin ptut'isions o/Stale ldv.ts it relates to adv orcm kLtation oul is not intendedto be completc.
Prcspeclite inreslors dre encouraged lo rcviev Title I o/ the Texas Tax Code, as amcntlel (the "Property Tax Code"), lor
identilic ion of property subject to ud rdhlen la\ation. properly erempl or \thich mot, be exemptedfrom ad ralorcm ta\ation if
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( L.\rMs-P.\r'rn*c ABILIT)' A._D f t:\.\i\ct,\1. St Rr:i\c I ll or lftrNrcrpAL BoND lNSt,RxRs . . - Mood)'s Inveslor Sen-ices- Inc.- S&P
andI:itchRatings(collectivel].the-RalingA8cncics')hayedo\\ngradedanrvorplacedonnegativc\tatchtheclaims-payingabiliq'
an{l llnancial strength of most proyiders ol- municipal bond insurance. Additional dorvngrades or Dcgatilc changes in the rating
outkxrk lbr all bond insurcrs is possible. ln addilion. ccrlain events in the credil nrark€ls ha\'e had substantial negative effects on
lhc borld insurance business. Thcsc dcvcL:pnrenls could bc t ie$ed as halilrg a matcrial adverse effecl on thc claims-palirg abilit}
ofsuch bond insurers, including any bond insurcroflhe Cerlificates. Thus, when maling an invcstment decision. potcntial in\.estors
should carefully coDsiderthe ability ofthe Clit) lo pa) principal and interest on thc Ccrlificales and the clains-paying ability ofany
such bond insurer. particularly over the lilt ol'lhe Certificates.



cl.titned, the apPraisal ofpropery fot dd ralorem tax purposes, and the plocedut es and limitations applicable to the le.ry and
coIIectio of ad rdlorem taxes.

VALUATION oF TAx,\BLE PR0PERTY. . . The Propefty Tax Code p.ovides lbr countywide appraisal and equalization oftaxabte
propefv valoes and establishcs in eacb counq ofthc Slale an appraisal districl and an appraisal rlrvielv board (the "Appraisal
Review Board") rcsponsible for appraising propefty for all taxing unils Nithin the count]. Thc appriisal ofproperty lvithin thc City
is the responsibility ofthe  ndersoll Countv Appraisal Districl (lhe "Appraisal District"). lxcept as generally descrjbcd bclou,. the
Appraisal District is rcquired to appraisc all property within the Appraisal Dislricl on the basis o1 10070 ofirs market value and is
prohibited liom applling any asscssment ratios. ln dctcnnining nrarket valuc ofpropc(v, the Appraisal District is rcquircd to
consider the cost nlelhod ofapplaisal. thc inc(nne method ofappraisel and the nrarket data cofiparisoD method ofappraisal. and
use the mcthod the chiefappraiser oflhc Apprrisal Djstricl considcrs nn)st appropriate. Thc Properlv lax ( ode requires appraisal
districts to rcapprdise all propcrty in i1s jttlisdiction at lcast once every three years. A taxing unit mav r-equire annual rcvicw at its
oNn expense. and is cntitled to chililenge thc dctermination ofappraiscd value olproperty r\ithin thc taxirg nit by petition fited
\\ith tbe Appraisal Revierv Board.

State larv rcquires the appraiscd value oIan ownel's pri cipal residence ("honlestcad' or ''honlesieads") to be based solcl) oll thc
prope[v's valuc as a honrestead, regard]ess (]l-whether rcsiclcntial use is considered to be thc highesl and hest use ofthe property.
Slate law furthcr Iimils the appraiscd \,alue ola homestcad to the lesser of(l) the nalket valuc ollhe propert) or (2) ll0% ofthe
appraised valLte ofthe properly lortl)c prcccding tax)earplusthc markcl \,alue ol'{ll ne\\ inrprolcltrcnts to the prope !.

State law provides that eligible orvners ofboth agricultural land and open-space land- inctLld;ng open-spaoe laod devotcd to.farm
ot ranch purposes or open-space lalrd dcvotcd 1o tinber production, lrlay elecl to have such propcrt],appraised forpropeftv taxation
on the basis of its productive capacity (''Produclivit! Value"). Thc samc Iand nlay not be qualificd as both agriculluml and open-
space land.

The appraisal values set bl the Appraisal Dislrict are subject to review and change by the Appraisal Review Board. 1he appraisal
rolls, as approved by the Appraisal Revic$, Board. are used by taxing unils, such as the Clity. in cstablishing their 1ax rolls and tax
rates. See "TAX IN|OI{N4ATION City aDd 'l axpal,cr Remedies."

Sn{TE MANDATED IIoMESTDAD lixu\lPl IoNs . - - State law grants, with respect to each city in tlrc Statc, various exemptions lor
disabled veterans aod thcir Iamilies. surviving spouses ofnlembcrs ofthc arnred services killed in action, and sllrviving spouses of
firsf respondcrs killed or fatallt wounded in the line oldut\.

Locrl OPTON Holl[sT[]rtt] E\Er\IPTrof,_s . . . Thc Boverning bod], of a taxing unit, including I cit]. county, school districl, or
special dislricl, at its optioo may gr anl: ( I ) an exemption of up to 2oqo ofthe appraiscd vahlc oI all homesteads (but not lcss than
Xi5,000) and (2) .rn additional exemplion olat least 53.000 olthe appraised value olthc homcsleads ofpersons sixB -fi\,c (65) ycars
of age or oldcr and lhe disabled. Each taxing Luit decidcs il i1 will oller the local option honrcstcad exenlptions and at \\hat
percentage or dollar aorount. as applicablc. lllc exemption described iu (2). above. nlav also be created. inc.cascd, dccrcasecl or
repealed at an clcclion calied by the govcroing bod) of a taxing unit upon prcsenlment of a petition fbr such crcation. itcrease.
decrease, or rcpeal o1 :Lt least 20olo ofthc nunlber ofqualified votcrs who voled in the preceding clcction ofthe taxing unit.

Loc,\t, Oprroi\" FR[f,Zf, roR t HE Er,DERr,y AND I)IS,\BLED . . . The governing bodl of a county. municipality or junior collegc
dislict lna!. at its optioll. provide for a lieeze on thc total amount ofad valor-ern taxes lcvicd on the holnesleads ofpersons 65 ycars
ofagc or older or oldisabled persons above the aDount oftax imposcd in the )ea. sLroh residencc qualilied lor s ch exenlptiun.
AIso. uporr \'oter illitiative, an cleclion may be lleld to detcrn1ine hy rnajoritv vote whether to cstablish such a lreeze on ad valorem
taxes. Oncc thc lrecre is establjshed. thc total amounl oftaxes imposcd on such homcsleads canDot be increased except lbr ccdain
improvements, and such freeze cannot he repealed or rescinded.

PERsoNrl. PRoPfRTl . . . 'l a,rgiblc personal propeq, (lurniturc, nlachinery. supplies, inventories. eto.) used in the "production of
income" is taxed based on thc properl]'s markel value. Taxablc pcrsonal property includes ilcome-producing equip cnt and
invcnbry. Intangibles such as goodrvill. accorlnts receivable, and proprictar) proccsses are riol taxable.'l'angible personal propertJ
irot held or used lbr production of income. such as houschold goods, aulomobiles or light 1rucks. and boats, is exempt from ad
valorem taxation unless the governing body ofa taxing unit elects to tru such propeft).

lrrEEPoRT ,\ND CooDsJ N- I RANSIT E\ENrp ()Ns. . . Cedain goods that ale acquired in or importcd into the State to be lorwarded
outside thc State, and arc delained in the State fbr 175 days or less lor the purpose ofassenrbly. storage. manufacturing, proccssing
or labrication ( Frccport Prope$)_") are exempt from ad valorcm taxation unless a taxing unit t )k olficial aclion to tax Freepot
l'ropeq bef'orc April I. 1990 and has not subsequentl) takcn ollicial action to exempt [reepo11 Prcpe(]. Decisions to continue
taxing fleepoft Property may bc rcvcrsed in the [uture: decisions to exempt F'rccport Propcrry' arc not subject 10 r€versal.

Certain goods that are acquircd in or imported into the State to be lor$,arded to another location \\ithin or without thc State, stored
in a location thal is not o\\'ned b) the o\uer oflhc goods and are transported to another localion withio or without the State within
175 days ('Goods-io-Transit"). are generally exempt from ad valorem taxation; ho\\'cvcr- thc Propcrly Tax Codc permits a ta\ing
unit. on a loc^l option basis. 10 lax Goods-in- liansit ilthe taxing unit takes oflicial action aficr conducling a public hearing. bel'ore
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January I ofthe first tax year in which th€ ta\iDg unil proposes 1() tax Goods-inil'ransit. Goods-in-Transit and |reeport Prope(y
do not include oil, natural gas or petroleun) products. and Goods-in-'liansil does not include aircraft or speoial inventories such as

manufactured housing inveltory, or a dealer's Drolor vchicle. boal. or heavy equipntcnl inventory.

A taxpayer may receive only one of the Goods-in- liansil or I'rccporl l'roperty c\cnrpliors Ibr ilcms ol'plJrsonal prope(y.

OTHIR EXEMPT PRoPERTY . . . Olher major cateSorics ol'crcnlpt propcrly iDcludc propcrl] owned b] lhc State or its polilical
subdivisions ifused for public purloscs. p()perty cxerrlpl b) l'cdcral la\r,. p()pcrly uscd lLr pollulion control. larm products owned
by producers. property of nonprollt corporalions uscd lbr scicntilic rcscarch or cducalidlal aclivities bencfitting a collegc or
university. designated historic si1cs. solar arld *ind-pouered eocrgl dcviccs. ar)d ccfliti,r classcs ol intaDgible personal prcperty.

conlribule laxes lcvied rgainsl lhe "lncreDrenlal Vfluc" irthc llllZ lo linilrlceorpa! li)r pr()icct costs. asdclincd inChaplcr3ll.
Te\a\ CovernDleDt Code. gcnclal localcd wilhio thc IIlil. Al lhc tiDlc ol-lhc creation ol-lhc llltZ. a 'basc laluc'{br tllc rcal
properly in the 'l_lRl is establishcd and thc dilltrcnce bct\\cc,r an\ increasc in thc asscssld !.iluatioD ol'taxablc rcal propcrt, in thc
llllzircxccssoi-thebaseTalueisknorYnaslhc"lncrcDlcnl lValuc.ilndduringthcc\islcnccol thc llltz.alloraponionoIthc
la\es lelied bl'oach participating taxing unit against lhc lllcrcnrcolltl Vnlur in lhe'lllil arc rcstrictcd to pal ing pro.jcct and
financing costs s ithin lhc TIRZ aDd arc nol a\ irililhlc li)r Ihc pr] nrcnl ol olhcr ohligittioDs (rl such tllxing units.

TA\ ABATf,Mf,NT ACRDIiMINTS. Taxiig uDits InA]' ulso cntcr into ta\ ahatcnrcnl agreements to encouage economic
development. Under the agreements. a propcrt) o\rner agrccs to construcl ccrtain iurprovcments on its property. The taxing unil.
in fum, agrces not to le\')' a tax on all or parl ofthc incrcascd \alue allribulahlc lo thc improl'emcnts unlil lhe cxpiration ofthc
agrcemenl- The abatemenl agreement could last for a period ol up to l0 ycars.

For a discussion ol ho\\' the |arious exenrptions describcd above arc applicd by thr City, Sce ' IAX INFORMATION Cit)
Application ofProperly l-ax Code" and 'Tablc I Asiicssed Valualion and []x€nlption" herein.

such as dlc Cit\ nrar bring suit rgainst the  ppraisal I)i\lricl k) comp.l con)plixnce \\ilh the I,ft)pcrtr 
-lax (irdc.

State Comptrollcr. and situaled in a count) \vith a populatioD ol_onc nrillion or nx:rc. nray protijst lhc detcmlinations ofan appraisal
districl directly to a thrcc-membcr special p{nelofthc apl)rnisal revicrr board. appointcd h1'tho chairnran ofthe appraisal rerrcrr
board. consisling oIhighll qualilied proltssionals in lhc Ilcld olproperlv ta\ rppraisrl.-lhc minimunr cliSibility anrounl is set at
$i0 million fbr thc 2020 tax 1ear. and is adiustcJ annnall\, b)'lhc State (i)nrpt()llcr 1() rellcct thc inflatknr ratc.

1he Propenl Tax Code sets lorth notice and h€ariog proccdurcs lbr certain ta\ rale incrcases by the District and provides for
ta\pal er referenda drat could rcsull ir the repeal ofcenaio tar incrcases (sec -lAX INFORMAI ION - l\rblic llearing and
Maintcnance and OperalioIs ]_ax Rate Limilalfuhs ).'lhePropofl] Ia\ Codc llso cstahlishcs a procedure lbr providing notice lo
propertf owners oIreappraisals rellecting increascd propcrtv value. appraisals $'hich are highcr than renditions. and appraisals of
propen)'no1 previously on an appraisal roll.

Lt\'\ AND CoLLf,crloN ot'I'a\[s.. - lhe Cily isresponsiblcfbrthccotlcctionolilslaxcs-rmlcssitclectstokansltrsuchfunctions
to anothcr governmental entily. l axes arc due Oclobcr l. or whcn billcd. rvhichcver comes latcr. and bcconle delinquent aftcr
January 3l ofthe lollowirlg ]'ear. A delinqueut tax incurs a penaltl t)l'six pcrcent {69;) ol thc amount ofthe la\ fi}r the lirst calcndar
month it is delinquenl. plus one perc€nt (l7u) fir each additiorrul nrcnth or portioD ol a rnonlh thc lax rcmains unpaid prior to Jul)
I ofthe year in uhich it becomes delinquenl. If the lax is nol paid by .lull l olthe1,carin rvhich it hcconres delinquent. rhetax
incurs a lotal penalq oftwelve percent (l27o) regardless ol'lhc nuriber ol'nonths the tax has been delirquent and incurs an
additional penalg oiup to lwenty percent (20yo) if inlposcd by the City- 

-l 
he delinrlucnt tar also accrucs interesl at a rate of one

perceDt (l7o) for each month or portion ola nlond) it rcnlains unpaid. Ihc Propcrtl' lar Code also makes provision forthe split
payment of taxes, discounts lbr early payment and thc postpon€nlent of the delinquency date oftaxcs for ccrtain la\payers.
Furthermore, the City may provide. on a local oplion basis. tbr the splil payme,lt. partial pnyllrent. and discounls tbr early paynretit
of taxes under certain circumstanccs-

CITY's RlcHTs IN TItt EVENT or TAr D[LtNQlrEN(]tEt. . . 'l axes lcvied by thc Cily arc a pcrsonal ohligation of the owner ofthc
pmpert-v. On January I ofeach ycar. a tax Iien altaches to properly 10 secur(j thc payrnent ofall state and Iocal taxcs. penalties, and
interest ultimately imposed for the year on thc property. -l 

he licn exists in favor ol'each taxing unit. including thc City, hc\ ing
power to tax the property. The Cily's tax lien is on a parity wilh tax licns of such other laxiDg units. A tax lien on real property
takes prioritJ over the claim ofnlost creditors and other holclers of liens on the propefly cncutnbered by thc tax licn, whcther or not
thc debt or lien existed bDforc the attachmcnl of the tax licn: however. wholher a litn of the Unitcd Statcs is on a parity with or
takes priority over a tax lien ofthc City is deterrnined by applicable fedcral larv. Pcrsonal prcpcdy, undcr ce(ain circumstanccs. is
subject to seizure and sale fbr the paymcnl ofdelinqueDt taxcs. penalty, and intercst.

2t



At any time aller taxcs on properly beconrc delinquent. the City may file suit to foreclose the lien securing payment ofthe tax, to
enforc€ pcrsonal liability for lhe tax. or both. ln tlling a suil 1() foreclose a tax lien on real property, the Cily mustioin other taxing
units that have clainls tor dclinquenl laxcs against all or part ofthe same properb -

Collection ol delinquent ta\cs nra) he adrcrsclv allecled b) the amount of ta\es o\\€d to olher uxing units. adverse markct
conditions. la\pa]er rc(lcmplion rights. or bankruplc\ proceedings \vhich restrain the colleclion ofa taxpa]er's debt.

Fede.al bankruplcy larv provides that nn nutomrtic stay ofactions bl creditors and other entities. including gorernmeDtal unils.
goes into elTccl \\'ilh tho filing oIan)' pclilior in bankruptcy. T]re automatic stay prevents govenrmental units fronr lbrcclosing on
property and prcvcnts licns I'or posl-pctitiorr la\es Iiom alldching to propet and obfaining secrred credilor stalus unless. iD eilher
case. arl order liliing dlc sla\ isobtained Iront thc bankruptc) coun. lnnlan] cases, post-petilion t&\es are paid as an administrali\c
c\pcnsc ofthe estrte in bankr ptc] or b) order ofthe bankruptct'courl.

TElrpoRARl l,\t:upr t()\ t'oR Ql .\l. r r rr:l) l',(n,aR r'\' Dr)trc tD Bt' A DtsASl [R . . Thc Propen] Ta\ Code entilles lhlr o\ rlcr o,-
cenain qualilicd (i) l.rngiblc pcrsonal propcftl' uscd lbi tlrc produclion ol-income. (ii) improrements to rcal propcrt)- ilnd (iii)

tlanraged trr ths disnslcr. as dclcrnrinctl hr thc chiel'appraiscr- to an cxemption fi'om ta\ation ol a porliolr olthc apllraiscd \ al r ol-
the propcn). l_hc irnrouot ol_lhc c\emplion rangos fionr I5 pcrccnl lo 100 percenl based upon the daNagc asscssmcnl rirlltS

adopts a tax ratc li)r th! r ear irr rr hich thc disaslcr d..claration is issued- thc gor crning bod) ofthe laxiog uril is not rcquircd to takc
an'\' action irt ordcr lbr lhc ln\pa\cr lo hc cliBible lbr lhc e\cmplion. If a ta\pa!er qualifies for thc c\cmplioD aflcr thc bcginning
ofthc tax !ear. lhc anlounl ol'lho c\onlplion is p()nled bosed on lhe nunher oIdaIs left in the tax ) car follo\\'ing thc da1' on tlhich
thc Govcrnor declarcs lhc nrcn lo hc (lisasler arca. l-'or nlore inlbnration oD the exemption- refcrcncc is rnadc to Scction | 1.35 ol'
the ['a\ Code. Sccliorr ll.i5ol lhu ]a\ ({rdc rras cnacled duriDgthe 2 0 I 9 lc8islativc sc ssion, and there is no historicat.itKlicial
prccedcnl lbrhoN lhcslllulc\\ill be applied. IcxasAltome! General Opinion KI'-0299, issucd on April 11.2020. concluded a

court r,'ould likely find thc 'lc\as l.egisl0ture iolcnded to liInil the temporary tax exemption to apply to propcrl) phlsioally hirnnctl
rs a result ofa (lcclarod disaster.

PlrBr.r( IIDARTN(;  \D NlrtN'r t,\AN( l] ,\ND Or,IR{r-t()N TA\ IIATtr l,tIrITATloh-s
havc lhc nrcarrirgs prr)vidcd hclol,:

The Following terms as used in this scclion

"adiusted" ,neans losl valucs nrc nol included in thc calculation ofthe prior year's taxes and nerv values arc not includcd in thc
cunlrnt ycar's taxable valucs.

''dc mirlimis r^le n)eaos thc nlainlenancc irnd operations tax rate that \yill produce the prior year-s lotal ntaintenaDce aDd opcrnlions
ta\ levy (acliustcd) liorn lhe cun-cnl ]car's !rlucs (adjusled). plus the rate that produces an additional$500.000 in tax ,cvenue $l1cn
applied t(, the currenl \cnr's l xablo vnluc. n[ls thc dcbt service tax rale.

''no-ncw-rcvljntle lax ratc" nrealrs thc coDlbined maiDtcnance and operations tax rate and debt service tax mte that lvill producc thc
prior year's lolal tax lovy (adjrsted) Iiom thc currcnl year's total tirxable values (adjusted).

''special taxing unil'Dlcans il cit) Iar \\hich the rnaintenance and operations tax rate proposcd for the currenl tax )'ear is 2.5 cents
or lcss pcr $ 100 ol taxablc valuc.

_unused incremcnt rate" nrcans the curnulalivc difLrence bcn\een a cir)-'s voter-approval ta\ rate and its actual tax rale for each
ofthc lo\ years 2020 lhrough 2022. rvhich ma) be applied to a city's tax rate in tax years 2021 thrcugh 2023 wihout impacting the
voter-approval lax ratc.

''voter-approlal la)i ralc" nreans the mirinlcnance and operations la,\ rate that $ill produce the prior)car's total mainlcnance and
operalions tar le\'y (adilrslcd) Iionr lhc currcnl )ear's values (adjusted) multiplied by 1.035. plus the debt service tax rate. plus the
'rrnuscd incrcment ratc'

Thc Cii-\-' s la\ rale consisls of l\\'o conrponents: ( l ) a rate for funding ofmaiNenaDce and opcrations cxpcnditures in thc currcnt

)ear (thc "maintcDancc aDd operations lax mte"). alld (2) a rate lor funding debt service in the current year (the "dcbl servicc tax
ratc"). Llnder Slat€ laN, lhe assessor Ia. thc Cil) must submit an appraisal roll sho\\'ing the total appraiscd. assesscd. and taxablc
r alues ofall propertl in the City lo lhc CiD Council by AugLrst I or as soon as practicable thereafter.

A cit) must annuall) calculate ils volcr-approval tax rate" ard ''no-ne\\-re\'enue tax rate" (as such terns are dctlned abovc) in
accordance wilh lbrnrs prcscribed b) the Statc Complroller and provide notice ofsuch rates to each o$rer oftaxablc pmpcny
within the city and thc courrty lax asscssor-collector lbr each counq- in \\,hich all or part ofthe city is located. A cily musl adopl a

lax rale helbre the lalerofScltcnrbcr 30 orlhe 60th day after receipt ofthe certified appraisalroll. excepl that a tax ratc that cxcceds
the voter-approval tax ratc nlusl bc adopted not litcr than thc Tlst day belbre the next occurring Novenrber uniform eleotion dale.
lfa city fails to linrcly adopl a lax rale. lhc tax ratc is stalutorily sel as the lower ofthe no-new-revenue tax rale for the ourrenl tax
year or thc lax ratc adoplcd by lhc cily for the preceding tax year.
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As described belorv. the Property Tax Code provides thal if a city adopts a ta\ ratc lhat exceeds its volcr-approval tax rate or, in
cerlain cases. its "de Drinimis rate". an election must be held to determine lrhether or nol to red!cc lhe adoptcd tax rate to the voter-
approval tax rate.

n city m a] not adopt a tax rale thal c xceeds I h{j lorve r o f the \()ler-appro val tax ratc or the no -new-revcnue ta]( rate unl il each

appEisal district in which such cit] participales has delivcrcd noticc to each taxpayL'r of lhe eslimated total amounl ofproperty
ttxes olvcd and thc citl has hcld a public hearing on the proposcd tax incre se.

Ii)r cities wilh a populalion o1 30,000 or more as of the Dtosl reccnl l'ederal dccenuial census. il'lhe adopted tax rate fbr any tax
!car exceeds the vol{jr-appruvrl tax rate, thal cil) nlust coDduct an clectioD on the nexl occu[irg Novcnrbcr unitbrnr election datc
t() determine \\'hclher or not to rcduce lhc adopled lax ralc 10 the \.oler-approYa! tax rate.

I:or citics rvith a population less tha 30.000 as ol'lhe mosl recent loderal dcccnnial ccnsus- ifthc adopted tax rate lbr any tax ycar
c\cceds lhc greater of (i) thc voter-approlal ta\ lratc or (ii) the dc nlininlis rate. the cit\' must conducl an eleclion on lhe next
occurring November unifornr (rlection dale to determine \vhclher or nol to reduce the adopted tax rate lo thc \.oter-approval tax rale.
I loNever. lbr any tax year during which a city hrs a populAtioD o1'lcss than 10.000 as ol the nrosl recent tbderal dcccnnial ccnsus
and docs nol qualify as a special taxiDg unit, ifa city's adopted tax rate is cqual to or lcss than the de mininris ratc but grcatcr than
both (a) lhc no-ne\\-re\enue tax rate. nrulliplicd b) 1.08-plosthedcbtscr\icetrxratcor(b)thecit)'s\'(rler-appro\al ta\ rate. thcn
a\alidpelilionsigncdhyallclsllhrccpcrcentol'thercsistcredvotcrsinlheoillwouldrequircthalanelectionbchuldtodclcnDine
whether or Dot to reduce the odoptcd tax ratc to lhc voter-rpproval lar rate.

An\ cil\ k)cated al least parll) within an area dcslarcd a d;si$ter iuca bl thc (;o\erllor oflhe Slate or thc Presidcnl ofthe tlniled
Slxtes duriDg the curreDt year ma) calculate its "voter-apprcval lax ratc' usin8 a 1.08 nrultiplier, instead of 1.035. until the carlier
ol (i) the second ta\ ycar in rrhich such cit\ s k)til taxablc appraiscd !aluc c\ceeds thc laxable appraised !alue on Jrnuar)' I ofthe
) car thc disaster occurred. or (ii) the lhird tax ) car alter thc la\ \c rin\\'hich the disas(cr occurrcd.

strle la\\'provides cilies and countics in thc Slrtc the oplion ofasscssing a rllu\imunr (,nc hallpcrcent(l/27u)salesanduselh\on
rcl.lilsalcs ol_l iablcitems{i,rlhcpurFruscol-reduciigilsadvalo|crrrla\es.il-itppro\cdh)anrajorig'ol-lhc\otersinalocaloption
clcclion. lltheadditioDal sales and ust tax for ird lahrcrr tax reduction is apploved and levied. lhe o-ncw-rcvenuc lax ratc aud
t()ler-apIrolal tax ratc nlusl bc reduccd b] thc rlnounl ol lhe estinralljd salcs ll\ revcnues to bo gencralcd in the currcnt lax !car-

'l he calcuhtions oIthe no-nl:tr-rcvenuc tax mle and toler-approvat tar ratc do no( limil or impact thc Cit]'s ability to s€t
t debt stn ico tax rate in cxth year rullicient lo pay dcht scNicc on all olthc Cily's trr-srDportcd debl obligations, including
thc CerIifiLatcs.

Ilcferencc is madc to th€ Propcrly lax Code for definitivc lequirenrcnts frrr'the levy and collection ofad valorcm taxes and thc
calculation ofthc various delined tax rnl€s.

(llTY AP?t,lcarloN orTAx CoDD . - - l he City grants an excrnptioD to the nrarkel valuc ofthc residence homestead ofpersons 65
years ofagc or older of$l1,000: lhe disablcd are also granted an cxemption of$5,000-$12.000 depending on lhe percentage of
disability.

'l'he City has not graited an additional cxempti(n of20o/o ofthe nrarket value ofresidence homesteads; minimum exenlption of
s5.000.

See Table I for a listing ofthc amounts ofthe exenrptions described abovc.

'fhe Ciil- has not adopted thc tax freezc lor citizens \vho arlr disabled or are 65 years ofage or older.

Ad valoren t&xes arc llot levied by thc City against the excnrpt value ofresidcnce homesteads for the payment ofdebl.

The City does not ta\ nonbusiness pcrsonal propertl.; and Anderson County collects laxcs lor the City.

'l'he City does not pennit split payments, and disoounts are not allowed.

Thc City does not tL\ lreepon propcrty.

The City does nol tax goods-in-tmnsit.

Thc City does collect the additional onc-eight cenl sales tax for reduction ofad valorem taxes.

The city has not adopted a t&\ abatement policl. The City enters into tax abatement agreements with enlities al the discretion oflhe City Council. The City curently has multiplc outstan;ing tax abatement agrcemenls.

TAx INCRf,MENT FINANCING REIN'\'[sr[rENT zoNfs . The city does not currenlly have any ta\ incremcnt financing reinve$menr zones
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TrBLE I - AssLssr,D \'Ar.t {t t()\ .\\D E\r:\rp o\

20ll,?l Marker Valualron Establ'shsl br- Anderson Counrv Ap pmisat Dislri€l
( e\.hding rotally exempt propeny)

Lc\s l,\ernplionsrllcdocli(nx al 1001; Market V [r.
( )\ cr 6-i Rcstrl.fc. and I)Lrrh!.d I lonre\t.rd lj\enrplrons

11)llution Conrol
lllxluclr!rll l.o\s

lloLrsc Arlll(i,
I)rsahled V.rcrrrrs E\enUlnnN

M isc

llonrcstcaLl Crt) I oss

$ 15,568,.189

99,220.82t

33,',720

4,716.198

11,67{,866

24_549.500

13,217,848

4,089

7,126,958

s t.256,717,907

s l7ii.llt.{s9

51,078.495,4t8

5 49.l8,r.li.l

$ 21.24i,000

s 1,1,919.2i.r

llrll ll I rvbl.,\jscss.d Yrlurlr(nr

General Obli3lion Bonds & Cedificates of Obl'g ioll Fundcd liomAd Valorem Ta\es as of8/]tD02l
Capilal Leases funded from Ad Valorem Tays .ri of 8a 12021

The Certificatesrr'

Total General Obligion Debt Fmded ftom Ad Valorem'l a\es a! of8/312021

Less: Self-Sup p oning Debl as of8/3l2O2lt'?r

G€ns.al Oblrgtion Refunding aonds, Scnes :012 (Watcr & Sewer)

Combinalion Ta\&Revenue Cedjficates ofObligatron, Scnes 2013 (Water & Sewer)

Combinataon Tax& Revenuc RelundrngBonds, Serier 2020 (water& Sewer)

Combinat ion 'l ax & Revenue Cerl jficates of Obligtt ion, Series 202 I { Wal€r & Sewer)
-I 

he Ce(ificrles (Water & Sewer)'i'

Total Self-Sup p ort ing Debr ns oflt/31r0211:

Nel G€fle.al Ob,Erljon Debi Frnded l)ebr Pa\ ble from Ad Valorem Ta.es

lolerest nnd Sinting fund las ol 8/112021)

s 13. t80 000

1,414,254

t4.590,000

$ I 15.000

1,595,000

4,885.000

4.585,000

13,065.000

169.427

4 561.

)

(2)

Rario l:lrnded Ta\ Deht 10 Tn$blc Assessed Valuatron

2021 Esiimaled Populalion - 18.289

Per Capira'la\ahle Assessed Valuation - 558,970

Per Cnprta Fmded l)ebl Payable from Ad Valoren l - 52,689

Preliminary. subject 1() change.
'lhe amount sho\\'n is anticipated to be self-supponed fronr the Water & Scwer System Fund Net Re\,enucs- lfsuch revenues

arc insufllcielrl. the City rvill be required to assess an ad valorem tax to pay the dift'erence- See Table I0 "Self-Supporting
Debt."

lThc renoilder ofthis pdg? lefl blank inte tiorutll!-l
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T,\Br r 2 - l a\,\Bl.r' ,\ssEssFD \rr ri\1r()i\s Bl (-,rrF(:oRI

Taxnblc Appr iscd Vrluc for Fiscal Year lirdcd Scplember 30,

)t))) 7021 2020

('rlclury
%of
Total

9i ol'
'Iinal

%of
'lotal

Real, Residcntial Single l-amily

Real. R!'sidcntaal M uhi-Fanrily

Real. Vaca Plalt!'d l-olsn'racts

Renl AcreaeE (l,and Only)

Real, !'ann ard Ranch lmprovements

Real. Comnrcrcial and lndustrial
Real and Inl.lgible Personal. Ulilrlies
Tangible Personal. Ilusiness & Olher

Tangrblc Persoml Mobilc Hom€s

Real.lnYentory

Speciallnvcntory

Total Appraised Vahle Before E)amptjons

Less:'lolal Lxenlptions/Reductions

T iable Asscsscd Value

$ 52t,445.089

31,851,863

9,805,809

4.855,613

I5,141,402

416.515,941

42,424.185

20t.086.572

2.-108.618

98,047

9.084,768

$ ,166.551,786

l0 8l2,4gj
9.649.328

14.204.956

408.085.902

l7.r 18.667

206.431.976

2.211.723

l1t_428

9.741,95t

39.220/b

159./.
0 qto/r

0.38%

1.19vo

)4 3 tyo

3.t20/"

t1.360/.

0 19%

0 0lo/o

0.820/0

462.246.023

r0-821.205

9,6i1.544

4,609,171

14.095,569

t96.551.207

31,074.3',79

2l 1. t20.607

2.032.051

r09.?75

7.1.10,916

,l9,ll9,o
I619i,
0 820,;

0199'0

l.20vr

13 82vr

291o,;

tn 0t9;
0 I79i,

0 019;

0.6t96

4t 49./.

2 530/.

0 78r/o

0.390/0

t 200/o

33 t4"/o

l.l8%
16.160/"

0.1()%

0.0t%
{l.72vo

$ 1.256,7 t7,907 t00 00%

t'78,222.489

xi t. t89,466,792 100 00%

r55,423,8t7
$ 1,172,446.,155

l]8.334.390

\

100 0091,

$ t.078.495.418 :! r 0r 1012 975 $ r.011,112.065

taN lL l8

( xlcgor!

Real, Rcsidc tir Singlc l.amily

Real, Residcntial M ulti-Family
Real- Vacanl Platted l.ots/l mcts

Real Acr!'ase (l.and Only)

Real- Fann and ltanch Improvements

Rcrl Commercial and Induslrial

Rcal and Intangrhle Personal, Utilities
Tangible Persoral. Ilusiness & Olher
Tangible Personal Mobile llomes

Rcal. InveDtory

Spe€iallnvcnlory
_Iolal 

Appraiscd Valuc Refore E)€mptions

Less: Total !:xcnptions/Reductions

Ta'able Asscssed Value $ 1.01.1.901.661 $ 964.r71.636

NOTE: Valuatiorrs shown arc certified larablc assessed valucs reportcd b) thc Anderson County Appraisal District to thc Stalc
Comptroller of l'uhlic Accounts. Ccrliliod valucs are subject to chanSe throuShout the year as contested values arc rcsolvcd and
the Appraisal Districl updates rccords.

[The rcnaintler ofthis pagc lcli bldnk inention lb l

$ 449.797,851

30,657,985

10.788,051

1.676,886

16.52'1.867

t97.110.941

13.7 r2,121

239.194,524

1.978,01 I

109,115

7.141.685

3519%

0.86%

0 31%

til%
3 t 6096

2 68%

l9 08%

o.l6yo

0 0t%
0 58%

s 437,709,t71

30,161,547

I0.664_085

4.5 t3.600

16.505-150

170.t55.978

11.678,930

23',t ,103 .324

2,324,566

138,198

7.428,820

r8.050r,

2.61V.

0.930/o

o 390/.

t.430/o

J2.180/o

2.930/6

20.610/6

0 20o/o

0.0 t%
0 650/0

o,i, ol-
'lixal 'Ior 

l

$ 1.192 -t92.706

t77.588.041

94.89% $ t.150,183,569 100.00%

186,209,933

2.i



'l \rr.r J \'.\t.I'.\tto\.\\DCt\ER{r.OBLtc\rro\DlBt.lltstt)R\

Iiscal

l:ndcd

9/30

Ralio of
G.O. Ta\ Debt

to TaMble

Assessed

Valuation

20t7

20t8

20t9

2020

2o2t

t8.393

18.39i

l8-3('6

l8.ri6
18.289

$ 97{.895-657

964.171-6i6

r.0t 4.904.661

1,034-t l2-065

1.0i4.012.975

Ta\able

Assess€d

Valuation

Pcr Capita

$ s3.004

52.421

55.44t

57,020

56,539

$11.862.420

10,752.668

t0.022,38i

8,s69,8 r6

49.427.':,89 tll

$ 645

585

s41

473

2.703 t5)

[stimated

Populationrr)

Net

Ta\able

Asscsscd

G,O,
"l a,i Dcbt

Outstanding

at llnd

G.O. 1a\
Debl

Per

Capila

(l) Souroe: City Staff.
(2) As rcportcd by the Anderson County Appraisal District ol1 thc City's annual Certilled Rolls; subject to change during thc
cnsuitlg yoar.
(3) Itrcludcs sclf-supporting debt. See Table I "Assessed Valuation and ExclllptioDS" and Table l0 - "Sclf-supporting Dcbt" lirr
addilional irformation on sclf-supporting debt.
(4) lncludcs Capital Leases. See Table I - "Assesscd Valuation and l.lxenrptions" for additional infomiation on Capital l-eases.
(5) lncludes lie Certificates. Prcliminar). subject 10 change.

'l \B! r I l \\ Il\rr. I-r\'\',\\DCoLLE(- o\ Ilr\tokl

I:iscal

llndcd

9/-t0

Ia\
llet.

Cenerrl

lund

1l) (i)llections s ofJuDe 2021.

'l'^Br-E 5 -'l rN L:\RcDsT T,\\pA\'aRs

u; (lurrent

Collections

o/o I otal

Collcctions

lntrresl

and

Sinking

Irull(l I a\ l.e\ )
2017

20t{i

2019

2020

2021

s 0.6489

0.7 t7

0.6926

0.681i

0.68:t 8

$ 0.5431

0.56',78

0.57i0

0.60,15

0.5557

$0.105n

0.1509

0. 96

0.076{r

0. t2{t I

$ 6.i34.034

6,934.427

6.811,195

1,05u.720

7.074.3E0

94.84v"

98.09%

99.48v"

98.200/"

96.17y" (t)

96.20"/.

99.4to/o

101.12v"

r00.30%

98.30% (r)

\irlur. ol I'r(,f.fl\

202t /22

Ta\able

Assessed

Valuaiion

% ofTotal
T tr\nbl.

Assessed

Valualion

Wal-M art Stores Division

SandersoD Farms I[c
MPT of Palestine-l.ima Ll-C

Onoor Electric Delivery Co

[]nion Pacific Railroad Co

Lowes ofPalesti e#l8q2
Wal-Man Stores East

Atmos Lnerg, /l\4 it-l exDistributioD

Wal-Man Real l-state Business Trusl

Wal-Mart Super Center

$ 29.830,46t

23.785 268
22.299.970

t6.161,970

13,007.021

I1.152,954

t0,980.799

9.942,676

8.89t,1I I

7,8t 5,315

217/o
22tyo
107r/.
150%

I05%
t.02r/,

0.92't/r

0.82%

0.12%

Retail

ProccssinS Plant

Iicrail

Urilities

Rarlroad

Relail

Relail

Ulililies
I{eal tistale

Retail

Sourcc: Anclerson Counq Appraisal Dis{rict

l6

$ t54.073,545 14.29%

1.22v.

1.t2./"

0.99v"

0.83%

4.78%

Name of Ta\?aver



GEN[&{L OBt.tc^TtoN DEBa LI]utrATtoN. . . No general obligatiorl dcbl limitation is imposed oD the City under currenl Stale laN
(see "THE CERl-lF'lCAlES - Tax Rate l,imilatioD").

TABLI 6 - 1 ,\\ Ar)r]er .\cY (r)

Nel Principal and lntercsl l{equirements.2022

1i0.1341 Ta\ Rate a( 979lo C ollcclion ProdulriJ
$ t.l0t.9i4 i r)ir)

r.-102.87.1

A\ $ag. r,\e1 Prircilal an(l lDler.sl ltequirenrcnls. 2ofl-105 I

$0.1142 Tl\ Ralc al 9?'2, ( i)llcction Produ!!s
$ t.40:i.000 (rxr)

t.403.921

M aximum Nct Principal tuid Il)tcrest RequireDtcnts. 2047

$0.13,14 T:L\ Rale at 97% Collcction Prodrrees

$ 1.,105,900 
(')('z)

r_406,013

(l) Exc ludcs sc ll:.supporting debt. Scc 
-l 

ah le l "Assesscd Valualion and E\emplions ' and l ahle l0 - ''Self-Suppofling l )ebl.'
hrcludcs thc Certificates. PreliminaD'. subjcct to change.

(2) Includcs (lapilal I-eases. See I ahlo I - 'Assessed Valuution a|ld lixenrptions" tor addilioral i,rlbrmation on Capilal l-cases.

'I.\BLE 7 l,]s Irrt \ r lrr) O\ ERL,\pprN(; l)riI l

on propertics \\ilhill tha Cit\'. Such cnlilics rre irdependenl ofdrc C it) and lna] incur borro\ings to llnance their e\pondilures-
l his slatenren! ol dirccl and estimalcd oycrlapping ad valorem tar dshl ( "fa\ Dcbi') \\as dcvclrrped lrom infornration contrined
in "Tcxas Nlunicipal Repons" publishccl b) the Nlunicipal Ad\ isor-v (i)uDcil ol-Te\as- Il\cepl li)r thc amounts relating to thc ( it).
the Cih has nol independentl) \'erificd thc nccurac\ or complctcness nl'such infbrmalior). aod no person should relv upon such
inlbrmation as bcing accurate or con)plcto. llnhcrmorc. certain ol lhc entities listed Inal havc issued additional Tax I)ebl siDcc
thc date hereol'. and such enlities nraY havc pnrgrams requiring thc issuflncc of substantial anx)urlls of additional Tax Dchl. the
amount ol which caDnot bc detennined. 'lhc li)llorving table rcllcsls thc cstinlated share ol ovcdappiog Tax Debt ofthe ( ily.

I a\ir8.1uflsdiction

2021t22

I iNable

Valuc

1020/21
'I ir\

Ratc

Total

G O. Ta\
Debl

813U2021

llstimated
o/r

Applicnble

I00.00%

33,5%
62.66%

36.600/.

City's

Overlapp irg
G.O.

Ta\ Debt

8t31D02t
Cit) ofPalcsl inc

Andersoll Counly

Palestile lndcpendcnt School Districl

Westwood lrdepcndent School District

$ 1.078,495,418

2.919,810,r93

125,499,t 47

568. t49,555

$ 0 6lii s

0 51195

14017

I 0527

$49,184,254 
(r)r'])

6,758,063

34,390,941

$49,t84,254 
(' )'tr)

20.325,000

54-885.000

Total Direct and OvcrlappingTa,i-supportetl I)ebtr 
lr(l)

Ratio ofDirecl and Ovcrlap ping Ta\-supp orled Debt Io Taxable Asscsscd Valuation(r)(r)

Per Cap ita Ovcrlappilg Tar'supponed I)ebt(r)lr)

$ 90.333.2i8

S

rJ 38%

4.939

(l) lncludcs sclf-supporting deht. Sec'lablc I 'Assessed Valuatkm and Exemptions" and 'l thlc l0 "Self-Supporting l)ebt.''
Includes thu Certificates. Preliminary. subjcct to changc.

(2) lncludes ( apital Leases. See 'lable I "Assessed Valuation and liremptions" lor additional inlbrmation on Capilal Lca:ics.

lThc rrnuinder o.fthis pdgc l4t blink intentioldlb,l
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I ABLE 9- INTEREST AND StNKlNc FtrND llt,DGET PRoJucrloN

Net Ta\ Supported Debt Ser\ ic! Requiremenls. FiscalYear Ending 9/3022(r)

Inlerest znrd Sinking Fund. I:iscal Ycar Ending 9/301020

Ilud€clcd Intcrest and Sinkin! l:Lrnd l a\Collcctions

s l.,t0l-934

$ llt.047
1.099.226 $ t-432,2'73

Eslimaled l'und Ilaltulce. lri,ic.rl Yeir Endinc 9/-30,/22

(l) lixcludes Scll:Sunporling Dcbl. Scc lablc l0 -Sell--Suppoding Dcbt . but includes ('api{al Lcases. Scc'l'able I - 'Asscsscd
Vxluritions and lixenrplions" for additional infornla(ion oD Capital Lcascs. lncludes a portior ol lhe Ce ilicatcs. Prliminrr.
subicct to chanSc.

rtlrrt()RIZf,D lltrT ll\rssuED GfNtR.\l, OBr-tGATIox BoNDs... The Cily h.rs no authorized but unissued gcncral obligation
bonds-

!rithin ih': ne\16 nn)|lhs

'l \Br.[- l(]-Sr:r f-Sl r,rrrtrr\c DlBr'

\\'rtrr & \\'aste$rter (;eneral Ohlir:r1ion t)ebt

$ 30.339

F\',2{)22

Outslalldiog

Principal(l)lr)

FY 2022

Debt Servicc

(1,+l)

General Obligation Refundhg Bonds. lieries 2012

Combinat ion l i!\ & Revenue Ccrt ificates of Obligal ion. Series 20 | 3

Co bination l iL\ & Revenue RelundingBonds. Series 2020

Combinaliolr 'l 
ax & Revenue Certificates ofObligalion, S€ries 202 |

The Certificatcs(r)
,IOTAL

s I t 5.000

l_595-000

4.885.0U)

4.585.000

13,065.000

$ 24,245.000

$ 56-8t7
212.i58
70i-275
201.17{t

332-329

xi 1,505,956

Water & WaslcNater Rev€nue A\ailablc f'or f)ebl Scrvice (FY 2020)

Less: Watcr and Wastewaler Revenuc Bonds [)ebt Scrvice (I,'Y 2022)

Nct Re!enuc A\,.lilible for Walc[ & Wasteu alcr Sv slem GO BoDds

$ ,1.176.402

(l) Priicipal oLrlslaodingat the bcginnirgof thc Fiscal Year.'

(2) The amount shown is anticipaled lo be self-supported from the Water & Sewer Systcm Fund Nel Revenues. If
such revenues arc insufficient. lh(j C it ) \yill be req u ired to assess an ad \ alorem t a\ t o p ay t he difference.
(3) Includes a porlion ofthc Ccrtificates. Preliminar): Subject to Chaige.

lT he rentaitdcr o/ this page lefi hlunk i entionall.\-l

_l__!_z!4
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'I \nr.r- l l - OTItIR OBLICTI lo\s

In Dcccmbcr of2018. the CiD (lessee) cntcred into a nraster equit] lease agreement Nith Flnlcrprise FM Trust (lessor) for the
leasing ofYarious vehicles. As ofSeptenrbcr i0. 2019. the Cit) leased 40 vehicles lronr I:nlerprise lM Trust. The term ofthe lease
lor each vehiole is 60 months and bcgirls on the datc each vchicle is delivered to the City. I)n)'mcnts are nlade monthly ard rangc
liom $298 to $849 with intercst ratcs ranging Iiom 0.88o% to 6.i39'o. Thc total outstnnding balance of thcse capital leases as of
Seplcnrber 30. 2020 $as $962.439.

Al lhc cnd olthc lcase term lor each \ehiclc. thc ( ity has agrecd to pay Enlerprisc FM l'rlst (hc cxccss. ifany. ofthe book value
ol-the vehiclc over the $holcsalc valtc ol 1|c vchiclc as dctcunincd b] the lessor irr good lirith. ll_thc book value ofthe vehicle is
luss thrn the wholesale value oflhc rchiclc as (lctcrnrincd by lhc lcssor in good f'aith- thlr lessor LrSrccs to pay the City the deficiency

thc \'chiclcs in good condition. The Citl has scprralc nr intcnancc agrccmcDt \1ith Enlcrprisc |lcct ManagcmeDt lor vehicles

:rulornobilc liabilil) irlsurance and ph\'sicaltlanragc insulancc for rach yehicle undcr lhis lca\e.

M achinery and equipment

Less: Accumulaled Depreciatiol

Total

lrrrlurt nrinirrlum lease ohligation as ol Sol)lenrbcr j0. 2020 rrc rs li)llo\\s:

Ycar LDd.(l

SepleDrbcr l0

$ r.t55.487

( t74.965)

s 9n0.522

l0ll
t02l
t0tl
l0l+
1025

Iotal Nlrrnnrur I ciNc I,n\ Ilr. ls

Lcss Amo[r]l Ii.!p rcsunllrg lnlcresl

['rcser)l vrlxc ol NcN \4 rnrnrLu] l-ease Pavnrents

$ 250.978

250.978

250.977

230.193

52,256

s r.035.582

t 7l.143)

ili 962.139

l)ENsl()N 8'tiND . . . All qualified emplolecs ol thc ( at) ale nlembers ofthe Texas Municipal Rclircmcnt System. F'or additioDal
iDfornlalion see the City's fiDancial slatcDrcDts li)r thc ,lscal year ended September 30. 2020. rvhich are attachcd hcr€to as Appendix
I). irrcluding Notc J - "Defined Bcnefit Pcnsion Plans l cxas Mur)icipal Retiremenl Syslem ' undcr Scclion III Dctailcd Notcs
on All Funds.

() | I ltR P()sr-Ertpt-o\ rIEi\-T BEn'Errrs . . . ScclhcCit) s linancialslaternents tbrthe llscal ) eilr cnded Scplcmbcr 30. 2020. \\hich
are allached hercto as Appendix B. including Note K 'Other Post-l}nplo] mcnt Bcnetlt Plans'under Seclion III DetailedNotcs
on All Funds Ior a description ofthe Cil) s Othcr Post-l:nrplo) ment Benefits-

lT ht n:nuinlcr of this page lelt blank htentionallfl

'tt)



FINANCIAI, INFORNIA'I'ION

TABLE l2 - Cr:NERAL Ftr^_D RD\'[F*trf ,\ND E\pENDlrtrRE lltsroR]

l'iscal Ycars Ended Seplcnrhcr 10,

2020 2019 l0l8 101/ 2016

Permns. Lic€nses and Fees

Intergovernmcnlal

Charges for ScrYices

Fines and I'orfciures

CoDtribulions

lnveslmcDl Earnings

'l otal Relenues

$ t2.t08-464
t43,109

t.4't3,620

l 18,61I

199,599

23

13.235

47,868

$ 14.36,1,549

$ r r-429,569

95,902

616,228

t71,785

164,8.]2

$ It.007.682
122.O50

686,929

r94,920

ll0.3ll

$ r r- 131.9 t8

I00.586

768.-',r52

r7t.459

292.182

$ I1,565.519

I16,108

567.822

157.94i

567,885

Er?enditures:

General ( i ovennnent

Publi,r Satety

Conununil) Services

Communit) Developmcrt

Total Ery,endilures

$ 1,867. t67

7.688.699

3.t I5.353

718,082

$ 1,641,561

7,346,i88

2.898.922

808-640

li 2,008,190

1,663,722

3,622.t43

982.216

s 1,872.423

7,551,068

3.918.928

960.646

$ 1.637,433

8.501.995

962.369

s 11.800.i11 s r3.093,696

$ l].409.30t $ 12.695,5t3 $ 14,276.6I $ t4105.065 $ 14.627.Ir7

s 9ss-248 $ r04,8r s (1,783.567) $ (t.626.5t7) $ (r.511.491)

I15,279

4.7 49

28,t I6

122,851

s t2.491.06-r

61.701

r49,750

$ r2,678.548

35.172

81.027

$ r.011. r29

(570 0i7)
$ 1.063,490

(151.200)

E\cess (Defiui.nq ) ofRe\cnLres

O\ er ( (-lndcr) I\penditur!'r

Othcr Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers I

Transfcrs Or1

Proceeds fronl sale ofCapital Assets

Insura[cc l)roca]ds
'l'otal other l. inancing Sour&s (uses)

$ r,r{9t.261
/,].1.0221

2i.170

$ t,2t 1,667

(3t2.972)
7.250

58,219

li r.720.8s1

(158.180)

990.981

.16.r.1)71 912.290

57 lll
M6 i81 984, t74 2.55t.1:7

1.765.919

Source: The City's auditcd llnancial statemcnts.
(l) The Cny has a policy ol'nlaintaining a Ceneral l'und balancc cqual lo 25yo of btal expenditurcs 1-or a given year. or

approxinratclv 53-352.325 lbr the fiscal lcar ending on September 30. 3020. Amounts on deposil in lhe General I'und that
exceedsuch2So/othrcsholdmaybeutilizedb)theCitll'oranyla\\fulpurpose,includingcapitalexpcndilures.

l-fhe retnatuder ofthis page left hltutk intentionollt'J

Aegnnug lrun.l Ilxlnnc.
lndinglrunrJ llalance'L'

2.854 95.t

t;5,716.786 5 I 85.1 95.1 5 1.765.9.t9

2_ I59.50.1

s 996.059

2.780.7{)5

$ 2.15e.501

3t
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TheStalcol'lcxilslc\icsasixandoDe-quir(erpercent(6andZyo)salosarrdusetax("salcstax").AndcrsonCounq(the'(lounly")
also levies a oDe-hilll-ofone percent (%ol,) slllcs and use tax for Cloonl\' llurposes. 1he State liu. in addilion 1() thc CouDly tax. the
Cit)'sgenl-ml salcsrnd usetaxesand thosc lcvicdfor(i)the Ci1)'s l')pel]ecolomicdeleloplllcnlcorporation(thc'41]Corp l.

The Cil) has adoplcd the pro\'isions ol'(lhaptcr i2l ofthe Texas '[a\ (bdc. which provides lbr thc ntaximunr lery ofa one porcent
(l%) general sales and use tax which ma) he osed by the Cit)' lor an) laNful purpose exccpt that the City may nor pledge arry of
the anticipated salcs tax levenue to securc thc pavment ofnotes. bonds. certillcates or olher indehtcdncss- Furthermorc, the voters
ofthe City havc previously approvcd a onc-quarter ofone percent (%9/u) sales aDd use ta-\ lbr thc bcnclit ofthc 48 Corp! a scpffate
one-eighlh ofonc percent (l/8o/o) sales and use lax lor sh-eet nainlcnancc atrd rcpair, and a scparate one-eighth olone pcrcent
(1/87o) salcs and usc lax to redlrce ad valorcm properly taxcs. resulling in a total local sales and uso tax imposed by thc Cily olone
arrd one-hrlf pcrccnt ( I -%o%).

Collectiolls tnd cnforcenrents ofthe Cit)''s sales tax are effected throuBh lhe offices ofthe Tc\as Comptroller ofPublic Accornts.
rrhorenritstheproceedsofthesalesta\.allerdedrctionofa2Toser!icclle.tothcCit\'monlhl\.'lheCitYthenrenlitsl6.66T.%
ofsuch palrncnl to ils 4B Corp.

The total Sross collcctions ofthe Clit)'s orrc pcrcenl ( l7o) general usc sirlcs lax. one-qlrarter ofonc percent (%of 1o%) 4B Corp sales
tax, and onc-cighlh ol'one pcrccnt (l/87o) salcs tax for street mai[tcnflrcc and repair, ard one-eighlh ofone percent (l/8%) salcs
lax for propcfly lax ,cliel'are shotvn in tho lable belo\!. Sales tax procccds are not pledged lbr the payment ofthe Bonds,

l:iscal

Ended

9/30

2017

20r 8

2019

2020

202t

$5.7t4.1l5

5,848.74 t

5,929.2 t 5

6.3 t 5.9,19

6.4t8.2?t (:)

7o ol'
Ad Valorenr

'l ar [,er',r

90.21"/.

84.34r/o

86.21o/o

90.59o/o

90.789;

$ 0.586r

0.6066

0.5842

0.6108

0.6207

lolnl
(\rllccted

Equivalcnt

of
Ad Valorcm

TlLji Ratc

l)er

Capila(r)

$3t0.67

I17.99

323.89

t48.25

i50.94

( l) Source: Ic\as Conptroller Website
(2) Collectioos ls ofAugust 2021.

l:rchrclcs the ponion colluet((l li)r the T\p.48 (lorp(nrtion

IirN\Nar.\r. tr|,\N,\(;rrrltNT P()t.t( trs

llasis of,lccotnline .. . Basis ofaccoonling rcfers 1o Tvhen revenues aDd cxpcnditures or e\pcnsrs rc rccogni/ed ir) lhc accounts
and reported in the financial statemeDls. Ilasis ofaccounting relates to lhc timing of the measurements made. regardless ol'thc
nleasurement [ocus applied-

All govemrnental linld t). les and fiducia[)' lund l\pes are accountcd li)r Lrsing the 
'nodilled 

ilccnral basis ofaccounliDg- lhcir
relcl'lucs arc rccosDizcd rvhen thel hccornc mcasurable and available to lin0nce thc operations ol the currentjvear. Sale ta\ roccipts
irre considcrcd nrcasurablc and availablc rrhcn clirccrll dcpositcd bl lhc Slate and notilicatior is reccived bl the Cil). Intcrcst on
invcstmcnts is rccordcd on the accrual hasis in nll funds at year end wilh licenses and f'ecs, pcrmits. fines and forfeiturcs. rcntals
and leases, cha|gcs lbr service aDd miscellitncous revcnue recotded as [cvcnuc \\hen receivecl irr cash since they arc gcncnlly D()1

measurable unlil itctually received. Intc[-Bo\'crnlllental revenues rcccivcd as reinrbursenrents lbr spccillc purposcs or projccls arc
recognized based upon the expendilurcs rccordcd. Intcr-govcmnrenlal revonues receivcd bul nol carned are recorded as dclerrcd
revenues_

txpenditures arc gcnerall) recognized undcr lhc nrodified accrual basis ol'accountirg \vhen the relaled fund liabiliq is incurred
Inlerest on general long-term debt is nol accrucd but is recorded as an cxpenditure \\hen due.

All proprietary lirrd types are accountcd tbrusingthe accrual basis ol'accounting. Their revcnucs ar(: recognized when thcy are

earncd and their expenses are recognized wheI thcy are incurred.

General Fund llultutce. . . It is the Citt's ohiective to naintain an unencun'lbcred fund balance equal to 20olo (55 da)s) of
cxpenditures. ll'thc Iurrd balance is drarvn do\\n in an) one \eflr. Ihe fund balnnce Nill be restored in lhe follo*ing ]ear.

-rl



llse o[ Rond Proceeds . . . 11 is the City s policy that debt will only be issued to flnance long-lerm capital projccts, that debt will
not be issued to fund currcnt cxpenditures, and that debt will nol be issued with a malurity longer thall thc cstimated life oflhc
projcct.

B lxctdr\ Prccedures Ii)rnral budgetar) accoLrnting is emploYcd as a managenlenl contmI for the funds ol'the Ciq. Btldgets
are ndoltcd on a basis consistclt rvith genercll) rcceptcd accounling principles lbr Gcneral. Specid Rcvcnuc. l)ebt Servicc. and
Crpital l'rojects l'unds. lirr rnonitorinB and mfuraScmenl purposcs. thc Cily also adopls a non-GAAP brsis budgel for cach
Dnterprisc Fund and the Inlcllal Servicc Furds. Annual opcrating budBcts arc adoplod cach fiscal ycar th()ugh passage 01'arl
annual budget ordinancc and nDlcnded as rcquircd.

Budgel aorendnrents rcquirc lhu appro\al ot thc ( it} Council

t\\tsIllt.t\ts

The ( ily invests ils in!cstilblc lill)ds in invcstrncuts authorizcd by Statc la\! in accordancc with investnrcDl policics approved by thc

Cily Council olthe Cit) . llolh State law and lllc ( il)'s ir!eshnenl policics are subicct 1() change.

l,[(i,\l- INvrsr]uENrs . . . l'lldcr Statc larr. the ('it1 is aulhoriTcd lo in\est in (l)ohligalions. including lcttcls of credit. ofthc
llnilcd stales or its agcncics rurd instrunlenlxlitirs. including thc I'cdcral IIomc [-('Il] l]anks: (2) dirccl obligations ofthe Slalc 0r
its agcncics and inslturnenl litios: (i) collalcrirlizcd nrortgagc obli8rtioDs direc{l) issucd by a tederal agenc} or instrumcntality (}i
thc [],rited States. the undcrl]ing security lor \hich is guarantccd by an agenoy o| instnnncntalit] ol thc tlnited States; (4) othor
obligations. the princil)irl llDd iolcrcst of which rrc unco|ditionally guarantecd or insurcd by, or backcd by thc lull faith and crcdil
ol'. the State or the Llnilcd Slatcs or their rcspccli\'. agcncies and insll1rmentalitics. inchrding obligations thrt ale t'ully guaranlccd
or insurcd bl the Federal I)cposil Insurancc Corporation or b\ the c\plicir lull faith ard credit ofthe LJDitcd Slatcs: (5) obligalions
ot-slirles. a8encies- coonlies- cilies- and othcl political subdirisions ol'aD\ stale ralcd as b in\'eslnreDl qurllil) b) a nationall)
recognizcd investment ralillg lirn nolIess than A or ils equi\alcnt: (6) bonds issued. assrxned orguaranlccd b)'Ihe State oflsracli
(7) iotcrest-bcaring hanking doposits thal arc guaranteed or insured hy lhc F'ederal Dcposil Insurance Corporalion or ils successor.
or the National Credit []nion Sha,c Insura cc lrund ol its successor: (8) irtcrcst-bcaring hunking deposits othcr thar those desc|ibcd
by clausc (7) il(A) the lirnds invested ir thc burking deposits are invcsted through: (i) a broker with a maiD olllcc or branch oflicc
in this Stale that the Ci1) selccts fi-onr a list lhc ( it) Council or a dcsignated investrne|t coNmitlee ol'dre ( ity adopts as requirijll
b)Scction2256.025-le\rsCo\ernmentCode:or(ii)adcpositoryirslitution\tilhanuinolllceorbrancholliceintheStatelhal
thc ( it) selects: (B) thc brokcr or dcposilor) inslitLrtion sclccted ns dcscribed b) (A) aho\ c arranges tbr thc doposit ofthe lilnds in
the hanling deposits in onc ol uxxe federallr illsurcd depository institulions. regardlcss ol- $here bcaled. li)rlhrCig s accouDl:

ofthc tllited States; rnd(l)) theCily appoinls as lhe Cit)'scustodian oftlre banking dcposils are inveslcd lhrough: (i)ahrokcr
with a main office or branch olllce in this Slirtc that the City sclccts lronl a lisl thc City Council or a dcsignated investmcnl
connritlec ofthe Cit) adopls ns required b) Scclion 22i6.025. le\i$ Governncnl (irdc: or (ii) a dcpository institution \yilh a

rnain olilce or branch ot'ticc in lhe State that thc ('it) selects: (Ll) lhe broker or deposikrrl inslitution selcclccl irs described b) (A)
abolc ilrranges lor tlle dcposit of the funds in lhc banking dcposits in one or morc l'cdcrall]' insured dcposilory instiluli(xls.
regardlcss ofrrhere bcaled. ibr thc Ci[ 's accounl: (C) the firll anrcunt ol-lhe principal and accrued inleresl ol lhe banking depo\irs
is insured by thc lJnited Slalcs or an instruDrcnlrlil) ofthc tlnited Statcs: and (D) thc ('it) appoints as the ( it) s custodiaD ol'lho
banking deposits issucd lbr thc City's accorrntr (i) the deposilory instilulion sclectc(l as described by (n ) rbove: (ii) an entitl
dcscribod by Section 2257.04 | (d). Tcxas Governn)cnt Code: or (iii) a clcariog brokcr dcalcr rcgistcrcd \vith thu SUC and opcrating
undcr SliC Rulc l5c3-3r (9) (i) certificatcs ol deposit or share ced,ticates mecting thc requircnents ol'(lhapfer 2256. Tc\as
Cio\cnnnent Codc (thc 'l\rblic Itnds lnvcst,ncrrl Act"). that are iss cd b) an instilulion thal has ils nlain ofllcc or a branch ollice
in thc Statc and are guarantced or insured b) lhe l:cderal Dcposit lnsuraDce Cory)oration or the National Credit Union Shanj
Insurance Fund. or their respcctivc successors. aud are secured as lo principal $ ohligatioDs described in clauses (l) through (ll)
or in an1' other nranner ancl providcd for b) l \! Ibr Cit) deposits. or (ii) certificales ol dcposils where (a) thc lirnds are investcd
by thc Clity throuSh (A) a broker that has its rrain officc or r brancll ol}ice in the Statc dnd is selected [ron] a list adopted b) thlj
City as required by lau. or (ll) a depository instilution that has its nrain ollice or brnnch officc in the S1ale thal is selected b] the
City. (b) the broker or thc dcposilory institution sclccled by the Ciry rrranges for thc dcposit ofthe firnds in ccrtificates of depo:,il
in onc or more federally insurcd dcposilor_,- instilrllions. \\'herever locrted. lor the account ofthe Citl. (c) thc filll amount ot'thc
principal aDd accrued i,rlcrcst ol'each ofthe cerlilicales ofdeposil is insured b) thc t-lDilcd States or an instrunreDlalitl ofthe Unitcd
Slales.and(d)theCilyappoiotslhcdeposhoryinstilutionselectedundljr(a)abo\e.acustodianasdescribedb)Sec1ion2257.0.ll(d).
'Iexas (ioveflrment Code. or a clearilg broker-dealer registered \!ith thc SEC and opcralirg pursuanl 1() SllC Rule l5ci-3 (17

C.F.l{. Section 240.15c3-3) as custodian for thlj City with rcspecl to thc cenificaics ol'doposit; (10) fully collaleralized repurchase
agrecnreDts as detined in thc Public Funds lnvcstolcnt Act, that havc a defined termination date, are securcd hy a combination of
cash and obligations describcd in clauses (l) or(13) inthis paragraph, require the securities being purchascd by the City orcash
held b) the Cilv to he pledgcd to thc City . held in thc Cit]''s name. and deposited at thc lime the investmcnt is nade rvith the Cil]'
or $ith a third pa4 selecled aDd approved b1 thc Ciq. and are placed through a primary government securilics dealer. as defined
b) lhe l:ederal Reservc- or a llnancial institulion doing business in tlre State: (l | ) securities lcDding programs il (i) thc s€ctlfitics
loaned under the program arc l00yo collateralizrd. a lorur madc u der the program allorvs lor terminatioD al any time and a loaD
made uDdcr the program is cilhcr sccured by (a) obligations that arc described in clauscs (l ) through (8) abovc, (b) irrevocabl.
letlers ofcredit issued by a statc or oational bank that is continuo.usly rated by a nationally recognized inveslmcnt rating tirm al not



lcss than "A" or its equivalent or(c) cash invcstcd in obligations described in clauses (l) through (8) above. clauses (13) through
( l5) belou. or an authorized investment pool: ( ii) securilies held as collateral under a loar are pledged ro rhe Ciry, held in the Ci[.'s
namc and deposited at the lime thc in\estnlcnl is m.lde $ ith the Cit)' or a third parl] designaled b) lhc City: (iii) a loan nrade under
lhe PrograN is placed through either a prinran govcrnmcnt sccurilics dealer or a financial institution doing business in the State:
and(iv)theagreenreflttolendsccuriticshasalcrnrofone)earorless:(l2) certain bankers acccplances u.ith stated maturity of
270 days or lcss, if the short-term obligalions ol_ lhe accepting bank or its parcnt arc rated not less than "A-1" or "P-1" or the
cquivalcnt by at lcasl one nalionnll) recogni/cd credit rating agency; ( l3) commercial paper with a slatcd maturir)- of365 days or
lcss thal is rated not less than ''A-l' or ''lLl orlhe cquivalent by either(a) two nationally rrcognized credit rating agencies or (b)
onc nati(n)tlly recognized credit ratill8 agcnc] il lhc papcr is t'ully securcd by an irrcvocablc lctlcr ofcredit issued by a tjnited
Slirlcs or state bank; (14) noJoad nmDcy nrLrrkol ,nutral linLis regislered \.vith and regulated by rhe SliC that provide the City witlr
a prospeclus aDd othcr inlbrmalion requirod by lhe Seourilies I,lxchange Act of 1934 or th€ lnvestnrent Cornpany Act of 1940 and
lhal conlply rvith fcderal SEC Rulc 2a-? (17 ('.lr.lt. Scclion 270.2a-7). prrnulgated under thc lnvcstnlent Companv Act of 1940
( l5 I l.S.C. Scction 80a- I et seq-): and ( l5 ) no-krrrl mutual funds registered with the Sllc that havc an average neighted maturity
ol lessthantwo1ears.andhaveeilhcr()aduraliono{onevearornlore,rndinreste\clusi\clyilrohligalionsdcscribcdinunder
th is hcadirtg. or (b) a duration of lcss than onc r oar and thc irveslmeDl pofltolio is lilnilcd to inr eslnrcnt gmde securilies, excluding
asscl_backed securilies. ln addition. bo|d procccds mal be inrested in guamnlced invcstrncnt conlracts thal have a defincd
lrrmillalioD datc ftnd are secured bI oblieations. includins lettels ofcredit. ofthe tlniled Slalcs or ils agencies and instrunlentalities-
olhcr lhan lhc !rrohibitcd obligations dcscribcd hckrrr. in an amorrnl al leasl eqLral () thc amoilnl ol-hond proceeds iivested under
such conlract.

A polilicrl snttdivision such as thc C,l! nr \ crrler ink) securilies lending prograus il(i) lhc sccurilies Ioaned under the prograrrl

cilhcr sccurcd br (a) obligations that xrc dcscribcd in clauses ( I ) through (8) abo\ e. olhrr lh0n lhc pr)hibiled obligations described
bcl(r$. (b) irrc\.ocrble letters of credit issucd b)' .r statc or national bank that is continuously ratcd b,v a nationally recognized
io\'cstrncnt ratillS lirm at nol less thaD A or its cqllivalcnt or (c) cash inlcstcd in obligrlioos dcscrihcd iD clauses (l) tltrough (8)
tbovc. clanses ( l3) through (15) above. or tD xnlhorizcd invcstlrcnt pool: (ii) sccnrilics hcld as collllcral undcr a loan arc pledgcd
lo tho ( ily. held in the City's namc ancl dcposited al thc tinre the inveslment is made wirh thc (lily or a tllird pady desigDated by
lhc(il):(iii)aloanmadeundeltheprogranrisplaccdthrcushcithcraprimanBolcrnnrculsccru'itiesdcalcrorafinancialinstitution
doinS busincss in the State: and (iv) the agrccnte0t to lcnd sccurilics has a tcrm ol one yciu or lcss.

'lhc (it)'nla) invesl in such obligalions dirccll) or through govcrnmenl in\cstmenl pools thnt iDvcst solcl) in such ohligations
pro! idcd lhal lhe pools arc rated no lo\\cr than n AA or AAAm or an equivaleDt b) al least one oalionaltr' recognized rating ser\ ice,
il lhe (il) (ouDcil authorizes sirch invcstncnt in lhc particula. pool br order. ordinancc. or rcsohrtion and the investnrenl pool
complies Nith the requirements ofScction 2256.{)16. Tc\as Co\.ernment Code.

lhc (ir1 nral also contracl \ilh an inreslnrcnl nranagenrent firm registcrcd (x) undcr thc lnreshcDt AdvisersActoa1940(15
tl.S.('.Scctiotr80b-lctseq.).or())NiththeSlaleSecuritiesBoardlopro\ideforthein\cstmcDlrndnlanagementofilspuhlic
ltrnds or other lunds urtder its control fbr a tcrDr up l() t\\'o \,ears- but the Cit\ rerains ultimalc rcsponsihility as liduciary ofits asscts.
ln ordcr to rcnclv or e)itend such a conlract. the ( it\, must do so bv ordinance- order or tesoluli(n.

lhe ('ity is spccitically prohibitcd lioor invc\tins in: (l) obligatio,ls \\lrose p^1menl rcfrcscnls thc coupon palmcnts on thc
outstattding prillcipal balance ofthc undcrllinE DrortSaSc-backcd sccurity collatcral and pa!s no pliucipal: (2) obligatiols $lrosc
prylncol rcpresents the principal strcaol ol'cash llow lionr the underlying urortgaSe-backcd sccu|ity and bears ro irterest; (3)
collitlcmlizcd n)ortSagc obtigatiols lhrl ha\e a slatcd final maturity ol'greater thaD l0 )oars: and (4) collateralized nlol1gagc
obliSltlions the interest rate of\vhich is dclcrnioccl b) aD irxlcx that adjusts oppositc to thc ch ngcs in a ntarket index.

lN\'lsrl\llNT PoLlclES. . . Under State la$. thc ('it] is required to adopt and annuall) rcview wri(en investfieDt policies and nust
in\est ils lunds in accordance \\'ith its rx)licies. lhe policies must identil] eligible iDveslnlents and address investment
dilcrsification. )ield. nlaturil). and lhe qualil-! and capabilit) of investmenl mal]agenrcnt. lior in\estments $hose eligibili[ is
ratiDS dcpendent. the policies musl adopl proccd rcs lo niollitor ralings aud liquidate investnrenls ifand rvhen required. The policics
mlst requirc that all investment transaclions sclllc on a delivcry versus pa)ment basis. 

_l 
hc ( i1)' adopl a \\'ritten investmeDt strateg)'

lbr each lirnd group to achieYe investmenl obicctir cs in the iollou ing order ofpriorit): ( I ) suitabilit). (2) preseNation and salet)
ol principal. (3) liquidill. (4) marketabilily, (5) di\crsification. and (6) ].ield.

Under State law, City investments must bc rnade "with judgment and care. undcr prevailing circumstances. that a persor
ol prudcncc. discreiion, and intelligence would cxcrcise in the manage ent ofthe persur's ()rrn alluirs. not for speculation, bul lor
i|vcst cn1, considering the probable salely ol'capilal and the probable income to be derivcd. Al loasl quarterly the investment
olliccls of the Cily shall submit an invcslDrenl rcporl dctailing: (1) the invcslmcnt position of the City, (2) that all investment
o llicers .io int ly prepared and signed thc rcporl. (3) thc bcginring rnarket valuc, any additions and changes to narket value atld the
cnding valuc ofeach pooled lirnd group, (4) thc book value and market value ol-each sepamtcl) listcd assct at thc bcginning and
cnd ofthc rcporting period, (5) the maturity date ol'cach separatel), invested assel. (6) the accounr or {irnd or pooled fund group [or
rvhich cach individual jnvestment rv;s acquired. and (7) the compliance of lhe inveslmenl pofllblio as il relates to: (a) adopted
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investment strategy statements and (b) Stale law. No person may invesl City funds \rithout express writlen authority from the City
Council.

TABLD l4 - CURRf,NT INTESTITENTS

As ofJunc 30, 2021 the Ciry's invcstablc fimds wcre invcsted in the following categori€s:

Yo of
Description Book Value lnvestments

89.',72r/o

t).91yo

2.02vr

t).06v"

1.22yo

Properity Bank - Cqsh

BNY Melloo - Cash Reserve

TefTAR - Loml Govenrmcnt Ilvcstrnent Pool

FNC - Cash, Mone) Furds & Bark Deposils

Cen ificales ofDeposit
Tolals

$20-r69,949

219.0 t I

454.291

l3-71I

t.622.953

$20.169.949

2t9.01I

451.29t

B,7l I

t.621.325

Mnrkcl Vnluc

9i, of

89.11%

0 9'10/.

2.020/0

0.060/0
-t.210/r

s 12.179.915 t00 00,r'0 _l2r.llll!7 100 00%
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I,\\ I.]\ I]IIPI'ION

lrr the opinion ofBracewell t,LP, Bond Counsel. !nder existinS la\\'. interest on the Certificatcs is excludable ftom gross inconre
lbr l'cderal inconle 1ax purposes under sectioll 103 ofthe lnlernal Revenue Code of l9ti6. as anrcndcd (1he "Code_ )- and is not a

specitic prcfircnce item for purposes of lhe allernilti|e minimum ta\.

'l-he Codc inrposes a number ofrequirer:rents lhal riusl hc satisticd for intcrest on state or k)cal obligalions. such as the Ccnificales.
to bc excludable from gross incolnc fbr l'cdcral inconrc 1ax purposes. These requircments include lirnitations on the useolbond
proceeds and the source ofrepa)nent ol'bonds. limitalions on the investment olbond procccds prior to c\pcnditure. a requirement
that excess arbitrage eamed on lhe inveshrent ofbond proceeds be paid periodicall) to the t.lniled Slates and a requirement that
the issuer file an infomration report NiIh the lrrlernal lieveDue Scrvice (thc "Scrvice"). The Citv has covenanted in the Ordinance
that it will conlplr_ with these requirenrents.

I](rnd (i)unsel's opinion $ ill assunle continning coorplilnce with thc covenaots oflhc Ordinancc pcrlaining to those sections ol
tllc (bdc lhat aftcct thc cxcludahilit\ ol'irrlcrcst on thc Cerlillcates lrom gloss inconrc li)r lederal inconre tax purposes and. in

\!ithin lhc knowledgc oflhc Cit).1hc (lity's lrinancial Advisor, ard the flnderuritcrs. rcspeclively, \vhioh Bo[d Colnsel has not
irt(lcpcndcnll) vcrified. II ihe Ci{y lnils k) conlpl) \vilh thc coyeDants in the Ordilancc or il'suoh rcprcseoliltions are deternlined
lo hc iraccuratc or ilcomplctc, inlcrcsl on lhc (lcrlitlcatcs could become includablc in gross inconrc l','on) thc datc ofdelivery ol
thc ( c(ilic^tes. regardless ofthe d l(j on rvhich tho crcot causiDg such inclusioll ooclrrs.

l'lxcepl as slated above, Bond Counsel rr,ill express no opinioD as to the anrouDt of interesl on the Certificates or an] federal. slate
or local tax consequences resuhing lrom thc rcccipt or accrual of interest on. or acquisition. orvncrship or disposition of, the
Cenificates. Certain actions may bc taken or omilled subjcct to the terms and condkions sct fbrth in thc Ordinance upon the advic€
or wilh the approring opinion ofllond Counsel. Bond Counsel rvill express Do opiDion \!ith respect to Bond Counsel's abiliO to
rendcr an opin ion that such actions. i I take n or om itlcd. \v ill not adversel) afl-ect the e xc ludability o f iDterest o f the Certificates
lrom gross income for lederal incomc tilx purposcs.

IlondCounsel'sopinionsarebascdooe\;slingla\\.r\hichissubiecttochange.Suchopini(nlsarelilrlherbasedorrBondCounsels
knowledgc of facts as ofthe date thcrcol Bond (irunscl assunres no dut-v to updatc or supplcnlcnl its opinions to rellect an) tacts
or circumslances that may therealler comc to lloDd (i)trnsel's attcntion or to reflecl any changcs in any law that may thereafter
occuI or bccome efl'eclive. Moreoler. Bond (i)ruscl's opinions are not a guarantee ol resultandrrcn()1 binding on the Ser\ ice;
ralhcr. such opinions reprcscnt Bond Counscl s lcgal.iudgnrcnt bascd upon its rcvicw ol cxistiDg law and in rcliance upon thc
rsprcsenlations and covenants referenced abovc that i1 dee s relcvant to such opinions. l'hc So|vior has an ongoing audit program
to dclcrnlinc conlpliance $ith rules that ralatc lo whcthcr interest on state or local obligations is includahle in gross incone for
Icdcrul inconre lax purposes. No assurancc can be 8i\ cD as 1() whether or not the Se11/ice will conuncnce an audit olthe Certificates.
Il an aodil is commenced. in accordancc Nith ils cul.renl published procedures the Ser!ice is likcly to treat lhe City as the taxpa_\er
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and the Orvners mav not have a right to participate in such audit. Public arvareness o I any luture aud it o I the Certificates could
adversel) affect the value and liquiditl'ofthc Ccrtilicates. regardless ollhe ultimate outcomc ofthc audit.

( ollatcral 'l ax Consequenccs

I'ruspectivc prrchasers of thc Certilicales should be arlare that the owncrship of tax-excrrrpt obligations may result in collateral
Itdcral inconre tax conseqlerces to flnancial instilutio,rs, lif'e insurance and propeft) and casualty irsurance companies, certain S

corporltioos \tith Subchaptcr C earnings ancl prolits. irdividual recipicnts of Social Securitl' oI R?rilroad Retirement beDefits.
liupir)crs \!ho may be deemed to have incurred o. conlinued iDdebtedness to purchase o, carry' la\-cxenlpt obligations, Iow and
nriddlc inconre taxpa)'ers olherNise qualili'ing for dlc hcalth insurance premium assistatrce credit and individuals otherrrise
clLtalil,r'iog lirr the earned inconre tax crcdil. ln addilion. certain lbreign corporations doing busincss in the United States ma)'be
stlbiccl10lhc_branchprofilsta\"ontheirellccti\cl)curnectedearningsandprofils.includingli\-e\cnlptinterestsuchasinteresl
oll lhc Ccflillcates. Thcsc calegories ofprospccti\c purchasers shollld consult theiro\n ta\ ad\isorsas lo the applicabili$ oflhese
corlseq(rcllccs. Prospecti|e purchas('rs oflha ( cdillcalcs should also bc aNare that. rndcr lhc (idc. la\pal crs are required to rcporl
oI their rdltrrns the aDlounl ol-la\-e\e pl intercsl. such as intcrcsl on the Certiticales. recci\cd or accnlcd durirg the veal.

'l'ar Accounting Trertment ofOriginal Isstle I'remium

'lhrisstrcpriccol_alloIaportionolthe(crtificnleslna\e\ceedthestatedredenrplionpriccpa)'ablcntnralurityoIsuchCertificatcs.

lheanxruolofsuchexcess. Ihebasisolr l'rcr)riunr (lerlificate inthehandsol arr irritial r)\vner is reduccd bythc amountolsuch

Iirt l'cilcrrl income ta\ purposcs on (he salc or olher taxablc dispositior) of a Prerl]iuln ('c ilicatc by ttre initial oNner. Nvo

corrosponding dcduction is allorved lbr l'cdcril inuon)e t^r purposes for the redrrction in hrsis rcsulting lroln amortizablc bond

irritial o{lcring plice of such Plcoliunr Ccrlilicatc.

I hc lcdcral income tar consequences oIthc purchasc. orvnership and rcdcmplion. sale or olher disposition ol_Premium Certificates
th l rrc nol purchased in the initial oflering l1 thc initial ofllring price ma) bc dclcrnlined according to rulcs that differ front those
descrihcd abore. All o$IersofPremiurDCc(illcatcsshouldconsulttheiro\!ntaxadyisors\\ilhrespecttothedeterminationfor
ledcral. slalc. and local inconrc tft\ purposcs of anrortized bond prenriurn upon thc rcdcnrplioo. sale or other disposition ofa
l'rlnlium Cerlificate and \\'ith rcspect 1(] lhc ladcral. state. local- and forcign hx coDseqocnccs ol-lhc purchase. ownership. aDd sale.
redcnlptiolr or other disposition of such Prcmiunr Cc(ilicales.

lr\,\crourliDg I reitmcnl ofOriginrl lssuc l)i\r0nnt

lhc issuc price of all or a por{ion of thc ( crlilic.tlcs nlay be less than thc slntcd redemplion prics pay^blc al nlatur;ty of such
('crtiilcatcs (the 'Original lssue Discounl C'erlilicalcs ). In such case, the diffcrc cc bcl\rccn (i) thc anrount payable at the maturil-\
ol cach Original lssue Discount Ccrlificate. aoLi ( ii) the inilial offerirg price to thc public ol-slch Original lssuc Discount Cerlificate
constilutcs original issue discount \\i1h rcspcct to such Original Issue Discount Ccrlitlcfllo in the hands ofany orvner rr'ho has
ptlrchascd such Original lssueDiscounl(crtilicrlciotheinitialpublicofferingofthcCerlilicrles. (;cncrally. such initial o\vner
is cntillljd to cxclude from gross inconrc (rs dclincd in Section 6l olthe Codc) an anlounl ol income \\'ith respect to such Original
Issuo l)iscount Cenificate equal to that porti()n ol'1he anlollnt ofsuch original issue discounl allocable to thc period that such
()riSinal Issue I)iscounl Cenitlcatc conlinues to bc orvned bv such o$'ner. Becarse original issuc discount is lreated as interest lbr
lcdcral income ta\ puq)oses. lhe discussions rcgarding interest on the Certificates undcr thc caplions "-lAX MATTERS Tax
lixcnrplioD and "TAX MATTERS Additional liccleral Incomc TrL\ Consideratiorls (-ollulcral fax Consequences" and "-Tax
l.cgislative Changes gcncrall] appl) and should be coDsidered in conneclion Nilh the discussion iD lhis ponion ofthe Official
Slatcmcnl.

In the evenl ofthc redemption. sale or othcr taxable disposition ofsuch Original lssuc Discount ( crtilicate prior to stated maturily.
ho\vcvcr, thc amouDt realized by such o\\rer in c)iccss oflhe basis ofsuch Original Issuc Discounl Certificatc in the hands ofsuch
ou,ncr (adjusted upward by the portion ol lhc original issue discount allocable to the period 1br rvhich such Original tssuc Discounl
( crtificatc was held by such initial orvrrer) is includAbh in gross income.

'Ihc lirregoing discussion assunles that (i) lhc tJndljrlvriters has purchased the Certificatcs fbr contelnporaneous sale to the puhlic
and (ii) all ol'the Original Issuc Discount Ccrlilicalcs have been initially ofl-ered. and a substnntial atuount ofeach maturity thereof
has been sold. to the general public in arm s-lcnglh lraDsactions lor a price (and rvith no olher consideratioD being included) nol
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morlr than lhe initial offering prices thereofstated on the inside cover pages ofthis Ollicial Stalement. Neither the City nor Bond
Counscl has nrade any investigation or offers any comlbrt thal the Original lssuc I)iscount Ccrtificates will be oft'ered and sold in
accordance with such assumptions.

IInder existing larv, thc original issue discounl on each Original Issuc [)iscoulll (]ortillcatc accrucs dail] to thc stated nraturity
thereof(in amounts calculated as descritrcd b€low lbr each six-month pcriod e ding on the datc h(jlbrc thc scmiannual anniversary
dates ofthe date oflhe Certiticatos and ratabl) wilhin cach such si\-monlh pcriod) and the accrucd amounl is added lo an initiill
orvner's basis for such Original lssue I)iscount Ccrtilicalc li)r purposcs ol_dctcrniuing thc arNunt ofgain or bss rccognizcd by
such orvner upon the redemption. salc or othcr disposili(m thereol'. I hc amounl lo be rddcd to brsis fbr cach accrual pcriod is equal

accrual peri()d) less (ii) the amouots pa) ablc ls currenl ifltcrcst during such rcorurl period r)n such ( crtillcatc.

The federal inconre tax corlscquences ol_ lhe purchasc- (,\\rrership. and redcnrption. 5alc or olhcr disposilion of Original Issnc

that differ liom those describcd abovc. All o$ ners o l_ Original Issuc I)iscount Cerlillcatcs should consult thcir o\vn ta\ advisurs

disposition olsuch Original lssue Discount Ccnilicalcs uld \\'ith rcsplct to thc lcrlcral. statc. Iocal and lorcig[ tax consequcnces
of the purchase. o\\ nership. rcdcmption. sale rrr olhcr disposilion ol- such Original lssrrc l)iscouDt ( ertillcirl€s.

'I a\ Legislalir c Chrngc!

Current law may change so as lo dirccth or indircctll rcducc or climinats thc bcncfit ol the crcludabilitl' ol'inlcresl on the
Certificatcs liom grossincome for fcdcr-al inconrc lar pury)oses. An)'proposcd legislalion. whclhcrorrol enacted. could also allect
the value and liquidir)" oflhe Certificales. Prospecti\c purchasers olthe Cenillcatcs should consult with thcir o[1] la\ advisors
rvith respect to any recently-cnacted. pr,posed. pending or futurc lcgislation-

( o\t I\t t \(; t)ts( l_osr ru.. ot. t \t.oti\l \ I Io\

In lhe Ordinatce. the Cit hasnradethcIi)llo\\ingagrccnrcntlbrthctrcneliloftheholdcrsandbcnclicialotnersoflhcCertiicatcs.
The Cit) is requircd to obser\c the irgreenrcnl lor so long as il rcnrains obligalcd k) ad\ancc linds to pa\ thc Ccrtificalcs. Undcr
lhe agreement. the Cin' \till bc obli8nlcd to pro\ idc ccrtain opdatcd linancitil inlbrmation and operating dala annurlt). tutd tintel)
notice ofccnain specified eveDts. to lhc Municipal Sccurities Rulcnraking lloard (rhe "NlSlLU"). 'thc MSRIJ has cstablished the
Iilectronic ]\'lunicipal Markel Acccss ( Ll\'1MA ') s\ steDr lo nrakc such conlinuiDg disclosurc available lo ilvcslors li'cc of charge.
lnlestors ma) access coDtinuing disclosure inlbrnration filcd \rilh lhc MSRU aI lr,,tr'.enrnra-nrsrb.org.

,\NN('A|. REPoRTS... 'lhc Cil-v rrill pror ide lo the lusl{ll updaled financial inlarmation and operaling data aunually. Ihe
information lo be updated includcs quantitative finmcial inforlnali(,r and opcraliDg dala wilh respccl to thc Cil) ol'lhe general type
included in this Official Slatement undcr the lablcs numbcrcd I lhrough 6 a d li through I4 and in Appcndi\ B. The Cily \!ill
update arrd providc this inlbrmalfun in the nunlbercd I ablcs u,ithin sir months aftcr thc (jnd ol each fiscal \.ear ending ill or altcr
2021 and. iflhen availablc- audiled lln ncill statements ol'lhc (il),. Il audiled finaDcial shle lcnts are rot arailable when rhc
information is provided, the Cit) \vill proyidc auditcd Iinancial st0tcrDerls \\ ithin | 2 monlhs olrhc cnd oflhc fiscal ) car. \'hen and
ifthel' become availablc. Iftheaudilofsuchfinancialslalcnlenlsisnotcomplcte\ilhinl2lnonthsalleranysuchfiscallcarend,
then the Cit!' shall file unaudited linancial statcnrcnls uithirr such l2-month pcriod and auditrd financial statcnrents for the
applicable fiscal ycar- $hen and iftlre audil reporl on such slalerlrcnts beconlcs availablc Any suoh financial stalenrents will be
prepared in accordance with the accounting principlcs dcscribed in Appendix B or such olher accounting principles as thc City may
berequiredtoemployfiomtimelolinrepursuanltoStalcla$orrcgulation.'lhclluancial inforDralioD and opcraling data to be
provided may be set forth in lull in one or nrore docunrcDts o na) bc includcd b) spccific rcference lo any docuD'lcnt alailable to
thc public on the MSRB's Internel Web sile or llled with thc tlnircd Slatcs Securitics and l-)rchange Comnrission (thc "SEC'). as
permitred b) SDC Rule l5c2-t2 (rhc "Rulc').

fablcs n]usl be pnrvidcd by Nlarch ll in cach )crr. and audilcd linlncial sl0lcnreDls lin lhe preccding liscal lcar (rr unaudited

the Cit] chalrges its llscal )car. Il-thc C ily changcs its fiscal ycar'. il lvill rrolili thc MSRI| ol ihc .h.rngc.

NoTlc[s oF CERTAIN EvENTs . . . I-hc Cily will Iile wilh tl]e MSRII nolicc of an] ol lh€ lblblling cvcnts \vith rcspecl to the
Certiticates in a timely manner (and nol more than l0 busirlcss days aftcr occurrencc ol'the event): (l) priDcipal and interest
payment delinquencies: (2) non-palnrent relatcd dclhulls. ifnraterial: (3) unscheduled drarvs on debt servicc rcserves rcllccting
financial difllculties; (4) r.rnscheduled drarvs on crcclit enhancenlents rellccting lloancial dilliculties; (5) substitution of crcdil or
liquidity providers. or their l'ailure 1() pcrlbrm; (6) adverse tax opiDi(rns. thc issuancc by thc lntcrnal Rcvcnue Service of proposed
or final dcterminations oftaxabilily. Noticcs ol Proposcd Issuc (ll{S I'orm 570l -'l llB). or othcr material nolices or dclcrminations
with rcspect to the tax status ofthe Cerlificates, or other matcrial cvenls allccling the tax status ofthc Certiflcates; (7) nrodifications
to rights of holders of thc Ccrtificatcs. il'millerial; (8) Bond calls. il'n]ntcrial. and tcndcr ollers: (9) defcasances: (10) relcase.
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rcceivership, or similar event ofthc Cilv. which shall occur N described bclow: ( I i) lhc consum,rali(nr ofa merger, consolidalio .

oracquisitioninvolvinSthcCil)orlhesaleofallorsubstantiallyallofilsrsscts.olhcrthar)inthcordinarycourseofbusi,ress,the

changc oI-name oIa pa]'iDg agent/registrar. il'nlatcrirl: (15) incurrsnce ol a ljinaocirl ObliSati(rl ol lhe Citl. ifnlatcrial. ol

paregraph 10 the N1S I{ u

For these purposes. (n ) an) cvcnl dcscribcd in tho inrmcdiately precedin8 clause (12) is considcrcd 1() occur whcn any ofthe
lbllo$ iug occur: thc ilppoinllnenl ol a recci\.er. llscal agcnt. or sirnilar olllccr li)r thc ( ity in a procccding undcr lhc []Ilitcd States
BaDkruptc) Code or irr anl other prcceeding uhdcr stalc or lederal ln$ in \rhich a co!rt or gor(:rnnrcntal 1luthorily has assunred
jurisdiction o\er substantiall) all ofthe asscts or hnsiness olthe Cily. or il' slch jurisdiclion hxs hcLrr assunred by leaving thc
eristiig go\.enring bodl and ol'ficials or ollicers in possession but subiect to thr: supcrvisirnr iurd ordcrs o{ r courl or governnlental

Nordsuscdinclnses(15)and(16)iDtheimDrcdiarcl\prcccdingparagraphandinrhcdclinitiorol Finnncixl Obligalion to ha!c
themeaningsascribedtothcminSIrCReleaseNo.l4-lt.]li85datedAuBrsl20.2t)ltl.-lheOr(linxncodelines'l'inancialObligation'
as (a) debt obligrlion: (b) deriyative inskunlcr)l cnlcrcd into in conncction \\ilh. or llcdged as sccuritJ' or a source ofpaymenl for.
an existing or planoed debt obligation: or (c) guaranlL-c ol'a debt obligatir)n or an) such derivati\'e inslrument: provided lhat
''financial obligation shall not includc nrunicipal secorilies (as defined in the Sccurities L\ehanBe Acl ol'1934. as anrended) as to
\\hich a linal ollici.rl stalcnrent (as defincd iD rhc Rulc) has bccn pro\ idcd k) lhc l\4SltB consisrcnt \vilh lh!'I{ulc.

A\'.\IL\BILI r \' ()F I\!'oR\IATIor FRot\t i\lSRB . . . All irrlormation and docuDrr'ntation lllings rcq ircd to bclradcb] the Citl in
accordance \\ith its undcrtaking madc lor lhc Ccniljcalos rvill bc nradc \\ith lhc N,lsll[] in clcclroDic l'onnal in accordance \\'ith
MSRB guidclines. Access to such filings sill bc provided b) lhc MSRI]. \\ilhoul chargc lo thc gcncral p!blic. at
\\\\'r\', gmnlir-msrb,org.

holders or benellcial olrners of(efiificales nral sccl a rrril ol nrandanrus to conrpcl thc ( it1 to conpll rri(h ilsaBrecmcDt.

fiuancial inlbrmation and operaling data provided in accordancc sith its ilgrcenrcnl dcscribcd abovc undcr "Annual Rcpo s iul
explal1alion. iD Darralivc fbrDr. olthc rcasons lbr the lrnlcrld entandoflhc inlpact ol_nn] changc irr thc type olinfornratioo and
data providcd.

CoIIPLIA)"CD wrrlr PR()R (l\D[RTA(rNcs . . . l\ccpt as dcscrihcd bcirrr. dulillg lhc la]il liyc )c rs. thc (lit] balicvcs il has

In connection with the City's outstanding dcht obligalions. lhc City has cntcrcd iDlo undcrlakings to provide ce ain updated
llnancial informatioD aDd operating data wilhin six ,noDlhs ofthc ond ol'the City's liscal yoar along with notices ol spccificd
material cvcnts at required tinles. ln addition. thc City has agrccd to pro!idc audilcd llnancial statemcnts rvithin six nronths ofthe
end olthe fiscallear iflhe audited llDancial statcnrcnls crc xvailnble by such linlc. ll'utldilod IinaDoial statenroDts arc not available



bl the required tinrc. in conneclion \\ i1h certain ol lhosc outstaDding otrligatiors. lhc Cit) has agreed lo provide unaudilcd financial
statcments. aDd audilcd financial slalcnlcnts \rhen alld ilsuch audilcd linancial slalcnrents beconrc a!ailable. DuriDg thc last live
)(jtlrs. the Cil) Iilcd certain updnlcd quanlilali\c I'inaocial and opcrating data in thc Ibrm ofcerhiD hblcs identified li)rcach ofthe
rcspcc{i\'e debl issuances \\'ithir si\ nloolhs aficr thc crrd ofcach liscal ,car (lUrrch i l). Thc respcctive tables included certai

rudilcd finanoill statcnrents lor lhc liscal leax cnrlcd Septembel i0. 2017 and Soploorbcr 30.2019 \\'crc filcd on.lone I l. 2018
and 1\4a1 29. 2020. rcspecti\el_\. ci)ch nrore thlln si\ nlonths allcr lhc cnd oflhc respccti\c tiscal )eam. Thc C'itr" did not file
urirudilcd flnarcinl slr(emenls Ibr cilher fiscal l car enrled Septcmbcr i0. 2017 or Scplcmber j0. 2019.

LJpon issuancc ofthe Certificatcs, the City will oDl) bc required to file audited financial statements within l2 monlhs ofthe fiscal
year cnd.

o t UhR l\t.or{\l \.IIo\

ll \ l1\c

'l he Ceftificates havc been rated "AA" b) S&P Cloh.rl Ratings ( S&l' ') by virtue ol-a muDicipal bond insurance policy lo be issued
b_v AGM upon delivery ofthe Certificates to drc [,ndcrNriter-. Sec I]OND INStI RANCE' herein. l he Certificates havc bccn rated
"A+'with a slablc outlook b1 S&l' sithout reqard lo crcdit cnhaDcenrent. An e\plmalion ofthe significance ol_such rating mal
bc obtaired from the compan)' IirmishinS lhe rating. The rating rellccts onl)' ihe vicrvs ofsuch organization and the Cit)' makes no
representalion as to the apprcpriatcncss ofthe raling. Thcrc is ,1o irssllrance that such rating will continue for any given period ol'
lime or that thcy will not be rcviscd dorulrartl or withdrawr entirely by rating company. il'in the judgnent of company.
circunrstances so warrant. Ary such do\vn\vard rcvisiorl or withdrawal ofsuch raling. rnay have an advcrse effecl on thc markct
pricc of thc Cenifi cates.

l,l'l t(;rrtoN

It is tlle opinion ol'the City Atbntcy and City Stall thal thcre is no pending liligation against thlj Cily that u,ould havc a rDaterial
ad!crse finaDcial inrpact upon thc ( ill.or ils operalions.

n t thc time oflhc inilial delilerJ ol the Cerlillcatcs. thc Citl $ill pro\ide thc tJndc^\riters \\'ith a certificate to lhe cl'fcct that no
litillation olally nat re has been lilcd or is then peuding challenging thc issuancc ol-thc Cenificalcs or that affects the pa)'mcnt an(l
socurity ofthc Ccrtilioates or i0 ary othc rin,rljr qucstioning the issuance, salc or dclivery ofsiid Cclli{loates.

lit (;tsttl\ I to\ \\t) Qt rI trt( \ r r()\ ()F ( t Rrr r( \tI \ IoRS \t-t'

-l'hc 
salc ofthc (c(ificates has not heerr regislercd under the lredclal Sccurities Act ol l93i. as amended, in rcliancc upon the

excnrption providcd thereunder by Scclioll i(aX2): .lnd the Certilicales have not bccn qualified under the Securiti€s Acl olTcxas
in rcliancc upon various exemptions conlaincd lharcin: nor havc thc Ccrtificates been qualilicd onder the secur,ties acts of any
jurisdictiol. l he City assum€s Do rcsponsibilil\' fi)r qualification ol lhe Certificates undcr the securities larvs ol'an) .iurisdictiun in
\\'hich the Certificatcs r]ray be sold. assigned. pledSed. h)pothecatcd or otherwise transfelTed. Thisdisclaimerofresponsibilig'for
qualification for salc or other disposition ofrhe (eltilicates shall nol he construcd lj, an interprelation ofanl'kind \ith regard to
thc arailabilit) ol en) e\enrptiun ir,,rr sccurrtiE\ rcpr.lration nrovr\i,,n\.

It is thc obligalion ol'the Underrvritcrs lo registcr or quali[y the salc ofthe Ceftificatcs under the securities laws ofanyiulisdiction
shich so requires- fhe City agrces to cooperale. at the thdenlritcrs' Nritten requesl and sole expcDse. in registering or qualilying
the Certificales or in obtaining an e\crnption from registration or qualilication in an)' stale \vhcrc such action is nccessaryr pro!idcd.
holvever. that thc ( itl shall nol bc rcquired 1() qualil-v as a foreign corporation or lo cxccute a general or special consenl to sen ice
oIproccss in any jurisdiction.

Scctionl20l.04lofthePublicSccuriql'rocedurcsAct(Chapterl20l.'lexasGot,crnmentCode)providesthalthcCeflilicalesare
negotiable instrumcnts and inveslmcnt securities govemed by Chapter S. Texas Business and Conlmerce Code, and are legaland
uuthorized inlestnents for insurance companics, fiduciaries, and trustees, and lbr lhe sinking funds of municipalitics or other
political subdivisions or pLrblic agcnoies of thc State. With rcspcot 1() investmeDl in the Certificatcs by municipalities or other
political subdivisions or public aSencies ofdle Slalc. Chapter 2256. lexas Covcrnment Code. rcquires that thc Certificates be

assigned a rating ol not less than "A" or its equivalent as to iniestment quality b)' a national ratin8 agency (sce "OIHER
INI.ORMA t ION - Ratings" herein). ln addition. various provisions of thc Texas f inance Code provide that, subject lo a prudent

investor standard. the Ceftificates are legal investmenls for state banks- savings banks. trust companies with capitalolone million
dollars or morc. and sflvings and loAn associations. 'l he Certificatcs are eligible to secure deposits ofany public funds ofthe Slate,

its agencics. and its political subdivisions. and arc legal security lir lhose deposits lo thc extent oftheir market value. No rc\ icu
b] lhe Cit] has becn made oIlhe la\ts in othcr stalcs to deternrine whether lhc Cerlificates arc legal investments lbr various

i slitutions in those statcs.
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No reprcsentation is made thal thc Ccrlillcilcs will he acceptable k) public enlilies 1() securc their deposils or acceptable to soch
institulions for inlcstment pur'poscs. The ('ily has Dladc no invcstigation ofothcI laws, rulcs. regulations or invcslmenl critcrix
\vhichmiglrtapplytoanYsrchpcrsonsorrntitieso|\\hichnrightothcr\\iselimitthesuilahilil]ofthc(c(ificatest-oran)ofthc
lbregoirtg purposcs or limit thc aLrthorit) ofsuch pcrsons or entilics 1() purchasc or invcst in the CcnificLtlcs for such purposes.

l,[(;,\r ()PrF_l()Ns

Ihc Citl rrill fomish thc I ndcr\\ritcrs a coo]plcte lrnn\cript ofprocccdings had i,rcidenl to thc aulhorir tion and issuancc of thc
Certillcalcs. inclucliDg lhe unclualilicd applor ing legal opiniou olthc n ttorncl, (icDeral ol lhc Slate appro," ing the lrritial Certitlcalc

on lhc ( crlificates \\ ill be erclrrdahle l'r'onr unrss inconrc lirr federal inconle ta\ purposes urtlcr section l0.l ol_the ('odc. subjecl lo
thc Drallers dcscribed under '. l AX \,1A1 I l:ltS herein. irr sobstantiall\' the lorm ulirched hcrclo as Appr di\ D.

unrclxlld to the issuancc oflhc ( ciilicates. Bond Counscl has been cngaged b} and only rcprc\ents thc ('il\ in thc issnaocc ol_lhc
Celtilicalcs. Bond (irunscl \irs not rcqucsled to parlisipnlc. aDd did Dot take nnf. iu thc prcpxration o, lhc Prelin)irun Ofllciill

the cirptiot)s and sLrhcxplions I'l.AN OI FINANCIN(i (cxcludinSlhe intbrmatioD under thc subcaption SOUR(lllS AND tlsllS
OFPR()(EEDS ). IIlECLliIll:lcAll,S (crcluding thc inlormation under thlj subcaplioDs "CERI A IN CON-SII )l, RAl IONS
RLGAI{DING I:0I{\\'ARD I)ELIVERY OF lIIE CI]RI'IIICATI]S". ..B(X)K-IJN 

I RY-oNI,Y SYS I'I]M... AIId

'CLltlllllCAllrllol,DEIIS-Rl,N,lEDlUS). -lAX INI|OIIMATION - Ptllll.lC HEARING ANI) N4AlNl !)NANCE ANI)
OPIiIIA'I'ION I'AX RAIE I,I\'IITA]IoNS'...1AX 14A1'I ERS". .CON f INTIING DIS('I,OSLIRI] oI] INI]ORMATION'
(e\clLrdinS the i0larmation rrnder thc sLrbcaption CONIPLIANCE Wl flI PRIOR tnit)lilt IAKI^-GS ). -OTIILIt
INFOITMATION - I{E(;tSt-RA I ION ANI) Qt rAI_ll't(',AllON Ot: CERTIFT( At-ES FOR SAt.E..- *OlltER lNFORMAltON -
LE(;A I. INVESTM IiN l S ANI) lrllclBl l.ll Y TO Sli( t,RE PIl lll.lcl Ft INI)S IN TEXAS . and "Ol I tlll{ INFOIiMATION -
I-gGAl. OPINIONS- (excluding the last t$o sentenccs ol the sccond paragraph ther-eol)- and such firnr is o1-the opinion thal thc

accuralc and fair deseription ol thc lat\s and legal issres ilddresscd therein and. \ilh respecl lo the (crlilicales. such inlbrmalion
conlomrs to the px)!isions oflhc Oldinancc. Ce[ain natlers relating to the Ccdilicates \,,ill bc passcd upon for thc L]nderwrilcrs
by Mc( all- Parkhurst & llorton L.L.P.. [) llas. Tcxas. (ounscl to the Undcrrrriters- uhosc lie is conlingenl Lrpon the sale and
deli\cr\ of the Ccflillcates.

1'he various legal opinions to hc dclivered cr)ncurrently with the dglivery oftho Ceftificates express thc prcfessional judgment of
the rtk)mcys rendering the opinioo as to tho legal issucs cxplicitly addressed thcrein. In rendering a lcgal opinion. the attorney
docs not becomc an insurcr or Suilrartor ol that e\pressiolr ofprofessionaljudgnlcnt. ofthc transaction opircd upoD. or ofthe future
perfonnance ofthc parties lo lhc lransaction. Nor docs the rendering olan opinion guarantec the outconc ofan) legal dispule that
may arisc oul ol thc trflnsaciion.

.\lt lt\It(tT\ o! l t\\\( I\t I)\t \ \\I)() tt.Rl\t,()trlt\ ()\

lhe linarrcialdata and other inloonation contained hcrein have been obtained fiotn City rccords. auditcd Ii,rancial slatcments and

other so rces whioh arc believcd to be reliable. Therc is no guarantce that any ol the assllnrptions or cslirnatcs conlained hcrcin
will bc realized. Allofthe sufinr^rics oflhe slatutes. docu0lcnts and ordinance containcd in this Oflicial Slatement arc made subiccl
to all ofthe pro!isions ofsrrch strtutes. docurnents aDd rcsolutions.'lhese sumn]aries do nol purport to bc conplete statements ol'
such provisions and reference is Il)ade to such docunlcn(s Ibr hlrthcr in[ormalion. Relerencc is made lo original documents in all

FI\\\( I \t-..\D\ tsot

HilltopSccurities is ornploycd as l"ilancial Advisor 10 lhc City in coDncction \vilh thc issua cc oflhe Ccnificates. lheFinancial
Ad\ isor's ltc lbr sorvices rcndcr.d $ith respect to thc sale ofthe Ce ificates is coDtingcnt upon thc issuance and clolivery ofthe
Certilicales. Ililltopsecurities. in ils capaoitv as IinaDc,al Advisor. does nol assuole anl' responsibilitl for thc informatron.
covenants and rcpresentations contained in an\ of lhc legal documents \\'ilh respect to lhe f'ederal income tax slatus of the
Certilicales, or thc possible impacl olanv prcsent, pending or futurc actions taken by an! legislative or.iudicial bodies.

The I:inancial Adlisor to the ('il) has pro\ ided the {i)llo\\.ing senlence lor inclusion in this Official Statement. lhc financial
Adr isor ltas rer icrvcd the inlbnnation in this Ol'ficial Stalement in accordance r|ith. and as pan o[. its rcsponsibililies 1() the Cit]
and. as applicable. tt) iDveslors under the Icdcral securilics larvs as applied to the l'acls aDd circumstanccs ofthis lransaclion- but
the linancial Advisor docs ol Buaranlee thc accurac) or complelencss ofsuch inlbrmation.

I tl)[tr\t Rt'l fRs I,(]R I HE CER ['t('{Tts
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The llndcrrvrilcrs havc aSrecd. subjcct to ccrlain conditions, 1() prrchnsc the Ceflilicatcs liom the City. at a pricc ofS___
represcnting the par amouDl thereol, plus a Incll prcnliLrm of$ lcss cn underlrriling discount of S_
The F'orward Delivery Bond Purchase Agreemcnt lor the Certificates provides that lhe Llnder$Titers will bc obligated 1(r purchasc
all oflhe Ccrtificates ifan) Ccrtificates arc purchased. the obligalion to ma.ke such purchase beirg subject to certain terms and
condiliorls set forlh in said agrcement. the approval oIccrtain legal nratlcrs b)' counsel and certain other conditions. See also "Tlil]
CERIIITlCATES Cer(ain Considcrations RcSarrling For\vard Deli\cryofthe Certificalcs-hcrcin- The Cerlillcirres 1() be ol'tcrcd
to lhc public may be oft'ered and sold lo ccrtain dcalers (including thc Llndenvriters and othcr dealers deposiling Certificates illkr
investmcDl trusts) at priccs loNe r than the publio oflaring prices ofsuch ( enificates and such public ofltring prices may be chaoged.
from linlc to time, by the UDdorwriters.

HuDlinglon Capital Markcls is a trade nane undcr rrhich seculities rnd in\cstment bturlillg products and scrviccs ofHuntingl(nr
flancsharcs Incorporated and ils subsidiaries. inc[ldine Hunti,rgton Sljcori{ics. Inc. ("HSI ). ar€ narkeled- Municipal sales. lrading
and undcr$riting sen ices arc providcd thrt:ugh tlSI. Nhich is a lrroker-dealer rcgislcrcd with the Securitics and Exchangc
(lonrnri\\ion

FoR'\\',\Rt)-t.ooKrNC s fl't r.r Nr !: \'r's D15( r..\rNrirr

Thc slalcnrenls conraired in lhis Otficial Slatcnlcnt. and in anv other inlhnDation prcvidcd h), thc CiD. that are nol purely historical.
are lonurd-looking slatenrcnls. including stalcnrcnls r€gardin8 thc ( il) s e\pectalions. hopcs- intentions- or slratcgics regardhtg
the lirlurc- Readers sho0ld nol place undue rclillncc on fbr\\'ard-looking stalenlenls. All lirnrard-lookirrg slalcrncnts included iD
this Olljcial Staterlent arc based on inlbrnrati(D available to thc ('ity on the dale hereof, and the City assuncs no obligation to
updatc aoy such forward-looking statemcnts. l hc City's actuat resulls could differ malcrialll, liom those discussed in such fbnvard-
lookinp strtcnrents.

The Ionrard-looking statcncnts included hercin arc nccessarily based on varioDs assumptions and estinates and are inherenll]
subjecl lo Yarious risks and unce(aintics. including risks and unccnaintics relating to lhc possible invalidity ol- the underl) ing
assumptions and estimates and possible changcs or de\elopnrenls in social. economic. business- industry. market, legal. and
rcgulatory circumstances and conditions and aclioos taken or olnillcd t{) be taken b} third parties. including customcrs, suppliers.
business parlners and compctilors, itnd legislativc. .iudicial. and othcr governmental authorities and officials. AssumptioDs rolalcd
to the lbrcgoing involvc .iudgnlerlts wilh respcct to. aDlong other lhiDgs. ftlturc econonric. compelitive. and market coDditions and
firlurc business decisions. all ofrvhich arc ditllcult or impossiblc lo prcdict accurately and many ofwhich are beyond the cont,ol
of the Ci1y. Any ol-such assumptions could bc inaccurate aDd. thcrelbre. there can be no assurance thal thc forward-lookiDg
statemenls inchrded ir this Ofllcial Statemenl \ill prcr'e to be accurate.

Il ts( fl.r. \NE()r s

l_he tin.u)cial data and olher inl'onnation containcd hcrcin have becn obtained lrom ll1c Cily's r'ccords, audited linancial statemenls iln(l
other sourccs which are believed to bc rcliablc. 'lhore is no guarantcc that an] oflhe assunlptioDs or estimales coDtained herein rlill
be rcalized. All ofthcs !nmaries of the slatulcs. docunrents a,ld ordinlnces contained io thisOmcial Statcrncnl are made subiecl lo
all ol'lhc provisions olsuch stalutcs. documcnls iud ordinances. lhcsc sLrnrmaries do not purporl lo be complete slatements ol'such
pro\'isiolrs and reference is nrade to such docunlcnls for lu(her inlannnlion. Referencc is nradc to original documcnts in all respecls

The Ordirrance authorizing thc issuance oflhc ( crlitlcates will apl)rovc thc tbrm and contenl olthis Ofiicial Statement, and nn\

Mayor

Cig of Palcstinc. l exas

Alll,SI

Cirl" Secretary
City oIPalestine, Texas

.
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LoCATToN AND Srzr:... l ho City of Palestinc was iocorlorllcd iD 1871 and is onc ol lhcoldestand most hislorical c il ics in llxas. Itis
the county seat ofn ndcrsou County and. as the I rgcsl cil) in thc connl),. ser,,es as tho rclail and nrcdical servic€ huh li)r thc County alld
surrounding arcas. lho(lillhasalandareaoflTsquurctnilesandislocated50milcssouthol"fller. l l0 miles southcasl ol Dallas. 150

I ligh$'a) s 20 md -15 rnd li,rks to the maior nietrololilar arcas.

II.uoR ARf,A Ettpt,or ERS...The Texas Depanmenl oICorreclioDs, \\hich houscs ovcr 12.000 inmates iD the County. provides 2l7o
ofthe County $ork force. fhe Wal-Man Superce[lcrand distributiolr centeraDd the mcdical cenlerare also signilicanl eNployers.
Maior area empkrlers arc:

Nrlurc of Ilrsincss
Wal-M arl Distribution
Palestine Regional Medical & Rehabilitation Center
Wal-Mart Retail
Palest ine lndependent School District
Anderson Countl
tJnion Pacific Railroad
City of Palestine
CapGemini Ener$
Wcstwood Independent School District
Columbia Sciertific Balloon I:acility
Palestine Concrete
Ben E. Keith
Aerospace Fasteners
Teql'Manufacturing

Relail Dist bution
Mcdical
Rctail
School
Count)'/Govemment
Railroad
Cit! /Govemment
Call Center

School

Construction
Distributer

Manufacturing

l-R\rispoRTArro\... llrc ( it) is serted b) Unioll-l'acillc Railroxd. sL\ truck lires. aDd (irc)'hound bus line. l he Cil) has a ClLss lll
Municipal Airpon \ ilh a 5.000 lbol pa\ ed and lighlc(l nnr\\ n\'. hansars and an A(lmi islration Building-

ErrtCATION.,..l'aleslilo ;s presentl] sened b) t\\o public school disn'icls. I'nlcslirrc lndcpendent School Districl nr)d Wesl\\ood

I Iigher education opporlur;tics include the Llnivcrsill ol 'le\as al Paleslin.i] and 1 rinil] Vallcy CommLrnitv (iollege.

i\'l f,DlcAL l'ACrLl,l r Es...l'alestine Regional Mcdical ( cnlcr ser!esthc Cily. lhc hospital has 244 beds rvith 90 nredicaldoctols on staff
and pro!ides medical. surgical. psychiatric and rehabililalirm sc^ ices.

$alking and bikc trails. aDda[ alhletic conrplc\ rrith brseball- lbothalland socccr li.lds. In 1998-anc\\'21 acre park iurd adjacenr state

ofthe art YI\,IC,^ l'acilil)' \\'cre compleled Nhich addcd \\elland lrails. athletic liclds. picnic arcas aod a modem outdoor srlimming cenler.

Cus Engeling Wildlilt MnDagement  re.r a I 1.000 nc,! ganrc refuge. and Te\ns Slatc liailroad. a 25 mile rail IiDc with stcanr powered
railroad and park arca. lloth are localed in Andcrson (i)unl),. TNo large recreali(,lrl llkcs, Lake Palestirle and l{ichland-Chairbers
Rcserloir. axi wilhirl ar honr drive ofthe Cit\'.

FINAN(rr,rr. INsTtrtrT()Ns . . . Six banks are located in the City: The E.Lst l_cxas National Bank, cstablished l97l:Rcgions Bank. a
successorto First NationnI Bank- cstablished I887: ( apilal One BaDk. Prosperil) llaDk. Auslin Bank and First Convcnionce Bank.

L.\aoRFOR(EST.urslr(s...llmplo\nlenlslatislicrli)rAodcrsonCounl)nrcas,irllo\rs

l0lllr) 2020 t0l9 20t 8 20t7

Civiliar tabol Force

Tolal tiDp loymcnt

TolaltJnemployment

Pcrcenl Unenrplo) ment

23.r30

21.758

t.372

5.90/"

23.9t1

23,220

693

2.9Vo

22.4t3
846

3.6v.

23.325

22.013

l-312

5.6"/o

)t tq?

22,67 5

'722

(l ) A\er.rges through Junc 2021

A-l
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EXCTJI{PTS ITROM TIIE

CITY oI; PAI,I]SI'INI]. TEXAS

ANNUAL I'INANCIAL RF:PORT

For the Year Eidcd Seplcmber 30,2020

The inlbnnalfun co[taincd in this Appendi\ cousists ol'o\ccrpls liotn thc ( il) of Palestine.
Iexas- Annual fina|ciirl llepon lbr thc Year Ilndcd Scplember 30. 2020. and is nol inlcndcd
to be a conrplete slatcment o[ thc ( ity's financial condition. Retarcncc is nladc to thc
conrplete Rcporl Ibr [u(her iDlornlalion-



FRANK CAMPOS & ASSOCIATES PLLC
Certifed Public Accou ants

INDEPT]NDENT AUDITOI{'S REPoRT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
City of Palestine, Texas

lleport on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component unit, each major lirnd, and the aggregale remaining fund information olthe City
ol'Palestine, Texas, as of and lbr the ycar ended September 10, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statemenls. rvhich collcctively comprise thc City ofPalestine, Texas' basic financial statements as listed in the table
ol'contents.

Munogement's Responsibilily for lhe Finan cial Stutements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the prepalation and fhir presentation olfinancial statements that are
tiee fr-om material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error'.

Antlitor's ResponsibiIi4,

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditin!: Standords, issued by the Comptroller Ceneral of
tlre United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial stalements are free from material misstatelnenls.

An audit involves pertbrming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the flnancial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgrnent. including tlre assessment of the risks of
material misstatement olthe financial statcrnents, whether due to fi'aud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropliateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
signilicant accounting estimates made by managernent. as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities- the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate rernaining hnrd information ofthe City ofPalestine, Texas, as ofSeptember
30,2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

c\.rr Socrel\' ol ( l)As and Arrrcrican Insriturc ol CPAS
100 Trinity Cou( | PO Bo\ 2918 | Palestine, 

-Iexas 
75801

Phone (901) 721-1040 | Fax (903) 721-2076
$1\,N FrankcaDrposcPA oom



Other Matters

Req a ir ed S u pp I e me nto ry I nfo mat i on

Accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America require that the management's discr"rssion
and analysis. budgetary comparison infonnatiorr, pension schedules, and other post-enrployment benefit schedules
on pages 3-9. 55-56, 57-58, and 59-60 be presented to supplement (he basic financial statements. Such infonnation,
although not a paft ofthe basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an esscntial parl of financial reporting tbr placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, econornic. or historical context. We have applied cefiain limited procedures to thc required
supplementary information in accordancc with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the Inethods of preparing the inforrnation and
comparing the infonnation lbr consistency witlr management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained dLlring our audit ofthe hasic financial statements. We do not cxpress
an opinion or provide any assulance on the infonnatiorr because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sulficient evidcnce to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Informution

Our audit rvas conducted for 1he pr.rrposc offonning opinions on the financial statements that collectivell' comprise
the City of Palestine, Texas' basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor l'und financial slaternents and schedules. and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not arequired part ofthe basic financial statements. The schedule olexpenditures offederal awards
is presented for pulposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of P'ederql Regulalion.\ I'art 200,
Unifurm Administrative Requitanrcnts. Cost Principles, and Auclit Requirements fbr Federal Ay'ards. and is also
not a required part ofthe basic flnancial statemerts.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund l'inancial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures
offederal awards are the responsibility ofmanagement and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Snch infonnation has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and ce(ain additional procedures,
including cornpaling and reconciling such inlonnation directly to tlle underlying accounting and other rccords used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generalll accepted in the United States of America. ln oul opinion,
the combining and individual noumajor fund tlnancial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures
offederal awards are lairly stated. in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected 10 the auditing procedures applied in thc audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly. we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auliting Stonda ls

ln accordance wilh Goverrunent Auditing Stcutdords, we have also issued our reporl dated July 15, 2021, on our
considetation of the City of Palestine, 'I'exas' inlemal control over financial repofling and on our tests of its
compliance with cefiain provisions ol'laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 1'lre purpose
ofthat report is to dcscribe tlre scope ofour testillg of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and
tlre results ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City ofPalestine. Texas' internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance
wilh Governnent Auditing Stundards in considering City of Palestine, Texas' internal control over llnancial
reporting and compliance.

-Tr-; %""** g',M*az, %'1%
Frank Campos & Associates. PLLC
Palestine, Texas
July I 5, 2021
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As nranagenrent ofthe City ofPalestine, rve offer readers ofthe city's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis
ofthe financial activities ofthe city for the fiscal year ended September 10, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the
informalion presented here in conjunction with additional information that rve have fumished in our letter oftransmittal.

I.I\,\N( I,\I, III(;II I,I(;HTS

'l'he assets and deferred outflorvs ofresources ofthe City ofPalestine exceeded its liabilities aud deferred inflows of
resources as of September 30,2020 by $36,674,539 (net position). Thc total net position increased hy $4,457.527
during the ycar. Ofthc total net position, $3, 190,5l6 (unrestricted nel position) may be used (o meet the governrrcnts'
ongoing obligatiorrs to citizens and creditors. l]nrestricled ncl position increased by $3,268,144 during the fiscal
year.

As of September 30, 2020, the City of Palestine's Governlnental l;unds reported combined ending fund balances of
S8,i 5 1,008, an increase of $2,972,432 in cornpirrison rvith the prior fiscal year.

Fund Balance for the General Fund increased liom $2,854,954. at September 30, 2019, to $5,736.786, at September
30, 2020. An increase of$2,881,832 for the fiscal year ended September 10, 2020.

The city's total long-term liabilities decreased by $(3.323,831) during the current fiscal year, which is primarily due
lo redemptior ofcertificates ofobligations and revenue bonds drrring the year. The city's total bonded debt payable
totaled $13,377.808 as ofSeptember 30.2020.

OvT]RYIEW OF TII E FINANCIAL STATEI\{ENTS

This discussion and analysis serve as an introductioo to the City of Palestine's basic financial statements. 1'he City of
Palestine's basic llnancial statemeDts are comprised of three compolents, govemfient-wide financial statemeDts, filnd
firancial slatemcnts, and notes to the financial statements. I'his report also contains other supplemenlary infornration intended
to tLrnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves.

(;ovolnlncnt-widc I inancial Strtements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview ofthe city's finances. in a
rranner like a private-sector business. The Statement ofNct Position presents inlonnation on all the city's assets, liabilities,
and deferred outflows/inflows, rvith the difference between the two reporred as net position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position nray sewe as a useful indicator of whethcr the financial position of the city is improving or deteriorating. The
Statenlcnt of Net Position combines and consolidates government funds: current financial resources (short-term expendable
resources) rvith capital assets and long-term obligations. Other non-financial factors should also be taken into consideration.
such as changes in the city's property tax base and the condition of the city's infrastructure (e.g., roads. drainage
improvenrents, storm, and sewer lines, etc.), to assess the ovcrall health or financial condition of the city. 'l'he Statement of
Activitics presents infonnation showing how the city's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All the current
yea['s revenues and expenses are considered regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus. revenues and expenses are
reponed in this statenent for items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for cxarnple, levied but
uncollccted taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). Both lhe Statement ofNet Position and the Statement of Activities
are prcpared utilizing the accrual basis ofaccounting.

In the Statement ofNet Position and the Statement ofActivities, the city is divided into two kinds ofactivities:

Covernmental Activities Most of the city's basic services are reported here including gencral government,
conrnrunity development, fire and rescue, leisure services, maintenance, municipal court, police, and streets and
drainage. lnterest payments on the city's debt are also reported here. Sales tax, property t&x, franchise tax, nrunicipal
court fines, and permit fees finance most ofthese activities.

Busiuess-Type Activities The city charges a fee to customers to help it cover a,ll or most ofthe cost of certain
services it provides. These services include the city's water distribution, wastewater collectior/treatment, sanitation,
and retail.
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The govemment-wide financial statements include not only the city itself (known as the primary govemment), but also a
legally separate entity, Palestine Economic Development Corporation (PEDC), for which rhe city is financially accountable.
Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the pri,nary
govemment itsel[.

The government-wide financial statemeflts can be found immediately following this maflagement's discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statemeflts provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the city as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covena,lts. However, thc city establishes many other lunds to
help itcontrol aDd manage money for particular pu rposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certaill
taxes, grants, and othet money. Thc city's trvo kinds of funds are governmental and proprietary, and they utilize different
accounting approaches.

Governmental funds The majority of the city's basic services are repofted in governmental funds, rdrich focus on how
nroney flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are
rcpofted using an accounting method identified as the rnodified accrual basis ofaccoLtnting. which measures near-term inflo\l,s
aud outflows of spendable resources. The governmental fund statemerlts provide a detailed short-term view of the city's
general governmental operations and the basic services it provides. Govenrrnental fund iDfoflnation helps determine r4lether
there are more or f-ewer finarcial resources than can be spent in the near luture to finance the city's programs. By compar iug
information presented for governnrental l'unds \\ith sinrilar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-$,ide statements, readers mav better understand the long-term impact of the govemntent's near-term financing
decisions. The differences between governmeDtal activities reported in the Statement ofNet Posilion and the Statenrent of
Activities and those repo,led in the governnrenlal fuDd statement are detailed in the reconciliation following the fund finaDcial
statements.

The City of Palestine maintains t\yenly-two irdividual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmcntal Funds Balance Sheet and in thc Governmertal Funds Statenrent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Frtnd Balances for the general fund and debt service fund, both ofwhich are considered to be maior funds. Data florn the other
twenty governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated nolmajor fund presentation.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget lbr its general fund and selected special revenue funds. Budgetary comparison
schedules have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance rvith these budgets.

The governntental funds financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements ofthis report.

Proprietary lunds The city charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to othel units
within the city. These seryices are generally reported in the proprietary funds. The oity maintains two types ofproprietary
firnds. Enterprise funds are used to repoft the sanre functions prcsented as business-type activities in the governnrenl-wide
financial stateneDts. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water distribution and wastewater collectiolVtreatment
(water and wastewater), solid waste (sanitation), and retail operations (retail). The p.oprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information foI the water alrd wastewater, sanilation, and rctail funds.

I'he city also uses internal service funds to account for its equipment replacement services, health insuralce, and
unemployment. These internal service funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
finanaial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional infomration that is essential to a full understanding ofthe data provided in the government-wide
and fund lluancial statements. The rotes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements.

1

The proprictary funds fillancial statements can be lound in the basic financial statements ofthis report.
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()thcr lnfornr:rtion

In addition to basic financial statements, MD&A, and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain Required
Supplernentary lnformation (RSI). The RSI that GASB requires includes budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund
and debt servicc fund, schedule of changes in pension liability and related ratios. schedule ofpension contributions, and
schedules of changes in Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liabilities and related ratios. RSI can be found after the
basic tinancial staternents.

(;ovcl1rm0nl-\ri(lc Ovcrrll I"inancial Analysis

As noted carlier, net positiorl over time, nlay serve as a useful indicator ofa governnlent's financial position. In the case of
thc city, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and delelred inflorvs of resources by $36,674,539, at
the closc of thc nrost reccnl fiscal ) (ar.

Su n t).ol'St1one t ofN4 Positio

GovernnlcnlalActi\ilics Busincss-t)peActivities l, lrL

2020 l1I9 2010 t0l9 l0li-l l0l9
$ r0.t72.i?l

t 8.207,105

$ 7.t5.1.661 $ 9.3 t0.282

26.E61.E65

$ 8.509.973

27.001, r26

s 19.,182.851
.1i.071.990

$ 15.661.616

44.215,578

Current and othcr liabilities
Lorg-lcrD liahilitics

l otal liahilitics

28,319,676

1,618.178

t,061,307

18,312.755

21.188.1t5

1.200.54t

961.027

t9.977.179

16.175. t67

16t.825

t.171.687

6.755.419

15,511,099

152.344

1,028,359

8,414,826

64,551.841

1.980.20i

2,234.994

25,068.t74

59.899.2 r4

1.952.885

1,991.186

28.192.005

l olnl delcneJ outllo\\'s of resources

lbl0l (Llc c(l irrllotrs ol rcsourccs

Current rnd olher assets

Capilalassets

Tolalassets

Net Positionl

Net inveslment in capital assels

I{estricled

Unreslriclcd

Toul net posilion

I9,176.062

2.t 01,666

20.940.206

t,010.510

't.927.146

455.67-l

9,443.t 85

241.186

27,303.168

) 55? llq

30,181.19t

t,251.696

9,066,858

I,536.140

(2.082.872)

8.7ti6.1I5
t,538.t69

(4.686.344)

2t.664.885
t.2t5.910
5.273.188

20.'763.626

1,206.730

1.608.7 t6

30.7.1t.713

2.7 52.280
j.190.5 t6

29.549,74 t

2,744.899
(77.628)

$ 8.520,126 $ 5.617.9,10 $ 2E.154.21i $ 26.579,072 $ 36.671.5t9 $ 32,217,0t2

By f'ar, thc largest portion ofthe city s net position (83.8%) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.9., land, buildings,
infrastruclure. machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding d€bt used to acquire those assets. The city uses these
capital assets to provide sen,ices to citizens; consequently, these assets are nol available for future spending. Although the
city's investment in its capital assets is reported net ofrelated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets thenrselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion ofthe city's net position (7.57o) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining balance of$3,190.516 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the city's ongoing obligations to
its citizens and creditors.

At the end ofthe fiscal year, the city is able to report positive balances in all reported categories ofnet position, both for the
government as a whole, as well as for its separate governnlental and business-type activities, except for unrestricted net position
for governmental activities. This category is negative for the third time (it was also negative at the end of last FY) as a result
of including the city's total OPEB liability in both the prior and current year.

'l'he city's overall Det position increased $4,457,527 over tlre plior year. The reasons for this overall increase are discussed in
the following sections for governmental activities and busincss{ype activities.
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Su,lt, tq of9fircDrefit of .4diitirs

GovenlnrcntllActiritics lhsincss-lroeAclirities
l0r 0 l0l, 2t)24 2019

L,lrLL

)020 2019
Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges tbr scrvices

Operating granLs and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

Gencralrevenues:

Property taxes

Sales taxes

franchise taxes

Inveslmenl camings

Gain (loss)on sale oIassets

Cain (loss) on inpairmenl ofasscts

Miscel laneous othcr income

Total revenues

Expenses:

General governmcnt

Public safcty

Communitv services

Conlmunil) dcvelopmcnl

Interest on long-term debt

Waler and waslerlater

Sanitaiion

Retail

Total expcnscs

81.1.t6
( l._'i99)

100.650

tl aJIl

7,t)47,072

5.842,057

989.298

168.928

192.106

6.6r{1.034

2.838.145

-r87.207

6.7t1.5:i5
3.0.]]. r 92

117.092

$ 85i.6 t.1

1.582._i43

I0i.984

825.110

6t)8.019

28r.282

$ t3.371,427

200.000

t?.664,161

655.789

2E1.282

s I1.819.027
.17.750

s $ 14,228,041 $
1.582.343

303.984

7.04',7 ,072
5,842.057

989.298

86.482

t 9l.50i

7,072,2t6
5,602.207

t.042.241

l5 1.108

6.321

11.567

8.629

'7.072.216

5,602,207

t,042.24t
251.758

6.12t
4l-919

8.62959.667 59.667
16,158.022 15.644.750 I3.655.474 11.981.779 30,413,496 27.628.529

1.979.911

8.251..105

1.00+.2.16

l.-179.121

331.i68

t.838.526

8.166.114

i.7"t8-l l2
2.155.926

3 r4.41 l

1,979.943

8.252,405

4,004,246

t,4't9,32t
l3 r,36E

6,683,034

2,838.445

381.207

25,955.969

t.818,526

8.466-414

1.748,1t2
2.155,926

31,1.411

6,714,5i5
1,031,r92

4t1.092
I6.047.283 t6.i23.389 , eoE.636 l0.l6.l.lit9

Incrcase (decreasc) in nei assets

betirre translcrs

'I-ransLrs

(8?8,639)

|,091.479

2 

'5.8.10

5,t 28,464

293,6i6

26.688.208

940.121

9l0.t2l

i0.955.893
320.798

710,739

2,171.64',7

2.882.386

5.637,940

1.746,788

(2.t1t,647)

1.5?5.t41

26.579,072 32.217.0t2

I.lihi.9(,0 1,157.521

( r.094.479)

72.1..r ri Ialhange in nct positi()n

Net position - beginning ofyear
Prior period odiuslnrent

Net position - end ofyear

25.827.429

27.162
-$-r6-r9"0?, $ t6,674.539 S 32.2tT,012li 8.520,i26 r{i 5.6t7.940 !i 28.r54.211

Goyernmental Activities. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities increased $2,882,386 over
the prior fiscal year for an ending balance of$8.520.326. The increase in nct position is prinrarily caused by the increase in
operating contributions and transfers from business-type activities.

Business-type Activities, For the city's business-typc activities, the results for the current fiscal year increased net position to
an end ing balance of $28,154,2 I i. The total increase in net position for business- type activities was $ I ,575, l4 I or 5.9olo over
the prior fiscal year. The increase is primarily caused by various water rate increases and lowered expenses.

Finarlcial Analysis of Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the city uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliarrce with finance-related legal requiremenls

6
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SEP'TEMBER 30,2O2O

Gowrnmenlal F'unds. The focus ofthe city's governmental funds is to provide information on near-ternr inflows, outflows,
and balances ofspendable resources. Such inlornration is useful in assessing thc city's financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance nray serve as a useful measure ofa government's net resources available for discretionary use as they
represent the portion of fund balance rvhich has not yel been limited to use for a palticular purpose by eitlrer an external parly,
the city itself, or a group or irdividual tlrat has been delegated authority to assign rcsources for use for padicular purposes by
the city council.

As of year-end, the city's governnrental furds reported combined fund balances of $8,15 I .008, an increase of $2.972,132 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately. 66.0% of this arnount, or $5,509.918. constilutes unassigned fund balance,
which is available for spcnding at the city's discretion. The rernainder ofthe fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, or
committed to indicate that it is I ) not in spendab le lbrnr ($23 6,757 ). 2 ) restricted for a particular puDosc ($ | ,536,3 40), or 3 )
committed to a particular purpose ($1,067,993).

The general fund is the chiefoperating fund ofthe cily. At the end ofthe current fiscal ycar. unassignecl fund balance ofthe
general fund was $5.509,918. while total fund balance increascd to $5,736,786. As a nreasure ofthe general fund's liquidity, it
may be usefulto compare both urassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Unassigned
fund balance rcpresents approximatel;- 4l.l% of total general fund cxpenditurcs, u,hile total fund balance represents
approximately 42.89/o ofthe same amount.

The fund balance ofthe city's general fund increased by $2,88 1,832 during the current fiscal year. The increase is due to growth
in property and sales tax collections. state and federal grants rcccived, and increased transfers to lhe general fund from other
funds.

The debt sen ice I'und, a major fund, had a $ 191,078 decrease in fund balance to bring the year end fund balance to $333,047.
The decrease in fund balance was the result ofdebt service payments exceeding the amount of propeny taxes restricted for debt
service collected in the current year- This was a planned draw down ofexcess fund balance.

Prupfieta4' Funds. The city's proprietary funds provide the same type ofinfornlation found in the govenrnrent- wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position ofthe \vater and wastewater fund at tlre end ofthe year was $4,r112,887. The total net position for this
fund was $23,752,017. This isan increaseof$2,017.562, or 9.37o, overprior fiscal year. The increase in net position was the
result ofhigher charges for utility services and decreases in operational expenses.

Unrestricted net position ofthe sanitation fund at the end of tlre year was $265,926. The total net position for this fund was
$726,087. Tlris is a decrease of($617,955).or (46.0Vo), from priorfiscal year. The decrease in net position wasthe resultofa
transfer of fund balance from this fund to the general fund.

Unrestricted net position of the retail l'und at the end ol the year was $594,575. lhe total net position for this fund was
$3,676,109. This is an increase of$175.534, or 5.07o, over plior fiscal year. fhe increase in net position was the result of
higher charges for services and other operating revenues and dccreased operating expenses.

(lereral Funtl Bu(lgetar\ Ilighlights

During the year, there was no need for any significant amendments to increase either the original estimated revenues or original
budgeted appropriations.

For fiscal year 2020, actual revenues were S14,364,549, with budgeled revenues being $13,190,619, a positive variance of
$1,173,930. The primary cause of this variance is receipt of statc and federal grant revenue followed by increased sales tax
receipts.

For fiscal year 2020, actual expenditures in the general fund werc $ 13,409,30 I conr pared to the budget aurount of $ 14,884,2 I 7,
a positive variance of$1,,174,916. Due to cost reduction strategies, gcncral govcrnment expenditures were under budget by
$197,955, public safety expenditures were under budget by $479,230, conrmunity services expenditures were under budget by
$625,552, and community development cxpcnditures were under budgct by $172,1'79. Furthermore, projects were dela)ed as

a result ofthe COVID-19 pandemic and then were further hindered by the weather.

,1



Crry oR Par-nsrrur, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

SEPTENIBER 30.2O2O

(.APII'AI, ASSE'I AND DEBl' ,{ D}I I NIS'I'RAI'ION

('apital Assets

'I he city's investment in capital assets for its governnrental and business-type activities as of Septenlber 30, 2020, amounts to
$,15,071,990 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery,
equipnrent, vehicles. park facilities, roads, and the water and wastewater system. The total increase in capital assets fbr the
current ycar was 1.9o;.

Capital Assets

Govemmenlal Aclivilies IJrLir .- 1\ ilr \L:1i\ it .' I otal

l0l{) 20t9 t0t0 l0l, lrJ20

$ i.63n.675

t._r99.611

1.183,699
) I71 i))
5,750.646

28,925,8r7
$ 45,071,990

29 805.2t6

2019

l-and

Construction in progress

B!ildings
lnlprovcmenls

Machincry' & equipmenl

lniiastrLrcture
'lotal capital assets, net

('ertilicalcs o,'0bligation
Ilclcnuc bontls

l'iraDciDg capilal leases
'l 0l.tl lorrg-lcml debl

s t.lrilr.207

t.060,798

2.130,521

4.748.827

8.428.750

$ 1.818.407

t8,524
1.120,907

2,325,342

1.26).686
8,667,586

1.800.46t

1.199.63 r

).1)2.901
42.999

r.001.819

20.497.061

l.lir)0..16It

660.0.11

l._r26.51i{

It2. t20
991.1t7

2 r.1.17.650

$ 1,638.875

678.557

3.447.425

2,407,462

4.258,021

\ \

xi ru.207.105 $ 17.234,152 $26 864.885 $ 27,001.126 $ 44.2t5,578

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:
. purchaseofequipment,
. infrastructureimprovements,
. acquisition ofa fire truck, asphalt recycler and paver, and utility equipment through capital leases,
. acquisition ofseveral vehicles through capital leases,

' beginning ofthe water treatment plant generator project and hospital lift station and sewer force upgrade project,
. sale ofseveral vehicles, and
. sale ofthe civic center.

N4ore detailed inlbrmation abolrt the citv's capital assets is presented in Nore III-F- lo the financial statements

r)!rB t ,\l)NflNtsT'RAl roN

Al the end ofthe current year, the city had total ceflilicatcs ofobligatiou of$8,093,000, total revenue bonds of$3,260,000,
and total financing capital leases of$2,024,808.'fhc city redeemed $1,293,000 ofcertificates ofobligation and $827,500 of
revcnuc bonds during the 1ear.

The lollowing table reflects the summary schedule ofthe city's outstanding debt at yearend

Long-tetut Debt

( io\ crrrr .nlirl r\cth irics Business-lT r\ctir itics Tolal
2010 t0l9 lill0 2019 202i) l0l9

$ rJ.r77.n09 !i 7.872,383 $ 5

6.t53.000

2,024,809

1.236.000

636.383

$ r.940.000 $

3.260.000

2.150.000

4.01r7.i00
$ 9,386.000

4.087.500

636,183

$ 6.237,500

s 8.09r.000

1.260.000

2.024.809

fl3JrFlq- $ r4,r09,881

8

The city's total debt decreased by ($732,074) during the current year due to annual principal payments.

The city maintains an "A+" investment grade rating from Standards and Poor's for general obligation debt.

More detailed information about the City's long-term liabilities is presented in Note lll-F to the financial statements.



Crry or Par,nsrlNr, TEXAS
MA NAGEM E NT'S D ISC USS ION A N D ANALYSB, CONTI N UED

SEPTEMBER 3O.202O

ECONONTIC FA('1'ORS AND NE\T Y1]AR'S BI]DGETS ANI) RATES

The city's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 202 I budgel. 1ax rates,
and fees that will be charged for the business{ype activities. Propeny values decreased approximately (0.01%) for
fiscal year 2021 ; however, total property tax revenu€ is expected to experience modelate growlh in future years. The
Texas State Legislature passed Senate Bill 2 in 2019 which imposed a revenue cap on the amount ofproperty tax that
can be lcvied by the city. Since the effective date was January 2020, the fiscal year 2021 budget and tax rate levy
were th€ filst to be impacted by the chalge in law. Due b lhe passage of Senate Bill 2, there is uncertainty that the
city would be able to raise thc rcvcnue needed to fund critical operations, horvever, the city council did not increase
the property tax rate, instead the no-nerv-revenue maintenance and operations rate was passed. Sales tax rcvenue was
up for the liscal year ended Septenrber 30. 2020 and continues to be incrcased ovcr prior 1,ear through the first eight
months offiscal )'ear 2021.

Thc genelal fund's largest single rcvenue source is properly taxes followed by salcs taxes. The ptoperty tax mte for
FY 2020 is SjO.683774 per $ 100 valLration, while the rate is increased $0.002497 over |Y 2020's rate, the amourt of
tax revenue gcnerated is not incrcased. Of this rate, 81.27o/. is utilized for gencral lund activities. The renraining
18.73% is used for paying the citl 's outstanding debt. 

-fhe 
general fund's portion oftotal property tax revenue for FY

202I is estinrated to be S5,805.73 8. Sales tax revenue for IrY 202 I is forccasted to bc $4,71 7,275.

The largest revenue source for thc utility fund is water sales. with projected sales of $4,087,447 in FY 20? | . Water
revenue is cxpected to increase in the future. Fiscal year 202 I will be year three o f a five-year water m eter rcplacenrent
project. Thc new meters capturc water usage with a higher degree ofaccumcy than tlre old meters. The second largest
revenue source for the water and sewer fund is sewer service charges with projected collections of$2,346,ii5 in FY
2021.

CONTACTING l llli CI'|'Y'S FI5-AN( lAl, MAN-ACENIENI'

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers. customers. investors, and creditors with a general overview
ofthe city's financcs and to show the city's accountability for the nroney it receives. lfyou have questions about this repon or
need additional finartcial information, contact the Finance Department, al the City ofPalestinc. 504 N. Queen Street, Palestine,
Texas 75801.

9



RASIC FINANC I A L S TA T E M E NTS



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

suP't uNrBItR 30. 2020

PFD(]
ASSIiTS

Cash and cash equrvalents

Reccivables. rEi ofalorvance of doublful accoLlnls

Due from other governrnenls

Du€ trom Fimary gowmlllenl
Du€ fiom compohe unit

Toralcurre assets

('r(r rnJ rn\lr rqu^rl.11\
l.lccctr.rhl.\, rcl ol rlltr\rrcc ol (l.uhr lirl r.. oum\

Norc r.c.rxbl. l.\\ !u .ur Btrl0r

I)crceLrhlc. n.l ol r(e nnrhl.(1.1.|r..hlhn
'1bl lno cu(crl rsscls

s s27:712

2j6J57
l.94p7l
4,84t,196

884,906

1,070251

21297O

1.156,007

I0,11t,057

884.906

1Ji7,566
14,766

t89.9.ll

! \

1lt I

19_577 t9-517

E tl i.l1.) zr82,il9 15,716.768 l.ill.l57

18,lt6
93.1t7

l1!057!

851.i95

98227

2.116.510

667,72)

995.961

667.7t1

251,6t1

71.975

1s5,508

5t 5ll
21,051

106,145

98,029

195.508

6,787

49,577

t.i00

.1f,1-179

l)lll.IlilulD ot 1llt.()\],s ()t; Rt,ts()lrR( us
D.lcrrcd ortll,^ls rulnrcd l{r t! \trDs

l)cl.trcd or rll(tr\s r.lrrcJ lr) ( )l'lilJs
'L,hl rlcl!rrcl irnll,n\s ol r!nrtrccs

100 Lr00

t.838..107 i,200,100 5,038.i07 961..177

16.163,89s 2],661,785 t,568,661

19.8:15.127 28.992,8411 ,18,818,075 1.6.10.{)10

28.379.616 36.175.167 64,554,8:ll 5,1'72,497

791,818 1n.540 964,188

8:6,530 189,285 1.015,815

1,6t8,178 i61,825

5:r8.0111 3i 1.11li t.189 81i l] ii5i
I,IABILITIES

Accrued \r'agcs payable

Accrued tr{crcsl rnyablc
Due rc other governmenls

DE to prilMry go!.rnment

Due Io componenl unil

Dk Nithtrl one year

Due in morc than orc year

Tolal lnbilnEs

13.1 lr.l

l1r l3l ::1

1091.657

I6.220.098

1.0095t1

5,715.808

l.t02:68
21,965,q16

285.000

tj 10687

DET'ERRID INTLO\IS OT Rf,SOUR('ES
Defetred inlbws rehted ro pensroff

Deferred anfhws related ro oPIlBs
'Iolal deferrcd innows of resources

tA6[,719 108.123 1J68,872

640917 1,17,550 ',t88.467

2,t01,666 455,673 2J57J39

I9. 76_062 1927,tO5 27,t01.r68 I664ll)1,

9.066.858 21.664.885 t0.711.74i I.9t-t,l5l
NI'T POSITION
Net inv€sim€nt m capilalassets

Restricted for

Debi servrc€

Capital proFcts

Public safety

Economi devclopmcnl

Comro y senlces
Unreslricied

Total nel fDsirion

lll,0.l7 995,961

4t,845 2 t9,979

208,r05

907,085

46258
(2,082,812) 5,273,388

_!___8q26 _q__?!ll1?13

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statemcnts
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Ij29,008
261,824

208,105

907,085

46258

1,190,5t6

$ 36574,539

1,571.738

$ 3.506.091

62t)
t.361936
527t,66t-



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITI ES

FOR TII E YI.]AII ENDED SEPTEMBI,]II JO. 2O2O

[)rogmm Revenues

Ftrncli(ms/l'r08ranL

Primary (iovemmc nt
Go\'e nrcntal Activities

Ceneral Government

Public Safety

Comnlunity Services

Community DevcloDment

Inlerest cxpcnse on long-tcrm debl
'l otal Covernmental ActiYi(ies

l:\pLrNcs

Chargcs lirl
Selviccs

Operating

Crants and

Conributions

( apital

Granls and

Clontrihulions

:l 1.979.943

8.252.405

4.004.246

1.479.321

til..l68

55t.:t56

159.149

I,l-1.109

t7 228
1.152,593

t56.760

255_762

(n).488

15.44t

:i lh:h

r6.0.17.181

tlt7 201

U5l.(,1-l l.a8l.lJl t0-r.98.1

Business-type Acliviti:s
Waler and Wastewater

Sanitation

Retail

Total Busincss-type Activitbs

'l otal Prinrary Coverruncnt

Component l'nit

200.00t)

2i.955.969 1.1.22n.1).lt 1.582.3,13 -r01.981

General RevoDrEs:

Propcrty laxes

Sales taxcs

Franchise laxcs

ln\.estmenl carnings

Gairr (hss) on sale ofcapitalassels
Mbccllancous other rerenue

Transfcrs

Total Gcncral Rcvenues and Transfers

Changc ir Ncl I'osition

Ne1 I'ositi( - bcgilnring olyear
Net I'osiliul - crrd (,1'rear

6-681.0:1

2.838,.r.+s

9.122.286

3.601.Ii.I
650.957

200.000

9.90{t,686 13.i74.127

Palcstinc l:coDomic De\ebpnlent Corp $ 1.089.176 5 190.2112 $ \

See the acconrpanying Notes to the Financial Statenlents
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Net (Expcrsc) Rclenue and C hanges il Ncl Posilbn
PrimarY Go\emmenr Conrponenl []nil

Governmenta I

Activitbs

llusiress-
l) pe

 clivilies 'lolxl
P ED('

$ (1,962,715) $
(6.487.968)

(3.672,8eO

( 1.052j9s)
(33r.368)

$ ( r.962.715) $

(6.4Ii7.968)

(i.672.896)

( t.052.i95)
(.I1.i68)

( 13.507.3,12) ( 11.507.112)

762.739

26i.750

2.639.252
'762-739

263.750

1.66i.7-ll r.665.7-ll

(13,507.312) 3.665;741 (9.811.60r)

(89E.89+)

1.047.07)

5.842.057

989.298

86,482

193.505

59.66'l

2.111$47

82.446

(r.399)

(l.l7l.ar17)

7.017.072

5.r{.12.057

9tr9.29ti

168.928

t92.t06
59.667

1.069.9,19

t6.767

1.649

I6.3{J9.72tt (2.090.600) l{.2e9. r28 t.088.165

2.882.i86

5.637.9.10

I.5 75.1,11

26..79.072 32.21'.7.012

189.47t

i.i r 6.620

S $i 213.t54.213 $ 36,674.539 $ 3,506,09t

t2.



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
BAI,IINCE SHEET

GOWRNMENTAI- FT]NDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Iun(l

Dcbl

Servicc

Iirnd

Nonmtior
Govcrnnrental

I-unds

'J'otal

Governnrcnlal

Funds

ASSE] S

Cash and cash eq$iralents

Rcstrictcd cash and cash equivrlcnts

Prcpaid itens
Receivahhs- nel ofallouance fi,r
estin tcd oncollectible accounts

Reslriotcd receivables- ne1 ol allo\\'ance for
cstimltled uncollectiblc accounls

lnvesl'nents

Restrioted investments

Due lroDt olher govcrnnrcnts

Due lroor component u[it
Totalassets

I,IABI I,I'I'I ES

Accounls pal ablc

Accrucd lages payable

Due 1() olhcr govenmrcnls

Due to conrponent unit

lixallilbililies

DEIrt.]RRtiD tNFt.O\\'S Otr ItESoITRCUS
UnavriLlble rcvcnue - propcrty taxes

UnarLlilablc rc\'enue - tlncs

1{}lal dclcrred in[o\\s ol resourccs

FI]NI) I]AI,ANCIiS
Nons pr ndsblc:

Prepaid itetrs

Restrir(cd for:
Econonlic developmenl

Dehl service

CapitalproFcts
Public safely

Conlmunily services

Committcd for:
Connnunil]'for€st
Cemetery

Conrnrunity derehpmcnt
Un{ss igned

lbtal fuod balances

\ l.lr0 S \ -100.i91
Mi.7lIl

9.li89

t0l.t1l
i89.iI6
236.7 51

\

226.It68

1.897.1-11

114,2.,1,1I

19.5',77

1.091.i96

49.6i3

750.001r

892,4-15

22.4$

70.a9lt

.lli.5] I

25r{.l.tJ

9.1.971 1.99.t.-t I.l

9tt.2l7
,1.841.t96

1.150.579

11t31.906

19.57 7

$ 7.128.974 $ 377.it6 $ 2.4iE.924 $ 9.945214

S $395.,130

25t.170

-i9.245

5.{4.900

254.6t2
,14.49Ii

ltt4
6ti6..l.15 t 57.7{9 ti.l1.t9.1

252;712

15i.0I
1:1.261) 296.9IJt

l5-r.0.1I

705.7{i { J.169 750.0t2

l2(,.t{68 9.889

907.085

236.757

i:|.0t7
4 r.845

208.105

46,258

907.085

33i.0.17

41.845

2orJ.105

46.25ti

2t2.515

209.451

6,15.965

2t1.575

209.45i

615.965

5,509.9t{t5 509.9t$

5.716.786 ilt.017 2.28 t. t75 8,i5r.00{t

$ 7.128.97,r $ 3?7.ir6 $ 2.438.924 $ 9.945.2t4

See thc acconrpanving 1.\otcs to the Financial Slatements

IJ

Tolal liabilities. de ferred inlbrvs of resources.

and fund balances

149.470 $

2.1142

5253
181



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO TIIE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Total I'und txrhnces - governmental Iimds balance sheet $ 8.351.008

Amounls repoftcd for governmentalactivilics in the statcnxrnt ofnel position are diffbrent

becausc:

Capihlass€ts used in governnrcntal activities are not currenl lmancial resources and.

thereforc, are not reported ir lhc governmental l'lrnds bahnce sheet.
('apital assets, non-deprccilbL'

Capital assets, depreciable

Dctirred outfloNs ofresources rc nol available to pa) currcnt perbd expndihrres and.

thcrclbrc. are deferred in the Bovcrnmcntal f'unds llnitDcial statenrcnls.

Dc[crred outflorvs rehted lo pcnsions

Delerr-ed outf}ows rehlcd lo OPEBs

Some rcvcnues rvill be collecled alicr )ear end but are not available soon enough to pay

current )ear's expendinres. lherefore. the)'are llol reFx)rted in the go\ernrnenlal funds

bahnce sheet-

Una\ailabF revenuc - propcrb laxes

Unavailabb revenue - finos

Some exlEnses reported in the staten1ent o[activities do nol require the use ofcwrent
lmancialresources; therclbrc. they are not reported as expnditures in governnrenial

lin1ds.

Accounts payable

Long-ternr liabilities are not due and payable in the curre perbd and. therefore, are

not rcportcd ir the frmds.

Accrued interest payabb liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities due in onc year

Noncurrent liabilitbs dre in nrore than one vear

Internalscrvice funds are used by nranagement to charge thc costs ofequipment

replacenrent- lrealth insurance. and \vorkersr compensalion to indivilual funds. Asscts

and lhbilities ofthe intemalscrvice funds are incfuded h governmentalactivilics on

lhe statement of net position.

Net positirr ol'go\crnmentalaclivitics - statement ofnet asscts

1.838.207

14.034.252

791.848

78.t t{9

296.91

453.0:l I

( 1.460.719)

(23.0,16)

(l 18.29.i )

165.267)
(1.708.00r )

(14.606.825)

658.98 t

s 8,520.326

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

l,t

Deferred inflows ofresources arc not due aDd payable in the currcnt pcriod and, therefore.

are not reFDrtable in thc golcrnDientalfunds financial statcntcnts.

Dcfcrrrtl inllrrr s rclatud tr f'cnsbns
Dcferred inlbws rehted to OPEBS



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENAES, EWENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 202O

( icncr tl
lrurxl

I)ebt
Scrvice

lrund

Total
(;o\ernmeDlal

Funds
RE!TNTII,]S

Taxes:

P ropen]-

Sales

l'ranchise

Licenses, pernits. and fees

I ntcrgove rnne ntrl
Charges 1'or sr rr iccs

Fines and lirrfe iturc s

Contributions and donations

Investment

Other revenues

Totalrevenues

I]XPENDITI]RI]S
(lurrcnt:

(icneral govc rnnre nt

P ublic safet]

Communit) scrriccs
Community dc\clopnrcnt

Debt s c rvice:
l'rincipal
I nterest and llscalcharges

'lotalexpenditurcs

li.xcess (dcllcicnc\') oI re\eotrcs

or cr (ulldcr') crpcnditurcs

ot'ItER TtNANCtNG SOtrR('US (trSES)
Insurance procceds from intpai, lcnt of capital asscts

Proceeds liom sal€ of capital asscts

Translers ifl

Transfers oul

Total other lmancing sourccs (uscs)

Net clunge in liutl balanccs

I;und bahnces - hcgiuiDg of\ear
liund balances - end ofyear

S 6.265.026

4.8.14.{68

998.970

t4i.l09
1.171.620

I18.6iI
i99.599

23

,17 R68

109.872

{0.518

60.862

t02.8t 2

13,24't

t 1.799

s 802.160 $

997.589

7.067 _tE6

5,842,057

998.970

143.109

1.581.492

t 59.1.19

460,461

102,835

86.482

59_667

t1.i6"t.519 802.r60 t.3i6.699 r6.503.-l0ri

I_ 61_16'7

7.688.69r{l

3. 5.353

738,082

2.i00
t25.320

t25_908

r.008.268

1.869.467

7.814.019

3.241.261

1,746.350

t.083.000

259.715

1.08i.000

259.715

n.109.30t I.142.7t 5 1.26t.796 I6,0t 3.8t 2

955.218 (5{0.555 } 71.90: 189.596

57.173

23.r 70

t.89i.263

(47.022)

207 -8'76

47.162

a48.86i)

57.r7i
2i 1.04(r

2.{68.877

1211.260)

i27.852

(r78.375)

r.926.584

l.8nt.8i2

1.851.95.1

t.t9.177 206.77 5 2.482.836

( r 91.078)

524-125

281.678

t.999.197

\ r 2n r.I75

2.972.432

5.378.576

$ 8,i51,008$ 5.736.786 $ ti3.047

l5

Nonma"ilr
(;{)vcnrmental

f'unds

See thc accompanyillg Notcs to the l-'inancial Statentents.



CITY OF PALESTINE, TBXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STAT-EMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMB ER 30. 202O

Net changc in lrnd bahnces - total go\.eDrmeDla I lilnds $ 2.972.432

Amounts reF)rled lbr govcrnmental activilios irr thc statement ofactivitbs arc dillcrent
bccause:

Governnrertal lunds rcport capital oullays as exfenditures. However. i[ thc slatcment of
activitics. thc cost ofthosc assels is allocated over their estimated uselirllivcs and

reporled as depreciatbn expense.

Capitaloutlay'

Deprcciatiorl

Nel eflccl ol various transactirns ilN'r)lvirul crpitxlassels (e.g., salcs. lrade-ins

disposaLs. inpairmcnts, and dooaltrN) i\ to decrease net txlsiliot.

Some revenucs willbc collected alier yctr cDd, bul arc not availabb soon cnough 10 pay

currenl )ear's expenditures and lhey arc Dot lcported in the governmcntal linds balance

sheet.

Some exfJenses reportcd in the statenrenl ofaclivilies do not require lllc use ofcurrent
lmancialresourccs an( therefore. nrc not reF)rted as expendrtures in go\ernmental

funds.

The issuancc of bn8-tenn debt (e.g.. Lxrnds, ccrtificales ofobligation. etc.) provides

currcnt linancial resources to goverDrncntal firnds, while the repaymenl ofthe principal

of k)rg-tcrm dcbt consumes the cru rrnt l_[]ancial resources ofgovcrnnrcntal funds.

Neilher lraDsaction. hou'ever- has any cffecl on net posili)n.

Principal cxpcnditures

lntercst e\pense

Change in compensated absenccs

Changc in chins andjudgenrents

Governmenlal f'unds rcpoft all payments to pension benefits as expcndiluros. Iklvev€r, in

the governmcnt-widc statement ofactivilljs the pension exTense is acluarhlt
determiDcd.

(lncrease) dccrease in net pensioD liabiliry

(lncrease) decrcase in def'effed inlorvs relalcd lo pcnsions

Increase (decrease) in def'erred outflo[s related to pensions

Governmenlal I'unds report all paynrnts to OPIrB benefits as expenditurcs. llowe\rr. in

the governnrent-wide statement ofactivilies the OPEB expense is actuarially

determined.

(lncrease) decrease in total OPEII liability

(lncrease) decrcase in deferred infl,ows rclated to OPEBs

lncrease (decrease) in det'erred oulflows related to OPEBS

Iniernalscr\,icc funds are used b) nranaScll)cnt 1(r charge the cosls ol'curlah capitalasseis

to indir idua l lirnds. Ille net re\enuc'is rcrrcrled \\ith go\em cnlalacli\ hirs.

529.770

(1.210.112)

( l{)1). t25)

6l.l(x)

t.'787

(llJ.9ll)

t.0{t3.000

(3 r.485)

197.e01)

\77.256)

2.662.t05

( r.r 97.9i5)
(1.524.141)

(er.0n8)

(t{1.959)

56.t42

Change in net Fnsition of go\ernmental activities - shtement ofactivities

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

t6

$ 2.tt82.i86



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEM BER 30, 2O2O

Fund I:und

Rttarl
Tolal

t:ntcrprisc

f unds

lnternal
Sen ice

FuDds

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equi!alcnts

P.epail ite'ns

Rec€ivables, net ofallowance for

estimated uncollectible accounts

Invcstments

Duc liom oiber funds

Tolalcurrent assets

Nonculrent Ass€ ts:
Restrtled cash and cash equivalents

Reslri:ted nvestments

Inveslmenls

Caphalassetsl

Nondeprec iable

Depreciable. net of accumrlated depreciatDn
'fotal capital assets, nrl olaccrmulated

deprecbttrn
Tolal norcurrent assels
-l'olal 

assets

I! 281) 9:l
6l l.l

542,509

6.2 t1

966.587

4 724.791

165.(rlr)

tl I 0.17

l6

29.7 t0

I l5_821

l.l6t.916
a211.(st

26

s 255.586 $ $ 225.599

lTis

5.98.1.514 596 712 60t.t l9 7.182 J45 )21.157

461219

995.961

498.443

l.,l.l6..17l

2l N76.7t7

169.t80

46].279

995.961

667.711

20.281

419.880

r-7i3.346

I l,lll.I8S
1.200,100

21,664 78s 2.11.1.6.16

I l..]]l.I90 J60.l6t l.08l.5lJ 26.864.885 r.lll.616
l5llrI s7l
3t.266.t87 1.226 t5l

619.l1l 1.08t 5tl lt 99: Il.l8 I Il l t)l{)

3582.651 16.175,193 1,562.001

DE!'I.]RRi]D OTITFI-O\\'S 0II RIiSOTIRCES
Dettrrcd outfloqs relaled to p!nsion

Dcltrrcd ourflo\\s rclatcd t{} OI,tiBs
_lolal 

deferred oulllo\\s ol rcsources

166.5%

t69.J14

5.91J

t97il
112540

189,28i 718ltI
16.t30 :i(t95 la.l Elr

LIAB ILITIES
Current Li.bilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued \$ges payable

Accrued intcrest payable

Due lC) other funds

Customer deposh
I-on8-tcrm debt - due within onc year

'lolalcurre liabilities

Norcurrerl l-ilbilities:
Long-lerm debt - due in morc than one !,car

'I-ota 
I nonc urrent liabilnts

Totalliab iries

4ll.l7t
48.508

2lotr
26

245,285

t.009.61 I

85 t,8t5
5r.513

23.05{

26

2.{5285

r,0095 n

414. t ,17

2 978

6.497

11

25-11,15

9,708

184654)

i.757.655 4t7 lli 6 51-1 I I31 I.1 120fal9

5 66r.136 8l a.7l i 74i 80tt l 6ll27l
5.661.1i(, 81.671 5.715.808 r.6l l,l7l
1.4)1.1t)t ,1gii.797 6.5,1,1 '7.921 t32 :033 481

DtrI.'URRIID lNFt,O\l',.S OI taIiSOURCIS
Deferrcd rflo!\ s related () pcnsron

Dclcrred r lo\!s relaled to OPFBs
Toirl defeffcd infloNs of rc$urces

lt r..188

t0.901

t6061
108-123

t47550 617.881

NET POSITION
Nct investment in capilalassels
Restflctcd fbr debt servrce

Reslflcled for capital proEcls

lolalNel Posirion

t8.t21.t90
995_961

219.979

4.4t2.887

21564,885

995,96r

2\9.919

5273.388

Jlt 709 t6.9({

.1611 1(,I

265.916

$ 21.7520t7 $ 726.087

455673 617,88r

I Olt I i l.l ft95.l9l

591.575 (216.lrl

See lhe accorrpanl.ing Notcs to the Financial Statentenls

t7

$ 1.676.109 $ 28,1542E $ 6s8.981



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENAES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTBMBEII30, 2O2O

Ilnlr rpri\e l Und\
'linal

Ilntcrprise

IirndsIirnd
Sanitatirn

F'und

Rctail

t und

Internal

Servicc

Funds

OPURAI It\-G RE\rENtrEs
Ch ryes ior scrviccs

Other opcrating revenue
'l olal operaling rcvcnucs

OPI]RA1'ING EXPENSES
( osl ofsates and serviccs

I'ersonnel

[)e prec il:tl bn
'lbtal operaling expcnses

Opcraling inconre (loss)

NON.OPERATIN(; REVENTIT]S (EXPENSES)

lnvestment eamings

lnterest erpnse and frscalcharges

l-oss o salc ofcapitalassels
Gain on impairment ofcapital assets

Olher non-ope rating revcnues
'lotal non-operating revcnues (expenses)

Income (loss) before conlributi(nrs and translers

-llansfers 
irr

-lransfers (out)

Change in ne1 positixr

Nct posilion - begiming of ye rr
Not fosilion - cnd of)ear

9.D2.2ti(] 3.6t)t.It't

$ 47l.l7l
179,',746

65Ops7

$ t3.t93.{t73

11t0.554

.1t,1.520

41.0t0
$ 9.t21.5 t 8

768

s l.60l.ltil th

13.374.427 ,155.51{)

1.709.5.19

1.09 t 9t6
I.72(J.629

2.728.0.r6

76.5t6

15.265

5.7t 2.9U I

2.168.462

t,817.487

275.116

I I l_59-.r

I71 .lll

i87.101

6.522,10,t s.l9.tit7 i87.009 9.7511.9-10 658.8,11

75 t..i67 26i,9,18 j.6t5.497 (203.3 r4).1.600.1lt2

55.591

060.9i0)
(r.199)

100.000

2.t.lilxr

.172

2-055

(2.698)

2-500

1.857

82.446

( 163.628)

0.-199)

13.872

200.000

(40.t68)

35.660

45.i8i

91.262 16.172 I t,.2el 10.t375

2.691.444 787.519 265.tt05 i.746.7t3n ( r62.439)

(675.882) 0.405.491)

75.200

( l65.l7l )

7i.l0r)
2.l16.lrl

178_375

( 130.868)

l.()17.561

21.731,45s

(617.955)

1.3,14.0,12

175.534

t,500,575

t.575.14t

26,579.o72

( l r4.932)

7',73.913

$ T,752.01',7 $ 726,087 $ 3,676,109 $ 28,154,213 $ 658,981

See the accompanyillg Notes to the Financial Statcrnents
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CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Puge I of 2)
I-OR ITIE YEAR ENDED SEP'I'EMBER 30. 2O2O

l. lerpri\c liunds

Irund

Sanitation

Iinrd
Itetail
Fund

lbtal
Enlerpri\c

f-unds

Cash l'lons from Opcmting Actir ities:
Rsceipts fiom cuslonrcrs

Rcceipls t_rom interfund charges

Other rcceipts

Pavments 10 supplicrs and serr'ice providers

Pa)mcDts to emph)ces lor salarics and lxncfits
Pa)monts 1o other lilnds for serviccs plovilcd
Intclnalactivity - paynients from othcr fihds
lntcroalaclivity - pa]lllents to othcr funds

Net Cash Pmvided (tlsed) b) Operiting -\ctivitics

Cash Fk,rys fflrm Noncapital Finsncing Activilics
_l 

ralNlcr tiom other Iintds

Tr^nslar to other funds

^-et 
Cnsh Provided (lised) b! ,\*oncapital

Financing Activities

Cash l'k,Ns from Capital and Rclatcd
FinBncing Artivitics:
Principal paid on capital debt

lnteresl and f,scalcharges paid m cilpilal debt

Procecds ltom capital debt

Acquisition and constrlctbn of capitrl nsscls

Proceeds from sale ol'capital asscls

Insurance proceeds

Capilnl grant contribulion

n-et Cash Provided (tlsed) by Capilal and
Related Financing ..\ctiviti€s

Cash l.'h$s fmm ln\'csting.\ctir itics:
L)tcrcsl on iDvestnlcnts

ProcecLIs lrom salcs alrd ntuturitics ol il]vcslnlents
Purchr\c of ilvesllncDls

Nc ( ( ash I'ro|ide d (t sc d) ht ID\ csling Acti\ ilics

Nct Incro:rse (Drrrcrsc) in CAsh
and ( a\h Equi\alcnl\

Cash and cash cquivslents at bcginning ofyear
Cash and cAsh equiyalcnts at cnd of)ear

Ending ( ash and Cash l,quilalents:
llnrcstricled cash and cash equ;!alents

Restlicl(jd cash and cash equivalents

xi 8.849.505 $ i.686.302 $ 620.602 l; 13.156-409 $

412.162

4 t.0 t0
(229.104t(2.4-', .157)

(2.021.203)

(67.873)

26

(2.? l5-009)
(74.80r )
(7ri.862)

(278_527)

(76-2-llt)

(5.424.691)

(2.172.252)

(1,16.735)

26

126)(26) l10.li2l)
I 19 t9lJ ti ll 60i 165.827 i.4t2.72t) lt{i.lt.l7

(675.882) (t..105.49,1)

75.200

( l6r.,17l)
15.200

12.246.8471

t7tt.i75
3{).868)

(675.882) ( 1.405.194) (90,211) 12.171.6471 J7 i07

(920.001)

( r64.125)

(1.037.499)

(166,947)

(lle.l59)
(.t t..lt{6)

( I.7,i{.9t t)
( 1.399)

( 1.7.11.216)

( l--199)

ll.ti72
200.000

166.637)

-i5.660
55.747ll.l72

( r r7,498)

(2,822-)

2.50;
200.000

r t.i72 ( 12-1.t 5i) (2.733.219) (: r5.e7i)

55.59t

t.7l 1.056

(2.210.202',)

2l It00

55 t.718

2.055

202.t28

82.116

l-464.902
(2.270.101)

(501.55-i) 576.5t8 204.1[i-] 27'1.116

529..123 255.586 785.009 (l l{.611)

Dt.719 22t.779 l.l0.ll0
$ 75t.202 $

5 li

xi 25s.s86 $ 1.006,788 $ 225.599

s 255.586 $2n6.923

461.279
542.5{)9 $ 225.599

464,279

$ 75t.202 $

See the accorrrpanying Notes to the Financial Statements

$ 255.586 $ r.006.7{{t s 225_599

InleInrl
Scr\ iL'c

I:Lrrrds

(1.620..1-'18)

l9



CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 2 oJ 2)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 202O

EnlerP sc l;un(ls

Watcr &

Iiurd
Sanitation

Fund

l{e1lil
l\Ir(l

Total

Ilnlerprise

I'unds

lntemal
Scrvicc

F\nds

l{rconcili,rlio'r ol Olcrrting lncomc (l.ors)
lo Nc1 ( rsh l'r)\ idcd hY ODcrnting .-\clir ilir\

Operating ircomc (loss)

Adjustmcnls lo rcconcile operatinS incomc (loss)

to nct cash pm\.ided by operating activitics:
l)epreciiltirn
(lncrcasc) l)ccrease in Operating Assels and

[)eltrrcd Outtlows of Resources:

Accounts receivable

Prcpaid itenrs

Duc fronr other funds

Dcf'cff cd outflows o[ resources

Incrcasc (Dccrease) in Current Liabilities and

Dcl'eard lnflows of Resources:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics
(:uslomer deF)sits

Duc to other go\€rnmentj

I)ue to other fimds

Dc ltrrcd inJlo'ws of resources

Net Ca-s h Pmvidcd (trsed) by Openting Actif ities

NONCASII FINANCING, CAPITAL, An.D
INVT]S'I'I NG ACTI!'ITIES:
Noncash acquisition of oapital assets under bases
'lbtal noDoash financing, capital and

in\rsting aclivities:

$ 2.600.t82 $ 75r.367 $ 263.948 $ 3.615.497 $. (203.3t4)

t.720.o9 15.165 I I 1.59-',1 t.877..187 187..t01

(266-91.1)

426

(2 r0.426)

426

(26)

390.519

( r.758)

9.tt2
35.ll3 (18.610)

\26)
i8,591I t7.170

(259.987)

(5.867)

223.61i

i4.755

( 102.257)

( I j.582)
l6

(78.8r 

'
(x.li5)

4.436

(441..059)

(5.867)

(28.3is)

26

214.487

I4l.0l2

(40.rJ21)

(l10.806)

$ 4.329-298 $ 817.60,1 $ )6s.827 S 5_412.729 $ 183,847

1, ! 5 ti $ 592.496

sISt $ 592..196

See the acconpanying Notes to the F'inancial Statements

l0



Ctrv op ParnsrtNr, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

I. STIMMARY OI- SIGNI}'ICANT ACCOTIN't'tNC POLICIES

..\. Reporting l..Dtil\

The City ofPalestine, Texas (the City) was incorporated in l87l . The City has operated under a "Home Rule Charter" wlrich
provides for a Council-Manager form ofgovernment.

The City Council is the principal legislative body ofthe City. 'fhe City Manager is appointed by a majority vote ofthe City
Council and is responsible to the Council for the administration of all the affairs of the City. The City Mauager is also
responsible lor the appointment and renroval of department directors and employces. supervision and control ofall (lily
departments, ard preparation ofthe annuat budset.

The City provides the follorving serviccs: genelal governrnenl, cornnrunity developnrent, fire and rescue, airpofi, code
cnforcement, librar), maintenance. nrunicipal court. policc. strcets and drainage. rvater distribution, waslewatcr
collection/treatnlent, sanitation, and retai l.

The City is an independent political subclivision ofthe State of'[exas, governed by an clected council and a nrayor, and
considered a primary govemment. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements
have been prepared based on considerations regarding the potential lor inclusion ofother cntities, organizations, or functions
as part ofthe City's financial reporting entit). the Palestine Economic Development Corporation (PEDC), although lcgally
separate. is considered pan ofthe reporting entity. No other etrtities have been included in the City's reporting enrity.
Additionally, as thc Cit), is considered a primary government lor financial reporting purposes, its activities are not
considered a part of any other governnental or othcr type of reporting entity.

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion ofother entities, organizations, or functions in the City's financial
leporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles. These same criteria are
evaluated in considering whether the City is a part ofany other gover nrentalorother type ofreporting entity. The overriding
elenrents associated rvith prescribed criteria considered in detennining that the City's financial reporting entity status is that
ofa primary governrrent arc: it has a separatel),elected governing bod;'. it is legally scparate, and it is fiscally independenl
of other state and Iocal governments. Additionall-,-. prescribed critcria under generally accepted accounting principles
include considerations pertaining to organizatiors for which the plirrary governmc'nt is financially accountable and
considerations pertaining to organizirtioDs lor rvhich the nalure and significance of their relationship with tht prirnaly
government are such that exclusion woul<1 cause the repodiDg elrtity's financial statenlcnts to be misleading or inconrplete.

Discretel) Presentcd Clomponent Ullil

The criteria for including organizations as conrponent units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100
of GASB's ('orlifcalion of'Go\)erntnental ..lccotnling dnd f'itlancial Repot ting Starrlarlr. include whether:

the organizalion is legally separatc (can suc and be sued ir their own name)
the City holds the corporate powers of the organization
the City appoints a voting majority ofthe organization's board
lhe Cily is able to impose its will orr thc organization
the organization has th€ potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

Based upon thc aforemenlioned criteria, the City has one conlponent unit.

The Palestine Economic Developmcnt Corporation, Inc. (PEDC) has been included in the repoding entity as a discretely
plesented component unit. PEDC is a gc,vernmental entity that promotes the creation of new and expanded indushy and
manufacturing activity within the City. PEDC'S board of directors is appointed by and serues at the discretion ofthe City
Council. City Council approval is required for the annual budget and the issuance of any debt. In the event of dissolution,
any assets of PEDC will be transfcrred to the Citv. PEDC makes monthly payments to the City for payroll and other
administralive costs. ln addition, during the year ended September 30. 2020. PEDC also paid $ I33,674 on behalfofthe City
for various project costs including appraisals, engineering fees, and park improvemenls. Separate financial statements of
the PEDC may be obtained from the Irinance Depanment ofthe City.

2t



Crrv or Palrsrnn, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

ST]PTEMBER 3().202O

I. STIMMARY OF SIGNII-IC]ANT ACCOT]NTING PoI,ICIES, CONTINT]1]I)

lJ. Financial St tcnrctlt l'rcscDtfltioll

These finaucial statements include implementation of Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (CASB) Statement No.
34, BrLsic Finonciol Slatenents - and \lanagenent's I)iscussion an.l Anuljsit; - fot'Stqte and l-ocal Goverumenls. Certain
requiremenls ofthe statement include the follorving:

A Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the City's overall financial
position and results of operations.

Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the ('ity's activities

A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds

GASB Staternent No. i4 established standards lbr extemal financial reporting t-or all state and local governnrental entities.
which includes a statement of net position and a statenlent of activities. It requires the classification of net position into
three components: net investment in capital assets. rcstricted, and unrestricted.'lhese classifications are defined as follows:

Net lnvestnrellt in Capital Assets - This con]ponent ofnet position collsists ofcapital assets, including restricted
capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the oulstanding balances of any bonds, nrortgages,
notes. or othcr borrowirlgs that are attribulable to the acquisition, constrnction. or improvemcnt ofthose assets.

Restricted - This component of net positiorl consists of constrairlts plared on net position use through external
constraints inrposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors. contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or constraints imposed hy law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - 'l his component ofnet posilion coIsists ofnet position that do rot meet the definition of"restricted"
or "invested in capital assets, net ofrclated debt".

(1. (;overnmelrt-Witlc anrl Funtl linancial Statellronts

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information about the City as a lr'hole. These statenrents include all activities ofthe primary governrnent and its componenl
units. For the most part, lhe effect of interfund activity has been removed fronr these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supponed by taxes and intergoverlmental revenucs, are reported separately fronr business-type

activities, which rely to a significant extent on faes and charges for support.

The statement of activitios presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of the

business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governnrental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are spccifically associated with a program or function and, thercfore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
I'rogram revenues i[clude charges paid by the recipients ofgoods or serviccs offered by the programs and grants that are

restricted to meeting the operational or capital requircments of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as

program reverues. such as taxes and investment eamings, are presented as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental

funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial slatements. ln the fund

financial statcments, the accounts ofthe City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is colsidered a separate

accounting entity. Tlre operations ofeach fund are accounted for with a separatc set ofself-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabitities. fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The following is a description of
the various fuDds:
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Crry or PursrrNn, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30. 2O2O

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN"I' ACCOT]NTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

C. Governnrent-Wide and Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Governmcntal Funds
Covernmental funds are those funds through rvhich most goyernllrcntal functions are typically financed. The proprietary
funds used by the City include the followins:

(icneral Funtl
The general fund is used to account lor all financial transactions not ploperly includable in othel funds. The principal
sources ofrevenues include local property taxes, sales and fianchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures,
and charges for services. Expenditures include general govenrment, public safety, community services, and community
devclopment.

SDecial Revenue Funds
'lhe special revenue tinds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that ale legally restricted to
expenditures for specilicd purposes. The special revenue [unds are oonsidered nonmajor funds for reporting purposes.

I)rl)l Ser'\ ice Fund
Thc debt service fund is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all general obligation bonds and
other long-term debt ofthe City. The printary source ofrevenue for debt service is local propeny taxes. The debt scrvice
fund is considered a nra-ior fund for reporting purposes.

( rtlital Proiects l'unds
The capital projects funds are used to account for the expenditures of resources accumulated from sales tax revenues
anrl the sale of bonds and related interest earnings for capital improvemenl projects. The capital projects funds are
c,,nsidcred nonmajor funds for reponin! purposes.

ProDrietarv Funds
Proprietary funds are usecl to account for activities that are sirnilar to thosc often found in the private sector. All assets,
liabilities. equities, revenues! expenses, ancl lransfers relating to the goyernnrent's business activities are accounted for
through proprietary funds. 'l-he measuremcnt ibcus is on determination ofnet income. financial position, and caslr flows.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating rcvenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues include
charges for services. Operating expenses include costs of materials, contracts. personnel, and depreciation. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenucs and expenses. Proprietary funds follow
GAAP prescribed by the Covcrnmental Accounting Standards Board and all Financial Accounting Standards Board's
standards issued prior to Novernber 30. 1989. Subsequent to this date, the City accounts for its enterprise funds as presented
by GASB.

The proprietary funds used by the City include the following

l.)n(cr'yrrisc l.'unds
'fhe enterprise funds are used to account for the operations that provide water and wastewater collection, wastewater
trealment operations, solid waste collection and disposal, and retail mall operations. The services are financed and
operated in a manner similar to privatc business enterpriscs \lhere the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses including deprcciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis will be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 'fhe water and wastewater fund, sanitation fund, and retail fund
are corsidered major funds f,-rr repofling purposes.

Additionally, the government repofis the lollowing fund types

Internrl Se ce Funds
lnternal service funds account for services provided to other departmeDts or agencies of the government, or to other
Sovernments, on a cost reimbursement basis. These funds account for equipntent replacement programs, unemploynrent
insurance, and employee health insurance.

2l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

SEPTEIlIBER 30, 202O

l. SUMMARY Ot- SICNIt.'tCANT  .C]COUNTtNC POt,tCItS, CON'I|NtrEt)

('. (;overnment-\\1itlr :rnd l.\rnd Financial Statenrenls. ( ontinued

Neither. fiduciary funds nor component units that are fiduciary in nature, are included in govemnrent-wide financial
statements.

D. l\Ieasurement liocus rnd Basis ofArcounting

The government-wide statement ofnet position and statement ofactivities, component units, and all proptietary funds are
accounted for on a flow of economic resources mcasurement focus, accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement
focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations ofthese activitics are included on the balance sheet. Under
this basis of accounting, equity consists of nel position. and operating statcments present increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e.. crpcnscs) in tolal nel position.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is deternrined by its measurcnrent focus. All
governmental funds arc accounted for using a current financial resources nreasurement focus. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements ofthese funds
present ircreases (i-e-. revenues and other'financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in
net current assets.

The City utilizes lhe nrodilied accrual basis ofaccounting in the governmental furds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the accountirg period rvhen they are susceptible to accrual (i.c., when they are
measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the transaclion can be determined and available means
collectible rvithin the current period or soon enough thereafler to pay liabilities ofthc cunent period. For this purpose, the
City considers rerenues available ifthey are collected rvithin 60 days ofthe end olthe current period. Revenues susceptible
to accrual include charges for services and interest on tenrporary investments. Grants and similar items are recognized as

revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by provider have been nrct.

Propedy taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current period, are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual a[d, thus, have been recognizcd as revenues ofthe current period. Other receipts and other laxes
become measurable and available when cash is received bl the government and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Under modified accrual accounting, expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred,
ifmeasurable, except for interest on general long-ternr debt, which is recognized rvhen due.

The statements of net position, statements of activities. and financial statements of proprietary funds are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of accor.urting, revenues are reco-enized in the accounting period in which
they are eamed, and expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurrcd.

Gcnerally. the effecl of intcrfund activity has been eliminated from the govcrnnrcDt-widc financial statcnrcnts. InterfuDd
services pror ided and used are not elirlinated in thc proccss ofconsolidation.

[,. Assets. Liabilitics. I)cfcrred Outflo$s/lnflo$s arrrl \et Position or Fun<l l]alancc

l. Deposits and lnvestments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with
original maturities ofthree months or less from the date ofacquisition.

The City maintains a pooled cash and investments account. Each fund whose monies are deposited in the pooled cash and

investment account lras equity therein, and interesl earned on the investment ofthese monies is allocated based upon relative
equity at the previous month end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

SEP-I'EN'IBER 3O.2O2O

I. Stl Nl l\'L\ RY OF SIGNII.'ICANT.{('(lOUNl'lNG POI,ICIES. CONTINIIED

E. Assets, Liabilities, Dcfcrred Outllows/lnflorvs anrl Net Position or Fund Balance. Clontinued

l. Deposits and Investments, Clontinued

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, ltair l ulre Measuenenl and Applic.rllor, investmcnts are recorded at fair
value. Consistent with GASB StateDent 72, the City categorizes its fair value measurements within tlre fair value hierarchy.
Thc hielarchy is bascd on the valuation inputs used to mcasure the lair value ofthc asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices
ill aclive markets tbr identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant othe. observable inputs; Levcl ii inputs are significant
u nobsewable inputs. A detail of thc fair value h ierarchy of investmcnts held bl the City is disclosed in Note lll to the
financial statenents.

'lhe City has adoptcd a written invcstment policy lcgarding thc ilvcstnent of its funds as defincd in the Public lrundi
Irvcstmert Act. Chapler 2256. I cxas Covemmental Code. ln sunrr|rr'!. the City is authorizcd to invest in the follorving:

Direct obligations ofthe [-T.S. 6overnmenl
\4one) nlarkel rrutual firnds lhal rneel cerlairr crileria
Statewide investment pools
tl.S. and State guaranteed dcbt

- ( crtilicates oI l)eposit (CDs)
- Collateralized bank accounts
- Obligations ofthe State of'Iexas

2. Rcceilables anrl Pavahles

'l'ransactions between funds thal are representativc of lending/borrowing affangenlcnts outstanding at the end ofthe yeal
arc relerrcd to as either' "interfund leceivables/payables" (i.e., the current portion ol interfund loans) or "advances to/from
othcr funds" (i.e.. the non-currert portion ofinterhrnci loans). All other ortstanding balances between funds are reported as
"duc to/from other firnds" in the fund financial statcnrents. lftlre transactions are betvveen the prinrary governnrent and its
conlporcnt unil. these receivables and payables alc classified as "duc to,/from conrp(nrent unit/primary government."

Any residual balanccs outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
govcrnment-wide fi nancial stateme ts as "internal halances."

The city provides for an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon the anticipated collectability ofeach specific account,
as deternrined by experience. All lrade receivables are sho\M net ofan allowance for uncollectibles.

Propetty taxcs ale levied during October of each ycar and are due upon receipt of the City's tax bill. Taxes lrccome
delinqucnt, with an enforceable licn on property. on |ebruary I of the following year. Revenue from taxes assessed is
rccorded as deferred inflorvs of rcsources on October L The deferred inflo$,s of rcsources from taxes are then recognized
as rcvenue during the year as the taxes are actually received. All delinquent propeny taxes receivable are assets ofthe
gcneral and debt service funds.

Thc costs ofgovernmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures rvhen the related liability is incurred (i.e., the
purchase method). Certain payments lo vendors reflecting costs applicable to hrture accounting periods (i.e.. prepaid
expenditures) are recognized as expenditures when utilized. Prcpaid itenrs are acoo nlcd for using thc consumption mcthod.
In governmental funds, reported inventories and prepaid itenrs do not represert available spendable resources and are,
therefore, equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

SEP'TEMBER 30, 2O2O

I. StINIII,{RY OT' SIGNIFICA\I',\('COTINTING POI,ICIES. CON'I'INTIED

E, Assets, l,inbilities, Deferred Outflorvs/lnflorvs and Net Position or Fund Balancc, Continued

4. Capital Asscts

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infiastructure assets (e.9., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governfiental or business-type activities colunrns in the government-wide
financial statements. In accordance rvith GASB Statement No. 34, inlrastructure has been capitalized retroactively. Capital
assets are defined by the goverrrnrent as assets with an initial, individual cost ofmore than $5.000 and an estimated useful
life in excess ofone year. Such assets are recolded at historical cost or estimated historical cost ifpurchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets, donated works of art, and similar items, as well as capital assets rcceived in a service corrcession
arrangemcnt are reported at acquisitioll value rather than fair value. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects arc coDstrucled- Amortization llotl) assets acquired with capital Ieases is repofied as depreciation in
proprielary funds.

lnterest costs incurred in connection rvith construction ofenterprise fund capital assets are capitalized when the effects of
capitalization materially impaci the fi nanc;al statements.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or nraterially €xtend the asset's life
are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment ofthe primarl govemment, as well as the component units, arc depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following estinrated useful lives:

l'lslinratcd

tIsclirl l.ile
Assel l)cscription t in l ecrs

Buildin-cs

Impro\cmcnts
Machincry & cquipment
Water & se t\'tr systcm

In fra-s l ructu rc

5. Rcstrictcd Assets

The balances ofrestricted assets at September 30,2020 are as follows

2t)-45

l5-30
,l-35

l5-30
30-50

Golcrnmcntal
Acti\ities

Busincss-t)'pe

Acti\ities 'Iotal

Customcr deposits

Dcbt scr\ice
Spccial re\amrc purposes

Capital prolccts

Total rcstrictcd asscts

s s 245.285
995.96 |

$ 245,285

t ,37 3,27 7

1.2 t8.961
260.839

37',7 .3 | 6

1.218.96 I

41.845 218.99,1

$ 1.638.122 $ r.460,2,10 s 3.098.362

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first.
then unrestricted resources as needed.
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I. ST]MN,IARY OI, SIG N I FICANl' ACCO t 1N'TING POI,I('IES. (]ON]'INt]ET)

E. .lsscts, Lithilities, Deferre(l Ou tflo\r s/l n flon's rnd \et Position or Fund Balrncc. Continucd

6. Compcnsnted Employcc Absences

It is the City's policy to pernit employees to accumulate carned but unused vacation, sick pay benefits, and compensatory
tinle. Amounts accumulaled. up to cenair anrounts. rnay be paid to employees upon termination ofemployment, rctirement,
or death. The estimated amount ofcompensation for vested or accumulated vacalion. sick, and compensatory time that are
not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reponed as long-term Iiabilities on the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. 'fhe estirnated amount ofcompensation is calculated using the
pay rates in effect at September i0, 2020 and includes additional amounts for the City's share ofsocial security and Medicare
laxes.

7. l,ong- I crnr Obligrti('ns

ln the qovernnleDt-wide financial slatenrents, long-ternr debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicablc governnrenlal activities slatenrent of nct position. 'Ihe long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable,
capital leases payable, pension liability, OPEB liability. and accrued conrpeDsated absences.

l.ong-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the frnld financial statements until due. The debt
proceeds arc reported as othcr financing sources, net ol'the applicable premiunr or discount, atrd payments ofprincipal and
interest are reported as expenditures. ln lhe governmental funds. issuance costs. even if withheld from tlle actual net
proceeds receivcd, are reponed as debt scrvice expenditurcs. Horvever. claims and.iudgments paid from governnrental funds
are repofted as a liability in the fund financial statenrents only for the portion expected to be financed fronr expendable
available fi nancial resources.

Long-term debt and other obligatiors financed b1. proprictary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds. For
proprietary funtls, bond prenriunrs aDd discounts are defeued and anrortized over the life of the bonds using the effeclive
itlterest method. ifnTaterial. lssuancc cosls are expensed as incurred.

'l'he propcrty tax rate is allecated eaclr year betu'een the general and dcbt sen'ice lunds. The full amount estimated to bc
rcquired for dcbt service on general obligation debt is provided by thc tax along with interest earned in the debt service
litnd. Thorrgh a portion ofthe general ot)ligation debt was dilectly related to the purchase ofwater and sewer infrastructure,
the debt seryice expenditures are inclutled in the govefllmental fund financial statenrents as they are expected to be paid
frorn debt service tax revenues instead of lvater systern reve[ues-

Assels acquircd under the tenrls ofcapital leases are recorded as liabilitics and capitalized in the govemment-wide financial
statements at the lesser of tlre preselt value of net nrininrum lease payments or fair value at inception of the lease. In the
year of acquisition, capital lease transactions are recorded as othe[ financiog sources and as capital outlay expenditures in
the general tLnd. Lease payments reprcsenting both principal and iDterest are recorded as expenditures in the general fund
ttpoll pa)lnent \\ith an appropriate reduclion ofprincipal recorded in the goventnrcnt-wide financial statenrents.

li. Defcrrc(l ()utflo*s/lnflorys of Rcsrrulccs

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes repon a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statenrcrt element, deferred oulflorvs of resources, represents a consumption of net
position thal applies to a future period(s) and so will not he recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The City only has two items that qualify for repoding in this category. l'hey are the deferred outflows related to
pension and deferred outflows related to OPEBS reported in the government-wide statement of net position and the
proprietary funds statement of net position. These deferred outflo\vs are the difference between expected and actual
economic experience, thc difference irl actuarial assunrptions, the difference bellveen projected and actual investment
earnings, and contributions subsequent to the measurerncnt date. 'l-hese amounts are deferred and amortized over the
actuarial determ ined recognition period.
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I. ST]NIN,IARY O}.'SI(;NIIII(',\N'I A(]COT]N I'IN(; P()I,I('IES. CONTINT]IiI)

l'1. ,\ssets, Liabilities, Dcfcrred Outflorr s/l n llou s anrl Nct Position or Funrl llalance, Continucrl

8, Deferred Outflo\rs/lnflons of Resources. ( ontinued

ln addition to liabililies, the statenrent offinancial position rvill sometimes repon a separate section for defcrrcd inflorvs of
resources. This separate financial statement elerlent, deferred inflows ofresources, represents an acquisition ofnet position
that applies to a future period(s) and so rvill not be recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenue) until that tirne. The City
has two types of deferred inflows. Unavailablc revenue, which only arises on a modified accrual basis of accounting, is

comprised of property taxes and municipal coult revenue and is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet.
These amounts are defcrred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the arnoults become available.
Deferred inflorvs relaled to pension and OPEBs represent the differencc betrveen expected and actual cconomic experiencc.
difference in actuarial assumptiors, and differerce between projected and actual investment earnings.'l-hese anrounts are
deferred and anronized ovcr tlre actuarial deternrined recognition period.

9. Fund Btl:rnct

In the fund financial statcments, governrrlenlal firnds report fund balance categorized as nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance - represents anrounts that cannot be spenl because they are either not in spendable fomr
(such as inventory ol prepaids) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal ofa permanent
fund).

Restricted fund balance - represents anrornls with external constrairlts placed on the use of tlrese resources (such as

debt covenants, grantors, other governnrents, etc.) or imposed by cnabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - represents amounts that can only be used lor specific purposes imposed by an ordinance
ofthe City's highcst level of decision-nraking authority, the City Council. Committed resources cannot bc uscd for
any other pulpose urless the City Council lenroves or changes the specilied use by the sanre type ofaction previously
used to conrnrit lhose amounts.

Assigned fund balance - represents anounts the City intends to use for specific purposes as expressed by the City
Council. The Cit), Council may also assign lund balance when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between
estimated revenue and appropriations in tlre subsequent year's appropriated budget. This is the residual classification
for all governrnental funds other than thc general fund.

Unassigncd fund balance - represents thc residual classification for the general fund or deficit balances in other
funds.

The City's minimum fund balance policy targets thal fund balance shall be mainlained at a level of25 percent ofgeneral
fund expenditures for the general fund.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which rnore than one fund balance classification could be used, the City
considers the expenditure to be made from the most restrictive classification first, then the next-most restricted category.

10. Net Position

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a pal1icular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds)

and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the anrounts to report as restric(ed net position and unrestricted net position

in the governnrent-uide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flolv assurlption must be made about the order in which
the resources are considered to be applied. lt is the City's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted

before unrestricted net position is applied.
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l. suNIl\tARl' ol' st(;N I I lcANl A( couN I IN(; poLtCIES. CONTINt[it)

E. Asscts, Liabililics, Deferred Outflorvs/lnflorvs and Net Position or Fund Balance, Continued

I l. Estimates

'l'lre preparation offinancial statements. in conlormity with generally accepted accounting principles. requires management
1() rnake estinrates and assumptions that affect the reported anrounts ofasscts and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the datc olthe financial statements and the reported amotnts ofrevenues and expcnditures/expenses
durirg the reporting period. Actual results could differ fron lhose estinrates.

12. Ilncunrbr-unces

llncumbrance accounting, under rvhich pulchase orders, contracts, and other conrnritments fbr the expenditure ofmonies are
recorded in order to reservc tlrat portion of the applicablc appropriation, is e[rpioyed in govemmental funds. Howeyer,
encumbranccs in the governmental funds lapse at the end ofeach year and are re-budgeted during the next fiscal year.

13. Pensions

For purposes of nreasuring the net pension liabilit), deferred outllolvs of resources and delerred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pcnsion expense, information about the l-'iduciary Net Position ofthe Texas Municipal Retiremcnt System
(TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been dctermined on the sane basis as they
are reported by'IMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions arc recognized in the period tlre compensation is reported for
the emplo)cc. u,hich is u,hen contributiorls are legally duc. Benefit paynlents and relunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit lerms. lnvestments are reponed at fair value-

l{. Othcr Posl- l lnr ploymenl l}cllefits

The City participates in a defined benefit group-term life insrrance plan, both for current and retired employees, administered
by the Tcxas l\4unicipal Relirement System (TMRS). Infornration regarding the (li1),'s total OPEB liability is obtained from
TMRS through a rcport prepared for the Citl by TMRS' consulting actuary. Cabriel, Roeder. Smith & Company (GRS), in
compliarce with CASB Statemcnt No. 75. ln addition, the City administers a single-employer defined benefit plan, known
as the City Retiree llealth Care PIan, that allows retirees to pay their prenrium for continuation ofthe rnedical and dental
insurance coverage. lnformation regarding the City's total OPLIB liability fbr this plan is obtained direqtly from CRS, which
is also the City s consulting actuary. The City reports the liabilities for thesc plans on the government-wide and proprietary
fund fi nancial slatcments.

II. STEIVARDSIIIP, ('ONIPLIAN('1.], AND AC]('OT]N'IAI]I I,I1 T'

A. Bu(lgets

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) except the capital
proiects funds. rvhich adopt a project length budget. The following special revenue funds have legally adopted budgets:
tourism & civic center, municipal couft security, nrunicipal court technology, nrunicipal court child safety. potice confiscated
mone). sales ta\ repairs and maintenance. and special events. ln addition, thc debl servicc fund has a legally adopted budget.
The special revenue funds are not considered departments for budgetary purposes. The original budget is adopted by the
City Council prior to the beginning ofthe year. Budgetary control is established at the fund level. The City Managcr is
autlrorized to transfer appropria(ions within a depadment without seeking the approval of City Council provided the transfer
does not result in a net increase in total appropriatiorrs. Appropriations lapse at the end ofthe year, excluding capital proiect
budgets. Supplenrental budget appropriations were made for the year ended.

B. Dcficit Fund Bfllance/Net PositioD

For the year ended September 10, 2020, deficit net position of$273,736 was repo(ed in the health insurance fund
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t. DfI.\tt.ut) \oTES oN .\1.1. Ft \DS

A. Deposits and lnvestnrents

At Seplember 30, 2020, thc C'ity had the lbllorving cash and investnents

Primary Gorernment
Cash and cash equiralents

Restricted cash and cash cqui\alents
lnvcslmcnts

Restricted investments

Total primary government

$ 1.070.251

{t53.595

10,780.780

2,146,540
14,851.166

Co poncnt []nit
Cash and cash equilalents

Tolal primiuy government

l .:i 3 7.5 66

1..r.r7.566

Total Caslr aDd ln\c!lmenls It !.! !!Jll
Custotlitl crcdit titk In thc case ofdeposits. this is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, thc City's deposits may not
be returned to it. ln compliance with state statutes, the City's investment policy requires funds on dcposit at the depository
bank to be fully collateralized by securities. As of Septembcr 30, 2020, the City and its component unit's deposits were
covered by Federal Depository [nsurance and by collateral held by a third-pafiy custodian.

ln lhe case ofinvestments, this is the risk that, in the event oflhe failure ofthe counterparty, the government *ill not be

able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession ofan outside party. The City's
investments include the Texas Shofi-Term Assct Reserve Investment Pool ("TexSTAR"), U.S. government securities, and
cedificates of deposit.

Crcdit risk- This is the risk that ar1 issuer of an investment will be unable to fulfill its obligations. The rating of securitics
by nationally recognized rating agencies is designed to give an indication ofcredit risk. As ofSeptenber 30, 2020, the City's
investments in TexSTAR rvere rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. All other investments are guaranleed (either express or
implied) by the full faith and credit ofthe United States Government or the issuing U.S. agency.

Inlercril rute risk. 'I his is thc risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affecl the fair value of investments. The City
has investDrents in ce ificatcs ofdeposit with slaggeled maturity dates and has invested in TexSTAIl. This strategy protects

the City's investments froDr changes in market valuation and lrom unanticipated rate movements.

Forcig curretc! risi This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value ofan investment. The City is

not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Concentrolion of crcdil risk. This is the risk of loss altributed to the magnitude ofthe City's investment in a single issuer
(i.e., lack of diversification). 1'he City attenrpts to avoid over-investment in local government pools and matches a porlion

of its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.

l0



Crry or PalrsrtNr, TEXAS
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FIJNDS, CONTINUED

A. Deposits and Inyestments, Continued

At yearend. the City s investmcnt balances rvere as follows:

Ln\rslrncnt l\Ic
Wcighted Arcrage

Malurity (Ycrx s) Crcdit Risk
Prinlar)' go!ernmcnt

'lc\STAR

Ccltilioatcs ol'dcposit
I btal primary go\,,ernnrcnt

Ccrtifi catcs ol- Dcposil
'l'exas Govcrnment lnveslment Pool

'lbtal In\cstments

0.t l
l.0r N/A

s 10,900.520

1 02(,.8 00

s t2 .92',7 -370

TexS-I'AR
The Texas Shon lernr Asset Rcserve Program (TeXSTAR) is a local government investrnent pool organized under the
authority ofthe lnteIlocal Cooperation Acl. ('hapter 791, ofthe l'exas Government Code. and the Public Funds lnvcstment
Act, Chapter 2256. ol the Tcxas Government Code. TexS-IAR \!as created in April 2001 through a contract anrong its
participating govcrnmental units, and is governed by a board ofdircctors to provide for the-ioint investnlents ofparticipant's
public funds and lirnds under their control. TexSTAR's policy seeks to invest pooled asscts in a manner that will provide
for preservation and safety of principal and competitivc investment retums while meeting the daily liquidity needs ofthe
participalrts by utilizing econonries of scalc and professional investment expertisc. J.l'. Morgan Investment Management
Inc. and Hilltop Securities Inc. serve as co-administrators for TexS I'AR under an agreement with the TexSTAR board of
directors. Audited financial statements ofthe investment pool are available by request at !v!vw.texstar.orq.

Although all securities in the investment pool are nrarked to markct daily using the fair valuc method, amortized cost. rvhich
generally apploximates the market value, is utilized. If, upon a daily calculation, the iDvestment manager finds that the
deviation betr'veen the amortizcd cost and market-determ ined values or the deviatiorl bctween market-determined values
and $1.00 per unit ofthe pool's assets exceeds $0.0030. it shall pro!r)ptly notify -l-e\STAR's 

board ofdirectors. ln the event
that the deviation of nrarket-deternrined values from amortized cost or $1.00 per unit excecds $0.00,10. the TexSTAR's
board ol'dilectors shall direct thc iDvestmenl nranager to take such action, ifany, as it detcrnrines is necessary to elinlinate
or reducc to the ex(ent reasonably practicable any dilution or unlair result to cxisting pa(icipants. NotwithstaDding the
foregoing. absent contrary instructions frorn TexSTAR's board ofdirectors, the investment nranager shall cause the stlbject
investmcnts to be sold promptly to attenrpt lo bring the deviation back within the desired value band. Horvever, thc $ 1.00
per unit value is nol guaranteed or insured by TexSTAR or the co-administrators. There can be no assurance that the Fund
will ntaintain a stablo nct asset value of $ | .00.

Certil'icn(cs of DcDosits
The Cil), holds nunrcrous certificates ofdcposits rvith nraturities rarging from one monlh lo three years. These certificates
are carried at cost. l'hc City management's position is the fair value ofthe ccrtificates ol clcposit would not be fiaterially
different tharr cost.

A summary ofthe City's investments under the requirements ofthc fair value hierarchy follows

/lssels irt Iirir Valuc lN ofSeptcnrhcr 10.:010
Lc\cl I l-err:l I

s 2,026,800 $ -

s t2-927 .320 .$

'lbtal

$ 2,026,800

U22Z;N

l-err:l I
$

t0 900.520
S

Cedificates ofdeposit categorized as Level 2 are valued by discounting the related cash flows based on current yields similar
instruments with comparable durations corlsidering the credit-worthiness of the issuer- U.S. -eovemment securities
categorized as Level 2 are valued based on yields currently availablc ol conrparable securities ofissuers rvith similar credit
ratings. Tcxas government investment pools categorized as l-cvel 2 are based on amortized costs, which generally
apprcximates fair value.

Irair Vdlrc

-.i I
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SEP I'EMBER 30. 2O2O

lll. DETA|l.Ul) \(IIES Or- ,\LL l.t \DS. CO\] 1\t'Ul)

B. Reccivables

1'he following comprise receivablc balances at ycarclld

Ta\es and

Accounts Recei\able

(;emral

lund

Debl Nonmaior

Serlice (il)\cnnnenlal

Fund li ds Fund l'uIJ
Retarl

fund

I ernal

Scrlice
Funds

Component

Uni{li)lal
Ad \,aloftm la\
Sales lax

Franchise la\
Municipalcourt
Duc from olher gowrnments

Due from ollx:r agcncies

Due from component unil

Gross receirablcs

Less:allo\larre
for uncolleclibles

Tolal taxcs and accounls

receirable. nel

s 518.0 r1 S

860,931

280,982

1.448,310

862.441

- s - s 6lr.57J s
qii 

')41
2It0,981

1.4,18.ll0
llN l.906

.19.16.1

- .19.5 77

55.7t6 r 7i8 1.661.7q6

86.560 S

9.1.971

21.J65
.1e l6l

19,577

2U.821 190 I081 lll 501980
t67.039 lTrS

Amounl

2021
2022

2024
2025
'lbtal $ 66.577

Operating l,eases - City is Lcssor
The City has leasing arrangements with 9 tenants in the City-owned mall. The terms of lease arrangements range from
month-to-nronth to 60 mollths. N4onthly reutal anrounts range fronr $250 to $14,999. Future minimum rentals on non-
cancelable leases are as follorvs:

86.560

(37,986)

l.08l,l-1I

(r r4.544)

503.980

( 88.341)

55.716

(26,006)

s.967,130

(1.578,613)

4.071 096

( 1.261.716)

189.91I

$2.!Q!!!11 5 lqizt l t_!7.0rie _!__9!!j_t7 _!- t!!!te _! ?9J10 l 1J!8 !l!!!l_17 _!__1-!-914'

(--. Operating l,eases

Ooeratinq L,eases - City is Lcssce
The City is obligat€d under multiple operating leases fbr copiers, printcrs, and mail machines. These leases are considered
to be operating for accounting purposes. l-ease expenditures for this equipment for the year excluding nraintellance
agreements totaled $32,,148. Monthly rental amounts range from $74 to $528. The ternrs ofleases range fronr 48 moDths to
60 months. Future minimum lcase payments on non-cancelable leases are as follorvs:

$ 29,30 r

12.602
2.310

780

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
'lt tal

s 52.412
50,3 3 7

51.426

35.443

3.266
$ t 92.8lt,l

The cost of the mall, exaluding the city library in the nrall, is $4,158,1 19. The total amount of accumulated depreciarion
on the mall is $ | ,083,1 18, resulting in a net book value of $3,08 1,534 as of September 30, 2020, which is recordcd in
retail fund capital assets.

32

189 9t;
5 S
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FT]NDS. CONTINI]EI)

C. Operating Leases, Continued

Operatinq Leases PEDC is t-essor
In March of20l6, the Palcstine Economic Dcvclopment Corporation cntered into a lease agleement to rent one of its
buildings at rhe Willow Creek Business Park to a third palty (tenant). Thc tefln ofthe lease is Iive years, but the tenant has
thc right to terminate the lease prior to expiration ofthe term but no earlier thar the 36'r' month ofthe lease tenn by giving
a 120 days advance rrotice and pirying an eallv ternrination fce of$206.739. Rent is received in equal monthly installments
of$ I6,321.50 per nrorth for thc first year and $ I 7.228.25 per Dlonth for ) ears trvo through five. In addition. as an incentive
to the tenanl, rent for the followilg months is abated: year one, fionth 12; year 4, month I ; year 5, month L 'l'he cost ofthe
building is $3,454,979, and the total amount of accumulated depreciation is $ 1,270,085, resulting in a net book value of
$2, 184,894 as ol September i0, 2020.

In l"ebruary of 2019, thc Palestirrc Econonric Development Corporation also entered inlo a lease agreentenl to rent office
space at the Willow Creek Business Park to a third party. The original tenr ofthe lease $as lwelve months, but the tenant
exercised its option to extend the lease boyond tlre expiration date on a nlonth-to-montlr basis- Rent is received in equal
monthly installrrlents of $1,500 per month. ln addition, a security deposit of$1,500 was rcccived at the inception oflhe
lease. The cost ofthe building is $410,586. and the total amount ofaccunrulated depreciation is $61,588, resulting in a ner
book value of $-148,998 as of Septenrber 30. 2020.

D. ( upital Lcases

In December of 201 8. the City (lessee) entered into a master equity lease agreement with Enlerprise FM Trust ( lessor) for
the leasing ofvarioLrs rehicles. As ofSeptenrbcr:10,2019. the City leased ,10 vehicles fronr Enterprise FM Trust. The temr
ol'the lease for each vehicle is 60 months and begins on the date each vehicle is delivered lo the City. Payments are nrade
nronthly and range fiom $298 to $849 with interest rates ranging fronr 0.88% to 6.33%. '[he total outstanding balance of
thes€ capital leascs as of September 30. 2020 was $962,439.

Al the end ofthe lease ternr for cach vehicle. the ('ity has agreed to pay Enlerprise FM Tnrst the excess, ifany, ofthe book
value ofthe vehicle over the r.vholesale value ofthe vehicle as determined by the lessor in good faith. Ifthe book value of
the vehicle is less than the wholesale value oflhe vehicle as detcrmined by the lessor in good faith, the lessor agrees to pay
the City the deficiency as a tcrnrinal rental adjustnlent within thit1y days after the end of the ternr. The City is lesponsible
lor repairing and nraintaining the vehicles in good condition. The City has a separate maintsnance agreenent with Enterprise
I'lcet N4anagenrenl for vehiclcs leased from llnterprise FM -Irusl. Anl alternations, additions- and replacement parts or
inlprovements to the vehicles will become and rcnrain the ploperty ofEnterprise FM Tnrst. As long as no evenr ofdefault
has occurred, thc ('ity has the right to renrovc any additional equipment installed prior to returning the vehiclcs to Enterprise
FM Trust. The ('ity is also obligated to have commercial automobile liability insurance and physical damage insurance for
each vehicle under this lease.

Total vehicles acquired through these capital leases and recorded in capital assets in the equipment replacement fund is as
follows:

Machinery nnd equipment
l,css: accumulatcd depreciation

lbtal

$ r,r55,487

\t74,964)
$ 980,523
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS, CONTINUED

D. Capital Leases, Continued

Future minimum lease obligations as of September 30. 2020 are as follorvs:

Year Endcd

Sc|rtcnrbcr l(l l) ir\ nrcnts

l0t I

t0tr
l1)l l
r0.-l
l0l i

T()1il lvlininrunr l.case I)a\ rnents

Less: .\rx)unt I<cpresenting Intcrcst

Prcscnt \uluc ol Ncl Nlininrum l-eirse I'r\ nrcDl!

E. Capital Assets

Govcrnmentrl Activities:

Ii 250.978

250.978

250.97',|

230.393

52.256

l-0-t5.itt2
(7.r. r43)

$ 962.439

Beginning lncrearses l)ccrcases Ilnding
Capital assets not being deFeciated:
l,and $ 1.838.407 $
Construction-in-progress t8.52-l

'Ibtal assets not being dcpreciated $ 1.856.931

5 (200) $ I,1i31t.207
(4 r3. r03 )i91.579

$ 394.579 $ (413.303 ) $ 1.838.207

Capital assets being depreciatcrl

Buildings
Improvements

Machincry and l-quipment

lnfiastructurc
Total asscts being depreciatcd

Accumulated depreciation:

Iluildings
Impro\€mcnts
Machinery and Equipment

Inlrastructure
'lbtal accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being deprcciatcd

$ 5,568,358
10.523,497

12;799,413
32.8'7'1.379

$-
32,000

2,27 4 "097
413,t 03

2 -'7 t9 -200

!; (2.297.291)
(287,390)

(t.174,526)

61.768.617

xi 3,271,067
10,268,I 07

13,898.984

33.290.482
(3;t59.207',t 60,728.640

(.1.447.45 r )

(8,r98,155)
(9 .53 5 ,7 2't )

(24 .209 ;193 )

(47.4't2)
(17 5,725)
(742,399)
(r51,938)

2.28,1.654

236.296
I . t 27.968

(,16.i9I.126) ( 1.617.534) 3.648.918
6 8.8 9li$ 15.377.52r $ r.r0r.666 $ (110.289) $16,3

.l,l

A summary ofchangcs in capital assets for the yearend rvere as follows:

(2.2|O.269)
(8,137.5 84)
(9.150,r58)

(24.861,73t)
( 44 .3 59 ,1 42|
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III. DEI'AILED NOI'ES ON ALI, TT]NDS. CONl'INI]Et)

E, ( rpital Assets, Continued

Total go\ijrnmental acti\ities capital

assets, nct of accumrrlatcd depreciation

Less associated debt

Net Inlcstment in Capital Asscts

Deprccialion rras chiu-qcd lo go\crnnlcntal lunctions ds lbllo\\s:

Go\ernmental activities:
Gcneral government

Public salety
Community services

Community devclopment

lbtal go\crnmental activities deprecialion expense

$I8.207.r05
(9.140 24',7 )

$ 9.066.858

$ r 3 r.583
58 t.304
866.307

38,340

$ 1.617.534

Business-t)?e Activitics:
Capital irssets not bcing deprcciated:

Land

Construclion-in-progrcss
Total assets not being dcpreciated

Capital assets being dcpreciatcd

Buildings
lmprovcnlents

Machinerl and Dquipment
lnfrastructure

Total assets being dcpreciated

Accumulated deprcciation:
Buildings
Im pro\em c nts

Machinery and Equipment

Inliastructule
Total accumulated depreciaiion
Net capital assets being depreciatcd

tleginning lncreases Decrcascs l:nLling

:l r.800.46{t
660.0i3

$ $ s t.800,468
I .399,6321.517.955 (8013.156 )

S 2..160.501 S 1.517.955 $ (801t.15a,)

s 10,520,820 $

118,066

1.709.972
.18 '103.649

17.1.t3i $

i l:!! l!,

$ r0.538,653
1t8.066

1.81t0.,166

49.4li6.862
200.601

781.2r3

(l0. I {)7 )

6t,052.507 1.001.647 (.10.1{)7) 62.024,047

( 8. 1 94.102 )

(35.946 )

(715,635)
(27,565.999 )

(22 t .450)
(39.r2r)

(t93,1t9)
(1,423,797)

10.t07

(ti.,115.752)

\7 5.06',7 )
(87It,647)

(28.9139.796)

Total busincss-type activitics capilal
assets, net of accumulatcd depreciation

Less associated debt

Ne1 In\estnrent in Capital Assets

Dcpreciation uns charged to busin()ss-tlpe acti\i1ies irs lollo\\s

Busincss-type activities:
Water and $asterater
Sanitation
Retail

lbtal business-type activities depreciation expense

(36.51t.882)

$ 2.1.540.625

(t.87'7 .487 10. r07

$ (875.840) S

(38.35e.262)

$ 2i.66.1.785

$ 26,864,885
(5.200.000)

s I I .66l.ttlt5

$ 1.720.629

45.265
I I t,593

l5

$ r.877 .{i7
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l . DE'IAILED \Ot tas ON ,\t,t_ Fl rN DS. (',ONt'tNUED

E. Capital Assets, ('ontinucd

Component Urit - PEDC
Capital rrsse1s not being deprcciatcd

l,nnd - dereloped

l,and - undereloped

Tolal asscls not being deprccialcd

Capital tl.ssels being deprcciatcd:

Buildings
lmpro\ements
Machincry and Equipment

Inl'rastructure

Tolal asscts heing depreciated

Accumulated deprcciation:
Buildings
lmprovemcnts

Machinery and Equipment

Infi&structure
-lb1al 

accumulated depreciation
N(]t capilal assets being dcprcciatcrl

LScginning Inctcitses I)ccli'rrsr:s Ending

$ 134.060) $ 623.129
- 338.2,18

s 657.189 I

s 995.437 $ $ (34.060)

$

_!___2!.l-.3i?

$ 4,321.478

108,646

$ 4,32 r ,471r $

108.646

4.410.12.1

( 1.640.6i1)

(93,864)

o23,637-)

(3,326)

4,430,t24

(1,764,271\

(9',1,190)

( t.7t4.49s) 1t26.963) (1,861.461)

S 1.695.(,1i,

'lbtal go\ernmental activities capital

usscts. net o f accumulatcd dcpreciation
Less .rssociated debt
Net Investmcnt in Capital Asscts

I)cprecialitrn \\"a-s char'ted kr thc eonrponent unil xs li)ll(\\\\

Component unit:
Palestine Economic Dev€lopment Corporation

'lbtal depreciation expcnsc

s ( t26.96i) S s 2,568.66i

$:i,510.0.10
( I ,595,6137)

$ 1,934.353

$ 126.96i
s r 26.961

i6

Component Unit
A summary ofchanges in capital assets for the yearend were as Ibllows:
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III. DETAII,ED NOTES ON ALL FtINDS. (]ONTINT]EI)

F. t,o[g-tcrm Dcbt

The follorving is a sunrmary of changes in the City's total govem,nental long-term liabilities for the year. In general, the
City uses the general and debt servicc funds to liquidate governmental long-tenn liabilities.

Covernmental Activities:
Debt:

('crtifi cates o l obl i gation

l)cbt from direct bomouings

and direct placentcnts:

Ccrtificates ol'obligation
l.'inancing capital lcases

Olhe r long-term liahilities:
( apital leascs
('laims andjudgcmcnts
Compcnsated abscnces

Net pcnsion liability
'li)tal OPFIB liabilities

-lbtal long-ternr liabil itics

lncreases l)cc:rcases

llali,Ilrcc

9/30/2020
I)ue Within
One Ycar

t.558.864

\ t 69 -792'l

055.U97

$ 2.092 .657

Long-term liabilities due in morc than one year

* Long-term liabilities associated $ith capital assets

Governmental long-term debt was comprised ofthe following at Septembe( 30,2020

G0vcrnmental Acti\4ties

li 9.t40_247

5i 1.965.000 .$ 1i (935.000) $ 4.030.000 * s 960.000

2.27 t .000
6l6.3 U3

575.954

802.7 44

1.204,694

It.,165.5 0 7

556.27 7

77.256
6t 5.089

3,7 ,5 3 5

206.392

(5 17.r 86)

16.373.640)
( 7 5.780 )

2.123.000 *

2.024.808 *
r58,000
3',72.25',l

220 -825

38r,575

( r48,000)
( 170.439)

tt9.977.1'79 li 6.725.413 li ({r.189.837)

962,439 *

880,000
1,302,597

5,803,402
1.186,509

$ I8.i12,755

$ I6,220.098

M.lturitl
I)atc

lntcrcsl
I<iltcI)cscriftion

Ccrti llcates of Obligation:
Serics 2008
Serics 2010B
Scrics 2014

Ccrti,lcates of Obligation
from l)irect Placcmcnts:

Scries 2010A Tarablc

Scrics 20 l0A Non-ta\ablc
Financing Capital l,eascs
Iionr Direct Borr0rlings:
Southside Rank

Southside Bank

l,easing 2, Inc,

Leasing 2, Inc.

Letrsing 2. Inc.
-lbtal

l'lcdgecl
( i)llrlcral

PJedgecl

Rercnuc
Outstxnclin!

Llalancc

2/t5/2028
2lt 5/2030
2lt 5t202t

3.871tvo

1 .',7 50%

Ad \t orem tax re\enue

Ad valorcm tari rercnue

Ad varlorem tax rc\enuc

$ I.166.5n0
2.8 8 2.05l

660.71I

I 07.0 t4
i 69.tt02
876.,161

376.577
294.954

2 5t20)0
2115t2030

.1.5 00%
4.500vo

Ad ralorem tar rcrenuc
Ad \irlorcln ta\ re\cnuc

1.807.69.1

812.16l
1.446.000

67'7.000

3t3tt202t
4!tl/2tJ26
10/29 t2029
lo/2912024
l0/29/2024

t09.550
.l 12.917

2.37 0%
3.247%
2.570%
2.360%
2.360vo

Ad l"alorem tax revenue

Ad \alorem ta\ re\enuc
Fire truck

Asphalt recycler and pavcr

tltility equipment

.$7 rn $ 8.177 .It08

Certificates ofobligation were issued for general infrastructure inrprovenrents, water and wastewater system inrprovements,
and various equipment.

31

llalance

I 0/ l/2019

$ 1,005.000

2.3 70.000

655.000
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I. t)ETAIt,ED NO]'}],S ON ALL FI]NDS. CON',t'tNttEt)

I.. [,ong-term Debt. ('ontinuetl

The City is also obligated under two capital leases with Southside Bank and three capital leases with Leasing 2, tnc. that
meet the definition oldebt from direct borrowings and direct placements as stated in GASB Statement No. 88. The Southside
Bank leases are for a fire truck and dispatch communication equipment. l he Lcasing 2, Inc. leases are for a fire truck, an

asphalt recycler and paver. and various utility equipnrent.

Pledged revenue recognized during the year lor governnrcntal debt is equal to principal and interest of$1,528,462 paid
during the fiscal ycal ended September 30, 2020.

The City incurred and charged to expense $269.255 in interest expcnse on governmental activities long-term debt for the
fiscal year errded Seplember 30.2020.

( io\crruneDtal Acti\ities
Certi fi cates of ObliSution

from DiIcct l)lacenrents

Financing Capital l,eases

liom Direct llorrowingsYcar Dnding

September i0
( crtificatcs ol Obliorti{)n
I'r'incinal lnlcrrsl Principrl lntcrcst Principal lntcrcst

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
Total

$ 960.000
I20.000
335.000
340.000
35 5.000

1.720,000

_&g_qgr) $ 6li 1.364

$ 158.000

t6ti.000
179.000

190.000

202.000
'I ,226,000

_i_L12i,!!0

$ 134.r2{t
n 6.03 9

t03.087
89.738

7 5.992
162.3 80

$ 92.009

84.67 6

7 6.871
68;7 46

59.7 52

I45.t03

$ 372,257
272,t71
279,282
2 86.5 83

281,861

532,654

$ 52,91'l
43,453
36.342
29.041
2t-546
3 8,700

$ 221,999:li s27. r5 7 $2,024,80{i

The follou'ing is a sLrmmary ofchanges in the City's total business-typc long-tcrm liabilities forthe year

Balarcc
l0/ t/20I9

s 2.1i0.000
4,0 tt7.5 00

lncrcatscs I )c(rcir\cs
Balancc

9 t30/2020
Due Within
One YearBusiness-type Activitiesi

Debt:

Certifi cates ol-obl igation
Rerenuc krnds

Othet long-ternr I iabi lities:
Compcnsalcd absences

Net p€nsion liability
Total OPEB liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

126.90t
1.797.096

253.329

64;t 94

7 80.922

41.661

(22.334)
( 1.457.693 )

(29.257 )

$ $ (210"000) $

(827.500)
1,940,000 * $

3,260,000 x
230.000
730,000

169,36 |

1-t20 -325

265.733

49 6t l

$ 8.,1r4.826 $ 887.377 \ (1.i.1(,.7lll ) s 6_755.419 $ 1.009.61 I

l,one-term liabilitics due in more than onc lcar

* t-ong-term Iiabilitics associated \\ith capital a.sscts

_l iJlr.!!-8
$ 5,200.000

i8

Annual debt service requirements to governmental activities are as follorvs:
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III. DETAII-ED NOTES ON ALL FT]NDS. CONTINTJED

F. Long-term Debt, Continued

Business-type long-term debt was comprised ofthe following at September 30,2020:

tlusi ne\:'- t\ pc Acti \i ti e\

I)cscription
Maturit)

Date

lnteresl
Ilatc

Pledged

C]trllatclul
PlcLlgcd

I{c\cnue
Oustancling

llalance
Ccrti llcrtes of Obligotion

Serics l0 l2
Scric: l01i

Ilc\al]rLc l]0nds:

Scr ics l0() l
Sr:ricr 20()6

Scrics 2007

Scrics l(l(19

Iittrl $ 5.(197.341 $ 5.200.000

Revenue bonds and cenificates of obligation were issued for water and wastewater system inrprovements and facility
improvements.

Pledged revenue recognized during the year forthis debt is equal to principal and interest of$1,195,547 paid during the
fi'cal l ear ended Seplembcr 30. 2020.

Thc City incurred and charged to expensc $ 154,728 in interesl expense on business-type activities long-term debt for the
fiscal ycar ended Septenrher'10- 2020.

Annual clebt service requirenleuts to business{ype activities are as follows

Busine!s-l\ .,\ctirities

8/1512023

2/t 5 /2028
1.58%

2.15r;
Ad ralorcnr tr\ rc\cnue
Adralorenr t \re\enue

s t75.000
t.765.000

s llro.5it)
1.9.r 1.142

1t15/2027
1 5/2025
'1115 /2027
1/ t512029

0.009'0 - :i. t0,/.
2.150/o - 2.951'/0

1.85% - 2.65%
u.t5yo - 425%

Watcr and sc\\cr rc\enue
Watcr and seuer rcrenue

Water ard scvrcr rc\cnue
Watcr and sc\!cr Icvenue

ti{7.620
Ilrlr.6i 8

2.07-1.250

t76.161

s 10.000

2 65.000
1.li75.000

.'t t0.000

Ycru liding
Scplcr'r)bcr l0

( crtilicates of Obligation
Principal Intcrest

llercnuc Bonds

Principal lntercst
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
-li)tal

$ 230.000
23 5,000

2 5 5.000

2 t0.000
225.000

i li.8lt5
r4.175

19.27,1

13.97i
t 9 -296
26.069

$ 730.000
745.000

345.000
355.000
365.000
720.000

$ 3,260,000

$ 92,353

71 ,7 33

50.285

41.080
3 t,388
3 8,83 0

S

7 ii5 00

$; t.910.000 $ 171.672

.t9

_$ t?!{!"
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III. DETAILED NOl'I]S oN ALL Ft-]NDS. ('ON'I'INtIED

F. Long-term Dcbt. Continued

The following is a summary of changes in the Palestine Econonric Development Corporation's total long-term liabilities
for the vear:

Componenl tlnit - PEDC
Debt:

Rcrcnrre hrnds

Total loI1g-lcrnr Iiilhililics

llalancc
l0/li20 t9 lncfcitscs Dccreascs

Ilalance

913012t20
DLrc Within
Onc Ycal

2 85.000

Long-tcrm liahiliticsdue inmore than onc year $ 1.310,687_

* I-ong-term liabilities associated lvith capital assets $ 1,595,687

The Palestine Economic Development Corporation's long-term debt was comprised ofthc following at September 30,2020

Componcnt Llnit - Palestine Economic Derelo p,nenl Corporalion

.! r.9ltt 690 $ $ (333.00i) li 1.595.687 * $ 285.000
$ 1.928.690 $ s (i3i.00r ) .$ 1.595.687 S

Descriplion
Maturity

Datc

Interest

Rate

P ledged

Collateral
Pledged

Relr:nue

( )ulsl ndiDg

Iliilance
Ilevenue Bontls

Serics 20 l2ll
Series 20 l6

'lotal

3.35%
i.6l%

Sillcs tilx re\cnuc
Salcs taa rcvcnllc

8115/21126

8t15 t2025
:li 1,438,536

332,670
s 1 .7 71 .206

li t.295,687
3.)0.000

_Lllll.6!7

Revenue bonds were issued for the acquisition and developnrent of the business park. conslruction of a commercial office
building, and the purchase ofanother cornmercial office building.

Pledged revenue recognized during the year is equal to principal a[d interest of$397,569 paid during the fiscal year ended
September 30,2020.

The Palestine Economic Development Corporation incurred and charged to expense $63,281 in interest expense on long-
term debt for the fiscal year ended Septenrber 30, 2020.

Annual debt service requirements to the Palestine Economic Development Corporation are as follows

Clomfx)lrcnl I ]ni1 - l)l--DC

Ycal lirdirrg
Scptcnrher 30

Ilc!cnue fJonds

Plincipal lnterest
2021
2022
2023
2024
202s

2026-2030
Total

$ 285.000
290.000
300,000
305,000
315,000
r 00,687

$ s4,296
44.580
34,69'7

24,4',79

t 4,094
3,373

3i 1,595.687 $ r75,5r9

Federal Arbitrage
General obligation bonds, combination tax and revenue bonds, and ce(ificates ofobligation are subiect to the provisions of
the [ntemal Revenue Code of 1986 related to arbitrage and interest income tax regulations under those provisions.

'10
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS, CONTINUED

F. Long-term Debt, Continued

Special Assessment Debt
The City is not obligated in any manner for special assessment debt.

G. lnterfund Transactions

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2020 is as follows

Due from
\\1atcr and

\\'astc\\'atcr
lrundDuc to:

SanitatioD l-'und

Ibtol

lotxl

$

s

s

26$ t6
2626

All interfund balances are short-term loans to cover operating expenses-

Tlansfers between funds during the year were as follows:

-llrurslir:1rr

( icncrirl

I:Lrrrtl '

Debl

Scr\icc
Fund

Nonmajor
Go\Ernmental

Funds

Rclail
lundTransl'crs Out:

Gencral Fund

Debt Service Fund

Nonmaior Corernmental Funds

Wate r and Waste\\,ate r F und

Sanitation Fund

Retail Fr.rnd

lnternal Service Funds

Total

lotcrnal
Sar\ice
l-\tnrls lL,l al

5 \ s 47.022

740

!; 70.477 $ $ r I7.499
178.37s
48,863

675.8 82

t.405.4S1
165.471

178.175

4lt.l23
t1li.0l0

1.405.49{
t 65.47 I

I26. t45

i27.llil

llll 3 611

!_ !9u!r _I_22.!12 _$ _!LJ62 _! l!?90 _g_,!Z!!Zs _$_?4]$2
4.723

'l'ransfers from the retail fund into the general fund do not agree on thc fund-level financial statements. Certain
emplovees from the retail funds were reclassified as general fund employees during the year. Their related total
OPtiB liability balances. rvhich arc considered long-term obligations. were transferred from the enterprise fund-
level to the general fund government-wide level.

'Iransfers to the general fund were subsidies for adnrinistrative expenditures. Transfers to the debt scrvice fund from the
water and wastewater fund were made to covcr debt service payments. Transfers from the debt service fund to the equipnrent
replacement fund (internal service fund) rvere for payments on capital leases in the cquipment replacemenl fund.

H. Risk i\lanagement

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
onrissions; and natural disasters, for which the City participates in the Texas Municipal League's lntergovemmental Risk
Pools. 1'he Pool purchases commercial insurance at group rates for participants in the Pool. The City has no additional risk
or responsibility to the Pool, outside ofthe payment ofinsurance premiums. The City has not significantly reduced insurance
coverage or had scttlements which exceeded coverage amounts for the t\ro years prior to this report with the exception of
lhejudgenrenl described in \ote lll-l

.11
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III. DI]1'AILTD NOTES ON AI,I, FTINDS. CONTINTIED

ll. llisli Nlnnagement, {i)nlinue(l

The City established a limited risk management program for heal{h benefit claims in October 2006. A separate fund was
established to account for the Cit),'s self-insurance activities and thc accumulation of resources to satisry potential claims
ofsubsequent periods. The Cily's exposure is limited due to stop-loss protection and reinsurancc. Changes in the balance of
clairn liabilities durir.e the year are as follows:

lrt20 201 9

Beginning claims payable

Claims incurred
Claims incurrcd but not Ieportcd
Cllaims paid

l',nding claims payable

I. (bntingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are s!bject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally
the l'ederal govenlment. Any disallorved claims. including amounts already collected. may constitute a liability ol the
applicable funds. The amounts ofexpenditurcs, which may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot bc determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, ifany. to be inrmaterial.

t,iabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount ofthe loss can be reasonably estimated.
ln Nlarch of20l9, ajudgenlent was rendered on the t".S. Equipment Company, Inc. d/b/a l-one Star Equipment Company
vs. Citl of Palestine. Teras case resu lting in L.S. Equ ipment Com pany, the plainliff, being awarded damages of $5 I 2,5 59.
The City rvas also ordered to pay the plaintiff inlerest, attorney fecs, and court costs totaling $290.185. The City filed an
appeal. The appeal rvas unsuccessful and the Cit1, and the plaintiff reached a settlenrcnt ol $880,000. A liability in
govcrnnrental activities on thc govemment-wide statenrent of net position has been recorded for this amount.

As of September 30, 2020, the City is also a defendant in other lawsuits. It is the opinion of the City's management that
resolulion ofthese nratters will not havc a matcrial adverse eflect on the financial condition olthe City.

J, Dcfined Benefit Pension Plans - Texas Mulicipal Retirement System

Plan Description
'Ihe City ofPalestine participates as one of888 plans in the non(raditional.joint contributory. hybrid defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirenrent System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State ofl'exas
and adnrinistered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G. Title 8. Texas Governnrent C'ode (the TMRS Act) as an
agent rnultiple-employer retirement system for municipal employces in the State ofTexas. l-he TMRS Act places the general
administration and managenlent of the Systenr rvith a six-nrember Board of Trustees. Although the Govemor, with the
advice and consenl of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS'S
defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a
publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at r1r'l /rr'.r.cr)rr.

All eligible employees ofthe City are required to participate in TMRS

Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body ofthe City
within the options available in the state statutes goveming TMRS.

s ij I7l.t62

\

12

lleginning on October l. 20 | 8, the City transitioned to a 3"r party hcalth insurance plan.

lt'72.162\
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J, Definc(l Benefit PensioD l'lans -'Iexas Nlunicipal Retirrmcnt System, Continucd

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the City-financed
nronetary credits u,ith intercst u'ere used to purchase an annuity. Menrbers may choose to receive their retiremcnt benetit in
one of seven payment options. Membcrs nray also choose to receive a portion oftheir benefit as a Partial Lunrp Surn
Distribution in an amount equal to 12. 2,1. or i6 monthl)' pa) ments! u,hich cannot exceed 75%o of the member's deposits
and interest.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body ol the City, within the options available in the statc statutes
governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follorvs:

I'lrn Ycar 2020 Plan Yedr 20 l9
Emplol ee deposit rate

Matching ratio (city to cnrplol,ee)
Years rcquir ed for vesting

Service retirement eligibi lit1.

(e\presscd as age/)'ears of ser\ice)
Updated scrvice credit
Annuity incrcase (to retitccs)

6%,

2tol
5

60/5.0t2t)
I 007o repeati ng transfers

70% ol'CPI repeating

6yo

2to I

5

6015 -0/20
I 00o/o repeali ng translers

70% ofCPI repcating

Emploles5 a6ysys4 6, benefit terms
At the December 31. 2019 valuation and neasurement date, thc following employees were covered by the benefit terms

Inrrctir.e employecs or beneficiaries currently rcceiving bencfits
lnacti\r employecs entitlcd to but nol yct rcceiving benefits
Actir,e employees

lbtal

169

l6t
164

494

Contributiorrs
The contribution rates for employees in TM RS are eithcr 5%. 6oui,. or 7-7o of enrplol ee gross earnings. and the Cily matching
percentages are either 1007o. 150%. or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body ofthe cit). Under the state law
governing TMRS, the contribution rate tbr each city is deternriDcd annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Nonrral
(EAN) actuarial cost mcthod. The actualially deterrnined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the oost of
benefits eanred by employces during the year. with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees ofthe City of Palestine, Texas. rvere required to contribute 6%io oftheir annual gross earnings during the fiscal
year. The contribution rates fol the C ity of Palestine. 'l'exas. were 13 .42yo ard 13 -5 8% in calendar years 2019 and 2020,
respectively. The City's contributions to TM R S for the year ended Septenrber 30, 2020, were $ I , 162,86 I and were cqual to
the required contributions.

Net Pension Liabilitr
The City's Net Pension Liabilit) (NPL) was measured as of Dccenl ber 3 l, 201 9, and the Total Pension Liability (TPl, ) used
to calculate the Net Pension Liability rvas dclermined by an actuarial valuation as ofthat date.

Achturidl ,lss mptions
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Inflation
Overall payroll growth
lnvestment Rate of Return

2.50% per year
2.7 5%o per year. adjusted down Ibr population declines, ifany
6.75%, nct ofpension plan investrnent expense, including inflation

4l
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.1. Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Tcxas Municillal Retirement System, Continued

Ac I or ia I A stnmpl ions, C ont i nled
Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active rncmbers are based on the PUB(10)
moflality tables with the Public Safety table uscd for nrales and the General Employcc table used for females. Mortality
ratcs for healthy rctirees and beneflciaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas monality
tables. The rates for aclives. healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to
accounl for future n)ortality improvenlents. l'or disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees is used
rvith a ,l-year set-forward for males and a 3-ycar set-fonvard for females. In addition. a li.5% and 3.0% minimum mortality
rate is applied. for males and fernales respectivcly. to reflect the impairment lor younger rnenrbers !l'ho become disabled.
-l-he 

rates are projected on a fully generational basis bl Scale UMP to account for future moflality improvements subject to
the floor.

'fhc actuarial assunlptions rvere developed prinrarily from the actuarial investigatio!1 of the cxperience of TMRS over the
lbur-year period from Decenber i l, 2014 to December 3 l. 2018. The) were adopted in 2019 and first used in the Decenrber
:i l, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-retircment nlortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) is based on the
Mofiality Experience lnvestigation Study covering 2009 through 20ll and dated Decenrber 31,2013. Plan assets are

managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production ofincome in order
b satisfy the shorl-term and Iong-tcrm funding needs ofTMRS.

Thc long-term expected rate ofreturn on pension plan investments was deternrined using a building-block method in which
best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major assel class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future rcal rates ofreturn by the target assel allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. In determining their best estimatc ofa recommended inyestment return assumption under the yarious alternative
asset allocation portfolios. GRS focused on lhe area behveen (l) arithmetic rnean (aggressivc) wilhout an adjustment for
time (conservatire) and (2) the geonretric mean (conservative) with an adjustrnent for tinre (aggressive)- The target
allocation and best estimates of real rates ol return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2020 are summarized in the
follorving table:

Assel (lliiss liu qct Allocation
Lonp-ltrm l.l\pcclccl llcill

Ratc ol llcturn (Arithmctic)
3 0.00%
10.00%

20.000/"

10.00%

lo.o0%
10.00%
t 0.00%

5.i 0%

1.25%
1.14%,

3.8 5 70

4.00,v.

3.,18 %

I)iticoutll R0te
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to deternrine
the discount rate assumed that employee and ernployer contributions rvill be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on
that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payme[ts of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, th€ long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods ofprojected benefit payments to detenrrine the Total Pension Liability.

:14

(ilobal Equitl,
Corc Fixed Income

Non-Core Fixed Income

Real Return

Real llstate
Absolute Return

Pri\ate Equit)
Total 100.00%
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J. Defined Benefit Pension PIans - Texas Municipal Retirement Systcm, Continued

(-hdnges in.lhc Net Pension l,iohility
Increasc ( I)ccrellse)

lotnl l'cnsion
l.iabilit)

(.r)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

Net Pension

Liabilit)
(a) - (b)

llalance al Decembcr 3 l. 201 8

Changes for the year:

Service Cost

Interest

l)illtrence bet\€en cxpecl.ed and actual e)ipcricnce

Changes in assumptions

Contributions - emplo),er

Contributions - employee

Nct investment income

Benefit payments

Administratire expense

Other changes

Balance at December 31.2019

S.16.79i.545 S 36.5-10.912 S 10.262.(,03

l.l6l.6s3
3. t07.606
(,16.1.31i)

r03. | 69

1,1 63,65 3

3. t07.606
(464..313)

103.169
( 1.132.430 )

(506.303 )

(s,643.12 8)

r.|]2.430
-506.303
5,643, r28

(2,673,526)
(3 r.e l2)

(e58)
ll.9t2

9 5ll

\2 -6',1 3 .526\

_!l!!4.!-4 s4t.106.107 _i__q9?izl_7

Sensili\Ji\, d the Net Pension Liubiliy lo Changes in the Discount llutc
The following preserts the net pensiorl liability ofthe City, calculated using the discount rate of6.757o, as well as what the
City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I -percentage-point lolver (5.75%) or
l -percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the currcnt rate:

I 9/n Dccrea\e in

l)iscount Rate

(s.75%)

l')1, lncrcilsc in
l)iscount Rate

( urrenl

I)iscount Rale

\6.7 s%) {7 .7 5.1,

Nct pension liabilit) li 13,765,620 .$ 6.923,72'l $ 1.175.159

Pension Plon l i&ciar)' Nel Posilion
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS financial
reporl. That report may be obtained on the Inlcrret at \\\\\\.lnlrs.conr

Pension Ilxpense and Delirrred Outllows ollRcsources and Dcferred lnllows ofResources Relaled to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized pension cxpense of $ 1,157,893

At September 30,2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Def-crlcd

Oulllo\\s ol'
Resourccs

Deferred
lnflous of
Rcsources

Difference betueen expected and aclual economic experiencc
Difference in actuarial assumptions
Difference betNeen projected and actual invcstment ealnings
Contributions subsequent to the measurcment date

Total

$ .199.58,1

70.726

- I .269.288

_$-__2qi!_8 _qu!qu2

s

.15
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5893,662 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting fronr contributions subsequent to thc
measurement date will be recognized as a rcduction ofthe net pension Iiability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other
amounts reported as deferred outllows and inflorvs ofresources rclated to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:

Yeal Ended

Dcccmber i I

2020
2021

2022
2023
lotal

Nct deferred
outflo\\s
( inllo Ns)

of resottrces

$ (6r3.381)
(542,661)

93,354
(63 5,458)

K. Other PosrEmplo) nrent Benefit Pl{ns

l. City Retirce Healtlr Care Plan

Plan DescriDliorl
The City administers a single-employcr defined benefit Other Post-Employrnent Benefits (OPEB) plan that allows
retirees to pay their premium for continuation ofthe medical insurance coverage. The plan is knorvn as the City Retiree
Health Care Plan. In order to be eligible for this benefit, the retiree must separate fronr service as a current recipient of
retirement benefits from the Ti\4RS and with at least fi\,e years of sen,ice rvith the City at age 60 or at least 20 years of
service at any age. The health care benefit ofthe plan is available to the spouse ifthey were enrolled in the plan
immediately before retirement or disability.

Benefils Provi(lcd
City ernployees and spouses who are enrolled in the City-sponsored health plan inrmediately before retirement or
disability are eligible to continue coverage for the following periods of time.

Participant Lcngth of Coveragc

Sun,iving Spouse Retiree

Retirees are eligible to continue medical coverage until age 65. Ifcoverage is

voluntarily waived, it cannot be reinstated.

Spouses are eligible to continue medical coverage until age 65. If spouse
coverage is voluntarily waived, it cannot be reinstated.

Eligible dependent children may continue nredical coverage while the retirec is

covered. Ifchild coverage is voluntarily waived. it cannot be rcinstated.

Surviving spouses are eligible to continue nredical coverage until age 65. If
coverage is voluntarily waived, it cannot be reinstated.

Retirees and their dependents are not eligible to remain on the health plan after they beconre eligible for Medicare

Employees Covcred by Benefit Terms
At the September 30, 2020 measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit tenns

Retiree

Spouse

Children

Inacti\€ employccs currently rcceiving benefit payments

Acti\€ employecs

Total

155

16

158

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plans - l'eras Nfunicipal Retirenrent System, Continued
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III. DtiTAILED NOTES ON AI,L FUNDS, CONTINUED

K. Other Post-Employmert Benefit Plans, Continued

C ontribuliolls
Relirees are requiied to pay the City for their health insurance prenriums on the City-sponsored health insurance plan.
Retirees paid the City $38,580 for their health insurance prenriunrs for the year ended September 30, 2020.

The fully-insured premiunls the City pays its insurance carrier are blended rates based on the combined experience of
active and tetired membcrs. Because tlre average cost ofproviding the health care benefits to retirees under 65 is higher
than the average cost ofproviding health care benefits to active employees, there is an inrplicit employer subsidy for the
non-Medicare eligible retirees. This implicit subsidy is considered an employer contribution and was valucd at $66,396
in the Septernber 30, 2020 measurenrent.

Total Ol'l-.U Liabilitr
't he City's 'l-otal OPE13 Liabiliry,- (TOt") is based on an actuarial valuation perlbnned as of September 30, 2019. Updated
proccdures wcre used to roll foru,ard thc lotal OPEB liability to thc nreasuretrrent date of September 30, 2020.

Actuaridl /ssto,tptions
The Total OPEB Liability in the September 30,2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method

Discount Rate

Inflation

Salary lncreases

Demographic
Assumptions

Mortality

Individual Entry-Age Normal

2.4lYo as ofSeptember 30, 2020

230%

3.50% to I 1.50%, including inflation

Based on the experience study covering the four-year period ending December 31, 2018 as
conducted for the Texas Municipal Retirement Systen (TMRS)

For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees ofTexas mortality tables
are used. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis using the ultimate mortality
improvement rates in the MP tablcs lo account for future mortality improvements.

lnitial rute of 7.20%o declining to an ultimate rate of4.25%o after l5 years.Health Care l-rend
Rates

Participation Rates 0o% for enrployees retiring before age 50;
57o for enrployees reliring at ages 50-5,{:
15oZ for enrployees retiring at ages 55-59;
2070 for ernployees retiring at ages 60-64.

The discount rate changed from 2.757o as ofSeptember 30,2019 to 2.41% as ofseptember 30,2020.

Discount llate
For plans that do not have formal assets, thc discount rate should equal the tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an
index of20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as olthe measurenrent date. For the purpose
ofthis valuation, the municipal bond rate is 2.41% (based on the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement
date ofthe Fidelity "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index"). The discount rate was 2.757o as ofthe prior measurement date.

17
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III. DETAII,ED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS, CONTI\.T]ED

K. Other PosGEmployment Benefit PIans, Continued

l. Citv Rctiree Health Care Plan, Continued

( lumges in the Total OPEB Liabiliqt
lncrease

(Decrease)
'lbtal OPEB

Liability
(a)

Balance at Septcmber 30. 20l9
Changes lbr the year:

Scl.vice Cost
lnterest

Difference betreen expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions

Benel'it payments

Balance at Septembet 30.2020
.816)

s 644.458

i 1.768

1',l.777

(7 t7\
19 408

\27
s 68,1.878

Sensili|ilf oflhe Tolql OPL:R LidbiliU) lo (-hanges in the l)isco nt Rote
The following presents the total OPEB liability ofthe City, calculated using the discount rate of 2.417u, as well as what
the Clity's total OPEB liability rvould be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I -percentage-po int lower
( | .4 I %) or 1-percentage-po int higher (3.41%) than the current rate:

l7u l)ccr'casc in

I)iscoul]t l{irlc
( L4 I 

,t1,)

Currcnt

l)iscoun( Rate

(2.41%\

l7o lncreiue iu

Discount Rate

(3.4r%)
'tbral oPEB liabiliry $ 745.993 $ 684.878 $ 629.396

Sensiti,ity ofTotal OPEB Liabiliq,u Changes in the llealthcarc (-ost Trend Rates
The follorving preserts the total OPEB liability of thc City. calculated using the healthcare cost trend rates previously
described under actuarial assumptions, as rvell as whal the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using heallhcare trend rates that are I -percenlage-point lower or | -percentage-point higher than the currert rates:

I ol, l)ecrea-se in

llcallhcarc Cosl
'Ircnd l{atcs

Currcnt

liealthcare Cost
'liend Rates

l7o lncrease in
Healthcare Cost

Trend Rates

lbtal OPEB liabilily $ (; 10.(,76 $ 684,878 $ 1'72,946

OPlil] l)lan Iicltciary Net Position
There are no plan assets accumulated in a lrust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 ofGASB Statement No. 75.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related to OPEBs
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of$74, | 89 related to the City Retiree Health
Care Plan and a total of $ 138,575 OPEB expense including the TNI RS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund.
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FT]NDS, CONTINUED

K. Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans, (lontinued

l ( lit\ Rcri I lexlc Ith Crre Plrn- (i)DliDfled

At September 30, 2020, the City rcported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to
OPEBs from the following sources:

Dil'lirence bet$een expected and actual economic experience

l)ilTcrencc in actuarial assumptions
'lbtal

S s 760.372

92 1.062

$ f?Ll)6, ) f!!;12

Anounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

! l!q,620

I)elirrcd
outllo\\r 0f
Resoufces

Deltrred
Inllo\\s ol'
Resources

121

30

164

Year Flndcd

Septembcr 30

I'vel de ltrrcd
outflo\\s
( inll ols)

ol_ resources

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter

Total

24.641
24.644
24.644

24.6.14

27.81 I
j,t.i03

s

Plan Description
lhe City also participates in the defined benefit group-tern life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal
Retiremenl System (TMRS) knorvn as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The Citl elected, by ordinance,
to providc grouplerm life insurance coverage to both currerrt and retired entployecs. The retiree portion ofthe SDBF is
not considered a cost sharing plan and is irlstead considered a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The City may
terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before Novenrber I of
any ycar to be eft'ective the follorving Jan uary I .

Ben efl ls Plor iclecl

Thc death bcnefit for active employees provides a Iump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings. for the I2-month period preceding the month ofdeath)- The
death benefit of retirees is considered an other postemployment benefit ("OPEB") and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As
the SDBF covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an
unfunded OPEB plan (i.e., no assels are accumulated).

Employees ( overed by Beneft l'erms
At the December 3 l, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inacti\e emplo)ees or beneficiaries currcntll receir4ng benefits
Inactire cnrplol,ecs entitled to but not yct recei\ing bcnefits
Acti\E employccs

Total

,19

318

2. -fllRS - Sut)t)lcnlcntal Dealh Belrcfit Fund
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FTINDS, CONTINUED

K. Other Post-Employmeltt Benefit Plans, Continued

2. 'l'MRS - Suoplemental Death Benefit Fund. Continued

Contributions
The City contributes to the SDB| at a contractuall)'required rate as detennined by an annual actuarial valuation. The
rate is equal to the cost ofproviding one-year ternr life insurance. The funding policy lor the SDBF program is to assure
that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit paynlents for the upconing year. The intent is not to pre-
fund the retiree's ternr life insurance during employees' entire careers.

The total SDBF contribution rate lor the City u,as 0.2 lyo and 0.209lo ir calendar years 2020 and 2019, respeclively. The
retiree poftioD ofthe S[)BF contribution rate for thc C ity was 0.087o and 0.077o in calendar years 2020 and 20 ]9. The
City's contributions to thc SDlll: tbr the years cndcd Scptcnrtrer 30 , 2020,2019, a:nd 2018 were $ 17,83 l. $ 16,618, and

$16,364. respectively. rcprcsenling contributiorls tbr bolh aclive and retiree coverage, which eqrraled the required
co,rtributions each year.

Total OPEB Liabilitv
The City's Total OPEB Liabilit] (TOL) was measured and determined by an actuarial valuation as December I I, 20l9

Acluariql Ass mptions
The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2019 achrarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Inflation

Salary increases

Discount rate

Retiree's share of benefit-related costs

Administrative expenses

2.50Yo per year

3.50% to | 1.50% including inflation

2.7 svo

$0

All administrative expenses are paid for through the Pension Trust
and accounted for under reporting rqquirements under GASB
Statement No. 68.

2019 Municipal Retirees ofTexas Mortality Tables. The rates are
projected on a lully generational basis with scale UMP.

2019 Municipal Retirees ofTexas Mortality Tables with a 4 year
selforward for males and a 3 year selforward for fernales. ln
addition, a 3.5% and 37o minimum mortality rate will be applied to
reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled
for nrales and females, respectively. The rates are projected on a
fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the floor.

Mortality rates service retirees

Mortality rates disabled retirees

The actuarial assumptions were developed prinrarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS over
the four year period from Deccnrber 3 l, 2014 through December 31, 2018. They were adopted in 2019 and first used in
the December 3 l- 2019 actuarial valuation.

Discout|l Rqte
The discount rate used to nreasure the Total OPEB Liability was 2.757o. Because the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund
is considered an unfunded trust under GASB Statement No. 75, lhe relevant discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB
Liability is based on the Fidelity lndex's "20-Year Muncipal GO AA Index" rate as of December 31, 2019.

)0
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SEPTEMBER 30. 2O2O

III. DE'TAII,ED NOTES ON ALL FL]NDS. CONTINUED

K. Othcr Post-Employment Benefit Plans, Continued

2. 'Ii\lRS - Suoolemental l)c,r th Bencfit I utld. Continucd

('honges in the Total OPl.,ll Liability
lncrcitsc

(Decrcase)

Total OI'EB
Lirbilit)

(a)

Balance at Decembcr i l- 2018
Changes for the year:

Scr\ice Cost

lntercst
I)illerence bct\\een cxpected aJd actual experiencc

Changes in assumptions

Bcncfit payments

Balanoe at DecembLr 31, 2019 $; 767.16.1

Sensitirih,ol the 'lolal OPI.)R Liability tu ('hqnge., in the Discount Rate
The follorving presents the total OPEB liability ofthe City, calculated using the discount rate of 2.757o, as well as what
the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discourlt rate that is l-percentage-point lower
(1.7 5Y.) or I -percentage-point higher (3.75%) than the current rate:

$ (164.768

19.,108

24,913
(57.660)

121-842
(5.907)

lYo I)ecrease in

Discount Ratc

( urrclrt
Discounl Rale

(2.',7 5'1,)

l7o lncrease in
Discount Ratc

13.7 5%)(1.15"1,

lbtal OPEB liability $ 927,175 $ 76'7.364 $ 644,091

OPEB Plan F'i&rciary Nel Position
There are no plan assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 ofGASB Statenlent No. 75

OPEII Expense and Def'crrcci Outflows of Rcsources ancl l)elerr-ecl lnllorvs ol'l{csourccs llclated ltr OI'lllls
For the year ended Septcrirber 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $64,386 rclated to the '|MRS
Supplemental Dcath Benefit Fund and a total ol$138.575 OPEB expense including the City Retiree Health Care Plan.

At September 30, 2020. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEBs frorn the following sources:

Del'errcd

Outfloss oI'
Resourccs

Dcferrcd
Inlloss of
Resources

l)ifference bct\\cen cxpected and actual economic expericnce $
Difference in actuarial assumptions 89,488
Dilference betrrcen projected ard actual in\rstment eamings
Contributions sutx;cquent to the measurement date 5.265
Total $ 94,7 33

$ 28.0q5

5l

$ 28.095
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FTJNDS, CONTINT]ED

K. Other Post-Employnrcnt Benelit Plans, (lontinued

2. 1'MRS - SuDDlemental Death Bencfit Fu|ld, Continucd

$5,265 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs resulting from contributions subsequert to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction ofthe total OPEB liability for the year ending Septernber .i0,2020.
Other anrounts reported as deferred outflorvs and inflorvs of resources related to OPEBS will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Ycar lindcd
f)ecember 3l

r.\et del'ened

outflo\\li
( in [lous)

ofresources
2020
2021
2022
2023
'lbtal

20.065

20.065

I t.835
9.428

5

$ 61.393

L. Tax /\ll|tcn)ents

The City entered into property tax abatcment agreenrenls with local businesses under the Texas Tax Code Chapter 312
"State Propefiy RedevelopDent atld 'lax Abalemenl Act" (the Act). As required by the Act, the City includes its own
guidelines and criteria in granting abatcmcDts. Under the City's program, projects must do one ofthe following: l) increase
property valuatiorl,2) provide additional nerv firll-tinre equivalent jobs, or 3) increase payroll annually. Abatements are
granted for up to I 007o over a spec ifi ed tim e period not to exceed l0 years and rnay be extended to either new or expanding
businesses. Abatement is givcn to providc significant, long-term, positive economic inrpact to the conrnrunity using local
contmctors and the rcsident workfolcc 1() the maximum exterlt feasible and by developing, redeveloping, and inrproving
real estatc within the C:ity. Uscs available lor tax abalemeflt include manufacturing, distribution certers, corporate or
regional office parks, rescarch facilitics. and small entrepreneurs. Ifthe agreement is terminated, all taxes whiclr otherwise
would have becn paid to the f ily withoul the benefit ofabaternent will become a debt to the City and shall be due to the
City within 60 days after the ternrination. lhe follorving table provides disclosures relevant for the fiscal vear ended
September i0,2020. Due to the snrall volurnc ofcurrent agrcements, all current agreements have been disclosed.
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III. DETAII,ED NOTES ON AI,I, FI]NDS, CONTINTIED

L. Tax Abatements, Continuc(l

Namc o{-

Business

'lerms of
AbalementCritcrin

Anllerson Count\
Applicd Value

ProFrl) lrNcs

A.batcd

lY20le

Pentecom

Rhone Funeral Home

Sanderson Farms Proccssing

Increase in propertl'tar rdue of
$225.000 and cre atio n o l' 3 5

nc\\ lull-timcjobs

Increase in propcrty 1a\ \'nlue ol'
3i1,400.000 and creation ol'5
new lirll-time jobs

lncrcirsc in property tali value ol'
$751000.000 and creation of
900 new tull-time jobs

100% in 2015.70% in 2016
50% in 2017 and 2018. and

25Voio20l9

ll0% in 2017. 60% in 20 | tt.

40% in 2019. and 20% in 2020

90% in 2015-2020. 85% in
2021. md 80% in 2022

90%in20l5-2020.85%in
2O2l . ai 8Ol" in 2022

$ 876.594 $ t.493

1.i88.353 ,l.u 7.r

85.2i0.190 5 22.5 90

2"1.107.75 0 l.l9,0.tl

s I t2-203-187

Saidcrson Farms Halchar\
lncrcirsc in propertv ta\ mlue ol-

$16.000.000 and crcation of90
re\! full-timejobs

s 617.t)99

N'1. ( eltain Asset lletircnreDf Obligttions

Llnder the new GASB Statement No. 83, Certain lssel Rctiranent Oblig.nions. (GASBS 8.3 ) a government should recognize
an asset retirement obligation (ARO) rvhen the liability is incurred and reasonably estimable. A liability is incurred by both
an internal and cxternal obligating event.

Per GASBS 83. the City has an ARO for its rvastewater trealment plant and water rvells due to federal and state regulations
that require the City to mininrize the future need for further maintenance and minimizes or controls post-closure escape of
hazardous waste, hazardous constituents, or hazardous waste decomposition products to the ground water or surface waters.

At this time, the City cannot reasonably estimate the ARO for the wastewater trealnrent plant because the cost ofreruediation
depends on numerous variables such as the thickness of residual waste and contaminated soil beneath the waste and the
actual pollutaDts that will be preserlt.

ln addition, the City cannot reasonably estimate the ARO for the water wells at this time due to unknown yariances at the
time ofclosure that determine thc cost ofretirenrent such as the remaining amount ofwater, ifany; the condition ofthe well
at the time ofabandonment: and the large range ofestimated average per-foot cost to plug a rvell.

Therefore, no liability has been recorded in these financial statements for these AROS as of September 30, 2020.

N. Notes Receivnble

In December of 2018, Palestinc Economic Development Corporation (PEDC), a component unit of the City, entered into
an economic developmcnt incentivc performance agreement with a Minnesota corporation (Conrpany) in which the
Company agreed to develop, maiutain, and open a facility within the City; continuously enrploy, staff. and maintain at least
20 full-time enrployees at the facility by December 31. 2018 and i0 full-time employees at the facility by December 31.
20 l9 and thereafter for I 0 ycars; and certiry to PEDC, eveq' 90 days. that the Company is in compliance with the terms ol
the performance agreement. beginning $,ith the issuance ofa certificate of occupanc_v'' fbr the facility.

5.',]
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III. DETAILED NO-IES ON At,T, FTINDS. (]ONTINT]ED

N. Notes Receivable, ( ontinucd

As part ofthe agreement, PEDC remitted a cash incentive grant in the amount of$100.000 to lhe Company in Decetrrber
2018. PEDC agrecd to forgive the Conrpany's obligation to repal'the economic incentive forthe Company's facility in trvo
equal amouDts each occurring or the first two annual anniversary dates of the issuance ofthe facility's cenificate of
occupancy, ifthe Company is not in default under the perfomrance agreement. The Company did not certify to PEDC thal
it was in compliance with the lerms ofthe performance agreement during the year ended Septernber 30, 2020, so no anrount
ofthe note rvas forgiven. ln addition. no repaynrents lvere received either. The balance ofthe note receivable at Scptcnrber
30.2020 is $100,000.

O. Subsequent Evcnts

ln October 2020, the City paid a settlcment of $880.000 to L.S. Equipment Company. More information can be found in
Note lll- 1.

ln October 2020, February 2021, March 2021, and May 2021, the City entered into nine additional vehicle leases with
Enterprise FM Trust.

In December 2020. the City issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Tarable Series 2020, totaling $2,215,000 to relirnd
the City's utility fund and retail fund debt at a lower interest rate.

In April 2021. the City issued (bmbination'l'ax & Revenue Ceftificates olObligation, Series 2021, totaling $4,585.000 to
f'urd the watcr trcatrDcnl plant generator, lifl station lorce main upgrade, and pay for the costs ofissuing the certificates.

ln January 2021 . the ( ity entcred inlo a constt uclion conh act for the hospital lift station in the amount of $ 1.245,000

In Decenbe[ 2020, PEDC entered into an econonric developn]enl incentive performance and revenue sharing agrecment
with Etex Comnunications, L[,C in rvhich l')liDC will grant up to $ I,100,000 to Etex Comnrunications, LLC for capital
investment and installation ior fiber optic nelwerk for high-speed internet and telephone services.

In January 2021, PEDC eDtered into a loan agreenrent with Government Capital Corporation for $ 1,015,000 with an inlerest
rate of 2.617o and a nlaturity date of February I 5, 203 I to help finance th€ grant to Etex Cornrn unications, LLC. The loan
is secured by pledged sales tax revenue. Paynrents of$58.238.53 begin on August 15, 2021 and are due every August l5rr'
and February l5'h.

Subsequent events have been evaluated throLrgh July 15, 2021- the date the financial statenrerts were available to be issued

Iu June 2021 , the City closed on the salc ofthc Palestine Mall u.ith a third party for $ 1,426,248.
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Ri)nx)nd lanres & Associatcs. Inc
5956 SherD l-ilne. Suite 1900
I)allas. I eras 75225

Rl'l: $_ City ofPalestine, l-exas Combination'lax and Revenue Certificates ofObligation, Series 2022 (Fonvard
Delivery) (the "Ccrtifi cates")

l.rdios and Gcntlenen

'lhe undersigned (the "l'urchascl") hcleby agrees to purchase froor Raymond Jrnles & Associates, Inc. (lhe
"l{cprcsentative"), R.W. Baird & Co. lncorpor ted. nnd Huntington Securities, lnc. (t()gelher with the Reprcsentative, the
"tJDdcr$,riters") when, as. ard ifissued and dclivcrcd to lhe Represenlative by thc City ofPalestinc. lexas (the "City"), and thc
IInderwrilers agrees to sellto the Purchaser:

scriLis Par Amount Mftturitl l)a1c Interesl Rate CUSIP Numbcr Yicld Price

ollhe above-referenced Cenificates (thc "l'urchrsed ( ertificales ) oflered b] the City undcr thc Prcliminary Official Statemert
d:rlcd I 20ll (the 'Prelinlinrr\ OIlicinl Slrlencnl )and the Olhcirl Statcnrent rclatirrg trr thc Purch$ed Ce(ilicaleJ
(latcd August 25. 2021 (lhe Olficial Slatcnrcnl ). rcccipt and rc\ icN ofcopies ol-Nirich is hcrch) ackno\r'lcd8cd- at the purchasc
pricc and Nith the in1crcs1 ratcs. priocipal aruounls. an(l nralurit) dalcs shoNrl aboYe. and on thc lir(her t€rms and conditions set
li)rlh in this Dclayed Dclivcry Contract. Capil lilcd tcrnrs used but no! defined herein shall havc the nreanings ascribed theretu il
lhc Ollicial Statemcnt. The Purchased Ccrtificalcs arc hcing purchrsed bl the Llnclerwriters pursurnt t() a Iror$ard Delivery Bond
l\rrchase Aelreement between lhe Cily and thc licprcscntativc (thc Forrverd DclivcD'Bond Pnrchasc Agreement'').

'lhe Purchaser hereby confirn)s thal it hrs |oceived and relie\\,ed the Preliminary Olficial Slatenlent and the Otllcial
lllnlcnrcnl (including. wilho lilnitaliou. the scclion cn{illcd "1he Cerlitlcales - Ccnair (i)nsidcmtions RcBarding Forward
l)clivcry ofthe Cettificates"). has considored lhe risk s associated with pulchasing the Purchascd ( ortilicatcs and is duly authorizcd
l(r purchdse the Purchased Ceftificates. 

_lhe 
l'urchilscrllckno\\ledges and agrees {hxt thc Purchascd Ccrtilicalcs are being sold o e

''lbrNard" basis. and the Purchascr hcrcbl purchascs itnd agrees to accepl dclivcr) of lhc I'urchased Certificates from the
llcprcscntali\e on or about Januaq 4.2022 (lhc li)r\\ur(l l)eliven Date"). asthel nra\ bc issucd nddelireredinaccordance\\ith
lhc ltruard Dcliveq Bond Purchasc Agreeoleol.

Pa) ment for the Purchased Cenilicalcs on thc |orward Delilerv Date shall be nrade 1o lhe Representative or upoD its
order on lhc Forward Delive Dale npon dcli\cry lo lhc Purchaserofthe Purchased Ccrlificates thrcugh thc book-entry s)stem of
I he l)epository l rust Conpan]. 

_fhe 
Purchrsor agrecs lhat in no elent shall the Underrrriters bo rcsponsible or Iiable for any clairn

or loss. whelher direcl or consequential. \rhich the Porchascr mal srlTer itlhe Cit) does nol for aD) reason issue and deliver the
abovc-ret'ercnced Bonds.

LIpon issuancc bv thc C ity o f lllc Il o o.ls and pu rchasc thcrcol b) thc Under\\'ritc rs. thc ob ligat ion ol thc Pu rchascr to takc
dclivcry ofthe I'urchased Cerliticates hereLrnd.r shall be unconditionalexcept in thc eveol lhat bctwcen thc date ofthis Delaycd
[)clivcry Contract and the F'orward Delivery I)xtc oDc ol'thc follou,ing events shall have occ!rcd:

( | ) there shall have been ! (-han8e in t-a\\' (defined belo\y);

(2) as a result of any lcgislaltnl. rcSulalion. ruling. order- relcase, court dccision orjudgment or action by the U.S.
I)epa(ment oflhe Treasury, the lntenlal Rct'enuc Scrvicc. or al1.t agenc) oI1he State cither enactcd, issucd. effective, adopted or
proposed (but only with respect to an) such proposcd lcgislation- rcgulation- ruling. order. rclcasc. court decision orjudgmcnt or
aclioIr which continues to be proposed as ofthe li)r\ard Dclive0 Date). or lbr anr othcr reason. Bond Counscl cannot issue an
opinion substantiallt in the form attachcd to lhc Ollicial Sratcnrcnt as APPENDIX D 1() rhc eflbct thal the intercst on the Purchased
Ccrtilicates is excluded from gross inconre Ibr Iederal income tax purposes under Section 103 ol'lhe United States lntemalRevenue
Codc of 1986 (or comparable provisions ofaru' succcssor lederal tax laNs);

(3) legislation shall he enactcd. or a dccision by a court oIthe United States shall be rendered. or any action shall
be taken by, or on bchallof, thc Sccuritics Ilxchangc Conrmission which, in thc rcasonablc opirion ol'thc Rcprcsentative, follor\ ing
consullation with the City, has the elltct ofrcquiring thc i'urchased Certificates to be registcred under lhe Securities Act of 1933,
as amcndcd. or rcquires the qualification of thc Orclinancc under the Trust Indenture Act oI lg]9. as amended. or an evenl shall
occul rvhich !r'ould cause thc salc ofthe Purchitscd Ccrtilicatcs to bc in violation of any provision ofthe f'edcral or Statc of Texrs
scc!rities Ia\Ysi

(4) the Ollcial StateureDl as ol lhc datc ofClosing (as defincd in the For\\ard I)clivcry Bond Purchase Agreenrenl)
(* hich is expccted to occur on or aboul Septenrhcr 28. 2021). or the Updated Oflicial Statcnrcnt k) bc providcd b) thc Ciq purslranl



to lhe terms ol'the f'o ?rd Deliver-'\ Bond Purchasc Agrcement as ofthe For\vard l)elivcr] I)ate. contained or contains an untrue
statement or lnisslatement ofmatcrial lact or (}lnillcd or omits to state a material fact necessarv in order 1o make the statements and
inlormalion containcd therein Dot nlislcadinE in an\ Inalerial respect: or

(5) as ofthe lbruard Delivery Dalc. the Purchased Ceflificates are no longer ralcd investoent grade by S&P
Clobal Ratings.

'l'he Undcrwriters shall notill' thc l'urchaser pr(nnptly in thc c,,,ent thal the Undcrwrilers bccomc arvare ofthe occurrcncc
ol aDy ol tho events described in clauscs ( I ) l|r)!gh (5) aho!e.

A 'ChaDge in Law" oleans (i) il[] chaDge in or addition to applicablc fcdcrlrl or state law, rvhethel statutory or as
intcrprctcd bv the courts or by lederal or stale rlgcocics. irlcluding any changcs in or nerv rulcs. rcgullrtions or other pronouncements
or inlerpretations bl lederal or state agcncics: (ii1 tln) lcgislation enacted b] thc Congress ofthc tlnited States (ifsuch ehncted
lcgislation has an eflective datc \\hich is oD or bcli)rc lhe l-orward Delivery Dale). (iii) an)- h\r. rute or rcgulation cnacled bv an)
govcrnntenlal bodl- dcpartment or agcnu\ (il such crlactcd la\'. rule or rcgulalion has an cllcclivc datc rvhich is on or betbrc thc
l:or\rardl)eli\er-\Dale)or(i\)an).iudsrrrunl.rulingororderissuedblan!courtoradnrinislratilcbod).\\hichinanlsuchcase
would. (A) as 1t) lhe l{eprescntative. pl1.)hihit thc Reprcsenlati\ L' lrorn conrplcting the trndcrNritiog ot the Purchascd Cer{ificates or
sellinS thc Purchflsed Cerlificatcs or thc hcnclicial orrnership intcrcsts rherein to thc public. or (I]) as to lhe Cit)- \\outd nrake lhe
co rplclion ofthe issuance. sale ol dclirel ol'lhc l\rrchased Cel1ificatcs illegal.

ll the Charrge ofLas corlrplclcl\ tlin)iDllcs the exclusiol lrom gross inconrc lor lcdcral inconre tax purposes of intcrest
pa)ablcon stateorlocal bonds. thc llDdehrlilcrs rrould nol be obligatcd io purchase thc l'urchascd Ccrtificates l',onl the Cit\'-
and lhc Purchaser rT ould not be requircd to acccpl deli\ crv ol the Purchased Ccrtilicates fronr lhc I lnderrvriters-

l'he Purchaser acknowlcdScs aDd agrccs lhal thc Irurchased Ceftificates arc hcinS sokl on a 'forward'or "dclared
dcli\cr!" basis lbr dclivcry oD the Ii)r\yarLl l)eli\cry Dalc and lhat the Purchaser is obl,gatcd lo takc up aud pa! for the l)ulclrascd
( crtilicates oll thc Iorward Dcliver,\ I) tc L)oloss onc ol lhe flvc cvents describcd abovc shall ha!u occurred.

'l_hc Purchaser ackno\lledgcs lhal it r!ill not be able to \rithdra$ its order as descrihcd hcrein. and will Dot other\vise be
cxcused lrour pcrlbrmance ofits obligations to lakc up and pay fbr thc Purchased Certitlcatcs on thc Forward Delivery Date because
ofmarkct or credit changes. including specilicrll). but not limited to (a) except for the rating change describcd in cvenl number 5

above. changes iu the ratings assigncd to lhc I\rrchascd Ccrtitlcates betNeen thc datc ol Ck)sing and the for\r'ard DelivcD.Date or
changes in the credit associaled \\ ith lhc Ptlrchascd Ccrtilicates generallv- and (b) changcs in thc financial condition. operations.
Perfornr ancc. p roperties or pro spects o f thc ( it) liom thc datc hcreo f lo the I-o N"rd Dcl i\ cD I )ntc. I_he P urchaser ackno* ledge s
and agrees that it Nill remain obliSalcd k) |urchasc the Purchased Cenificates in accordaDcc \iih the terms hereof. even if thc
I)urchascr decides to scllthe Purchas€d ( cflilicllcs lollo\ inB the dale hereof. unlcss the I,orchascr sells lhe Purchascd Ce(ificates

coolirmalion ofpurchase order and a dclaled dcli\cr\, conltact in the samc respective for,rs as thal executed by the Purchaser.

Thc Pulchaser lcpresenls ar)d \yarriurls lhirt. as ofthc dale of this Delaycd I)oli\,er) (i)nl[nc!, the Purchaser is nol
prohibiled fronl purchasing the Purchasc(l ( crlillcalcs hereby agreed to be purchascd by it undcr the laws ofthe iurisdictiul to

iolo this l)ela)ed Dclivery Contracl at)d lo nrrlir n its obligations hercnndcr.

'lhe Purchaser agrees thal it \\ill t all times satisfy the minimufi initial and nrnintcnance margin requircments of
Rcgulalion'l ol thc Board of Govcrnors ol-lhe lrcderal Resene System- Rule 431 ofthc New York (iovernors o[the federal
Reservc S)sleln. Rule 4210 ofthe Firrancial lndustn Re8ulator)' Authorib . and anv othcr margin rcgulatknls applicable to the
IJnderwrilcrs relaled to the Purchased Ccrtilicalcs as nray be communicated b] the Rcprcscnlati\,e to thc Purchaser.

l h is Dclal ed De liverS Conlracl $ il l in ure lo lhe be nefit of and be binding upon the parl ies hereto and their respectivc
succcssors. but will not be assignable b) eilhcr pary'$ilhout the prior written consenI oflhe other.

'l he Purchaser ackno$lcdgcs thal lhc t lndcr$riler is entering into Forrvard l)elir.c11 Bond Purchase Agreement \fith the
( ily lo purchasc the Purchased Cenilicales in rcliancc iD part on the performance b] thc I'urchaser ol its obligations hereuuder.

'l'his Dela)cd Deli\er) CLmlract may hc cxccutcd b) either ofthe pafiics hereh in anl nunrher ofcounterparts, each ol
which shall bc deemed to bc an originnl. bLrl all sLrch counterpans shalllogether constillrtc (nrc nnd lhc sanlc instrurrent.

11 is undcrstood that the acccplance b! lhc Purchaser olany Dclayed Deliver) (i)[tract (ilcluding this one) is in the
I\rrchaser's sole discretion and lhat. withoul lirniting tlre lbrcgoirrg. acceptances ol such contracts nccd nol be on a first-come- firs1-
scrled basis. Ifthis Delalcd Deliven Contracl is ileceptable to thc Purchaser. it is requcstcd that thc Purchaser sign the form ol'



acceptance below and mail. email or otherwisc dclivcr one ofthe counterparts hereof to the Representative at its address set forth
below. This will becomc a binding contracl b€$veen the l]nderwrilcrs and the Purchaser when such counterparl is so nrailcd,
emailed or otherwise delivered by the Purchascr- This Delayed Dclivcry Contract does not constitule a customer confirmation
pursuant to Rule G- | 5 ofthc Municipal Sccuritics Rulemaking floard.

This Dclaled l)elivery Contract shall bc construed and administcred undcr the la\\'s ol'thc SIale of NeN York.

[PI]RCI IASERJ

Lly:
Name
'li1lc:

Address:
TelephoDe:

Accepled:

RAYN4OND .IAMLS & ASSOCIATES. lN( .

ll)
Name:
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CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022
(Forward Delivery)

WE HAVE represented the City of Palestine, Texas (the "lssuer"), as its bond counsel in
connection with an issue ofcertificates of obligation (the "Certificates") described as follows:

CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS, COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF

OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022 (Forward Delivery), dated August 15,2022, in the principal
amount of 5_.

The Certificates mature, bear interest, are subject to redemption prior to maturity and
may be transferred and exchanged as set out in the Certificates and in the ordinance
adopted by the City Council ofthe lssuer authorizing their issuance (the "Ordinance").

WE HAVE represented the lssuer as its bond counsel for the purpose of rendering an opinion
with respect to the legality and validity of the Certificates under the Constitution and laws of the State
of Texas and with respect to the excludability of interest on the Certificates from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. We have not investigated orverified original proceedings, records, data or
other material, but have relied solely upon the transcript of proceedings described in the following
paragraph. We have not assumed any responsibility with respect to the financial condition or
capabilities ofthe lssuer or the disclosure thereof in connection with the sale ofthe Certificates. Our
role in connection with the lssuer's Official Statement prepared for use in connection with the sale of
the Certificates has been limited as described therein.

lN OUR CAPACITY as bond counsel, we have participated in the preparation of and have
examined a transcript of certified proceedings pertaining to the Certificates, on which we have relied in
giving our opinion. The transcript contains certified copies of certain proceedings of the lssuer,
customary certificates of officers, agents and representatives of the lssuer and other public officials and
other certified showings relating to the authorization and issuance of the Certificates. We also have
analyzed such laws, regulations, guidance, documents and other materials as we have deemed
necessary to render the opinions herein. We have also examined executed Certificate No. 1 of this
issue.

ln providing the opinions set forth herein, we have relied on representations and certifications
of the City and other parties involved with the issuance of the Certificates with respect to matters solely
within the knowledge of the City and such parties, which we have not independently verified. ln
addition, we have assumed for purposes of this opinion continuing compliance with the covenants in the
Ordinance, including, but not limited to, covenants relating to the tax-exempt status of the Certificates.

January _, 2022
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BASED ON SUCH EXAMINATION, IT IS OUR OPINION THAT:

(A) The transcript of certified proceedings evidences complete legal authority for
the issuance of the Certificates in full compliance with the Constitution and laws
of the State of Texas presently effective and, therefore, the Certificates
constitute valid and legally binding obligations of the lssuer;

(B) A continuing ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the City of
Palestine necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Certificates, has

been levied and pledged irrevocably for such purposes, within the limit
prescribed by law, and the total indebtedness of the lssuer, including the
Certificates, does not exceed any constitutional, statutory or other limitations.
ln addition, the Certificates are further secured by a limited pledge of the
surplus revenues of the lssuer's combined waterworks and sewer system as

provided in the Ordinance; and

(C) lnterest on the Certificates is excludable from gross income for federal income
tax purposes under section 103 of the lnternal Revenue Code of 1985, as

amended. ln addition, interest on the Certificates is not a specific preference
item for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.

The rights of the owners of the Certificates are su bject to the applicable provisions of the federal
bankruptcy laws and any other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors of political subdivisions
generally, and may be limited by general principles of equity which permit the exercise of judicial
discretion.

Except as stated above, we express no opinion as to the amount of interest on the Certificates
or any federal, state or localtax consequences resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, or the
acquisition, ownership or disposition of, the Certificates. This opinion is specifically limited to the laws
of the State of Texas and, to the extent applicable, the laws of the United States of America. Further, in

the event that the representations of the lssuer and other parties upon which we have relied are
determined to be inaccurate or incomplete or the lssuer fails to comply with the covenants of the
Ordinance, interest on the Certificates could become includable in gross income for federal income tax
purposes from the date of the original delivery of the Certificates, regardless of the date on which the
event causing such inclusion occurs.

Our opinions are based on existing law and our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof and
may be affected by certain actions that may be taken or omitted on a later date. We assume no duty to
update or supplement our opinions, and this opinion letter may not be relied upon in connection with
any changes to the law or facts, or actions taken or omitted, after the date hereof.



SPh( llvlEN Nlt rN IC l l'AL BOr\-t) INS[IRAN( 1, l'OI.l( \'

\tP[]\DIX I



r\ssunro
GUARANTY'

MUNICIPAT

ISSUER:

BONDS: $ in aggregate principalamount of

MUNICIPAL BOND
INSURANCE POLICY

No: -N

E Date

") or

ach Own ject only to
rincipal of and

Nonpayment by

ASSURED GUARANTY I'UNICIPAL CORP. ('AGI\,l) ration ei\€d, hereb v
UNCONDiTIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY agrees to pay to the 1

"Paying Agent") (as set forth in the documentation proviling for
"T
of nds) for

ent (the
cof
e

the Bonds, for the benefit of the Owners or. at the election of
the terms of this Policy (which includes each endors€ment . that nofth

d

inteest on the Bonds that shala become Due for Paymenl but s
the lssuer

npaid

On the later of the day on which such
Business Day next following the Business Da
AGIVI will disburse to or for the benefit of
on fre Bond that is then Due for Payme

er of

inte b
VE

a

ue for Payment or the
Notice of Nonpalment,

nt of prnc pal ofand interest

only upon receipt by AGII, in a form ably
recei\e payment of the principal
appropriate inslruments of assign
principal or interest that is Due for

Nonpayment by the lssuer, but
ctory of (a evidence of the Owne/s right to

then

un
n

for

n AGir. A Notlce of Nonpayment will be
deemed recei\ed on a g iven Bus s Day if it is rior to 1.00 p m. (New York time) on such
Business Day; otherwise il eemed rece the next Business Day. lf any Notice of

n . it shall deemed not to ha\e been recei\,ed by AGM for
sen Msh romptly so advise the Trustee, Paying Agent or

bm ed Notice of Nonpayment. Upon disbursement in
th ner of the Bond, any appurtenant coupon to the Bond or right

to receipt of p Ip of or irte t on the Bond and shall be tully subrogated to the rights of the
Owner, incl tto payments under the Bond, to the extent of any payment by
AGN4 he nt by

purposes of the p
Owner, as approp
respect of a Bood,

the th

p1

Fi
m

t and (b) evidence. includ ng any
t, that all of lh neTs hts with respect to payment of such

ent shali thereu

rustee or Payinq Aqent for the benefit of the Owners shall, to
rge the n of AG[i] under this Policy

nl

to

exlent exp ly modif ed by an endorsement hereto, the following terms shall have
meanln gs spec r all purposes of this Policy. "Business Day" means any day other than (a) a

ayo on which banking institutions in the State of New York or the Insureis
or required by law or executive order io remain closed. "Due for Payment'

the principal of a Bond, payable on the stated maturity date thereof or the dateen
on which tre same all ha\e been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer to
any earlie ich payment is due by reason of call for redempton (other than by mandatory sinking
fund redem acceleration or other ad\€ncement of maturity unless Aclvl shall elect, in its sole
discretion, to y such principal due upon such acceleration togeher with any accrued interest to the date
of acceleration and (b) when referring to interest on a Bond, payable on the stated date for payment of
interest. "Nonpayment' means, in respect of a Bond, the failure of the lssuer to ha\€ provided sufficient
funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payrnent in full of all principal and
interest that is Due for Payment on such Bond. "Nonpaymenl' shall also include, in respect ot a Bond, any
palment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment made to an Owner by or on behalf of the lssuer
which has been recovered tom such Owner pursuant to the

Nonpayment recei\€d



United Stales Bankruptcy Code by a ttustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order
of a court having competent jurisdiction. 'Notrce' means telephonic or telecopied noilce, subsequently
confirmed in a signed writing, or written notice by reg,stered or certified mail, from an O/vner, the Trustee or
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Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the date such claimed amount became Due for Payment. 'Owne',,
means, in respect of a Bond, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entilled under the
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AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF 
PALESTINE, TEXAS, COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2022 (FORWARD DELIVERY), 
IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $_________; AWARDING 

THE SALE THEREOF;  LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; 
PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID CERTIFICATES; APPROVING A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND FORWARD DELIVERY 

PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND 
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local 
Government Code, as amended, the City of Palestine, Texas (the “City”), is authorized to issue 
certificates of obligation for the purposes specified in this Ordinance and for the payment of all 

or a portion of the contractual obligations for professional services, including that of engineers, 
attorneys, and financial advisors in connection therewith, and to sell the same for cash as herein 

provided; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized to provide that such obligations will be payable from 
and secured by the levy of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax against all taxable property 

within the City, in combination with all or a part of certain revenues of the City’s combined 
waterworks and sewer system (the “System”) remaining after payment of any obligations of the 

City payable in whole or in part from a lien or pledge of such revenues that would be superior to 
the obligations to be authorized herein as authorized by Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the 
best interests of the City and its citizens that it issue such certificates of obligation authorized by 

this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution heretofore passed by this governing body, notice of 
intention to issue certificates of obligation of the City payable as provided in this Ordinance was 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas (the “Notice of Intention”), which notice provided that the principal amount of 

such certificates of obligation would not exceed $42,000,000 and the proceeds would be used for 
the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the purposes set forth in 
Section 3.1 hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Intention stated that the City Council intended to pass an 
ordinance authorizing the issuance of the certificates of obligation at the August 25, 2021 City 

Council meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Intention was also published continuously on the City’s 
website for at least 45 days before August 25, 2021 in accordance the requirements of law; and 

WHEREAS, no petition of any kind has been filed with the City Secretary, any member 
of the City Council or any other official of the City, protesting the issuance of such certificates of 

obligation; and 
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WHEREAS, this City Council is now authorized and empowered to proceed with the 
issuance of said certificates of obligation and to sell the same for cash; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as 

required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PALESTINE, 
TEXAS THAT: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.1. Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in 

this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on 

which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located 
are required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Certificate” means any of the Certificates. 

“Certificate Date” means the date designated as the initial date of the Certificates by 
Section 3.2(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Certificates” means the certificates of obligation authorized to be issued by Section 3.1 
of this Ordinance and designated as “City of Palestine, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022 (Forward Delivery)” in the aggregate principal amount of 

$__________. 

“City” means the City of Palestine, Texas. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the payment for the Certificates. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and, with respect to a 
specific section thereof, such reference shall be deemed to include (a) the Regulations 

promulgated under such section, (b) any successor provision of similar import hereafter enacted, 
(c) any corresponding provision of any subsequent Internal Revenue Code and (d) the 

regulations promulgated under the provisions described in (b) and (c). 

“Delivery Date” means the date of the initial delivery of the Certificates, anticipated to be 
January 4, 2022. 

“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means (i) with respect to the initial Paying 
Agent/Registrar named in this Ordinance, the Designated Payment/Transfer Office as designated 
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in the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, or at such other location designated by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the office of such 

successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the City and such successor. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any 

successor securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 

to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“EMMA” means Electronic Municipal Market Access System.  

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 10.1 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 

in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 

“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) 
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City 
Council. 

“Forward Delivery Purchase Contract” means, the forward delivery purchase contract 
between the City and the Underwriters providing for the sale of the Certificates to the 
Underwriters. 

“Initial Certificate” means the initial certificate authorized by Section 3.4 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by 
Section 2.2 of this Ordinance. 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the Certificates is 

scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, such dates being 
February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2022. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  

“Net Revenues” means the gross revenues of the System less the expenses of operation 
and maintenance as said expenses are defined by Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code, as 

amended. 

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance. 
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“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Certificate or Certificates, as 
shown in the Register. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially Regions Bank, or any successor thereto as 
provided in this Ordinance. 

“Prior Lien Bonds” means any and all bonds or other obligations of the City presently 
outstanding or that may be hereafter issued, payable from and secured by a first lien on and 
pledge of the Net Revenues or by a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues subordinate to a first 

lien and pledge of such Net Revenues but superior to the lien and pledge of the Surplus 
Revenues made for the Certificates. 

“Project” means the purposes for which the Certificates are issued as set forth in 
Section 3.1. 

 “Record Date” means the last business day of the month next preceding an Interest 

Payment Date. 

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.6(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Regulations” means the applicable proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations 
promulgated under the Code or, to the extent applicable to the Code, under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954, as such regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the City 
and DTC. 

“Representative” means the representative of the Underwriters named in the Purchase 
Contract. 

 “Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.  

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.3(b). 

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.3(b). 

“Surplus Revenues” means the revenues of the System remaining after payment of all 
operation and maintenance expenses thereof, and all debt service, reserve, and other 

requirements in connection with the City’s Prior Lien Bonds. 

“Surplus Revenue Fund” means the surplus revenue fund established by Section 2.3 of 

this Ordinance. 

“System” as used in this Ordinance means the City’s combined waterworks and sewer 
system, including all present and future additions, extensions, replacements, and improvements 

thereto. 
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“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates as the same 

come due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Certificates duly called for 
redemption prior to maturity. 

“Underwriters” means Huntington Capital Markets, Inc. and Stifel, Nicolaus & 
Company, Incorporated.   

Section 1.2. Findings. 

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions 

hereof.  

Section 1.3. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 

have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 

be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.4. Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 

words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural 
number and vice versa. 

(b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally 

construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 

ARTICLE II 

 
SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.1. Payment of the Certificates. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State 
of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each 

succeeding year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the 
City, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service requirements 

of the Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates, and (ii) a sinking fund for their 
payment at redemption or maturity or a sinking fund of two percent per annum (whichever 

amount is the greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and 
costs of collection. 
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(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against 
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the City most recently approved in accordance with law, 

and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 

required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and 
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates when 
and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

(d) The amount of taxes to be provided annually for the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Certificates shall be determined and accomplished in the following manner: 

(i) The City’s annual budget shall reflect (a) the amount of debt service 
requirements to become due on the Certificates in the next succeeding Fiscal Year of the 
City, (b) the amount on deposit in the Surplus Revenue Fund and the Interest and Sinking 

Fund, as of the date such budget is prepared (after giving effect to any payments required 
to be made during the remainder of the then current Fiscal Year), and (c) the amount of 

Surplus Revenues estimated and budgeted to be available for the payment of such debt 
service requirements on the Certificates during the next succeeding Fiscal Year of the 
City. 

(ii) The amount required to be provided in the succeeding Fiscal Year of the 
City from ad valorem taxes shall be the amount, if any, the debt service requirements to 

be paid on the Certificates in the next succeeding Fiscal Year of the City exceeds the sum 
of (a) the amount shown to be on deposit in the Surplus Revenue Fund and the Interest 
and Sinking Fund (after giving effect to any payments required to be made during the 

remainder of the then current Fiscal Year) at the time the annual budget is prepared, and 
(b) the Surplus Revenues shown to be budgeted and available for payment of said debt 

service requirements. 

(iii) Following the final approval of the annual budget of the City, the 
governing body of the City shall, by ordinance, levy an ad valorem tax at a rate sufficient 

to produce taxes in the amount determined in paragraph (ii) above, to be utilized for 
purposes of paying the principal of and interest on the Certificates in the next succeeding 

Fiscal Year of the City. 

(e) The City hereby covenants and agrees that the Surplus Revenues are hereby 
irrevocably pledged equally and ratably to the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, 

if any, and interest on the Certificates, as the same become due. 

(f) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner 

permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or 
appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the 

aggregate principal amount of outstanding Certificates, there shall be subtracted the amount of 
any Certificates that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been 

deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption. 
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Section 2.2. Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(a) The City hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the “City 

of Palestine, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022, 
Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an 

official depository bank of the City separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the 
City. 

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest 

and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of 
the Certificates when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

Section 2.3. Surplus Revenue Fund. 

The City hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the “City of 
Palestine, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022, Surplus 

Revenue Fund” (the “Surplus Revenue Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official 
depository bank of the City separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the City, and 

shall in no event be diverted or drawn upon for any purpose other than those herein provided.  
All Surplus Revenues shall be paid over and deposited into the Surplus Revenue Fund.  The 
Surplus Revenues shall be appropriated and employed in the following order: 

(a) First:  For deposit to the Interest and Sinking Fund to provide for the payment of 
the debt service requirements of the Certificates in accordance with the terms and conditions of 

this Ordinance; and 

(b) Second:  After all the requirements of subparagraph (a) above have been provided 
for, whether by the collection of an ad valorem tax levied in this Ordinance or by the use of the 

pledged Surplus Revenues, the Surplus Revenues may be used for any lawful purpose. 

ARTICLE III 

 
AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 

REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 3.1. Authorization. 

The City’s certificates of obligation to be designated “City of Palestine, Texas, 

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022” (the “Certificates”), are 
hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Texas, specifically Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as 

amended, and the City’s Home-Rule Charter.  The Certificates shall be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of $_________ for the following purposes, to wit: (i) designing, improving, 

constructing, renovating and equipping library facilities, including a new library and the 
purchase of land therefor; (ii) designing, developing, constructing, improving and renovating 
City parks, trails and recreation facilities, (iii) designing, developing, constructing, improving, 

extending, and expanding streets, thoroughfares, sidewalks, bridges, and other public ways of the 
City, including streetscaping, signage, streetlighting, right-of-way protection, utility relocation, 
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and related storm drainage improvements; and acquiring rights-of-way in connection therewith; 
(iv) acquiring equipment and vehicles for police, public works, fire, emergency services, 

building services, planning and development and park and recreation purposes; (v) acquiring and 
installation of City information technology infrastructure and equipment; (vi) designing, 

developing, constructing, improving and renovating City buildings and facilities, including City 
Hall, equipment services facilities, public works facilities, the bathrooms in City buildings and 
facilities, including the purchase of land therefor; (vii) designing, improving, constructing, 

renovating and equipping fire facilities, including a new fire station and the purchase of land 
therefor; (viii) designing, improving, constructing, renovating and equipping police facilities, 

including a new police station; (ix) designing, constructing, acquiring and equipping of a public 
safety training facility; (x) improving and extending the  City’s waterworks and sewer system, 
including infrastructure replacement (items (i) through (x), collectively, the “Project”); (xi) 

professional services incurred in connection with the Project; and (xii) the costs incurred in 
connection with the issuance of the Certificates. 

Section 3.2. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. 

(a) The Certificates shall be dated August 15, 2021 (the “Certificate Date”).  The 
Certificates shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except the 
Initial Certificate, which shall be numbered T-1. 

(b) The Certificates shall mature on either August 15 or February 15, as indicated 
below, in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule: 

$               Serial Certificates 

 
Maturity 

Date 

Principal  

Amount 

Interest  

Rate 

Maturity 

Date 

Principal  

Amount 

Interest  

Rate 
      

8/15/2022   2/15/2037   

2/15/2023   2/15/2038   
2/15/2024   2/15/2039   

2/15/2025   2/15/2040   
2/15/2026   2/15/2041   
2/15/2027   2/15/2042   

2/15/2028   2/15/2043   
2/15/2029   2/15/2044   

2/15/2030   2/15/2045   
2/15/2031   2/15/2046   
2/15/2032   2/15/2047   

2/15/2033   2/15/2048   
2/15/2034   2/15/2049   

2/15/2035   2/15/2050   
2/15/2036   2/15/2051   
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$                Term Certificates 

 

Year 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

 Rate 

20__ $                     % 

 
(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its maturity 

or prior redemption from the later of the Delivery Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date 

to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective 
maturity specified in the schedule contained in subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be 

payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing on August 15, 
2022, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. 

Section 3.3. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates 
shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the 
Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of 
nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new 

record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received 

from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past 
due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) 
shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, 

first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Certificate appearing on the 
Register at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of 

such notice. 

(c) Interest on the Certificates shall be paid by check, dated as of the Interest 
Payment Date, and sent first class United States mail, postage prepaid, by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar to each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such 
other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; 

provided, however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such alternative banking 
arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the 
Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with 

the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due 

date, whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof, upon presentation and 
surrender of such Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates shall 
be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 

Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
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authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking 

institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same 
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall 

be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due 
and payable. 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in 

trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Certificates 
to which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.  

Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after 
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment on the 
Certificates thereafter coming due; to the extent any such moneys remain after the retirement of 

all outstanding Certificates, shall be paid to the City to be used for any lawful purpose.  
Thereafter, neither the City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be liable or 

responsible to any Owners of such Certificates for any further payment of such unclaimed 
moneys or on account of any such Certificates, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.4. Execution and Registration of Certificates. 

(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor and the City 
Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the City shall be 

impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Certificates shall 
have the same effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed manually and in person by 
each of said officers, and such facsimile seal on the Certificates shall have the same effect as if 

the official seal of the City had been manually impressed upon each of the Certificates. 

(b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature 

appears on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates 
or before the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and 
sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears 

thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly 
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the 

Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.  
In lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial 

Certificate delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s 
Registration Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which 

Certificate shall be evidence that the Certificate has been duly approved by the Attorney General 
of the State of Texas, that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City, and that it has been 

registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 
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(d) On the Delivery Date, one Initial Certificate representing the entire principal 
amount of the Certificates, payable in stated installments to the Representative or its designee, 

executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and City Secretary of the City, approved 
by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of 

Public Accounts of the State of Texas, will be delivered to the Representative or its designee.  
Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial 
Certificate and deliver to DTC on behalf of the Representative registered definitive Certificates 

as described in Section 3.10(a). To the extent the Paying Agent/Registrar is eligible to participate 
in DTC’s FAST System, as evidenced by agreement between the Paying Agent/Registrar and 

DTC, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold the definitive Certificates in safekeeping for DTC. 

Section 3.5. Ownership. 

(a) The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person 

in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the 
purpose of making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the 

person in whose name such Certificate is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, 
as applicable), and for all other purposes, whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and neither 
the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the 

contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and 

shall discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to 
the extent of the sums paid. 

Section 3.6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the City shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register in which, subject to 

such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the 
registration and transfer of Certificates in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and 

surrender of the Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Certificate shall be effective until entered in the 
Register. 

(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender 

thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a 
Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or 

denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to 
the unpaid principal amount of the Certificates presented for exchange.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver Certificates exchanged for other 

Certificates in accordance with this Section. 

(d) Each exchange Certificate delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance 

with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the City and shall be 
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entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or 
Certificates in lieu of which such exchange Certificate is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, 
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates.  The 

Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any 
tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the 
registration, transfer, or exchange of a Certificate. 

(f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, 
transfer, or exchange any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, where such 

redemption is scheduled to occur within forty-five (45) calendar days after the transfer or 
exchange date; provided, however, such limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by the 
Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Certificate. 

Section 3.7. Cancellation. 

All Certificates paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this 

Ordinance, and all Certificates in lieu of which exchange Certificates or replacement Certificates 
are authenticated and delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be cancelled and proper 
records made regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or replacement.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall then return such cancelled Certificates to the City or may in accordance 
with law destroy such cancelled Certificates and periodically furnish the City with certificates of 

destruction of such Certificates. 

Section 3.8. Temporary Certificates. 

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending the 

preparation of definitive Certificates, the proper officers of the City may execute and, upon the 
City’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more temporary 

Certificates that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise produced, in 
any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Certificates in lieu of which they 
are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, 

and other variations as the officers of the City executing such temporary Certificates may 
determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Certificates. 

(b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in temporary 
form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 

(c) The City, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar the Certificates in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the 

Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Certificates in temporary form and shall authenticate and 
deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and series, in 
definitive form, in the authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as 

the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made 
without the making of any charge therefor to any Owner. 
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Section 3.9. Replacement Certificates. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 

Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not 

contemporaneously outstanding.  The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner 
of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is 
authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the 

absence of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, 
shall authenticate and deliver a replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, 
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies 

with the following requirements: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 

ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the City harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or 

other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the 
original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for 

payment such original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to 
recover such replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person 
taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security 

or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the 
City or the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully 
taken Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pay such Certificate when it 

becomes due and payable. 

(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall 

constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu 
of which such replacement Certificate is delivered. 
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Section 3.10. Book-Entry Only System.   

(a) The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single 

fully registered Certificate for each of the maturities thereof.  Upon initial issuance, the 
ownership of each such Certificate shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 

DTC, and except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof, all of the outstanding Certificates shall be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 

(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 

DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 
DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in 

the Certificates, except as provided in this Ordinance.  Without limiting the immediately 
preceding sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or 
obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC 

Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC 
Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice 

with respect to the Certificates, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any 
DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown in the Register of any 
amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates.  

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Certificate 

is registered in the Register as the absolute Owner of such Certificate for the purpose of payment 
of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices 
of redemption and other matters with respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of registering 

transfer with respect to such Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates only 

to or upon the order of the respective Owners, as shown in the Register as provided in this 
Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall 
be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s obligations with respect to 

payment of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates to the extent of the sum or sums so 
paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the register, shall receive a certificate 

evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the 

provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or drafts being mailed to the 
registered Owner at the close of business on the Record Date, the word “Cede & Co.” in this 

Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

(c) The Representation Letter previously executed and delivered by the City, and 
applicable to the City’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities 

depository for said obligations, is hereby ratified and approved for the Certificates. 

Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only 

System.   

In the event that the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is incapable 
of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, and that it is 
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in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain 
certificated Certificates, or in the event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the City 

or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act 
as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify 

DTC and DTC Participants, as identified by DTC, of the appointment of such successor 
securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor securities 
depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants, as identified by DTC, of the availability 

through DTC of Certificates and transfer one or more separate Certificates to DTC Participants 
having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts, as identified by DTC.  In such event, the 

Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities 
depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging 

Certificates shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.   

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any 
Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with 
respect to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Certificates, and all notices with 

respect to such Certificates, shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the 
Representation Letter. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.1. Limitation on Redemption. 

The Certificates shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as 

provided in this Article IV. 

Section 4.2. Optional Redemption. 

(a) The City reserves the option to redeem Certificates having stated maturities on or 

after February 15, 2032, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof, on February 15, 2031, or any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal 

amount of the Certificates called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 
redemption. 

(b) The City, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period shall 

be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of such 
redemption date and of the principal amount of Certificates to be redeemed. 

Section 4.3. Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. 

(a) The Certificates maturing on February 15 in the years 20__, 20__, and 20__ (the 
“Term Certificates”) are subject to scheduled mandatory redemption and will be redeemed by the 

City, in part at a price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued 
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interest to the redemption date, out of moneys available for such purpose in the Interest and 
Sinking Fund, on the dates and in the respective principal amounts as set forth below. 

$                  Term Certificates Maturing February 15, 20     
 

Redemption Date Redemption Amount 
  

February 15, 20__ $                        

February 15, 20__* 
 

 

*maturity 
 

(b) At least forty-five (45) days prior to each scheduled mandatory redemption date, 

the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select for redemption by lot, or by any other customary method 
that results in a random selection, a principal amount of Term Certificates equal to the aggregate 

principal amount of such Term Certificates to be redeemed, shall call such Term Certificates for 
redemption on such scheduled mandatory redemption date, and shall give notice of such 
redemption, as provided in Section 4.4. 

The principal amount of the Term Certificates required to be redeemed on any 
redemption date pursuant to subparagraph (a) of this Section 4.00 shall be reduced, at the option 

of the City, by the principal amount of any Term Certificates which, at least 45 days prior to the 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date (i) shall have been acquired by the City at a price not 
exceeding the principal amount of such Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of 

purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, or (ii) shall have 
been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions hereof and not previously credited 
to a mandatory sinking fund redemption. 

Section 4.4. Notice of Redemption to Owners.   

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Certificates by 

sending notice by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the 
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Certificate to be redeemed, at the address shown 
on the Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing of 

such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at 

which the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Certificates 
outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Certificates or portions thereof to be 
redeemed. 

(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 

Section 4.5. Payment Upon Redemption.   

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make 
provision for the payment of the Certificates to be redeemed on such date by setting aside and 
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holding in trust an amount from the Interest and Sinking Fund or otherwise received by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar from the City sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and 

accrued interest on such Certificates. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption at the 

Designated Payment/Transfer Office on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on such 
Certificate to the date of redemption from the money set aside for such purpose. 

Section 4.6. Effect of Redemption.   

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.3 of this 

Ordinance, the Certificates or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and 
payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the City defaults in the payment of the 
principal thereof, premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon, such Certificates or portions 

thereof shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not 
such Certificates are presented and surrendered for payment on such date. 

(b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a 
redemption date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to 
bear interest at the rate stated on the Certificate until due provision is made for the payment of 

same by the City. 

Section 4.7. Conditional Notice of Redemption.   

The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to optionally redeem 
Certificates conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that 
the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an 

amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that 

the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled 
redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and 

redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited 
or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such 

rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Certificates subject 
to conditional redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and 
the rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a 

conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 

default. 



 -18- 
#8082219.2 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.1. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Regions Bank, Houston, Texas is hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar 
for the Certificates. 

Section 5.2. Qualifications. 

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized 
under the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve 

as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Certificates. 

Section 5.3. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) At all times while any of the Certificates are outstanding, the City will maintain a 

Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.2 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar 

specifying the duties and responsibilities of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar in 
substantially the form presented at this meeting, such form of agreement being hereby approved.  
The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary of the City. 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the 
City will promptly appoint a replacement. 

Section 5.4. Termination. 

The City, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the 
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to 

be terminated written notice of such termination. 

Section 5.5. Notice of Change to Owners. 

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the City will 
cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner and any bond insurer by first class United 
States mail, postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of 

the change and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.6. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar and executing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Paying Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the 
provisions of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and functions of Paying 

Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby. 



 -19- 
#8082219.2 

Section 5.7. Delivery of Records to Successor. 

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent, promptly upon the 

appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 6.1. Form Generally. 

(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 

Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the 
Assignment form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be substantially in the form set 
forth in this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other 

variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance, and (ii) may have such letters, 
numbers, or other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the 

Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers 
Association) and such legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of 
counsel) thereon as, consistently herewith, may be determined by the City or by the officers 

executing such Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side 

thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates.  

(c) The definitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or 

produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such 
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas 
may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.  

Section 6.2. Form of the Certificates. 

The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall be substantially 
as follows: 
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(a) Form of Certificate. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 

No. _____ $_________  
United States of America 

State of Texas 
Anderson County 

CITY OF PALESTINE, TEXAS 

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 

SERIES 2022 
(FORWARD DELIVERY) 

 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: CLOSING DATE: CUSIP NO. 
__________% ________ 15, 20__ January 4, 2022 __________ 

The City of Palestine (the “City”), in Anderson County, State of Texas, for value 
received, hereby promises to pay to 

________________________________ 

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 

________________________ DOLLARS 

unless this Certificate shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the 
principal hereof shall have been paid or provision for such payment shall have been made, and to 
pay interest on such principal amount from the later of the Delivery Date specified above or the 

most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for until payment 
of such principal amount has been paid or provided for, at the per annum rate of interest 

specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, such interest 
to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 
2022. 

The principal of this Certificate shall be payable without exchange or collection charges 
in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this 

Certificate at the corporate trust office in Houston, Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer 
Office”), of Regions Bank or, with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of such successor.  Interest on this Certificate is payable by 

check dated as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to 
the registered owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar or by such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear 
all risk and expenses of such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at 

least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the 
bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the 

payment of interest on this Certificate, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name 
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this Certificate is registered at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last 
business day of the month next preceding such interest payment date; provided, however, that in 

the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a 
new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received 
from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past 
due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which date shall be 15 days after the Special Record 

Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States 
mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Certificate appearing on the 

books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 

authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking 
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same 

force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

This Certificate is one of a series of fully registered certificates dated August 15, 2021, 

specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $_______ (herein referred 
to as the “Certificates”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the City (the “Ordinance”) for 
the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for authorized public improvements 

(the “Project”), as described in the Ordinance, and to pay the contractual obligations for 
professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other professionals in connection with 

the Project and the issuance of the Certificates. 

The City has reserved the option to redeem the Certificates maturing on or after 
February 15, 2032, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 

February 15, 2031, or any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the 
Certificates so called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If less 

than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed, the City shall determine the maturity or maturities 
and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot 
the Certificates, or portions thereof, within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for 

redemption. 

[The Certificates maturing on February 15, 20__ (the “Term Certificates”), are subject to 

mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their scheduled maturity, and will be redeemed by 
the City, in part at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, 
plus interest accrued to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal amounts shown in 

the following schedule: 
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Term Certificates Maturing September 15, 20      
 

Redemption Date Principal Amount 
  

February  15, 20__      $  
February  15, 20__  

 

The Paying Agent/Registrar will select by lot or by any other customary method that 
results in a random selection the specific Term Certificates (or with respect to Term Certificates 

having a denomination in excess of $5,000, each $5,000 portion thereof) to be redeemed by 
mandatory redemption.  The principal amount of Term Certificates required to be redeemed on 
any redemption date pursuant to the foregoing mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions 

hereof shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any Certificates 
which, at least 45 days prior to the mandatory sinking fund redemption date (i) shall have been 

acquired by the City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Certificates plus 
accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 
cancellation, or (ii) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions 

hereof and not previously credited to a mandatory sinking fund redemption.] 

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be sent by United States mail, first class 

postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered 
owner of each of the Certificates to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Notice having been so 
given, the Certificates or portions thereof designated for redemption shall become due and 

payable on the redemption date specified in such notice, and from and after such date, 
notwithstanding that any of the Certificates or portions thereof so called for redemption shall not 

have been surrendered for payment, interest on such Certificates or portions thereof shall cease 
to accrue. 

The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to optionally redeem 

Certificates conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that 
the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an 

amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that 
the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled 

redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and 

redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited 
or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such 
rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Certificates subject 

to conditional redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and 
the rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a 

conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this 
Certificate is transferable upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the designated office of 
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the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the 

same stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the 
same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or 
exchange any Certificate called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur 
within forty five (45) calendar days of the transfer or exchange date; provided, however, such 

limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled 
principal balance of a Certificate. 

The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose 
name this Certificate is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as 
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Certificate is 

registered on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this Certificate be 
overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected by notice to the 

contrary.  

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Certificate and the 
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions, and things to be 

done precedent to and in the issuance of the Certificates have been properly done and performed 
and have happened in regular and due time, form, and manner as required by law; that ad 

valorem taxes upon all taxable property in the City have been levied for and pledged to the 
payment of the debt service requirements of the Certificates within the limit prescribed by law; 
that, in addition to said taxes, further provisions have been made for the payment of the debt 

service requirements of the Certificates by pledging to such purpose Surplus Revenues, as 
defined in the Ordinance, derived by the City from the operation of the combined waterworks 

and sewer system; that when so collected, such taxes and Surplus Revenues shall be appropriated 
to such purposes; and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the Certificates, does not 
exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate to be executed by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or 

facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the City has been duly 
impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate.  

 

 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 

City Secretary, City of Palestine, Texas  Mayor, City of Palestine, Texas 
 
[SEAL] 
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(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s 

Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Certificates if such certificate on the 
Initial Certificate is fully executed. 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER  § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS   § REGISTER NO. _________ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 

 
I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney 

General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Certificate has been examined by him as 
required by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws 
of the State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City of Palestine, Texas; 

and that this Certificate has this day been registered by me. 

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, __________________. 

 
____________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

   of the State of Texas 
[SEAL] 

 
(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial 

Certificate if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon. 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this series 
of certificates of obligation was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and 
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the 

Certificates referred to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

REGIONS BANK, 

as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 

Dated: _______________________  By:        
        Authorized Signatory 
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(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 

typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee): ___________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Certificate 
and all rights hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

____________________ attorney to transfer the within Certificate on the books kept for 
registration hereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
  

Dated: ____________________________ 
Signature Guaranteed By: 

___________________________________ 
___________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory 

NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 

registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Certificate in every particular and 
must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to 

the Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 

(e) The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) 
of this Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Certificate the headings “INTEREST 

RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the expression “As 
shown below” and the reference to the “CUSIP NO. __” shall be deleted;  

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Certificate, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and 
the following will be inserted: “on the maturity dates shown below, in the principal 

installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following 
schedule:  

Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate 
(Information to be inserted from Section 3.2 hereof). 

(iii) the Initial Certificate shall be numbered T-1. 

Section 6.3. CUSIP Registration. 

The City may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Global Services managed 

by S&P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of The American Bankers Association, and may 
authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Certificates.  It is expressly provided, 
however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Certificates shall be of no 

significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the City nor the attorneys 
approving said Certificates as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers 

incorrectly printed on the Certificates. 
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Section 6.4. Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond Counsel, may be attached to or 

printed on the reverse side of each Certificate over the certification of the City Secretary of the 
City, which may be executed in facsimile. 

Section 6.5. Bond Insurance. 

Information pertaining to bond insurance, if any, may be printed on each Certificate. 

ARTICLE VII 

 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

Section 7.1. Sale of Certificates; Official Statement.   

(a) The Certificates are hereby officially sold and awarded to the Underwriters in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of that certain Forward Delivery Purchase Contract 

relating to the Certificates between the District and the Underwriters and dated the date of the 
passage of this Ordinance.  The form and content of such Forward Delivery Purchase Contract 

are hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 
such Forward Delivery Purchase Contract.  It is hereby officially found, determined and declared 
that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably obtainable.  The Certificates 

shall initially be registered in the name of the Huntington Capital Markets, Inc., as 
Representative of the Underwriters, or its designee. 

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Certificates 
and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) and 
the final Official Statement (the “Official Statement”) presented to and considered at this 

meeting, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted, and the Preliminary Official Statement 
is hereby deemed final as of its date (except for the omission of pricing and related information) 

within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, by the City Council.  The use and distribution of the 
Preliminary Official Statement in the public offering of the Certificates by the Underwriter is 

hereby authorized.  The City Manager, the Finance Director, the Mayor and the City Secretary of 
the City are hereby authorized and directed to use and distribute or authorize the use and 

distribution of the final Official Statement and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto 
(the “Official Statement”) and to execute the same and deliver appropriate numbers of executed 
copies thereof to the Underwriter of the Certificates.  The Official Statement as thus approved, 

executed and delivered, with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the City 
Manager, the Finance Director, the Mayor of the City and the Underwriters, may be used by the 

Underwriters in the public offering and sale thereof.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized and 
directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any addenda, supplement 
or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this meeting.   

(c) All officers of the City are authorized to execute such documents, certificates and 
receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Certificates in 

accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with the submission of the 
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record of proceedings for the Certificates to the Attorney General of the State of Texas for 
examination and approval of such Certificates, the appropriate officer of the City is hereby 

authorized and directed to issue a check of the City payable to the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas as a nonrefundable examination fee in the amount required by Chapter 1202, Texas 

Government Code (such amount to be the lesser of (i) 1/10th of 1% of the principal amount of 
the Certificates or (ii) $9,500). 

(d) The obligation of the Underwriters to accept delivery of the Certificates is subject 

to the Underwriters being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond 
Counsel for the City, which opinion shall be dated and delivered on the Closing Date. The Mayor 

and the City Manager are each hereby authorized and directed to execute a bond counsel 
engagement letter with Bracewell LLP, setting forth such firm’s duties as Bond Counsel for the 
City, and such engagement letter and the terms thereof in the form presented at this meeting is 

hereby approved and accepted. 

Section 7.2. Control and Delivery of Certificates. 

(a) The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial 
Certificate and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, 
examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange 
or transfer by, the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the 
Certificates shall be made to the Underwriter under and subject to the general supervision and 
direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the City of all amounts due to the City under the terms 

of sale. 

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute 

any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City 
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and 
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for 

the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed 
by the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively. 

Section 7.3. Deposit of Proceeds. 

(a) $_________ of Certificate proceeds (representing the principal amount of the 
Certificates plus premium in the amount of $__________ generated on the Certificates) shall be 

deposited to the Project Fund and shall be used for the purposes described in Section 3.1(i) and 
(ii) of this Ordinance. 

(b) $_________ of Certificate proceeds (representing premium generated in 
connection with the issuance of the Certificates) shall be applied to the payment of costs of 
issuance of the Certificates as specified in Section 3.1(iii) of this Ordinance.  Any proceeds 

remaining after payment of cost of issuance shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 



 -28- 
#8082219.2 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.1. Investments. 

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund or the Surplus Revenue Fund created by 
this Ordinance, at the option of the City, may be invested in such securities or obligations as 
permitted under applicable law. 

(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and 
held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be 

timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from the fund from which the 
investment was made. 

Section 8.2. Investment Income. 

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund and 
the Surplus Revenue Fund shall be credited to their respective funds. 

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant 
to Section 7.3 hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or 
construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income 

are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

ARTICLE IX 

 
PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.1. Payment of the Certificates. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date while any of the Certificates are outstanding and 
unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the Interest and 

Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, and interest on the Certificates as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment 
Date, Maturity Date, and if applicable, on a date of prior redemption. 

Section 9.2. Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The City will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, undertakings, 

stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Certificate; the City will 
promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on 
each Certificate on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Certificate; and the 

City will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be 
deposited the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance. 

(b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the 
Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly 
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and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be 
valid and enforceable obligations of the City in accordance with their terms. 

Section 9.3. Federal Tax Matters. 

(a) General.  The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action 

that, if taken or omitted would cause the interest on the Certificates to be includable in gross 
income, for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the City covenants to comply 
with sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the provisions set forth in the Federal 

Tax Certificate executed by the City in connection with the Certificates. 

(b) No Private Activity Bonds.  The City covenants that it will use the proceeds of the 

Certificates (including investment income) and the property financed, directly or indirectly, with 
such proceeds so that the Certificates will not be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of 
section 141 of the Code.  Furthermore, the City will not take a deliberate action (as defined in 

section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the Regulations) that causes the Certificates to be a “private activity 
bond” unless it takes a remedial action permitted by section 1.141-12 of the Regulations. 

(c) No Federal Guarantee.  The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take 
any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Certificates to be “federally guaranteed” 
within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the 

Code. 

(d) No Hedge Bonds.  The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take action 

that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Certificates to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning of 
section 149(g) of the Code.   

(e) No Arbitrage Bonds.  The City covenants that it will make such use of the 

proceeds of the Certificates (including investment income) and regulate the investment of such 
proceeds of the Certificates so that the Certificates will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the 

meaning of section 148(a) of the Code.   

(f) Required Rebate.  The City covenants that, if the City does not qualify for an 
exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, the City will comply with the 

requirement that certain amounts earned by the City on the investment of the gross proceeds of 
the Certificates, be rebated to the United States.   

(g) Information Reporting.  The City covenants to file or cause to be filed with the 
Secretary of the Treasury an information statement concerning the Certificates in accordance 
with section 149(e) of the Code. 

(h) Record Retention.  The City covenants to retain all material records relating to the 
expenditure of the proceeds (including investment income) of the Certificates and the use of the 

property financed, directly or indirectly, thereby until three years after the last Certificate is 
redeemed or paid at maturity (or such other period as provided by subsequent guidance issued by 
the Department of the Treasury) in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout such 

retention period.   
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(i) Registration.  If the Certificates are “registration-required bonds” under section 
149(a)(2) of the Code, the Certificates will be issued in registered form. 

(j) Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City 
will not be required to comply with any of the federal tax covenants set forth above if the City 

has received an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such noncompliance will not 
adversely affect the excludability of interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

(k) Continuing Compliance.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, 
the City’s obligations under the federal tax covenants set forth above will survive the defeasance 

and discharge of the Certificates for as long as such matters are relevant to the excludability of 
interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

ARTICLE X 

 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.1. Events of Default. 

(a) Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is 
hereby declared to be an Event of Default: 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, or interest on any of the Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, 
agreement, or obligation of the City, which default materially and adversely affects the 
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in 

accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) 
days after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the City. 

Section 10.2. Remedies for Default. 

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized 
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed 

against the City for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this 
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any 

court of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific 
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing 
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of 

such remedies. 

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the 

equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding. 
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Section 10.3. Remedies Not Exclusive. 

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other 

available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law 

or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the 
right to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under 
this Ordinance. 

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other available remedy. 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 11.1. Discharge. 

The Certificates may be defeased, discharged or refunded in any manner permitted by 

applicable law. 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.1. Annual Reports. 

(a) The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the end 
of each fiscal year of the City, financial information and operating data with respect to the City 
of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being information described in the 

Appendix A as Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 14, including financial statements of 
the City if audited financial statements of the City are then available, and (2) if not provided as 

part such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the City within 
12 months after the end of each fiscal year, when and if available.  Any financial statements to be 
provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the accounting principles appended to the 

Official Statement, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ 
from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and (ii) audited, if the City commissions an 

audit of such financial statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they 
must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within 12 months 
after any such fiscal year end, then the City shall file unaudited financial statements within such 

12-month period and audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the 
audit report on such statements becomes available. 

(b) If the City changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of 
the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 
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(c) All financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices 
required by this Section to be provided to the MSRB shall be provided in an electronic format 

and be accompanied by identifying information prescribed by the MSRB. Financial information 
and operating data to be provided pursuant to Section may be set forth in full in one or more 

documents or may be included by specific reference to any document (including an official 
statement or other offering document) available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Web site 
or filed with the SEC. 

Section 12.2. Notice of Certain Events.   

(a) The City shall provide the following to the MSRB, in an electronic format as 

prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the 
occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Certificates, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Certificates; 

(vii)  Modifications to rights of the holders of the Certificates, if material; 

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) Defeasances; 

(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Certificates, if material; 

(xi) Rating changes; 

(xii)  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 

(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
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action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 
pursuant to its terms, if material;  

(xiv) Appointment of successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the 
change of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material;  

(xv) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

(xvi) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

Any event described in (xii), is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the 
appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding 

under the U.S. Bankruptcy code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a 
court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing 
governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of 
a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 

arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person; and the City 

intends the words used in the immediately preceding paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition 
of Financial Obligations in those sections to have the same meanings as when they are used in 
rule and sec release no. 34-83885, dated August 20, 2018. 

(b) The City shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the 
MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the City to provide required annual financial 

information and notices of material events in accordance with Section 12.1 and subsection (a) 
above.  All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by 
identifying information, as prescribed by the MSRB, and will be available via EMMA at 

www.emma.msrb.org. 

Section 12.3. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  

(a) The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this 
Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with 
respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will 

give notice of any deposit made in accordance with Article XI that causes Certificates no longer 
to be Outstanding. 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit 
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City 

undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and 
notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby 

undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete 
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presentation of the City’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update 
any information provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly 

provided herein.  The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning such 
information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 

ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND 

REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT 
OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

(c) No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this 
Article shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise 
limit the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, 

or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the 
provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or 
sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking 

into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as 
well as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate 

principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that 
authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or 
(B) a person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) 

determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and 
beneficial owners of the Certificates.  If the City so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall 

include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance 
with Section 12.1 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the 
impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided. 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 13.1. Amendments. 

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the City, and 

shall not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Certificate remains outstanding 
except as permitted in this Section.  The City may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, 

from time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the 
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interests of the Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or 
omission herein.  In addition, the City may, with the written consent of the Owners of the 

Certificates holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then 
outstanding, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, 

without the consent of all Owners of outstanding Certificates, no such amendment, addition, or 
rescission shall (i) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Certificates, reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest 

thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the 
Certificates, (ii) give any preference to any Certificate over any other Certificate, or (iii) reduce 

the aggregate principal amount of Certificates required to be held by Owners for consent to any 
such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

ARTICLE XIV 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 14.1. Changes to Ordinance.   

The Mayor, the City Manager and the Finance Director, in consultation with Bond 
Counsel, are each hereby authorized to make changes to the terms of this Ordinance if necessary 

or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the issuance of 
the Certificates by the Attorney General of Texas. 

Section 14.2. Partial Invalidity.   

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, 

clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance. 

Section 14.3. No Personal Liability.   

No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or interest on any Certificates or 
for any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or employee of the City or 
any person executing any Certificates.  

ARTICLE XV 
 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

Section 15.1. Effective Immediately. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the City Charter, this Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption at this meeting pursuant to Section 1201.028, Texas Government 
Code. 
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EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Article are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other 
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 

1. The audited financial statements of the City for the most recently concluded fiscal 
year. 

2. Statistical and financial data set forth in Tables 1-6 and 8-14 in the Official 
Statement. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Article are the accounting principles 
described in the notes to the financial statements set forth in Appendix B to the Official 

Statement. 

 

 



Agenda Date: August 25, 2021
To: City Council
From: Teresa Herrera, City Manager
Agenda Item: Allocation of cost savings on Health Benefits
Date Submitted:

SUMMARY:
Attached is the information for our upcoming benefit renewals.  We need Council to determine how to divide the
cost savings.  Also, we have Dental numbers.  Our rates were locked in, and they were actually higher than 2020,
however, we had a COVID rebate and applied it to keep the costs the same as what we paid for MetLife in 2020. 
Our broker went back to BCBS to get a reduction and was successful in getting a reduction, but it will still result in
a small increase in the dental premiums. The updated premiums are in the ‘Revised Renewal BCBS Premium’
column. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends Council make a decision on how to divide the cost savings.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Attachments
Health Benefits 
Dental Update 



CITY OF PALESTINE

BCBS/METLIFE/MOO BCBS/MOO BCBS/MOO
PLAN TYPE 10/1/19-9/30/20 10/1/20-9/30/21 10/1/21-9/30/22
Medical $1,395,878 $1,326,073 $1,216,672 
Dental $77,327 $102,626 $102,626 
Basic Life $16,349 $16,349 $16,349 
LTD $22,455 $19,668 $19,668 
TOTALS $1,512,009 $1,464,716 $1,355,316

ll. Top 5 Operating Expenses are automatically updated in Top5Expenses table, below.

YEAR OVER YEAR PLAN COSTS
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Carrier
Plan
Network
Benefit In Out In Out In Out In Out
Annual Deductible

Individual $2,000 $4,000 $1,000 $2,000 $2,000 $4,000 $1,000 $2,000
Family $6,000 $12,000 $3,000 $6,000 $6,000 $12,000 $3,000 $6,000

Out-Of-Pocket Limit
Individual $6,650 $15,000 $7,350 $15,000 $6,650 $15,000 $7,350 $15,000
Family $7,350 $30,000 $14,700 $30,000 $7,350 $30,000 $14,700 $30,000

Coinsurance 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50%
Office Visits/Exams

Primary Care Physican 80% 50% $30 Copay 50% 80% 50% $30 Copay 50%
Specialist Care Physician 80% 50% $50 Copay 50% 80% 50% $50 Copay 50%
Lab/X-Ray (Outpatient) 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50%
Preventive 100% 50% 100% 50% 100% 50% 100% 50%

Urgent Care 80% 50% $50 Copay 50% 80% 50% $50 Copay 50%
Emergency Room 80% 50% $75 Copay $75 Copay 80% 50% $75 Copay $75 Copay
Inpatient Hospital 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50% 80% 50%
Prescription Drugs

Generic $10 Copay 50% $10 Copay 50%
Preferred Brand $40 Copay 50% $40 Copay 50%
Non-Preferred Brand $60 Copay 50% $60 Copay 50%
Preferred Specialty $60 Copay 50% $60 Copay 50%
Non-Preferred Specialty $75 Copay 50% $75 Copay 50%

Employee Only
Employee + Spouse
Employee + Child(ren)
Employee + Family

Monthly Premium
Annual Premium
TOTAL PREMIUM
Increase/Decrease Cost
Increase/Decrease Percentage

Employee Only
Employee + Spouse
Employee + Child(ren)
Employee + Family

Total

-$109,438
-8.25%

C
EN

SU
S

89 56
2 1
4 2
0 0

95 59

$776,152 $549,921 $712,099 $504,537
$1,326,073 $1,216,636

$1,985.21 $2,291.37 $1,821.38 $2,102.28
$64,679 $45,827 $59,342 $42,045

$1,626.13 $1,292.59 $1,491.94
$1,216.74 $1,404.38 $1,116.33 $1,288.48

80%
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BlueEdge HSA Insured PPO Insured Cost Standard BlueEdge HSA Insured

PL
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80% 80%
80% 80%
80% 80%
80% 80%
80%

$1,408.85

PPO Insured Cost Standard

$640.39 $739.14 $587.54 $678.14

BlueEdge HSA Insured PPO Insured Cost Standard BlueEdge HSA Insured PPO Insured Cost Standard

Blue Choice Blue Choice Blue Choice Blue Choice

Current Renewal



Carrier: BCBS Renewal Date: 10/1/2021

Medical 
Subscribers

Medical 
Members

Premium
Monthly Medical 

Paid Claims
Monthly Rx Paid 

Claims
VBC Payments

Total Monthly 
Claims

155 172 113,359.00$               41,393.00$                 3,444.00$                   20.00$                       44,857.00$                 

152 166 110,191.00$               30,827.00$                 3,799.00$                   23.00$                       34,649.00$                 

153 167 110,733.00$               316,629.00$               7,826.00$                   26.00$                       324,481.00$               

157 168 112,718.00$               26,268.00$                 3,092.00$                   156.00$                     29,516.00$                 

157 168 112,078.00$               17,066.00$                 6,429.00$                   166.00$                     23,661.00$                 

160 171 114,738.00$               69,791.00$                 9,898.00$                   162.00$                     79,851.00$                 

157 170 112,427.00$               38,966.00$                 4,143.00$                   165.00$                     43,274.00$                 

154 167 110,506.00$               19,349.00$                 8,121.00$                   152.00$                     27,622.00$                 

157 173 113,004.00$               127,317.00$               1,541.00$                   152.00$                     129,010.00$               

1,009,754.00$          687,606.00$             48,293.00$               1,022.00$                 736,921.00$             

156 169 112,194.89$               76,400.67$                 5,365.89$                   113.56$                     81,880.11$                 

LOSS RATIO: 73.0%

AVERAGES

December-20

January-21

February-21

March-21

April-21

May-21

June-21

July-21

August-21

September-21

TOTALS

November-20

CITY OF PALESTINE

Monthly Claims Report

10/1/20-9/30/21

Month

October-20



Carrier: BCBS Renewal Date: 10/1/2021

Relationship Age / Gender Band IP Paid OP Paid
Professional 

Paid
RX Paid TOTAL PAID

Currently 
Enrolled

Dependent Male <1-19 246,120$             6,016$                19,650$              709$                   272,495$           Yes

Employee Male 40-49 102,351$             6,949$                11,599$              3$                      120,902$           Yes

Employee Female 40-49 -$                   57,377$              25,241$              4,024$                86,642$             Yes

CITY OF PALESTINE

Large Claimants

10/1/20-9/30/21



Carrier

Plan

Benefit In Out In Out In Out In Out

Annual Deductible

Individual $50 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50

Family $150 $150 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50

Coinsurance

Preventative 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Basic 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

Major 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Orthodontia 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Calendar Year Maximum

Orthodontia Lifetime Maximum

Employee Only

Employee + Spouse

Employee + Child(ren)

Employee + Family

Monthly Premium

Annual Premium

COST DIFFERENTIAL

COST DIFFERENTIAL (%)

Employee Only

Employee + Spouse

Employee + Child(ren)

Employee + Family

Total

Revised

BCBS

$27.73

$57.00

$67.80

Renewal

BCBS

Dental

$1,500

$1,500

Current Renewal
P
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Original

$1,500 $1,500

$1,500 $1,500

BCBS

Dental Dental

Annual Metlife - BCBSTX Difference 2021/2022

$6,490.20

$79.24

$122.14 $122.14

$0.00

$104.50

$7,317

$87,807.72

-$14,818.56

-14.4%

$79.24

$6,776

$81,317.52

$96.78
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$8,552 $8,552

$102,626.28 $102,626.28

$66.61 $66.61

BCBS

$32.41 $32.41
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2019-20

MetLife

MetLife

Dental

$1,500

$1,500

MetLife

$25.68

$52.78

$62.79
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